
POLK CITY 

City Commission Workshop (6 pm) 
City Commission Meeting (7 pm) 

October 21, 2019 Polk City Government Center 
123 Broadway Blvd., SE 

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Joe LaCascia 

INVOCATION - Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Joe LaCascia 

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 

APPROVECONSENTAGENDA 

PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

PUBLIC COMMENT - ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3 minutes) 

AGENDA 

1. PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-06 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, 
amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Revising the Future Land Use 
Element to add the Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use; and transmitting 
said Amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for Finding of 
Compliance; Providing for Severability; Providing for Conflict; and Providing for an 
Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 

2. PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-07 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida 
amending the Polk City Land Development Code, amending Article 2, regulations for 
specific districts, including adding a new Zoning District as Section 2.04.02.17 MU 
Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; providing for Repeal; Severability; and 
an Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 

3. PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-13 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida; 
amending the Final Budget; Reallocating and Reappropriating monies within the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019; providing for all other items in the budget of 
expenses to remain unchanged; providing for severability; providing for an effective 
date. First Reading 

4. Resolution 2019-05 - Approving the execution of an Inter-Governmental 
Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation regarding the 
maintenance of the State Road Rights of Way in Polk City; and providing an 
effective date. 

5. Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for COBG Program 

6. Planning Services Agreement - Central Florida Regional Planning Council 

https://2.04.02.17


7. Audit Services Agreement - Brynulfson, CPA, PA 

8. Polk County Sheriff's Office lnterlocal Agreement for Dispatcher Services 

9. 2019 City Manager Evaluation 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS 

1. Closing of S.R 33 for Christmas Parade, Saturday, December 7, 2019 
2. Advertise - Consultant for CDBG Program 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 

COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
Vice Mayor Kimsey 
Commissioner Blethen 
Commissioner Carroll 
Commissioner Harper 
Mayor LaCascia 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Please note: Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the 
City Commission with respect to any matter considered during this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, a person with disabilities needing any 
special accommodations to participate in city meetings should contact the Office of the City Clerk, Polk City 
Government Center, 123 Broadway, Polk City, Florida 33868 Telephone (863) 984-1375. The City of Polk City may 
take action on any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within this agenda. Minutes of 
the City Commission meetings may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but are not 
transcribed verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may arrange with the City Clerk to duplicate the 
recordings, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter 
will be at the expense of the requesting party. 



CONSENT AGENDA 
October 21, 2019 

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT 
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, 
and add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever 
category best applies to the subject. 

A. CITY CLERK 
1. Accept minutes - September 12, 2019 - Budget Hearing - 1st Reading 
2. Accept minutes - September 16, 2019 - City Commission Workshop 
3. Accept minutes - September 16, 2019- City Commission Meeting 
4. Accept minutes - September 24, 2019 - Final Budget Hearing 

B. REPORTS 
1. Building Permits Report - September 2019 
2. Code Enforcement Report - September 2019 
3. Financial Report- September 2019 
4. Library Report- September 2019 
5. Polk County Fire Rescue - September 2019 
6. Polk Sheriff's Report - September 2019 
7. Public Works Report- September 2019 
8. Utilities Report- July/September 2019 

C. OTHER 



City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for: 

1. Accept minutes - September 12, 2019- Budget Hearing - 1st Reading 
2. Accept minutes - September 16, 2019- Regular City Commission Meeting 
3. Accept minutes- September 16, 2019- City Commission Workshop 
4. Accept minutes - September 24, 2019 - Final Budget Hearing 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Accept minutes - September 12, 2019 - Budget Hearing -1 st Reading 
2. Accept minutes - September 16, 2019 - Regular City Commission Meeting 
3. Accept minutes - September 16, 2019- City Commission Workshop 
4. Accept minutes - September 24, 2019 - Final Budget Hearing 

ANALYSIS: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes 



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

BUDGET HEARING 
September 12, 2019 

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike 
Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper and 
City Manager Jackson 

Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 - AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
ADOPTING THE LEVYING OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR POLK CITY FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019-2020 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading. 

City Manager Jackson read Ordinance 2019-10 by title only. 

City Manager Jackson advised the Polk City's certified value is $162,781,114.00. The 
FY 2019-2020 operating millage rate for Polk City is 6.0000 mills. The rollback rate 
computed for Polk City for FY 2019-2020 is 6.6487 mills; therefore, the percentage by 
which the above specified final millage rate to be levied by Polk City is -9.76 percent of 
the roll back rate. 

Mayor LaCascia. opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this 
ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the Ordinance 2019-10; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Harper. 

Vote: Mayor LaCascia - aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey - aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, 
Commissioner Blethen - aye, Commissioner Harper - aye 

Motion carried 5/0. 

ORDINANCE 2019-11 - AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, PROVIDING 
FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading 

https://162,781,114.00


City Manager Jackson read Ordinance 2019-11 by title only. 

City Manager Jackson advised the total budget for FY 2019-2020 is $6,201,331.00. 
Various revenues accruing to Polk City and set aside for the purpose of paying 
expenses and maintaining the Government of Polk City for FY 2019-2020. 

City Manager Jackson stated the second and final reading of the FY 2019-2020 Budget 
will be Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 7:00 pm. 

Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this 
ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Blethen inquired about the City's debt and how it's paid. 

City Manager Jackson responded paying down the debt comes out of Unrestricted 
Funds. 

Brief discussion ensued. 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2019-11; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Carroll. 

Vote: Commissioner Harper - aye, Commissioner Blethen - nay, Commissioner Carroll 
- aye, Mayor LaCascia - aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey - aye 

Motion carried 4/1. 

The meeting adjourned at 7: 15 p.m. 

Patricia R Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

2 

https://6,201,331.00


CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MINUTES 

September 16, 2019 

Mayor LaCascia called the Workshop to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Joe LaCascia. 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vica Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike 
Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper, City 
Attorney Thomas Cloud and City Manager Patricia Jackson 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Agenda Review - City Commission Meeting - September 16, 2019 

Mayor LaCascia stated the purpose of the Workshop is to discuss items being 
presented on the 7pm Regular Meeting Agenda and address any questions or concerns 
and ultimately be able to proceed in a more efficient manner at the Regular Meeting. 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-06 
An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, 
Revising the Future Land Use Element to add the Future Land Use Designation of 
Mixed Use; and transmitting said Amendment to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity for Finding of Compliance; Providing for Severability; Providing for Conflict; 
and Providing for an Effective Date. First Reading 

This item will be tabled. 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-07 
An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida amending the Polk City Land Development Code, 
amending Article 2, regulations for specific districts, including adding a new Zoning 
District as Section 2.04.02.17 MU Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; 
Repealer; Severability; and an Effective Date. First Reading 

This item will be tabled. 

Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-12 
An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Code o Ordinances and the 
Unified Land Development Code of Polk City, Florida; amending Article 3, Development 
Design and Improvement Standards, to add a new Section 3.08.00, Water Conservation 
for Landscape Irrigation, Irrigation System Design and Installation Standards, Efficient 
Plumbing Requirements; providing for repeal of conflicting Ordinances; providing for 
severability; providing an effective date, First Reading 

https://2.04.02.17


Jennifer Coda-Salisbury provided a presentation regarding Florida Water Star Program. 
SWFWMD staff will be at the Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm to provide a thorough 
explanation about water conservation and the Florida Water Star Program. 

Commissioner Blethen shared concerns regarding just receiving this information, 
stressing the need for the public to be more informed. 

City Attorney Cloud, City Manager Jackson, Mayor LaCascia and Kathy Delp, 
Development Services Director provided a detailed explanation on the process of the 
Florida Water Star Program. 

Lengthy discussion ensued. 

Bid Award - Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks - Mt. Olive Estates WTP 
City Manager Jackson discussed the bid award for replacement of the two 
Hydropneumatic tanks at Mt. Olive Estates V\/TP (Jacobs Water Plant). There were a 
total of eight bids received. Sealed Bids were received and opened on September 10, 
2019. 

The two low bids are: 
-Jan and Jeff Services Inc. - $124,934.00 
-Utility Technicians - $127,074.00 

The lowest bid is from Jan & Jeff Services Inc. in the amount of $124,934.00; the bids 
are on file in the City Manager's Office. 

Jan & Jeff Services Inc representatives will be present at the 7pm meeting to discuss 
their experience and address any questions from the Commission . 

Discussion ensued. 

Presentation of the Financial Statement for year ending September 30, 2018 -
Audit - Mike Brynjulfson 

This item was not discussed. 

ADJOURNMENT - 6:53 pm 

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

2 

https://124,934.00
https://127,074.00
https://124,934.00


CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

September 16, 2019 

Mayor Joe LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Pastor Walter Lawlor gave the invocation. 

Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor LaCascia. 

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike 
Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper, City 
Attorney Thomas Cloud and City Manager Patricia Jackson 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the Consent Agenda; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Carroll. Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 

PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS- None 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

PUBLIC HEARING-ORDINANCE 2019-06 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, 
amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Revising the Future Land Use Element to 
add the Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use; and transmitting said Amendment 
to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for Finding of Compliance; Providing 
for Severability; Providing for Conflict; and Providing for an Effective Date. Second and 
Final Reading 

This item was Tabled. 

PUBLIC HEARING-ORDINANCE 2019-07 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida 
amending the Polk City Land Development Code, amending Article 2, regulations for 
specific districts, including adding a new Zoning District as Section 2.04.02.17 MU 
Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; Repealer; Severability; and an Effective 
Date. Second and Final Reading 

This item was Tabled. 

https://2.04.02.17


PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2019-12 -Amend the Polk City Code of Ordinances 
and the Unified Land Development Code of Polk City, Florida, amending Article 3, 
Development Design and Improvement Standards, to add a new section 3.08.00, Water 
Conservation for Landscape Irrigation, Irrigation System Design and Installation 
Standards, and Efficient Plumbing Requirements. First Reading 

City Attorney Cloud read the Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the 
Public Hearing; hearing no one speak for or against this Ordinance, Mayor LaCascia 
closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2019-12 on First Reading; 
this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. 

Robin Grantham (SWFWMD) provided an overview of the Florida Water Star Program 
and addressed any questions or concerns regarding this Ordinance. 

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Harper - aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey - aye, Mayor 
LaCascia - aye, Commissioner Carroll - aye, Commissioner 
Blethen - aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Bid Award - Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks - Mt. Olive Estates 

City Manager Jackson discussed the bid award for replacement of the two 
Hydropneumatic tanks at Mt. Olive Estates. There were a total of eight bids received. 
Sealed Bids were received and opened on September 10, 2019. 

The low bid is from Jan & Jeff Services Inc. in the amount of $124,934.00; the bids are 
on file in the City Manager's Office. 

Jan & Jeff Services Inc representatives were present to discuss their experience, the 
replacement process and addressed questions from the Commission. 

Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the Bid Award for Replacement of Two 
Hydropneumatic Tanks at Mt. Olive Estates WTP; this motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Harper. 

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 

Presentation of the Financial Statement ending September 30, 2018 

FY 2018 Audit was presented by Mike Brynjulfson (President, Brynjulfson CPA's). Polk 
City had two (2) findings: #1 - Bank Statement reconciliations were delayed because of 
the conversion to ADG Software and; #2 - the Audit is late because of Finding #1. 
However, Polk City is in good financial condition. After a lengthy presentation, Mr. 
Brynjulfson addressed questions by the Commissioners. 

2 

https://124,934.00


The Commissioners expressed their appreciation to Mr. Brynjulfson and City Staff for 
their work on the FY 2018 Audit. 

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the Presentation of the Financial 
Statement ending September 30, 2018 by Mike Brynjulfson; this motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Blethen. 

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS 

1) Fence installation at the Pier 
2) New Locks and key fobs being installed this week 
3) Budget Hearing - Tuesday, September 24, 2019 - 7:00 pm 
4) Mayors Roundtable -Wednesday, September 25, 2019 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS - None 

COMMISSIONER ITEMS 

Vice Mayor Kimsey - Discussed 1) damage to the fence at the Trail; 2) completed the 
City Manager Evaluation; wants to add lowering water bill as a Goal for City Manager 
Jackson. 3) City Manager Jackson and Mayor LaCascia are responsible for getting 
Polk City back on track. 

Mayor LaCascia responded there is very little we can do with water rates. 

City Attorney Cloud stated the Bond Covenant won't allow it. 

Commissioner Blethen - Requested date of the Mayor's Roundtable. 

Commissioner Carroll - None 

Commissioner Harper - The Audit Report is a reflection of staff. Thanked everyone 
for coming. 

Mayor LaCascia - None 

ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 

ADJOURNMENT - 8:45 pm 

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

3 



CONSENT AGENDA 
September 16, 2019 

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT 
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, 
and add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever 
category best applies to the subject. 

A. CITY CLERK 
1. Accept minutes - May 28, 2019 - City Commission Workshop 
2. Accept minutes -August 12, 2019 - Special City Commission Meeting 
3. Accept minutes - August 19, 2019 - City Commission Workshop 
4. Accept minutes -August 19, 2019 - City Commission Meeting 
5. Accept minutes - August 20, 2019 - Budget Workshop #1 
6. Accept minutes - September 5, 2019 - Budget Workshop #2 

B. REPORTS 
1. Building Permits Report - August 2019 
2. Financial Report - August 2019 
3. Library Report - August 2019 
4. Polk County Fire Rescue - August 2019 
5. Polk Sheriff's Report -August 2019 
6. Public Works Report - August 2019 
7. Utilities Report -August 2019 

c. OTHER 

4 



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

FINAL BUDGET HEARING 
September 24, 2019 

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike 
Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper and 
City Manager Jackson 

Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
ADOPTING THE LEVYING OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR POLK CITY FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019-2020 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading. 

Mayor LaCascia read Ordinance 2019-10 by title only. 

City Manager Jackson advised that Polk City's certified value is $162,781,114.00. The 
FY 2019-2020 operating millage rate for Polk City is 6.0000 mills. The rollback rate 
computed for Polk City for FY 2019-2020 is 6.6487 mills; therefore, the percentage by 
which the above specified final millage rate to be levied by Polk City is -9.76 percent of 
the roll back rate. 

Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this 
ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve the Ordinance 2019-10; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Blethen. 

Vote: Mayor LaCascia - aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey - aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, 
Commissioner Blethen - aye, Commissioner Harper- aye 

Motion carried 5/0. 

ORDINANCE 2019-11 - AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, PROVIDING 
FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading 

https://162,781,114.00


Mayor LaCascia read Ordinance 2019-11 by title only. 

City Manager Jackson advised the total budget for FY 2019-2020 is $6,201,331.00. 
Various revenues accruing to Polk City and set aside for the purpose of paying 
expenses and maintaining the Government of Polk City for FY 2019-2020. 

Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this 
ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve Ordinance 2019-11; this motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Harper. 

Vote: Commissioner Harper - aye, Commissioner Blethen - nay, Commissioner Carroll 
- aye, Mayor LaCascia - aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey- aye 

Motion carried 4/1. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

Patricia R Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

2 

https://6,201,331.00


City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Monthly Department Reports for: 

1. Building Permits Report - September 2019 
2. Code Enforcement Report - September 2019 
3. Finance Report - September 2019 
4. Library Report - September 2019 
5. Polk County Fire Rescue Report - September 2019 
6. Polk County Sheriff's Office - September 2019 
7. Public Works Report - September 2019 
8. Utilities Report- July/September 2019 

ANALYSIS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda 



COMMERCIAL 

:e,umtt·t41lfflbet 
BC.-2019-1276 

ELECTRICAL 

Pennll :Number 
BT-2019-12157 

BT-2019-12273 

fENCEWALL 

e1!1Di1Numbm: 
BT-2019-12890 

.MECHANICAL 

Pgl!!)ll ~umber 

BT-2019-12014 

BT-2019-12662 

BT-2019-12969 

RE-ROOF 
Permit Numbm: 
BT-'2019-12233 

BT-2019-12518 

BT-2019-12571 

BT-2019-12575 

BT-2019-12794 

RESIDENTIAL 
Permit H1.1mber 
BR--2019-7943 

BR-2019-8510 

BR-2019-8593 

BR-2019-8666 

-BR-2019-8667 

BR-2019-8668 

Polk City Permits Added 
From; 09/01/19 To: 0~30/2019 

Address 
224 N COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 
1246 ORANGE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

545 ORANGE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Addrass 
370 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 
525 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 338.68 

928 LAKESHORE DR, POLK C!TY, FL 33868 

126 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 
·438 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

117 S CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

228 S BOUGAINVILLEA AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

818 SW COMMONWEALTH A.VE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

512 EDGEWATER DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

Subtotal: 

Address 
213·HONEY·BEE-LN,·POl::K CFFY, ·FL 33868 

830 TWO POND RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

307 BAYBERRY OR; POLK CITY, FL ~3868 

8739 Conoy AVE, Polk City, FL 33868 

-8727-Conoy AVE, Polk· City.FL -33868 

8719 Conoy AVE, Polk City, FL 33868 

Oeclared :va!UI DateAddad 

4,352.00 09124/2019 

$4,352.00 

Oecia!ml Vaii:m 

2,400.00 

1,500.00 

Date ·Addg_g 
09/09/2019 

09/10/2019 

$3,900.00 

Dagarad ~all.II !21tg Add!ffl 
2,000.00 09/24/2019 

$2,000.00 

DtH:llilmd ~lu& 

6,020.00 

5,500.00 

9,483.00 

Dii!ll&ldld 
09/05/2019 

09/18/2019 

09/26/2019 

$21,003.00 

Degared ~all.II 

6;400;00 

6,000.00 

8,490.00 

4,500.00 

6,000.00 

DateAgded 

09/10/281'9 

09/16/2019 

09/17/2019 

09/17/2019 

09/22/2019 

$31,390.00 

Decla[ld ~IIUI 

2,478.24 

24,742.68 

30,000.00 

108,900.00 

108,900;80 

101,200.00 

Datg Addad 

-09,0312019 

09/20/2019 

09/09/2019 

09/23/2019 

·09/26/201-9 

09/26/2019 

Polk City Permill Page 1 of2 10/1/2019 3:06 PM 

https://4,352.00


BR-2019-8669 8850 Fox DR, Polk City, FL 33868 108,900.00 09/26/2019 

BR-2019-8670 8845 Fox DR, Polk City, FL 33868 96,800.00 09/26/2019 

BR-2019-8671 5524 Ottawa ST, Polk City, FL 33868 96,800.00 09/26/2019 

BR-2019-8672 ·8805 Fox DR.·Polk City.- FL 33868 112,604.00 09/26/2019 

BR-2019-8678 8809 Fox DR. Polk City, FL 33868 96,800.00 09/27/2019 

BR-2019-8679 8739 Rindge RD, Polk City, FL 33868 111,100.00 09/27/2019 

BR-2019-8680 8764 Rindge RO, Polk City, FL 33868 127,600.00 09/27/2019 

Subtotal: $1,126,824.92 

Grand Total: $1,189,469.92 

Polk City Perm11S Page2of2 10/1/2019 3:06 PM 

https://1,189,469.92
https://1,126,824.92
https://127,600.00
https://111,100.00
https://96,800.00
https://112,604.00
https://96,800.00
https://96,800.00
https://108,900.00


tode_'.lmfo,qment Repa~ 1] 

8EPTIMBER ID19 

DATE 

9/3/2019 

9/4/2019 

9/4/2019 

9/4/2019 

9/5/2019 

9/5//2019 

9/5/2019 

9/5/2019 

9/5/2019 

9/5/2019 

9/10/2019 

9/10/2019 

9/10/2019 

9/10/2019 

9/11/2019 

9/11/2019 

9/12/2019 

9/12/2019 

9/12/2019 

ADDRESS VIOLATION STATUS 

CITYWIDE SNIPE SIGN 14 

121 COMMONWEALTH 
REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
213 HONEY BEE LN 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

518 CITRUS GROVE 
REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

203 HYDRANGEA AVE 
REINSPECTED FGUND PROPERTY 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
0 CITRUS GROVE 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

233/239 SUNSHINE 
REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

155 HONEY BEE 
REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

RE INSPECTED TO FIND 
304 CITRUS GROVE 

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 
C/O 

OFFICE RETURNED CALLS 
SPOKE W 2 LEFT MESSAGE FOR 3 

COULD NOT LEAVE MESSAGES FOR 2 

CITY/ COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY 

SIGNS 
SNIPE SIGN REMOVED 4 SIGNS 

RE INSPECTED TO FIND 
624 CITRUS GROVE 

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 
C/O 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
550 CITRUS GROVE 

IN COMPLIANCE 
C/O 

717 3RD ST 
RE INSPECTED TO FIND 

PROPERTY COMPLIED 
C/O 

P.A.C.E. MEETING IN HAINES CITY 

INSPECTED ALL SPECIAL 

MAGISTRATE CASES 
TOOK PHOTOS PRINTED 

611 CITRUS GROVE 
RE INSPECTED TO FIND 

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 
C/O 

217 LAKESPUR LN 
RE INSPECTED TO FIND 

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 
C/O 

215 SUNSHINE 
RE INSPECTED TO FIND 

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 
C/O 



2]PREP FOR SPECIAL MAGISTRATEOFFICE /FIELD9/17/2019 PAPERWORK 

COMM CHAMBERS SPECIAL 
STARTED AT 4PM9/18/2019 PRESENTED CASES

MAGISTRATE 

MAILED FINDING OF FACTSOFFICE9/19/2019 FILED IN CASES 

RE INSPECTED TO FIND 
624 CITRUS GROVE9/19/2019 C/O

VIOLATIONS CORRECTED 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
710 3RD STREET9/19/2019 C/O

IN COMPLIANCEE 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
411 SUNSHINE9/19/2019 C/O

IN COMPLIANCE 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
0 2ND STREET9/19/2019 C/O

IN COMPLIANCE 

FOUND IN VIOLATION0 CENTRAL AVE9/24/2019 LETTER SENT 

INSPECTED TO FIND 
550 SUNRISE9/24/2019 LETTER SENT

VIOLATIONS 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
212 SUNSHINE9/24/2019 C/O

IN COMPLIANCE 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
524 ROSEWOOD9/25/2019 C/OIN COMPLIANCE 

FOUND IN VIOLATION144 HONEYBEE9/25/2019 LETTER SENT 

REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
617 4TH STREET9/26/2019 C/O

IN COMPLIANCE 

FOUND IN VIOLATION630 2ND STREET9/26/2019 LETTER SENT 

FOUND IN VIOLATION718 4TH STREET9/26/2019 LETTER SENT 



POLK CITY 10/16/201915:03 Page 1 of 1Simple Balance Sheet gb614_pg,php/Job No: 37523 USER: JOANNAK 

For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 01 

Account Account Bnding Net 
Number Title Bal Amount 
01-101-100 

01-101-800 

01-101-801 

01-101-802 

01-101-803 

01-101-990 

01-102-100 

01-115-100 

01 -115-110 

01 -115-120 

01-115-130 

01-115-200 

01-117-100 

01-117-200 

01-133- 1 00 

01-133-101 

01-153-302 

01-153-303 

01-160-902 

01-160 - 903 

01-202-100 

01-202-200 

01-202-900 

01 -208-200 

01 -208-300 

01-208-310 

01-208-320 

01-208-330 

01-217-200 

01-218-050 

01-218- 1 00 

01-218-200 

01-218-310 

01-218-320 

01-21 8-32 7 

01-218-400 

01-218-410 

01-243-100 

01-245-100 

Cash - Checking 

Cash - GF Police Public Safety Impact Fee s 

Cash - GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 

Cash - GF Recreation Impact Fees 

Cash - GF Gen Gov ' t Faci l ities Impact Fees 

Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 

Cash on Hand 

Accounts Receivable - Utilities 

Accounts Receivabl e - NSF 

Accounts Receivable - Local Bus License s 

Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 

Accounts Receivable - Year End 

Allowance for Bad Debt 

Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 

Due From Ot her Gove rnmental Units 

Due from Ot hers (Fran chi se & Publ i c Serv . Tax ) 

Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 

Restricted Cash - Building and Codes 

Reserve Account 

Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 

** TOTAL ASSET** 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payabl e - Year End 

Customer Deposits 

Due to BCAIB - Builder ' s Surcharge 

Due to County - Impact Fees 

Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 

Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 

Due to PCSO - Police Education Revenue 

Accrued Sales Tax 

Payroll Liabilities 

Payroll Taxes Payabl e 

FRS Retireme nt Payable 

Long Term Disability Payable 

Supplemental Insurance Payable 

CHL- Child Support 

Dental Plan Payable 

Vision Plan Payable 

** TOTAL LIABILITY** 

Encumbrances Placed 

Reserved for Encumbr ances 

** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 

Fund Balance Unreserved 

** TOTAL EQUITY** 

** TOTAL REVENUE** 

** TOTAL EXPENSE** 

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 

1,872, 12 8. 13 

141,088.10 

96,585.57 

289,164.32 

257,361.01 

859.09 

575.00 

4,296.54 

50 . 00-

7,100.00 

2,476.98 

93,927.42-

8,857.17-

2,476.98-

86,142 . 26 

7,282 . 75 

107,204.34 

160,917.77 

177,764.59 

62,924.00 

3, 1 68,558.88 

37,762.73 

24,155.56 

3,685.00 

6.00 

1,955.92-

269.12 

149.13 

331.91 

234.84 

87.80 

7,429.95 

193.97-

964.00 

1,137.54 

242.78-

99.05-

425.96 

74,147.82 

1,244.97 

1,244.97-

0.00 

2,673,170.62 

2,673,170.62 

2 ,486,935.02 

2,065,694.58 

3,168,558.88 

01-271-100 



G/L 

10/16/201915:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 1 of11 

USER: JOANNAK 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

201 8 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PERCBNTAGB 

ACCOOlff DBSCRJ:PTJ:0111 PRIOR YR RBVBNllB ANTICIPATBD RIIVBNOB AlllTICIPATBD CORRBHT RBVBNUB YTD RKVElll'DB (EXCESS)/DBPICIT RBALI HD 

01-311-100 Ad Valorem Taxes 617,443.06 735,076.00 735,076.00 1,907.53 781,024.71 (45,948.71) 106.25 % 

01-312-300 9th Cent Gas Tax 14,594.37 14,500.00 14,500.00 1,270.28 12,665.43 1,834.57 87.35 % 

01-312-400 Local Option Gas Tax 81,004.82 82,534.00 82,534.00 7,075.14 77,400.61 5,133.39 93.78 % 

01-312-410 New Local Option Gas Tax 50,528 . 73 50,775.00 50,775.00 4,281.79 48,978.34 1,796.66 96. 46 % 

01-314-100 Electric - Utility Tax 102,386.61 86,200.00 86,200.00 11,409.23 106,894.82 (20,694.82) 124.01 % 

01-314-300 Water - Utility Tax 57,257.65 54,630.00 54,630.00 5,257.48 60,840.89 (6,210.89) 111. 37 % 

01-314-301 Water - Utility Tax - Readiness to Se 0.00 200.00 20·0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 % 

01-314-400 Gas - Utility Tax 5,226.08 4,100.00 4,100.00 532.68 7,298.99 (3,198.99) 178.02 % 

01-315-100 Communications Services Tax 208,573.77 206,035.00 206,035.00 16,715.25 197,818.33 8,216.67 96.01 % 

01-316-100 Local Business Licenses 4,935.10 7,800.00 7,800.00 4,510.00 7,424.00 376.00 95.18 % 

01-316-102 County Business Tax 0.00 0.00 o.oo 23 7. 94 879.38 (879.38) 0.00 % 

01-322-100 Building Permits 175,413.07 100,000.00 100,000.00 1,025.85 39,808.62 60,191.38 39.81 % 

01-322-101 Bldg Permit - Plan Checking 102,905.22 47,747.00 47,747.00 314.00 19,077.94 28,669.06 39.96 % 

01-322-102 Bldg Permit - Admin Fee 5,078.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 280.00 5,120.00 (3,120.00) 256.00 % 

01-322 - 103 Bldg Permit - Electrical 16,770.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 125.00 8,895.00 3,105.00 74 .13 % 

01-322-104 Bldg Permit - Plumbing 14,7&8.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 7,900.00 4,100.00 65.83 % 

01-322 - 105 Bldg Permit - Mechanical 14,900.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 125.00 8,725.00 3,275.00 72.71 % 

01-322-107 Bldg Permit - Cert of Occ:ipancy 3,185.00 390.00 390.00 450.00 3,450.00 (3,060.00) 884.52 % 

01-322-108 Bldg Permit - Inspections 139,603.65 150,000.00 150,000.00 14,266.00 137,495.65 12,504.35 91. 66 % 

01-322-109 Bldg Permit - Demolition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 57.50 (57.50) 0.00 % 

01-323-100 Electric 68,314.25 58,, 732. 00 58,732.00 0.00 57,293.26 1,438.74 97.55 % 

01-323-300 Solid Waste 30,157.38 31,050.00 31,050.00 2,250.00 31,377.76 (327.76) 101. 06 % 

01-324-100 Police - Public Safety Impact Fee 62,564.03 66,434.00 66,434 . 00 0.00 27,089.58 39,344.42 40.78 % 

01-324 - 110 Fire/Rescue - Public Safety Impact Fe 33,475.67 35,546.00 35,546 . 00 0.00 14,494.62 21,051.38 40.78 % 

01-324-310 Transportation Impact Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (995 . 10) 995.10 0.00 % 

01-324-610 Parks & Recreation Impact Fee 100,895.52 107,136.00 107,136.00 0.00 42,646 . 56 64,489.44 39.81 % 

01-324-710 Public Facilities Impact Fee 169,556.97 180,045.00 180,045.00 0.00 73,416.42 106,628.58 40.78 % 

01-329-220 Site Plan Reviews 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,550.00 10,835.00 (10,835.00) 0.00 % 

Ol-331-400 FEMA Federal Reimb. - Irma 2017 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,999.44 (60,999.44) 0.00 % 

Ol-331-510 CDBG 15,860 . 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

Ol-334-201 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 0.00 5,113.00 5,113 . 00 0.00 0.00 5,113.00 0.00 % 

01-334-400 FEMA State Reimb. - Irma 2017 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 % 

01-334-910 DEO GRANT 61,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 (5,000.00) 120 .00 % 

01-335-120 MRS - State Sales Tax 57,403.00 57,580.00 57,580.00 4,893.36 58,081.06 (501.06) 100.87 % 

01-335-122 SRS - 8th Cent. Motor Fuel Tax 17,888.27 17,260.00 17,260.00 1,432.27 17,725.70 (465.70) 102.70 % 

01-335-123 MRS - Municipal Fuel Tax 16.21 8.00 8 . 00 0.62 51. 70 (43. 70) 646.25 % 

01-335-140 Mobile Home License 5,485.35 4,800.00 4,800.00 119. 25 5,455.30 (655.30) 113. 65 % 

01-335-150 Alcoholic Beverage License 1,125.71 1,125.00 1,125.00 0.00 1,125.71 (0. 71) 100.06 % 

01-335-180 Half-Cent Sales Tax 107,782.73 114,645.00 114,645.00 9,575.78 110,993.08 3,651.92 96 . 81 % 



10/16/201915:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POL.KCITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 2 of11 

USER: JOANNAK 

GENERAL. FUND REVENUES 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBNTAGB 

ACCO'CHT DBSCRIPTIOll PRIOR YR RBVBHtJ'B AlilTICIPATBD RBVBNlJB AH'l'l:CIPATBD CURRBIIT RKVERUB YTD 1lBVBNtJB (BXCBSS)/DBPICIT RBALIZBD 

01-337-100 Library Coop Funding 31,990.11 31,990.00 31,990.00 0.00 33,876.08 (1,886.08) 105.90 % 

01-340-400 solid waste 280,018.50 281,000.00 281,000.00 25,937.83 277,919.64 3,080.36 98.90 % 

01-340-700 Stormwater Utility Fees 23,879.67 24,922.00 24,922.00 2 ,757 .41 28 ,822.26 (3,900.26) 115.65 % 

01-340 -900 Notary Fees 25.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 175.00 (175.00) 0.00 % 

01-344-900 FOOT Maintenance Agreement 16,303.82 16,303.00 16,303.00 4,075.96 16,303 .82 (0.82) 100.01 % 

01-347-100 Library Income 8,394.78 6,000.00 6,000.00 444.80 7, 209 .99 (1,209.99) 120.17 % 

01-351-200 Fines, Penalties, and Forfeitures 7,305.73 2,000.00 2,000.00 871.16 10,109.86 (8,109.86) 505.49 % 

01-359-100 Other Fines and/or Forfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 902.50 (902.50) 0.00 % 

01-359-300 Late Fees 466.75 200.00 200.00 21.00 266.50 (66.50) 133 .25 % 

01-361-100 Interest Income 390.85 200.00 200.00 0.24 983.45 (783 .4 5) 491. 73 % 

01-362 - 100 Activity Center Rentals 2,300.00 1,500.00 1,500 .00 100.00 3,150 . 00 (1,650.00) 210.00 % 

01-362-200 Donald Bronson Community Center Renta 4,000.00 2,500.00 2 ,500.00 600.00 8,450.00 (5,950.00) 338.00 % 

01-365-100 Sales of Surplus Property 3,586.39 500.00 500.00 0 . 00 1.36.10 363.90 27.22 % 

01-366-100 Private Donations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 740.00 (740.00) 0.00 % 

01-366 - 101 Private Donations - Christmas 1,800.00 1,000.00 1,000 .00 0.00 2,000.00 (1,000.00) 200.00 % 

01-366-102 Private Donations - Halloween 1,450.00 200.00 200.00 0.00 1,000.00 (800. 00) 500.00 '< 

01-366-104 Private Donations - Music Festival 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500 .00 0.00 %-

Ol-3E5-110 Private Donations - Library 8~6.00 500.00 500.00 0. 00 7,H.5.00 (6 ,645 .00} 1429.00 % 

01-369-100 Misc. Income 5,549.12 300.00 300.00 0.00 116. 20 183 .8 0 38.73 % 

01-369-101 Misc Income - Copies and Faxes 53.50 0.00 0.00 1. 00 105 .00 (lOS.00) 0.00 % 

01-369-102 Misc Income - Collection Allowance 17,854.83 5,000.00 5,000.00 38.83 8, 0·78 . 94 (3,078.94) 161. 58 % 

01-369-120 Misc Income - Christmas 160.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 180.00 (80. 00) 180 .00 '< 

01-369-130 Misc Income - Halloween 140.00 100.00 100.00 60.00 320 .00 (220.00) 320.00 % 

01-369-400 Insurance Proceeds 4,451.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,214.91 (2,214.91} 0.00 % 

01-369-401 Insurance - Claims 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,265.16 (2 ,265.16} 0.00 % 

01-369-500 Refund of State Gas Tax 489.56 200.00 200 .00 110 .2 8 869.31 (669 .31 ) 434.66 % 

01-381-400 Transfer From Enterprise Fund 183 ,591.50 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25 ,000 . 00 0.00 % 

01-381-900 Cash Carry Forward 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 % 

01-387 - 100 Loan Proceeds 1,400,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 % 

--------- -- ------- -------------------- ----- -- - - --------- - - ---------------- ------------------ ------------ ---- -- - -- --------
DEPARTMENT TOTALS 4,342,755.96 2,782,476.00 2,782,476 . 00 124,647 .96 2,486,935.02 295,540.98 89.38 % 



-- ---------------- ---- -------------- ----- -- ----------- -------- - --------- --------- -- ------- ------------------ -----------

POLK CITY10/16/2019 15:05 Page 3 of 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 USER: JOANNAK 

Gen!lral Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 201.9 2019 PBRCBNTAGE 

ACCO'IJllT DBSCRJ:P'l'IOH ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGET ADJ BUDGBT 1ITD BXPIDISBS YTD BXPEIISBS AVAJ:L BIJDGBT RBALIZBD 

LEGISLATIVE 

01-511-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Legislative 5,415.00 5,415.00 5,415.00 900.00 7,863.60 (2,448.60) 145.22 % 

01-511-160 Bonuses and Gift Certificates - Legis 2,165.66 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,165.65 334.35 86. 63 % 

01-511-210 Fica Taxes - Legislative 579.92 1,020.00 1,020.00 68.87 767.21 252.79 75.22 t 

01-511-240 Worker's Compensation - Legislative 15.20 16.00 16.00 0.00 11. 00 5.00 68.75 % 

01-511-400 Travel and Training - Legislative 2,305.49 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 5,034.30 465.70 91. 53 % 

01-511-470 Printing and Reproduction - Legislati 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 54.69 445.31 10.94 % 

01-511-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Legisl 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 % 

01-511-490 Other Current Charges - Legislative 171. 28 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 150.00 2,350.00 6.00 % 

01-511-510 Office Supplies - Legislative 0.00 400.00 4.00.00 34.18 142. 22 257.78 35.56 % 

01-511-520 Operating Supplies - Legislative 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 238.94 857.40 142.60 85.74 % 

01-511-540 Book!';, Pub . , Sub., & Memberships - Le 2,041.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 250.00 3,670.00 2,330.00 61. 17 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 12,693.55 26,851.00 26,851.00 1,491.99 20,716.07 6,134.93 77.15 % 

EXECUTIVE 

01-512-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Executive 128,486 . 14 136,760.00 136,760.00 11,022.14 134,370.03 2,389.97 98 . 25 % 

01-512-130 Other Salaries an~ Wages - Executive 4,707.81 4,800.00 4,800.00 369.24 4,800.12 (0.121 100.00 % 

01-512-140 overtime - Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 71.80 71.80 (71. 80) 0 . 00 % 

01 - 512-160 Bonuses and Gift Certificates - Execu 15,538.72 22,750.00 22,750.00 0.00 21,056.34 1,693.66 92.56 % 

01-512-210 Fica Taxes - Executive 11,092.93 14,600.00 14,600.00 864.02 12,249.92 2,350.08 83.90 % 

01-512-220 Retirement Contribution - Executive 22,476.63 25,100.00 25,100.00 2,129.71 25,392.26 (292.26) 101.16 % 

01-512-230 Life & Health Insurance - Executive 16,930.03 18,489.00 18,483.00 1,588.42 17,890.94 598.06 96. 77 % 

01-512-240 Worker's Compensation - Executive 233.41 315.00 315.00 0.00 194.00 121.00 61. 59 % 

01 - 512-310 Professional Services - Executive 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00 32.00 268.00 10.67 % 

01-512 - 400 Travel and Trai ning - Executive 1,983.13 3,500.00 3,500.00 (42. 00) 4,132.50 (632.50) 118.07 % 

01-512-410 Communication Services - Executive 1,278.40 680.00 680.00 62.14 738.89 (58.89) 108.66 % 

01-512-470 Printing and Reproduction - Executive 54.69 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 % 

01-512-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Execut 0.00 800.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 % 

01-512-490 Other Current Charges - Executive 1,494 12 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,780.48 (280.4B) 111.22 % 

01-512-510 office Supplies - Executive 463.G7 900.00 900.00 101.99 362.73 537.27 40.30 % 

01-512-520 Operating Supplies - Executive 137 . 36 500.00 500 . 00 172 .49 1,534.19 (1,034.19) 306.84 % 

01-512-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Ex l, 20-L 65 2,000.00 2,000.00 29.98 889.33 1,110.67 44.47 % 

01-512 - 640 Machinery & Equipment - Executive 2,719.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

https://2,719.97
https://1,110.67
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://1,034.19
https://1,534.19
https://2,780.48
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://1,278.40
https://4,132.50
https://3,500.00
https://3,500.00
https://1,983.13
https://17,890.94
https://1,588.42
https://18,483.00
https://18,489.00
https://16,930.03
https://25,392.26
https://2,129.71
https://25,100.00
https://25,100.00
https://22,476.63
https://2,350.08
https://12,249.92
https://14,600.00
https://14,600.00
https://11,092.93
https://1,693.66
https://21,056.34
https://22,750.00
https://22,750.00
https://15,538.72
https://4,800.12
https://4,800.00
https://4,800.00
https://4,707.81
https://2,389.97
https://134,370.03
https://11,022.14
https://136,760.00
https://136,760.00
https://6,134.93
https://20,716.07
https://1,491.99
https://26,851.00
https://26,851.00
https://12,693.55
https://2,330.00
https://3,670.00
https://6,000.00
https://6,000.00
https://2,041.00
https://1,000.00
https://1,000.00
https://2,350.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://5,034.30
https://5,500.00
https://5,500.00
https://2,305.49
https://1,020.00
https://1,020.00
https://2,165.65
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,165.66
https://2,448.60
https://7,863.60
https://5,415.00
https://5,415.00
https://5,415.00


--------------- - -- ---------------- -- --- ------------ -- - ---- -------------- -- - - -------------- ------------------ - --- -------

---------------- - - ------------------ ---------- - - ------ --------- --------- ------------------ ---- -- ------------ --- - - ---- --

10/16/2019 15:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page4of 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 201.9 201.9 201.9 201.9 201.9 I PERCENTAGE 

ACCOtJNT DBSCRIPTIOR' ACTUALS ADOPTED BtlI>GBT ADJ BUDGBT MTD BXPBMSBS YTD BXPBlllSBS AVAIL BtlDGBT RBALIZBD 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 208,801.96 234,194.00 234,194.00 16,369.93 226,495.53 7,698.47 96.71 % 

CITY CLERK 

01-513-310 Professional Services - City Clerk 373.00 1,000.00 1 ,000.00 0.00 120.00 880.00 12.00 % 

01-513 - 400 Travel and Training - City Clerk 1,333.50 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 2,467.10 532.90 82.24 %-

01 - 513-460 Repairs and Maintenance - City Cl erk 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 (160.00) 0.00 % 

01-513-470 Printing and Reproduction - City Cler 1,583.90 4,000.00 4,000.00 1 ,021.69 3,585.75 414.25 89.64 % 

01-513-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - City C 1,210.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %-

01-513-490 Other current Charges - City Clerk 1,880.80 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 7,580.01 (6,080.01) 505.33 % 

01-513-492 Recording & Other Fees - City Clerk 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0 . 00 1,500.00 0.00 % 

01-513-510 Office Supplies - City Clerk 307.00 700.00 700.00 198.80 267.30 432.70 38.19 % 

01-513-520 Operating Supplies - City Clerk 0.00 800.00 800.00 634.74 942.69 (142.69) 117.84 t 

01-513-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Ci 175.00 500.00 sou.oo 0.00 701.00 (201.00) 140.20 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 6,863.36 13,000.00 13,000.00 1,85~.23 15,823.85 (2,823.8 5 ) 121. 72 %-

LEGAL COUNSEL 

01-514-310 Professional Services - Legal Counsel 42,952.86 60,000.00 60,000.00 4 , 512.59 42,992 . 10 17,007 . 90 71. 65 % 

01-514 - 480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Legal 8,588.77 7,500.00 7,500.00 573.37 13,487.56 (5,987.56) 179.83 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 51 ,541.63 67,500.00 67,500.00 5 , 085.96 56,479.66 11 , 020.34 83.67 % 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING 

01-515-310 Professional Services - Comp Planning 80,500.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 0.00 30,625.00 (8,625.00) 139.20 % 

01-515-312 Professional Services-Other- Comp Pla 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 100.00 % 

01-515-320 DEO - Grants 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 (5,000.00) 120.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 80,500.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 63,625.00 (13,625.00) 127.25 % 

https://13,625.00
https://63,625.00
https://50,000.00
https://50,000.00
https://80,500.00
https://5,000.00
https://30,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://8,625.00
https://30,625.00
https://22,000.00
https://22,000.00
https://80,500.00
https://56,479.66
https://67,500.00
https://67,500.00
https://5,987.56
https://13,487.56
https://7,500.00
https://7,500.00
https://8,588.77
https://60,000.00
https://60,000.00
https://42,952.86
https://2,823.85
https://15,823.85
https://1,85~.23
https://13,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://6,863.36
https://1,500.00
https://1,500.00
https://1,500.00
https://6,080.01
https://7,580.01
https://1,500.00
https://1,500.00
https://1,880.80
https://1,210.16
https://3,585.75
https://4,000.00
https://4,000.00
https://1,583.90
https://2,467.10
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://1,333.50
https://1,000.00
https://7,698.47
https://226,495.53
https://16,369.93
https://234,194.00
https://234,194.00
https://208,801.96


10/16/2019 15:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 5of 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 20!1.9 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PERCBHTAGB 

ACCOOlllT DBSCRIP1'IOR ACTUALS MX>PTBD BODGBT ADJ BUDGBT lf'l'D BXPEJIISBS Y'I'D BXPBHSBS AVAIL B'DDGBT RBALIZBD 

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING 

01-516-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Fin & Acctng 66,123.78 78,915.00 78,915.00 5,823.40 73,151.16 5,763.84 92. 70 % 

01-516-140 Overtime - Fin & Acctng 0.00 495.00 495.00 246.23 246.23 248.77 49.74 % 

01-516-210 Fica Taxes - Fin & Acctng 4,642.87 6,075.00 6,075.00 434.42 5,329.03 745.97 87. 72 % 

01 - 516-220 Retirement Contribution - Fin & Acctn 5,173.42 6,559.00 6,559.00 514.10 6,216.66 342.34 94.78 % 

01-516-230 Life & Health Insurance - Fin & Acctn 8,615.29 18,201.00 18,201.00 1,564.44 18,332.84 (131. 84) 100.72 % 

01-516-240 Worker's Compensation - Fin & Acctng 122.40 183.00 183 . 00 0.00 124.00 59.00 67.76 \-

01-516-310 Professional Services - Fin & Acctng 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 1 ,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.00 \-

01-516-400 Travel and Training - Fin & Acctng 44.19 3,000.00 3,000 . 00 0.00 2,003 . 39 996 . 61 66.78 % 

01-516-410 Communication Services - Fin & Acctng 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 66.14 586. 72 (586. 72) 0.00 % 

01-516-420 Education Reimbursement - Fin & Acctn 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-516-470 Printing and Reproduction - Fin & Ace 237.46 700.00 700.00 0.00 320.61 379.39 45.80 % 

01-516-510 Office Supplies - Fin & Acctng 742. 71 1,400.00 1,400.00 16.48 731. 34 668.66 52. 24 % 

01-516-520 Operating Supplies - Fin & Acctng 180. 92 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,947.21 (447.21) 117.89 % 

01-516-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Fi 35.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 463.74 (213.74) 185.50 % 

01-516-640 Machinery & Equipment - Fin & A==tng 1,099.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

------------------ --- -- ------------- ----- ------------- ---- -- ------------ -------- ---------- -------- - --------- ---------- -
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 90,518.03 118,278.00 118,278.00 8,665.21 111,952.93 6,325.07 94.65 % 

DEBT SERVICE 

01-517-710 Principal - CB&T Debt Service Pmts 46,613.43 74,088.00 74,088.00 6,221 . 18 74 , 323.84 (235.84) 100.32 \-

01-517 - 711 Principal - USDA Pay Off 1,371,789.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.OG % 

01-517-720 Interest - CB&T Debt Service Pmts 33,260.25 45,722.00 45,722.00 3,763.03 45,486.61 235.39 99.49 % 

01-517-721 Interest - USDA Pay Off 17,231.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-517-730 Other Debt Service Costs 10,979.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00 %-

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 1,479,873.68 119,810.00 119,810.00 9,984.21 119,810.45 (0.45) 100.00 % 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 

01-521-305 Contract Labor - Law Enf 97,363.00 99,310.00 99,310.00 0.00 99,374.00 (64.00) 100.06 \ 

01-521-310 Professional Services - Law Enf 0.00 28,288.00 28,288.00 2,840.00 27,920.00 368.00 98.70 %-



POLK CITY 10/16/2019 15:05 Page &of 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 1 2019 1PBRCBNTAGB 
ACCOUNT DBSCRI PTIO!I ACTUALS AllOPTBI) BllDGBT ADJ BUOOBT KTD BXPBNSBS Y'1'I) BXPBNSBS _ A'YllIL BUDGET . REALJ:ZBD 

01-521 - 460 Repairs and Maintenance - Law Enf 598.95 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 % 

01-521-510 Office Supplies - Law Enf 168.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0 . 00 100.00 0.00 % 

01-521-520 Operating Supplies - Law Enf 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 % 

01-521-649 Machinery & Equip - JAG Grant - Law E 0.00 5,113.00 5,113.00 0.00 0.00 5,113.00 0.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 98,129.95 133,211.00 133,211.00 2,840.00 127,294.00 5,917.00 95.56 \ 

BUILDING AND ZONING 

01 - 524-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Bldg & Zonin 46,975 . 41 82,243.00 82,243.00 6,548.62 80,223.95 2,019.05 97.55 \-

01-524-140 Overtime - Bldg & Zoning 0.00 433.00 433.00 16.57 384.86 48.14 88.88 \ 

01-524-210 Fica Taxes - Bldg & Zoning 3,419.14 6,325.00 6,325.00 488.64 6,060.85 264.15 95.82 \ 

01-524-220 Retirement Contribution - Bldg & Zoni 3,679.53 4,312.00 4,312.00 556.08 6,780.09 (2,468.09) 157.24 % 

01-524-230 Life & Health Insurance - Bldg & Zoni 8,415.06 18, ,: 44.00 18,244.00 1,568.05 17,615.24 628.76 96. S5 % 

01-524-240 Worker's Compensation - Bldg & Zoning 1,121.16 1,266.00 1,266.00 0.00 912. 00 354.00 72. 04 \-

01-524-31~ Professional Services - Bldg & Zoning 171,387.15 150,000.00 150,0~0.00 15,694.02 154,070.83 (4,070.83) 102. 71 \ 

01-524-311 Engineering Services - Bldg & Zoning 440.15 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 \ 

01-524-400 Travel and Tra ining - Bldg & Zoning 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 % 

01-524 - 410 Communication Services - Bldg & Zanin 46.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-524 - 510 Office Supplies - Bldg & Zoning 229. 29 400.00 400.00 10.01 299.84 100.16 74 . 96 % 

01-524-520 Operating Supplies - Bldg & Zoning 417.04 350.00 350.00 0.00 1,888.16 (1,538.16) 539.47 % 

01-524-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Bl 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.98 226.68 (226.68) 0.00 % 

01-524-640 Machinery & Equipment - Bldg & Zoning 2,499.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

------------------ ------------------ -- -- -------------- --- - -------------- ---- -- ------------ -------- -- -------- -----------
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 238,630.37 265,073.00 265,073.00 24,911.97 268,462.50 (3,389.50) 101. 28 % 

= ---======== ====== ==--============== ================== ====;:============ =====--======-====~= ====--- .- --------- - . - -------= 

CODE ENFORCEMENT 

01-529-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Code Enf 0.00 22,824.00 22,824.00 1,881.00 20,938.50 1,885.50 91. 74 % 

01-529-210 Fica Taxes - Code Enf 0.00 1,746.00 1,746.00 140.03 1,563.19 182.81 89.53 % 

01-529-220 Retirement Contribution - Code Enf 0.00 1,885.00 1,885.00 159.32 1,742.87 142.13 92. 46 %-

01-529-230 Life & Health Insurance - Code Enf 0.00 243.00 243.00 .7 58. 02 6,695.86 (6,452.86) 2755.50 \ 

01-529-240 Worker's Compensation - Code Enf 0.00 523.00 523.00 0.00 372. 00 151. 00 71.13 % 

01-529-310 Professional Services - Code Enf 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 500.00 4,000.00 (1,500 . 00) 160.00 % 

01-529-400 Travel and Training - Code Enf 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 1,030.86 (530.86) 206.17 %-



----------- - ------ -- -- ---- - -- - ---- - - --------- - -

G/L 

10/16/2019 15:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 7 of 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBNTAGB 
ACCOmlT I>BSCRIP'l'IOII ACTUALS ADOPTBD BllI>GBT ADJ BUOOBT MTD BXPBlfSBS YTI> DPBNSBS AVAIL BUI>QBT RBALIZBI> 

01-529-410 Communication Services - Code Enf 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.14 558. 72 (558.72) 0.00 % 

01 - 529-464 Vehicle Fuel - Code Enf 0.00 400.00 400. 00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 % 

01-529-470 Printing and Reproduction - Code Enf 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 330.69 169.31 66 .14 % 

01-529-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Code E 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 % 

01-529-492 Recording & other Fees 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 % 

01-529-510 Office Supplies - Code Enf 0.00 600.00 600.00 1.49 167.44 432.56 27.91 \ 

01-529-520 Operating Supplies - Code Enf 0.00 400.00 400.00 0.00 1,611.39 (1,211.39) 402.85 \ 

--- --- --- -- --- --- - -- ---- - --- - - --- --- --- --- -- -- - - ---- -- - --- -- -- - --- ---- - - -- - - - ---- --- ----- ·-- -- - - -- --- -- --- -- - -

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 0.00 32,521.00 32,521.00 3,496.00 39,011.52 (6,490.52) 119.96 % 

REFUSE/SANITATION 

01-534 - 34 1 Refuse Disposal - Residential - Refus 148,777.00 157,930.00 157,930.00 13,961.58 147,475 .32 10,454.68 93. 38 \ 

01-534 - 342 Refuse Disposal - Commercial - Refuse 72,039.20 80,440.00 80,440.00 0.00 85,604.63 (5 ,224.63) 106.50 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 220,816.2C 238,370.00 238,370.00 13,961.58 233,139.95 5, 2~0. 05 97.81 % 

STORMWATER 

01-538-310 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - STORMWATER 0.00 3,000.00 3 , 000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 % 

01-538-315 Inmate Labor - Stormwater 5,749.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-538-400 Travel and Training - Storrnwater 1,377.41 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 812.28 1,187.72 40 .61 % 

01-538 - 460 Rep~irs and Maintenance - Stormwater 16,627.51 14,000.00 14,000.00 0.00 0.00 14 , 000.00 0.00 % 

01-538-492 Recording & Other Fees - Stormwater 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 400.00 20.00 \ 

01-538-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - St 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 1,000.00 (500.00) 200.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 24,254.60 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 1,912.28 18,087.72 9.56 \ 

GENERAL GOV'T BUILDINGS 

01-539-310 Professional Services - Gen Gov't Bld 23,669.74 22,000.00 22,000.00 706.00 18,033.01 3,966.99 81. 97 \ 

01-539 - 312 Professional Services - Other - Gen G 330 . 00 5,000.00 5,000.00 308.34 1,807.00 3,193.00 36 .14 \ 

01-539 - 315 Inmate Labor - Gen Gov't Bldgs 5,749.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 \ 

https://5,749.68
https://3,193.00
https://1,807.00
https://5,000.00
https://5,000.00
https://3,966.99
https://18,033.01
https://22,000.00
https://22,000.00
https://23,669.74
https://18,087.72
https://1,912.28
https://20,000.00
https://20,000.00
https://24,254.60
https://1,000.00
https://14,000.00
https://14,000.00
https://16,627.51
https://1,187.72
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://1,377.41
https://5,749.68
https://3,000.00
https://3,000.00
https://233,139.95
https://13,961.58
https://238,370.00
https://238,370.00
https://220,816.2C
https://85,604.63
https://80,440.00
https://80,440.00
https://72,039.20
https://10,454.68
https://13,961.58
https://157,930.00
https://157,930.00
https://148,777.00
https://6,490.52
https://39,011.52
https://3,496.00
https://32,521.00
https://32,521.00
https://1,211.39
https://1,611.39


G/L 

10/16/201915:05 
gb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 201,9 MONtHL Y FINANCIALS Page Bof 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBNTAGB 
ACCOtJNT DBSCRJ:PTJ:OR ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGET ADJ BUDGET KTD BXPBHSBB YTl> BXPDSBS AVAJ:L BODGBT RBALJ:ZBD 

01-539-411 City Hall - Communication - Gen Gov't 12,085.93 15,500.00 15,500.00 1,121.21 13,566.49 1,933.51 87.53 % 

01-539-413 Public Works - Communication - Gen Go 1,40 0 . 11 2,000.00 2,000.00 170.35 1,866.91 (1,068.39) 93.35 % 

01-539-414 Community Center-Communication-Gen Go 1,519.15 2,000.00 2,000.00 143. 29 1,686.78 313. 22 84.34 % 

01-539-431 City Hall - Ut i lities - Gen Gov't Bl d 17,869.70 25,000 . 00 25,000.00 590.20 1 5 , 832.6 7 9 , 167 . 33 63.33 % 

01-539 - 43 2 Activity Center - Utilities - Gen Gov 2,307.70 3,000.00 3,000.00 258.89 4,658.25 (1,658 . 25) 155.28 % 

01 - 539-433 Public Works - Utilities - Gen Gov't 2,306 . 72 3,000.00 3,000.00 2 70.74 2,466.57 533.43 82.22 \-

01-539-4 34 Community Center-Util i ties-Gen Gov't 4,2 72.30 5,000.00 5,0 00.00 670.33 5,235.40 (235. 40) 1 04. 71 % 

Ol-539-440 Rentals and Leases - Gen Gov't Bldgs 5,044.15 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,118.72 8,632 . 30 (3,632.30) 172.65 % 

01 - 539-461 City Hall - Repairs & Maint - Gen Gov 11,553.50 25,000.00 25,000.00 1 2,019.15 18,396.95 6,603.05 73.59 % 

01-539-462 Activity Center - Repairs & Maint - G 17,203.32 1,500.00 1,500.00 638.82 1,113 . 40 386.60 74. 23 % 

01-539-463 Public Works I - Repairs & Maint - Ge 1,373 .71 5 00.00 500.00 638.82 707.53 (207.53) 141.51 % 

01-539-464 Community Cente r-Repairs & Maint-Gen 826.90 3,500.00 3,500 . 00 1,655 . 36 5,051.25 (1,551.25) 144.32 % 

01-539-466 Public Works / UtilitiP.s Oper - Repairs 1.422.45 3,000.00 3,000.00 404.90 12,110 .51 (9,110.51) 403.68 t 

01-539-490 Other current Charges - Gen Gov't Bld 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 65.00 (65. 00) 0.00 % 

01-539-510 Office Supplies - Gen Gov•t Bldgs 495.20 600 . 00 600.00 0.00 107.3 7 492. 63 17 . 90 % 

01-539 - 521 Cicy Hall - Operating Supplies - Gen 11,602.98 6,000.00 6,000.0U 388.11 3,849.92 2,150.08 64.17 % 

01 -539-522 Activity Cen t er - Operat i ng Supplies 515.77 1,000.00 1,000.00 198.47 891.61 108.39 89.16 % 

0 1 -539-523 Public Works - Operat~ng Supplies - G 67.98 0.00 0.00 o.oc 62.92 (62.92) C. 0 0 % 

01-539 - 524 C~mmunity Center-Operating Suppl i es-G 463.38 1,400.00 1,400.00 2 82.36 1,706.77 (3 06.77) 121. 91 % 

01 -539 - 526 Public Works / Ut i lities Oper - Operati 1,051.12 1,400 . 00 1,400.00 0.00 953 .11 446.89 68 . 08 % 

01-539 - 631 City Hall - Improv. 0/T Bldgs - Gen G 9,986.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01 -539-640 Public Works - Bldgs/Prope rty - Gen G 326, 092.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 \-

01 -539-642 Activity Center - Mach. & Equipment - 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 % 

---------- - -- -- - -- ---------------- - - --------------- - - - ----------- --- --- - -------------- - - -- -------------- - - -- -----------
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 465,210 . 59 131,400.00 13 1 ,400.00 21 , 584.06 118,801. 72 11,396.80 90.41 % 

ROADS AND STREETS 

01-541-120 Regul ar Salary - Wage s - Roads & Stre 156,300.67 181,296.00 181,296.00 13,215.68 167,247.16 14,048.84 92 25 % 

01-541-140 ove rtime - Roads & Streets 487.00 2,824.00 2,824.00 241. 31 1,445.27 1,378.73 51.18 % 

01-541-210 Fica Taxes - Roads & Streets 11,685.48 14,085.00 14,085.00 1,014 . 20 12,963.41 1,121.59 92. 04 \-

01-541 - 220 Retirement Contribution - Roads & Str 12,071.97 15,208.00 15,208.00 1, 13 9.80 14,263.02 944.98 93. 79 % 

01-541 - 230 Life & Health Insurance - Roads & Str 27,717.55 26,037.00 26,037.00 3,524.22 39,244.19 (13,207.19) 150.72 % 

01-541 - 240 Worker's Compensation - Roads & Stree 10,695.95 17,073.00 17,073.00 0.00 14,034.00 3,039.00 82.20 % 

01-541 - 310 Professional Services - Roads & Stree 1,371.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,205.21 (3,205.21) 0.00 t 
01-541 - 311 Engineering Services - Roads & Str eet 0 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0 . 00 % 
01-541-315 Inmate Labor - Roads & Streets 17,249.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 



10/16/201915:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 IIIIONTHL Y FINANCIALS Page 9of 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2-018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PBRCER'l'AGB 

ACCOUNT DBSCRIP'tIO!f ACTUALS ADOPTED Bm>GBT ADJ BUDOBT XTD BXPBNBBS YTD BltPl!llllBBS AVAIL BIIDOBT RBALIZED 

01-541-400 Travel and Training - Roads & streets 15.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 28 4.44 2,215.56 11. 38 % 

01-541-410 Communication Services - Roads & Stre 2,616.35 3,500.00 3,500.00 113. 36 2,331.32 1,168.68 66.61 % 

01-541-430 Utilities - Roads & Streets 25,220.78 30,000.00 30,000.00 2,007.48 22 ,94 1.24 7,058.76 76.47 % 

01-54 1-460 Repairs and Maintenance - Roads & Str 9,723.48 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,162.96 4,253.89 6,029. 11 42. 54 % 

01-541-461 Repairs & Maintenance-Equipment - Roa 5,656.79 8,000.00 8,000.00 1,144.48 19,785.76 (11,785.76) 247. 32 % 

01-541-464 Vehicle Fuel - Roads & Streets 8,260.41 7,000.00 7,000.00 1,416.19 8,118.35 (1,118.35) 115.98 % 

01-541-465 Vehicle Maintenance - Roads & Streets 5,163.24 7,000.00 7,000.00 600. 72 4,092.20 2,907.80 58.46 % 

01-541-466 Public Works/Utilities Facility - Rep 1,058.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-541-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Roads 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.99 (3 4 . 99) 0.00 % 

01-541-490 Other Current Charges - Roads & Stree 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.60 (6. 60) 0.00 % 

01-541-493 Equipment Rental - Roads & Streets 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2 , 000.00 0.00 % 

01-541-510 Office Supplies - Roads & Streets 846.77 1,000.00 1,000.00 9.59 695.03 156.10 69.50 % 

01-541-520 Operating Supplies - Roads & Streets 7,232.03 10,000.00 10,000.00 5,320.56 12,810.30 (2,810.30) 128.10 % 

01-541-524 Chemicals - Roads & Streets 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 141. 98 858. 02 14.20 % 

01- 541 -52 5 Uniforms - Roads & Streets 358.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-541-530 Road Materials & Supplies - Roads & S 1,034.90 15,00 0 .00 15,000.00 0.00 3,376.09 11,623.91 22.51 % 

01-541-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Ro 420.44 500.00 500.00 29.98 208.20 291. 80 41. 64 % 

Cl-541-620 Buildings - Roads & Streets 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 % 

01-541-630 Improvements Or.her than Building - Ro 9,600.01 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 150 ,000.00 0.00 % 

01-541-640 Machinery & Equipment - Roads & Stree 20,697.08 30,000 . 00 30,000.00 0.00 9,061.76 20,938.24 30 . 21 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 335,983.01 539,023.00 539,023.00 30,940.53 340,544.41 198,612 .72 63 .18 % 

LIBRARY 

01-571-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Library 53,011.22 76,245.00 76 , 245.00 5,077.20 73,445.20 2,799.80 96.33 % 

01-571-140 overtime - Library 240.29 917.00 917.00 129.75 451. 71 465.29 49.26 % 

01-571-210 Fica Taxes - Library 3,880.55 5,903.00 5,903.00 383.88 5,542.34 360.66 93.89 % 

01-571-220 Retirement Contribution - Library 4,173.77 6,374.00 6,374.00 441.02 6,229.31 144.69 97.73 % 

01-571-230 Life & Health Insurance - Library 16,581.91 18,377.00 18,377.00 1,568.66 17,626.07 750.93 95. 91 % 

01-571-240 Worker 1 s Compensation - Library 79.65 177.00 177.00 0.00 0.00 177. 00 0.00 %-

01-571-310 Professional Services - Library 1,559. 50 2,000.00 2,000.00 310.50 4,938.44 (2,938.44) 24 6. 92 .% 

01-571-312 Professional Services - Other - Libra 1,700.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 1,752.50 747.50 70.10 % 

01-571-400 Travel and Training - Library 175.00 700.00 700.00 0.00 194.75 505.25 27.82 % 

01-571-410 Communication Services - Library 2,075.91 6,100.00 6,100.00 470.18 3,741.50 2,358.50 61.34 % 

01-571-420 Education Reimbursement - Library 0.00 2,040.00 2 ,040.00 0.00 0.00 2,040.00 0.00 % 

01-571-430 Utilities - Library 6,3 39 .15 7, 500 .00 7,500.00 164.75 3,015.20 4,484.80 40.20 t 



-- - --------------- --------- -- ------- ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ -----------

- -- --------------- ------ -- ---------- ---------------- - - ------------------ ------------------ ------- -- --------- -----------

-- - --------------- ------------------ ------------------ ------- ----------- ------------------- ------------------ -----------

10/16/20191,5:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 10 of11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBIITAGB 

ACCOUNT DBSCRIPTIOllr ACTUALS ADOPTED BlJJ>GBT ADJ BllDGBT KTD EXPBNSBS YTD EXPBNSBS AVJI.IL BUDGBT RllLIZBD 

01-571-460 Repairs and Maintenance - Library 5,201.54 2,500.00 2,500.00 319.41 3,617.00 (1,117.00) 144.68 % 

01-571-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Librar 1,268.82 2,500.00 2,500.00 529.04 583.48 1,916.52 23.34 \-

01-571-510 Office Supplies - Library 1,142.42 1,300.00 1,300.00 11. 77 332. 94 789.44 25.61 \ 

01-571-520 Operating Supplies - Library 7,873.96 7,500.00 7,500.00 793.32 3,604.76 3,895.24 48.06 % 

01-571-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships - Li 808.94 600.00 600.00 136. 80 706.07 (106.07) 117.68 % 

01-571-630 Improvements Other than Building - Li 2,775.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 a. oo 0.00 0.00 % 

01-571-660 Books, Pub.& Library Materials - Libr 12,423.07 16,000 . 00 16,000.00 1,644.90 16,033.54 (33. 54) 100.21 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 121,310.70 159,233.00 159,233.00 11,981.18 141,814.81 17,240.57 89.06 % 

PARKS 

01-572-310 Professional Services - Parks 806.00 0.00 0.00 186.50 1,056.50 (1,056.50) 0.00 % 

01-572-315 Inmate Labor - Parks 5,749.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 % 

01-572-400 Travel and Training - Parks 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-572-430 Utilities - Parks 17,676.88 23,000.00 23,000.0C 636. 72 7,026.15 15,973.85 30.55 % 

01-572-460 Repairs and Maintenance - P~rks 26,486.80 15,000.00 15.000.00 5,337.96 12,232.19 2,767.81 81. 55 % 

01-572-520 Operating Supplies - Parks 1,020.72 1,200.00 1,200.00 780.50 1,829.33 (629.33) 152.44 % 

01-572-630 Improvements Other than Building - Pa 6,570.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 58,325.12 39,200.00 39,200.00 6,941.68 22,144.17 17,055.83 56 .49 %-

SPECIAL EVENTS 

01-574-310 Professional Services - Spec Events 888.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 680.00 1,320.00 34.00 'Ir 

01-574-440 Rentals and Leases - Spec Events 125.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 125.00 875.00 12.50 % 

01-574-470 Printing and Reproduction - Spec Even 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1, 500.00 0.00 % 

01-574-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads - Spec E 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1 ,000.00 0.00 % 

01-574-520 Operating Supplies - Spec Events 5,066.80 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 8,652.46 (1,152.46) 115.37 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 6,079.80 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00 9,457.46 3,542.54 72 . 75 % 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

https://3,542.54
https://9,457.46
https://13,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://6,079.80
https://1,152.46
https://8,652.46
https://7,500.00
https://7,500.00
https://5,066.80
https://1,000.00
https://1,000.00
https://1,500.00
https://1,500.00
https://1,000.00
https://1,000.00
https://1,320.00
https://2,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://17,055.83
https://22,144.17
https://6,941.68
https://39,200.00
https://39,200.00
https://58,325.12
https://6,570.00
https://1,829.33
https://1,200.00
https://1,200.00
https://1,020.72
https://2,767.81
https://12,232.19
https://5,337.96
https://15.000.00
https://15,000.00
https://26,486.80
https://15,973.85
https://7,026.15
https://23,000.0C
https://23,000.00
https://17,676.88
https://5,749.72
https://1,056.50
https://1,056.50
https://17,240.57
https://141,814.81
https://11,981.18
https://159,233.00
https://159,233.00
https://121,310.70
https://16,033.54
https://1,644.90
https://16,000.00
https://12,423.07
https://2,775.00
https://3,895.24
https://3,604.76
https://7,500.00
https://7,500.00
https://7,873.96
https://1,300.00
https://1,300.00
https://1,142.42
https://1,916.52
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://1,268.82
https://1,117.00
https://3,617.00
https://2,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://5,201.54


10/16/2019 15:05 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 11 of 11 

USER: JOANNAK 

General Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 1PERCBRTAGB 

ACCO'IJNT J)BSCRIPTJ:Olr ACTUALS AJ)OP'l'BI> BUDGET ADJ BUDGET XTD BXPDSBS YTD BXPBBSBS AVAIL BtJDGBT RBALIZBD 

01-590-310 Professional Services - Non-Dept 3,495.61 25,000.00 25,000.00 1,595.62 9,785.28 15,214.72 39.14 % 

01-590-311 Engineering Services - Non-Dept 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 % 

01-590-312 Professional Services - Other - Non-D 2,310.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 2,310.00 5,690.00 28.88 % 

01-590-315 Inmate Labor - GF Non - Dept 0.00 28,749.00 28,749.00 0.00 28,748.50 0.50 100.00 % 

01-590-32D Accounting and Auditing - Non-Dept 18,790.41 15,000.00 15,000.00 3,131.70 19,271.44 (4,271.44) 128.48 % 

01-590-450 Liability Insurance - Non-Dept 37,729.00 39,900.00 39,900.00 0.00 65,121.50 (25,221.50) 163.21 % 

01-590-464 Vehicle Fuel - Non - Departmental 436.25 400.00 400.00 72 .28 443.55 (43 .55) 110.89 % 

01-590-465 Vehicle Maintenance - Non-Departmenta 21.24 500.00 500.00 0.00 823. 41 (323.41) 164.68 % 

01-590-510 Office Supplies - Non-Departmental 0.00 0.00 0.00 177.49 937.63 (937.63) 0.00 % 

01-590-520 Operating Supplies - Non-Dept 248.65 1,000.00 1,000.00 3.33 2,625.27 (1,625.27) 262.53 % 

01-590-521 Emergencies & Contingencies - Operati 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 2,676.27 3,676.27 16,323.73 18.38 % 

01-590 - 525 Uniforms - Non Dept 0.00 4,000.00 4.000.00 0.00 2,899.14 1,10D.~6 72.48 % 

01-590-528 Postage - Non-Dept 3,277.15 3,000.00 3,000.00 126.90 766.10 2,233.90 25. 54 % 

01-590-930 Transfer - Police Public Safety Impac 0.00 66,434.00 66,434.00 0.00 0.00 66,434.00 0.00 % 

01 - 590-931 Transfer to Fire Public safety Impact 0.00 35,546.00 35,546.00 0.00 o.ou 35,546.00 0.00 % 

01-590-932 Transfer - Parks & Rec Impact Reserve 0.00 107,136.00 107,136.00 0.00 0.00 107,136.00 0.00 % 

01-590-933 Transfer -Public Facility Impact Rese 0.00 180,045.00 180,045.00 0.00 0.00 180,045.0C 0.00 % 

01-590-940 Reserves - Unrestricted Reserves - No 0.00 24,101.00 ?4,101.00 0.00 0.00 24,101. DO 0.00 % 

01-590-941 Reserves - Emergencies & Contingencie 363.92 0.00 0.00 5,219.26 5,191.76 (5,191.76) 0.00 % 

01-590-991 Aids to Private Organizations - Non-D 742.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,340.00 (340.00) 117.00 % 

01-590-992 Unemployment Claims - Non-Dept 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 % 

01-590-994 Bank Fees - Non-Dept 7.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

01-590-996 Bad Debt - Non-Dept (3,210.22) 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 % 

01-590-999 Other - Non-Operating Charges - Non-D 12,880.23 5,500.00 5,500.00 (383 .17) 3,268.42 2,231.58 59.43 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 77, 091. 74 581,811.00 581,811.00 12,619.68 148,208.27 433,602.73 25 .47 % 

General Fund Revenues Total 4,331,776.52 2,782,476.IlO 2,782,476.GO 124,647.96 2,486,935.02 295,540.98 10.62% 

General Fund Expenditures Total -3,531,047 .45 -2,782,476.00 -2,782,476.GO -172,729.21 -2,065,694.58 -715,535.45 25.72% 

Total Rewenue ff, Expenditures BG0,729.07 0.00 O.CO -48,081.25 421,240.44 -419,994.47 

https://419,994.47
https://421,240.44
https://48,081.25
https://BG0,729.07


POLK CITY
10/16/201'915:03 Page 1 of2Simple Balc1nce Sheetgb614_pg.php/Job No: 37524 USER: JOANNAK 

For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 05 

Account Account Bnding Net 

Number Title Bal AllloUllt 

05-101-100 

05-101-710 

05-101 - 800 

05-101-900 

05-101-915 

05-101-916 

05-101-917 

05-101-920 

05-101-930 

05-101-934 

05-101-935 

05-101-999 

05-115-100 

05-115-130 

05-117-100 

05-117-200 

05-155-3 0 0 

05- 1 59-100 

05-159 -200 

05-160 - 902 

05-160-903 

05-160-90<1 

0 5- 160 - 906 

05-161 900 

05-164-1 00 

05-16 4 -900 

05-164 -9t0 

05-165- 9 00 

05·lq6·900 

05- 167-900 

05-169-90 0 

05-202-100 

05-202 - 900 

05-203-100 

05-203-600 

05-203-61 0 

05 -2 03 - 710 

05-203-750 

05-203-910 

05-208-3 05 

05-225-100 

05-234-100 

05-234-901 

05-235-900 

05-243-100 

05-245-100 

05 - 250-100 

05-255-100 

05-271-100 

05-2 71 -200 

Cash - Checking 

Cash - Enterprise Fund Capital Imprvmnts 

Cash - Sewer Impact Fee AccounL 

Cash - Water Impact Fee Account 

Tax Exempt Leasing - Sinking Fund 

US Bank - Sink Fund 

US Bank - Renewal & Repl acement Series 

Cash - Customer Deposits 

Restricted Cash - Reclass 

Fifth Third Bank - Reserves 

Fifth Third Bank - Renewal & Replacement 

Restricted Class - Reclass 

Accounts Receivable - Utilities 

Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 

Allowance for Bad Debt 

Allowance for Uncol l ectible A/R 

Prepaid Insurance - Deferred Bond Series 2017 

Deferred Outflows - Related to Pension 

Defe rred Ou tflo ws - Lo ss on R~funding 

Reserve Account 

Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 

Reserve Acct - CIP Purchases 

Reserve Acct - Cardinal Hill 

Fixed Assets - Land 

Utility Plant in Service 

Improvements Other than Buildings 

Improvements Other than Buildings - MOSN 

Acc . Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 

Equipment & Furn iture 

Accumulated Depreciation - Egu i rment 

CIP - Construction Costs 

..,,. TOTAL ASSET** 

Accounts Payable 

Customer Deposits 

Accumulated Interest Payable 

SRF Loan WW51201P 

SRF Loan WW53140/SG531401 Efflu ent Disposal 

US Bank 2017 Bond Note 

Tax Exempt Leasing Loan 

Unamoritized Bond Premiums - US Bank 

Taxes Payable 

Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 

L-T-D Current Portion 

Less: current Portion of LTD 

Net Pension Liability 

** TOTAL LIABILITY** 

Encumbrances Placed 

Reserved for Encumbrances 

** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 

Contributed Capital 

Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance Unreserved 

Net Asset Adjustment Account 

959,614.92 

52,898.45 

1,069,802.59 

348,155.55 

46,969.53 

47,435 . 38 

9,375.23 

349,710.31 

737,400.48-

610,967.73 

150,000.00 

737,400.48 

49,386.81 

64,026.69 

42,672.50-

57,398.98-

37 , 363.62 

82,455.25 

810,157.03 

225,392.00 

48,044.00 

25,778.78 

25,000.00 

2,730,735.50 

12,268,964.59 

33,331.74-

33,331.74 

316,892.74-

400 , 049.61 

3,519,580 . 52-

161,736.60 

16,637,475.43 

207,763.83 

308,373.76 

56,733.60 

2,059,675.11 

35,641.30 

8,185,000.00 

45,074 . 78 

602,902.93 

2,557.95-

15,306.77 

509,139.61 

509,139. 61-

151,555.85 

11,665,469.98 

2,145.50 

2,145.50-

0 . 00 

598,715 . 40 

36,514.20 

3,076,536.11 

10,071.23-



POLK CITY 10/16/201915:03 Page2of2Simple Balance Sheet gb614_pg.php/Job No: 37524 USER: JOANNAK 

For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 05 

Account Account Ending Net 

Number Ti tle Bal Amount 
05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734 , 552.82 

TOTAL EQUITY** 4,436,247.30 

TOTAL REVENUE** 3,950,641.17 

•• TOTAL EXPENSE** 3,414,883 .02 

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 16,637,475 .43 



10/161201,915:06 
gb8501_pg.phpfJob No: 37526 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 201,9 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page1 of5 

USER: JOANNAK 

ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 I 9 

G/L 2018 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PERCENTAGE 

ACCOlllff IDBSCR:tl'Tl:0111 PR'IOR YR RBVBHtJB I AJIITICIPATBI> RBVBHUB AJIITIC:IPATBD CURRBllT RBVBJll'O'B YTD RBVBHUB (DCBSS)/DBPIC:IT RUL:IZBD 

05-314-301 RTS - City 10% UTY T 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,112.49 (2,112.49) 0.00 % 

05-324-210 Water Impact Fees 222,302.01 139,760.00 139,760 . 00 0.00 85,603.00 54,157.00 61.25 % 

05-324-220 Sewer Impact Fees 616,545.00 353,200.00 353,200.00 0.00 211,920 . 00 141,280 . 00 60.00 % 

05-325-111 Connection Fees - Water - Cash Basis 94,787.56 69,600.00 69,600.00 0.00 42,430 . 16 27,169.84 60.96 % 

05 - 325-112 Connection Fees - Water - Accrual Bas 435.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,045.00 (3,045.00) 0.00 % 

05-325-210 Readiness to Serve Charge - Sewer 29,599.10 28,696.00 28,696.00 0.00 30,892.30 (2,196.30) 107.65 % 

05-325-211 Readiness to Serve Charge - Water 21,687.31 26,000.00 26,000.00 0.00 21,260.00 4,740.00 81. 77 % 

05 - 329-200 Other Lic./Fees/Permits 1,839.80 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.00 2,661.00 (661.00) 133.05 % 

05-331-350 Sewer/Wastewater Grants 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 781,345.00 1,269,453.00 (1,269,453.00) 0.00 % 

05-331-370 Small Community Wastewater Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 (128,000.00) 0.00 % 

05-340-300 Water Utility Revenue 1,096,000 . 10 1,135,299.00 1,135,299.00 82,089.67 1,065,393.08 69,905 . 92 93 . 84 % 

05-340-500 Sewer Utility Revenue 982,047.76 1,032,993.00 1,032,993.00 86,026.54 1,003,045.37 29,947.63 97.10 % 

05-359-100 Other Fines a n d/or Forfeitures 20,095.50 20,000.00 20,000.00 2,915.00 30,795.00 (10,795 . 00) 153 . 98 % 

05-359-200 Non Sufficient Funds 1,285.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 185.00 1,560 . 00 (560.00) 156.00 % 

05-359-300 Late Fees 26,460.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 3,517.50 30,996.00 (10,996.00) 154 . 98 % 

05-369-100 Misc. Income 9.67 0.00 0.00 (505.68) 14,451.32 (14,451.32) 0.00 % 

05-369-401 Insurance - Claims 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 7,023.45 (7,023.45) 0.00 % 

05-369 - 700 Misc Income - Reimbursement - Invoice 781. 42 0.00 o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 % 

05-381-900 Cash Carry Forward 0.00 205,677.00 205,677 . 00 0.00 0.00 205,677.00 0.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTALS 3,113,875.23 3,034,225.00 3,034,225.00 1,083,673.03 3,950,641.17 (916,416.17) 130.20 % 

-======-·=;:;;;;==::::===== ==::::;::::::::::::=:;;::::::::::====="--===== ================== ======;:: =========== ::::::::--==:::--===--===- ----------------- - -----------



0/L 

10/16/2019 15:06 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 201:9 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page2of 5 

USER: JOANNAK 

Enterprise Fund Expenditures 

100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PBRCBNTAGB 

ACCOUNT DBSCRIPTION ACTUALS ADOPTBI> BODGBT ADJ BODraBT MTD BXPBNSBS rrD IXPBNSBS AVAIL BUDGBT RBALIZBD 

Water 

05-533-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Water Oper 99,153.31 187,341.00 187,341.00 12,737 . 73 167,944 . 79 19,396.21 89. 65 % 

05-533-140 Overtime - Water Oper 837 . 90 4,52 9.00 4,529.00 340.03 2,916.21 1,612 . 79 64. 39 % 

05 - 533-210 Fica Truces - Water Oper 7,379.29 14,678.00 14,678.00 976.05 12,909.90 1,768.10 87. 95 % 

05-533-220 Re tirement Contribution - Water Oper 37,216 . 19 15,84 8.00 15,848.00 1, 1 07.69 14,565.97 1,282.03 91. 91 % 

05-533-230 Life & Health Insurance - Water Oper 25,356.43 49,859.00 49,859.00 3,904.71 44,296.51 5, 5 62.49 88. 84 % 

05-533-240 Worker's Compensation - Water Oper 124.26 9,199.00 9,199.00 0.00 7,570.00 1,629.00 82.29 % 

05-533-305 Contract Labor - Water Oper 59,148 . 75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 % 

05-533 - 310 Professional Services - Water Oper 61,472.16 20,000.00 20,000.00 1,139.90 28,291.81 (8,291.81) 141.46 % 

05-533 - 311 Engineering Services - Water Oper 14,870 . 00 30,000.00 30,000. 00 0.00 (1,558.00) 31,558.00 (5.19)% 

05 -533-312 Professional Services - Other - Water 3,441.17 20,000.00 20,000.00 460.43 3,952.02 16,047.98 19.76 % 

05-533-313 Profess i onal Services - Polk Regional 233.21 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 2,871.0 0 2,129.00 57 . 42 % 

05-533-315 Inmate Labor - Water Oper 11,499.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D. DO % 

05-533-400 Travel and Training - Water Oper 280.00 500.00 500.00 75.38 872.95 (372.95) 174 . 59 % 

05-533-410 Communication Services - Water Oper 2,826.49 3,500.00 3,so~.oo 318.34 4,160.22 (1,861.70) 118.86 % 

0 5 -533 - 430 Utilities - Water Oper 146.76 1,500.00 1,500.00 155 . 20 1,266.22 233.78 84. 41 % 

05-533-431 Mt . Olive WTP - Ut~lities - Water Ope 3,820.97 6,900.00 6,900.00 3U.80 3,191.68 3,708.32 46.26 % 

05-533-432 Commonwealth WTP - Utilities - Water 1,409.27 4,620.00 4,62.0.00 99.58 1,501.25 3,118.75 32.49 % 

05-533-433 V .Mat t Williams WTP - Util i ties - Wat 1 0,271.92 12,000.00 1 2,000.00 962.67 12,853.99 (853.99) 107.12 % 

05-533-4 60 Repairs and Maintenance - Water Oper 21,916.83 40,000.00 40,000.00 3,583.82 36,760.53 3,522.47 91. 90 % 

05-533 - 461 Mt . Olive WTP - Repairs and Maint - W 6,320.07 15,000 . 00 15,000.00 0.00 34,080.99 (19,080.99) 227 . 21 % 

05-533-462 Commonwealth WTP - Repairs and Ma i nt 6,560.56 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 % 

05-533-463 V .Matt Williams WTP - Repairs and Mai 3,983 . 04 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 % 

05-533-464 Vehicle Fuel - Water Oper 4,414.28 7,000.00 7,000.00 1, 615.01 10,665.49 (3,665.49) 152.36 % 

05-533-465 Vehicle Maintenance - Water Oper 12,559.15 8,000.00 8,000.00 1,968.08 13 , 133.97 (5,133.97) 164.17 % 

05-533-466 Public Work& / Ut i lities Facility - Rep 2,586.07 0 .00 0.00 159.70 4 , 2 65.01 (4,265.01) 0. 0 0 % 

05-533 - 490 Other Current Charges - Water Oper 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-533-492 Recording & Other Fees - Water o pe r 5,490 . 00 4,300.00 4,300.00 100.00 5,300 . 00 (1,000.00) 123 . 26 % 

05-533-493 Equipment Rental - Water Oper 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 % 

05-533-510 Office Supplies - Water Oper 567.87 1,000.00 1,000.00 15.67 252 . 66 593.07 25.27 % 

05 -533-520 Operat i ng Supplies - Water Oper 14,215.85 30,000.00 30,000 . 00 2, 4 78.52 24,075.89 5,924.11 80.25 % 

05-533-521 Mt . Olive WTP - Operating Supplies - W 155.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %" 

05-533-522 Commonwealth WTP - Operating Supplies 155.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-533-523 V. Matt Williams WTP - Operating Suppl 155.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-533-524 Chemicals - water Oper 3,275.91 9,000.00 9,000.00 295 . 00 3,233.99 5,766.01 35 . 93 % 

05-533-525 Uniforms - Water Oper 910.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 'Ir 

05 -533-526 Meter supplies - New Installs - Water 113,898.27 69,600 . 00 69,600.00 0 .00 56,117.68 13,482.32 8 0 .63 % 

05-533-527 Meter Supplies - Repairs & Maintenanc 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 11,814.64 8,185.36 59.07 % 



10/16/201915:06 
gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 

POLK CITY 
SEPTEMBER 2819 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Page 3of5 

USER: JOANNAK 

Enterprise Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

G/L 2018 2019 2019 201-9 2019 2019 PlllROBNTACilB 

ACCOUNT DBSCR:tl'T:EO!f ACTUALS ADOPTED BlJDGBT ADJ BUDGET X'1'D BXPENSBS YTD BXPB!ISl!:S AVAI L BUDGET RBALIZBD 

05-533 - 540 Books, Pub., Sub. , & Memberships - Wa 1,098.92 2,000.00 2,000.00 150.51 1,403.78 596.22 70.19 % 

05-533-605 Depreciation Expense - Water Oper 115,680 .80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-533-630 Improvements Other than Bui l ding - Wa 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 22, 2 75.35 (22,275.35) 0.00 % 

05 - 533-640 Machinery & Equipment - Water Oper 0.00 30,000 . 00 30,000.00 1,675.12 34,242.72 (4,242.72) 114.14 % 

05-533-641 Mt . Olive WTP - Machinery & Equipment 0.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 0.00 0.00 130,000.00 0.00 % 

05-533-650 Construction In Progress - Water Oper 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,505.00 (23, sos. 00) 0.00 % 

05-533-660 Other capital Assets - Water Operatio 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,906.25 (3,906.25) 0.00 % 

05-533-710 Principal - Water Oper 0.00 76,392.00 76,392.00 (76,391.99) 0.00 76,392.00 0.00 % 

05-533-720 Interest - Water Oper 46,872.24 74,490.00 74, 4 90.00 0.00 76,351.08 (1,861.08) 102.50 % 

05-533-920 Transfer to General Fund - Water Oper 79,295.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-533-999 Other Non-Operating Charges - Water 0 5,000 . 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 % 

------------------ --- --- ------------ ----- ----- - -- ----- --------- --------- ------------------ -------------- --- - -----------
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 784,700.19 924,256.00 924,256.00 (41,753.05) 668,991.55 254,191.70 72. 38 % 

Sewer 

05-535-120 Regular Salary - Wages - Sewer Oper 84,565.66 115,606.00 115,606.00 7,402 . 04 102,906.89 12,69q . 11 89.02 % 

05-535-130 Other Salaries and Wages - Sewer Oper 4.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 % 

05-535-140 Overtime - Sewer Oper 923.00 3,109.00 3,109.00 276 . 08 3,492.28 1383. 28) 112.33 % 

05-535-210 Fica Taxes - Sewer Oper 6,009.12 9,082.00 9,082.00 577.97 8,156.51 925.49 89.81 % 

05-535-220 Retirement Contribution - Sewer Oper 29,885.33 9,806.00 9,806.00 650.33 9,269.89 536 .11 94. 53 % 

05-535-230 Life & Health Insurance - Sewer Oper 15,126.98 27,149.00 27,149.00 1,959.65 23,930.52 3,218.48 88.15 % 

05 - 535-240 Worker's Compensation - Sewer Oper 0.00 9,794.00 9,794.00 0.00 3,694.00 6,100.00 37. 72 % 

05-535-305 Contract Labor - Sewer Oper 59,148.75 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-535-310 Professional Services - Sewer Oper 31,422.19 25,GOO.OO 25,000.00 5,458.00 36,643.80 (11,643.80) 146.58 % 

05-535-311 Engineering Services - Sewer Oper 18,070.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 (1,558.00) 21,558.00 (7. 79) % 

05-535 - 312 Professional Services - Other - Sewer 2,190.00 14,000 . 00 14,000.00 238. 71 4,566.06 9,433.94 32.61 % 

05-535-315 Inmate Labor - Sewer Oper 11,499.40 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-535-400 Travel and Training - Sewer Oper 1,686.96 2,500.00 2,500.00 88.87 1,941.52 558.48 77. 66 % 

05-535-410 Communication Services - sewer Oper 2,659.79 3,500.00 3,500.00 214.34 3,299.99 (1,001.47) 94.29 % 

05-535-411 Cardinal Hill WWTP - Comm Srvcs - Sew 1,396.78 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 975.47 524.53 65.03 % 

05-535-412 Mt. Olive WWTP - Comm Srvcs - Sewer 0 2,180.40 2,500.00 2,500.00 198.00 2,376.00 124.00 95.04 % 

05-535-430 Utilities - Sewer Oper 15,610.94 7,000.00 7,000.00 598.84 6,216.09 783.91 88.80 % 

05-535-431 Cardinal Hill WWTP - Utilities - Sewe 17,756.34 21,000.00 21,000.00 1,568.60 18,679 .6 5 2,320.35 88.95 % 

05-535-432 Mt. Olive WWTP - Utilities - Sewer Op 7,849.08 11,000.00 11,000.00 742.23 7,476.06 3,523.94 67. 96 % 

05-535-460 Repairs and Maintenance - Sewer Oper 96,540.19 90,000.00 90,000.00 3,607.68 53 ,550.80 36,732 . 20 59 . 50 % 

05-535-461 Cardinal Hill - Repairs and Maint - S 52,129.78 90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 4,887.70 85,112.30 5.43 % 



G/L 

10/16/201915:06 Page4of5SEPTEMBER 2019p:b~'i-~Y FINANCIALSgb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37526 USER: JOANNAK 

Enterprise Fund Expenditures 
100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

2018 2019 2019 201 9 2019 2019 I PBRCBNTAGB 

ACCOUNT DBSCR:tPTI OB' ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGBT ADJ BtmGBT JlTD BXPENSBS YTD DPBNSBS AVAl:L B'DDGBT RBAL:tZBD 

05-535-464 Vehicle Fuel - Sewer Oper 3,200.22 4,000.00 4,000.00 1,599.66 12,007.80 (8,007.80) 300.20 % 

05-535-465 Vehicle Maintenance - Sewer Oper 12,490 . 89 8,000.00 8,000.00 374.55 13,287.66 (5,287 . 66) 166.10 % 

05-535-466 Public Works/Utilitie's Facility - Rep 2,275.16 0.00 0.00 159.74 4,420.68 (4,420.68) 0.00 % 

05-535-470 Printing and Reproduction - Sewer Ope 54.69 60. 00 60.00 0.00 0.00 60.00 0.00 % 

05-535-490 Other Current Charges - Sewer Oper 113. 09 0.00 0.00 0.00 168.22 (168.22) 0.00 % 

05-535-492 Recording & Other Fees - Sewer Oper 100.00 350.00 350.00 0.00 125.00 225.00 35. 71 % 

05-535-493 Equipment Rental - Sewer Oper 337.00 4,000.00 4 , 000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 % 

05-535-510 Office Supplies - Sewer Oper 412 .13 1,000.00 1,000.00 15.63 262.98 582.75 26.30 % 

05-535-520 Operating Supplies - Sewer Oper 12,246.40 8,000.00 8,000.00 2,873.45 11,207.82 (3,207.82) 140.10 % 

05-535 - 521 Cardinal Hill WWTP - Operating Suppli 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27 .34 (27 .34) 0.00 % 

05-535-522 Cardinal Hill WWTP - Sludge Hauling 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 0.00 15,360.00 640.00 96 . 00 % 

05 - 535-524 Chemicals - Sewer Oper 23,374.71 17,000.00 17,000 . 00 577.00 30,602.99 (13,602.99) 180.02 % 

05-535-525 Uniforms - Sewer Oper 70 9.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-535-530 Road Materials & Supplies - Sewer Ope 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 27. 74 972.26 2.77 % 

05-535 - 540 Books, Pub., Suh., &Memberships - Se 469.57 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 418.27 581. 73 41. 83 % 

05-535-605 D~preciation Expense - Sewer Oper 207,310.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-535 - 640 Machinery & Equipment - Sewer Oper 898.99 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 37,497.61 12,502.39 75.00 % 

05-535 - 611 Cardinal Hill - Mach & Equip - Sewer 0.00 1 04,000.00 104,000.00 0.00 34,355.00 69,615 . 00 33.03 % 

05-535-650 Construction In ProgrRss - Sewer Oper 0.00 0.00 0.00 541,099.30 1,825,510.54 (1,825,510.54) 0.00 % 

05-535-710 Principal - Sewer Oper 0 . 00 307,586.00 307,586.00 (246,042.58) 0.00 307,586.00 0.00 % 

05-535-720 Interest - Sewer Oper 313,451.20 303,789.00 303,789.00 27,037.20 305,265.48 (1,476.48) 100.49 % 

05-535-722 Interest - DEP Effluent Disposal Loan 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,626.30 4,626.30 (4,626.30) 0.00 % 

05-535-920 Transfer to General Fund - Sewer Oper 79,295.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 1,113,394.67 1,288,331.00 1,288,331.00 355,901.59 2,585,676.66 (1,298,418.41) 200.70 % 

EF Non-Departmental 

05-590-310 Professional Services - Non-Dept 19,391.06 24,300.00 24,300.00 2,378.95 27,327.92 (3,027.92) 112 . 46 % 

05-590-312 Professional Services - Other - Non-D 8,240.00 18,500.00 18,500.00 0.00 8,240.00 10 ,2 60.00 44.54 % 

05-590-315 Inmate Labor - EF Non - Dept 0.00 28,749.00 28,749.00 0.00 28,748.50 0.50 100.00 % 

05-590-320 Account i ng and Auditing - Non-Dept 33,055.84 27,306.00 27,306.00 6,358.30 30,497.31 (3,191.31) 111.69 % 

05-590-440 Rentals and Leases - Non-Dept 4,118.91 4,074.00 4,074.00 737.84 4,609.06 (535.06) 113.13 % 

05-590-450 Liability Insurance - Non-Dept 36,702.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0 .00 26,351. so 23,648.50 52.70 % 

05-590-492 Recording & Other Fees - Non-Dept 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 % 

05-590-510 Office Supplies - Non-Departmental 0.00 0.00 0.00 177.49 840.65 (840.65) 0.00 % 

05-590-520 Operating Supplies - Non-Dept 179.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 843.76 (843.76) 0.00 % 



G/L 

POLK CITY10/161201915:06 Page 5of5SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 USERt JOANNAK 

Enterprise Fund Expenditures 

100.00 %Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2 019 1 PBRCBNTASB 
ACCOUNT IIlBSCRIP'l'IOIII' ACTUALS AIX>PTBil BtJDGET ADJ BtJDGBT 1ITD BXPDISBS YTD BXPBNSBS AVAIL B1JDGBT ltBALIZ:BD 

05-590-521 Emergencies & Contingencies - Operati 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 8,197.82 9,197.82 10,802.18 45.99 % 
05-590-525 uniforms - Non Dept 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 1,493.52 2,506.48 37.34 % 

05-590-528 Postage - Non - Dept 1,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 64.32 64.32 2,935.68 2.14 % 

05-590-720 Interest - Bond 2017 Issue 197,995.94 0.00 0.00 (44,749.17) (44,749.17) 44,749.17 0.00 % 

05-590-730 Other Debt Service Costs 66,573.69 0.00 0.00 64,104.94 64,104.94 (64,104.94) 0.00 % 

05-590-920 Transfer to General Fund - Non-Dept 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 % 

05-590-930 Transfer to Water Impact Fee Reserves 0.00 139,760.00 139,760.00 0.00 0.00 139,760.00 0.00 % 

05-590-931 Transfer to Sewer Impact Fee Reserves 0.00 353,200.00 353,200.00 0.00 0.00 353 ,2 00.00 0.00 % 

05-590-940 Reserves - Unrestricted Reserves NON- 0.00 72,686.00 72,686.00 0.00 0.00 72,686.00 0.00 % 

05-590-941 Reserves - Emergencies & Contingencie 255.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 

05-590 - 992 Unemployment Claims - Non - Dept 0 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 % 

05-590-993 Transfer to Reserve - Non-Dept 0.00 7,013.00 7,013.00 0.00 0.00 7,013.00 0.00 % 

05-590-994 Bank Fees - Non-Dept 0.00 1,550.00 1,550.00 0.00 0.00 1,550.00 0.00 % 

05-590-996 Bad Debt - Non - Dept 2,170.57 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 (187.62) 40,187.62 (0.47)% 

05-590-999 Other - Non-Operating Charges - Non-D 608.78 0.00 0.00 53.08 401. 92 (401.92) 0.00 % 

- -·-- -----
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 395,292.37 821,638.00 821,638.00 37,323 57 l57,784.43 663,853,57 19. 2.0 'k 

Enterprke i:u.n,f Revenue,. Total 9,224,341.74 3,0!!Q,225Jl0 3,034,225.00 1,083,673.03 9,9'S0,6a1.:11 -916,416_17 130.:r09' 

fnler·prhr Fund:E,opendilures Toled -3,348,699 ,42 -5,054,225.00 -5 ,034,225.0,0 -351,47 2.1.1 -3,4-12,452.64 380,575_141 112.47% 

Total Revenue "VS. Expenditures -1241,357.68 o_oo 0.00 732,200.92 538.,188.53 -5.36,043.03 



Library Reports 10/2018 - 09/2019 
Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 * Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Totals 

Circulation 
Adult Books 982 869 788 1004 897 813 919 934 863 1076 1122 915 11182 
Juvenile Books 995 832 660 680 668 621 826 935 1261 1361 935 877 10651 
DVD'S 946 726 766 1010 612 800 786 976 790 960 954 831 10157 
Hot-Spots 20 16 25 20 20 20 25 20 20 25 20 25 256 
Digital 0 58 23 44 37 49 41 62 63 73 84 70 604 
Total Circulation 2943 2501 2262 2758 2234 2303 2597 2927 2997 3495 3115 2718 32,850 

New Borrowers 
In City 13 12 6 18 16 10 11 11 28 8 22 11 166 
In County 2 7 3 5 3 2 3 5 2 3 4 5 44 
Digital 0 27 4 8 6 5 8 5 12 7 6 11 99 
Tota! New Borrowers 15 46 13 31 25 17 22 21 42 18 32 27 309 

Number of Programs 
Adult 1 3 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 0 0 1 16 
Juvenile 2 2 4 4 2 3 3 7 7 6 1 2 43 
Young Adult 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 2 2 0 0 11 
Total Programs 4 6 7 6 3 6 5 10 10 8 1 3 70 

Program Attendance 
Adult 30 44 114 36 9 16 48 41 4 185 6 15 548 
Juvenile 47 32 139 42 10 38 73 164 445 360 9 13 1372 

Young Adult 5 36 34 5 0 3 5 6 90 48 0 0 232 
Total Attendance 82 112 287 83 19 57 126 211 539 593 15 28 2152 

Reference Questions 
Phone Calls 232 207 197 208 163 194 197 194 198 228 233 172 2423 

Number of Computer Users 
288 225 205 292 210 303 244 248 231 205 236 190 2877 

Total Patrons 
1505 1273 1207 1580 1012 1350 1277 1553 2134 1928 1093 1052 16964 

*Library Closed 1 week due to sewer issue. 



Polk County Fire Rescue 2019 Report Through Sep 30thCity of Polk City Summary Report 
Report Date : 2019-10-01 

Previous Month Incidents by Call Category [ ..~~tal Incidents: 34 Year to Date Incidents by Call Category Ii Total Incidents: 293 

Hazardous Condition J 
~ FireCall _J5.._J 2 

Citizen Assist/Service Ca: ! J 
Fire Alarm ':J 11 

Traffic/Transportation Incidents 
FireCall 17:=:J 

Traffic/Transportation Incidents 41 

Medical Call 27 
Medical Cal! 218 

50 100 150 200 250
10 15 20 25 30 

Traffir/Transportatio(I 
·Medical Call .!raff\c/fransportation__ Incidents Fire Call Medical Ca ll Firl!Call fire Alarm Citiz~ Assist/Service Call Hazardous Condition

1nddi!nts 

Ill Total 27 BTotal 218 41 17 11 

Previous Month Medical Calls by Category Total Incidents: 27 Year to Date Medical Cai :s by Category fotal Incidents: 218 

Sick Person ~-:.. 1d: I li;i;&:.·:liio!-- aij:il~"t' . · · · · · 41Breathing Problems ~ ... ~·;:.;;;;;;• AA J 4 
➔ s-Breathing Problems :rn::::r:::- ·i ...=.:atL'.- -· 33 

Fa:ls - . -.:-~ e-,--;...,-.-.•j ..~;;,-,.., n ~ 5n .5 23, -.- ►-.~,-,-- Falls 1.i;··1 • · :::;;:;a~,-~4"' C-1est Pain :r::;;m::· t4 t--A -:::w:z:r-::;;;:msan 21 
Sick Person .. Tifut ; J;j s:s •"" ·' :nr" .ll: :;;::::;::;;:i 3 Unconscious/Fainting 

Psychiatric/Abnormal Behavior/Suicide Attempt
Chest Pain ,7N -- ~-::y ,1;- ftzlt ·C ~,;; -~ Unknown Problem 

Hemorrhage/LacerationsHemorrhage/Lacerations ,4 M 4:fu•# ' w1r tt ,4:k ::J 
Diabetic hoblems 

Abdominal Pain/Problem 'mffl,4 ~:;:;::::::i 2 Convulsion/Seizures 
Overdose/Poisoning 

Psychiatric/Abnormal Behavior/Suicide Attempt ~ :•., 1 .,JI' ,-.i::'....,;;.i,llifj Abdominal Pain/Problem -....::tllt£1i 5 
Heart Problems/A.I.C.D. =4

Allerg:es/Envenomation ,.:,. k · 4 j 1 Allergies/Envenomation ~ 4 
Carc!:ac/Respiratory Arrest/Deat~ ~ 3

Convulsion/Seizures ~ 1:f•Q* .J1 Traumatic Injuries = 3 

Assault/Sexual Assault > :¥r, " " I Back Pa:n = 3 
Stroke/Transient lschemic Attack =,3 

Diabetic Problems i3t 5;ji·· ,J An:mal Bites/Attacks ~ 2 
Burns/Explosion 1 

Overdose/Poisoning A:flt... , ,Pffl¼, J Eye Problems/Injuries "" ;:J 1 
Stab/Gunshot/Penetrating Trauma :n 

Heat/Cold Exposure h, :W "'°L:t ,j 1 Assault/Sexual Assault "" 
Unconscious/Fainting 8; .1 ;)t$':'' Heat/Cold Exposure ZJ 

1 Choking :::, 

0 0.5 1.5 2.5 3.5 4.5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 

Previous Month Fire Calls by Category Year to Date fire Calls by Category Total Incidents: 2 

Outside Fire 
Vehicle Fire ._r.,: :i:.J~._,_______________.J 

Vehicle Fire 4 

Outside Fire 
Structure Fire 

10 11 

Dispatch to Arrival: Average:5:27, 90th Percentile: 11:19 

Total Calls: YTD - 293 Last Mo. - 34 Total Response Time: Average: 6:46, 90th Percentile: 12:21 

0 

10 



POLK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

STATISTICAL DATA 

West Division 

October 17, 2019 Northwest District 

To: Patricia Jackson , City Manager 

From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376 

Subject: Statistical report for September, 2019. 

,r 

'"l~ 1fc✓ li,;, ~. ~ ~--·~· ' , ;, 1t 

FELONY ARREST 3 

AFFIDAVITS FELONY 0 

MISDEMEANOR ARREST 7 

AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR 

OUT OF COUNTY/STATE 
WARRANT ARRESTS 

0 

PROCAP WARRANT ARREST 0 

TOTAL ARRESTS 10 

SEARCH WARRANTS 0 

FIELD INTERROGATION 
REPORTS 

8 

TRAFFIC CITATIONS 4 
INTELLIGENCE REPORTS 0 
STOLEN PROPERTY 
RECOVERED 

0 

HRS. TRANSPORTING/ 
AGENCIES/DIVISIONS 

0 

OFFENSE REPORTS 50 

NARCOTICS SEIZED 
meth 

7 grams of 

ASSETS SEIZED 0 

PATROL NOTICES 0 

FOXTROT REPORTS 7 

TOW-AWAY NOTICES 0 

COMMUNITY CONTACTS 1725 

TRAFFIC STOPS 15 

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 



116TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS 
FOR SERVICE 

In September 2019, there were five (5) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to six (6) in 
September 2018. In September 2019 there were two residential burglaries reported however the 
incidents were known suspects who used to reside at the residences. There was three reported 
robberies however one of them was a known suspect and could pose as civil issues over shared 
property. One was between a 16 year old and an adult who took the phone from her for not doing 
as she was told, they were roommates at the time of the incident. The third robbery was legit and 
the suspects were located in Lake County a few minutes later, the suspects are from Groveland 
and had been on a crime spree, they utilized an opportunity here in the City as they were passing 
through heading back to Groveland. The employee (victim) of Circle K was actually out by his 
vehicle at the time of the incident. These cases do not pose to be a trend and are not related at 
this time. 

BURGLARY RESIDENCE 
PCSO- 2019-08-31 / 2019-09-01 / Sun 212 SUNSHINEBLVD un ksusp entered the vie's res id by kicking door and 

190040939 2100hrs 0330hrs ransackingthe house/ several items were intentionally 

damaged /only item missing was a black and green hunting 

knife /vie thinks ex~boyfrlend Austin Hitchcock WM 

09/23/1993 might be susp. Beer bottle found at crime 
scene. LPWO and Lab Letter completed for bottle to be 
processed. Potential suspect'swhereabout's are unknown, 
Victim is attempting to find out where he lives now. 

Co ins LPWO No Pend in 

PCSO- 2019-09-05 / 2019-09-06/ Fri 116 SUNSHINE BlVD poss known susp entered res id which is currently under 

190041613 1830hrs 0800hrs remodel and removed 20'of4 gauge copper wire, 10'of8 
gauge wire, lO'of 1(1 gauge wire and 10'of12gauge wire, a 
Makita skill saw and a Stanley tape measure; susps Sarah 
PoseyWF 080785 & Jason Perkins WM 021683 located 
scrap for Perlclns, vie unable to ID wires, witness observed 
susp vehicle at residence but not suspect. Unable to locate 
susp Thornas no no NFL 

ROBBERY 
PCSO- 2019-09-02/ 2019-09-02/ M<:>n 122 COMMONWEALTH vict advised that herEnc:•boyftiend opened herca r·door and 
19004l100 cl64Shro 1705hr, AVE N (COUNTRYANGELS) snatched her phone from her. susp laterthrewthe phone 

on the ground and said he was goingto"blowyourand 

llndsays brains out'. vlct stated thatthesusp is on meth 

and could have a firearm. susp:Jos&ph Tyler WM 052289 
{Arrested): "Tyler waslnvovlvad In a.pursuit tho follow day and 
wastakan Into custody for his warrant and the charges from 
thlslncld.ent. Frankowski No No 

PCSO- 2019'°9-20 / 2019-09-20,/ Fri 550 SUNRISE BLVD ,usp snatched vlcts phone then broka It; susp then followed 

'1.90044371 1820hro 1845hrS v1ctato,ide where he.grabbed her, threw her to the ground 
and punched her; suspthen-pic·ked up a cinder block-and 
t-hrea-tenedto kill her; 10~.S.: lotJ;.ie Burton WM06:t682 patrol/ 

Marenco 
PCSO- 2019-09-25 / 2019-09-25 / Wed 207 COMMONWEAL TH Vic was leaving work when 2 susps rushed him, brandished 
190044999 0043hrs 0250hrs AVEN firearm, & demanded vies car keys. Susp2 struck vie in the 

CIRCLE K head. Veh was later located in Groveland (Lake County). 
Susps were apprehended after pursuit. Both are from Lake 

County. Susps: Zeth Klocheska WM 5/8/99 &Jonathan 
Rodriguez HM 4/19/01 BCI 

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 



DapartmantiiH.aw Eill'orcement 

Polk City - 2018 . 2019 -- C>,lob.t -·-2018 2ll 19 2011 :l019 
Mlroh 

2011 201 9 ··-101e. 201g 
M

28 16 
w 
201 9 

""1• 
20 1& 2019 

JI, 

2018 20 19 

.. 
2018 

• Mt 
201Q 2018 2019 2.01~ 2019 20 15 201 9 

Dice... 
20 18 2019 

YlDTatm 
2018 1011 
~ _pt>·- 2018 2019 

RbbbmV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 • 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 l :lOO¾ 00 0 .3 
Bllra Bulll'\55. 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 l 0 0 0 I 0 1 D 0 0 1 0 1 2 0% 0 I 02 
Burg Retld!!rKlll 2 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 • I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 6 0 1 0 2 0 9 7 200¾ 1.0 08 
Bu,g_S\14.J ~IWo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 2 0 • 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0% 02 0 1 
Buro Colllo' t:YMCl!c 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 l 0 0 " 0 0 1 0 s 0 I 0 0 0 ' 16 O¾ 06 1 8 
Vfflo!Cilelhefr 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 \ 0 Q 0 0 0 2 J 0% 02 0 ,1 
GnndTh•fl 0 1 0 ' 0 ' 0 0 1 0 1 I 0 0 0 I I 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 l 5 · 100¼ 03 0.6 
Felll Tllen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 l 1 0~ 0.3 01 
Ma<'l'hot1 0 0 0 G 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 D 0 1 - 100% 00 0 I 
Rl:taYl'Mff 0 D 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0% 01 00 
0'ln1flal Mllchle-1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 I 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 2 200.., 03 0 2 
Totals 3 4 1 4 2 3 1 0 8 3 6 2 1 16 1 4 6 5 15 0 3 0 4 0 29 41 25% 3.2 4.6 
% Chang e 33% .... ,-,. 50% l'IA -63% -67% 1500% 300•~ -17% N'A NA l'IA 4 ... .,. 

,nn• Q I o Q I a a I J > I U u l 4 , I • u I o u I ~ u• I u u u I u !z 

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 



Public Works Report 
September 2019 

Public Works 

Summary: Public Works maintained all Pubiic facilities to include Library, City Hall, 
Freedom Park, Bronson Center, Old Public Works Facility, Courts, McManigle Park, 
Fishing Pier, New Public Work/Utility facilities, and Activity Center. 

• Mowed and trimmed all City facilities 

• Inspected Freedom Park, Recreation Courts, Fishing Pier, and McManigle Park, 

• Activity Center - Set up and tear down of facility for Rental of Building, installed 
gutter. 

• Bronson Center- Set up and tear down of facility for Rental of Building 

• Monitored and serviced all storm drains throughout Polk City. 

• Completed Work Orders-11 (Repairs and Maintenance of Equipment, Electrical, 
plumbing, Building Maintenance, Vehicle Maintenance, etc.) 

• Installed new WIFI thermostats in City Buildings. 

• Installed new door locking system in City Government Center. 

• Installed new automatic locking system at Freedom Park. 

• Completed new fence at City Pier. 

October Objectives: 
Continue maintaining the mowing and preventive maintenance of all City facilities, 
service equipment. Also install new shelves at Library. Work on Safe-Haven event. 



UTILITY DEPARTM ENT 

July 2.019 MONTHLY REPORT 

Summary: Water/Wastewater continued to maintain sampling of the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant. Continued to pull all samples for the Water Plants. 

All samples were in-compliance. Completed monthly MORs/DMR reports for DEP.. 

Met all of DEP requirements to keep Polk City in compliance. 

• All lift stations continue to have preventive maintenance. We are 

continuing to get all Verbatims/Auto dialers running properly. Generators 
are being maintained. 

Service Completed 

• Monthly meter reading 

• No reads for the Utility Billing 

• Work Orders 304 

• Turn On 22 

• Turn off 24 

• Misc -(rereads, laptops, vacation turn on, TBO from shut off) -282 

• Fire Hydrant flushing and maintenance is being done weekly. 

• Valve exercising is being done weekly. 

• Continue preventative maintenance/housekeeping is being done. 

• WWTF is maintained by wasting, decanting, housekeeping. 

August OBJECTIVES: Meet all DEP requirements to stay in compliance, 

continuing to maintain work orders and locates. 



UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 

SUMMARY: Water/Wastewater continued to maintain 

sampling of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Continued to 

pull all samples for the Water Plants. All samples were in

compliance. Completed MORs/DMRs. Reports for DEP... Met 

all of DEP requirements to keep Polk City in compliance. 

Pulled all monitor well samples. Continue to do daily 

inspections on the New Reclaim Pond Relocation. Turn in 

monthly reports on the New Reclaim Ponds. Met with 

contractors on upgrading the water plant facilities. 

SERVICE COMPLETED 

• Monthly meter reading 

• No reads for the Utility Billing 

• Work orders 

• Turn Ons 

• Turn Offs 

• Misc -{rereads,laptops,vacation turnon, TBO from shut 

off)-

• Fire Hydrant flushing and maintenance is being done 

weekly. 

• Valve exercising is being done weekly 

• Continue preventative maintenance/housekeeping is 

being done 



• WWTF is maintained by 

wasting,decanting,housekeeping 

OCTOBER OBJECTIVES: Meet all DEP requirements to stay 

in compliance, continuing to maintain work orders and 

locates. Property was cleared on back side of Ruth Rd. 

Preparing to Aquatic Spray the property per Lori 

Pearson's Aquatic Spraying Contractor License. Continue 

to work on replacing the doors at the water plants. 



City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM #1: PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-06 - AN 
ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE POLK CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; REVISING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT TO ADD THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE; 
TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR A 
FINDING OF COMPLIANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. Second and Final Reading 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: 

Ordinance 2019-06 is a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Comprehensive Plan to add the 
"Mixed Use" Future Land Use designation to the Future Land Use Element. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

-Ordinance 2019-06 
-Staff Overview Report 

ANALYSIS: 

The Commission passed Ordinance 2019-06 on First Reading August 19, 2019; and transmitted to 
DEO for review. 

Upon review the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density 
(dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed-Use Future 
Land Use. Ordinance 2019-06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units 
per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Ordinance 2019-06, with changes, on Second and Final Reading. 



ORDINANCE 2019-06 

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK 
CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; REVISING THE FUTURE LAND USE 
ELEMENT TO ADD THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF 
MIXED USE; TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR A FINDING OF 
COMPLIANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK 
CITY, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance and 
amending the City's Future Land Use Element, the City Commission of Polk City, 
Florida hereby makes the following findings: 

(1) Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, establishes the Community 
Planning Act ("Act"), which empowers and mandates Polk City, Florida (the "City") to 
plan for future development and growth and to adopt and amend comprehensive plans, 
or elements or portions thereof, to guide the future growth and development of the City. 

(2) Pursuant to the Act, the City has adopted a comprehensive plan 
("Comprehensive Plan"). 

(3) The Act authorizes a local government desiring to revise its 
comprehensive plan to prepare and adopt comprehensive plan amendments. 

(4) The City has prepared a text amendment to the Future Land Use Element 
of the Comprehensive Plan to amend Policies 4.2 and 4.3, which would create the 
"Mixed Use" Future Land Use designatior.. 

(5) In exercise of its authority the Commission has determined it necessary to 
adopt this amendment to the Plan, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and by this 
reference made a part hereof, to insure that the Plan is in full compliance with the laws 
of the State of Florida. 

(6) Pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, the City Commission held 
a meeting and hearing on Ordinance 2019-06, with due public notice having been 
provided, to ·obtain public comment, and considered all written and oral comments 
received during public hearings, including support documents. 

(7) In the exercise of its authority, the City Commission has determined that it 
is necessary to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Future Land Use Element 
contained herein to encourage the most appropriate use of land, water, and resources 

1 



consistent with the public interest; to deal effectively with future problems that may 
result from the use and development of land within the City; and to ensure that the 
Comprehensive Plan is in full compliance with State law. 

(8) The City Commission finds that the proposed text amendment to the 
Future Land Use Element contained herein is in the best interests of the health, safety, 
and welfare of the general public and the City's residents, furthers the purposes of, and 
is consistent with, the City's Comprehensive Plan, and is consistent with and compliant 
with State law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 2. FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT. The Future Land Use 
Element of the City's Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended to include the text 
amendment set forth in Exhibit "A," which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, and which amends Policies 4.2 and 4.3 to create the "Mixed Use" Future 
Land Use designation. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is 
declared by any c:ourt of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or 
unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All existing ordinances or parts of existing 
ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 5. CODIFICATION. An official, true and correct copy of this 
Ordinance and the City's Comprehensive Plan, as adopted and amended from time to 
time, shall be maintained by the City Clerk. The City Clerk will make copies available to 
the public for a reasonable publication charge. 

SECTION 6. TRANSMITTAL. Within ten (10) days of final passage and 
adoption of this Ordinance, the City shall forward a copy hereof, and all supporting data 
and analysis, to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity and any other agency 
or local govemment that provided timely comments to the City, as required by Section 
163.3184)(3)(c)2, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Plan amendment, if 
the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 45 days after the State Land Planning 
Agency notifies the local government that the plan amendment package is complete. If 
timely challenged, this amendment shall become effective on the date the State Land 
Planning Agency or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining this 
adopted amendment to be in compliance. No development orders, development 
permits, or land uses dependent on this amendment may be issued or commence 
before it has become effective. If a final order of noncompliance is issued by the 
Administration Council, this amendment may nevertheless be made effective by 
adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, a copy of which resolution shall be 
sent to the state land planning agency. 

2 



INTRODUCED AND PASSED on First Reading this 19th day of August, 2019. 

POLK CITY, FLORIDA 

Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
CORRECTNESS: 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum 
present and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular 
Session this ___day of October, 2019. 

Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

3 



EXHIBIT "A" 
POLK CITY ORDINANCE 2019-06 

AMENDED FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 

Proposed Text Amendments to the Future Land Use. Element 

The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text 
that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be 
removed. Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the 
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 

Policy 4.2: The following land use categories are hereby established for the 
purpose of managing future development and redevelopment 
activities. The Future Land use categories are identified by location 
in the Polk City Exemption Area, Polk City Special Protection Area 
and Polk County Rural Special Protection Area: 

a. Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories 
Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element provides density 
and intensity standards for the following Future Land Use 
categories. 

i. Residential Very Low Density 

ii. Residential Low Density 

iii. Residential Medium Density 

iv. Mixed Use 

V. Commercial 

vi. Industrial 

vii. Public Use 

viii. Recreation 

ix. Conservation 

X. Conservation/ Passive Recreation 

4 



Policy 4.3: Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories and 
Description. The following Future Land Use Categories are located 
within the Polk City Exemption Area. Policy 4.1.a. provides a 
description of the Polk City Exemption Area. 

a. The primary function of the Residential Very Low Density 
classification is to accommodate very low density residential 
development consisting of single family dwellings. This 
category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, 
along with structures accessory to residential use. Maximum 
density is 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres for single family uses; 
agricultural uses are permissible in this category, with or 
without a dwelling unit included; single family homes with 
horses are allowed, one home per lot and a minimum density 
of 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres. This category allows for the 
establishment of 1 manufactured (mobile) home per 5 acres 
for undeveloped and previously unplatted areas having severe 
soil suitability for septic · tanks and buildings without 
basements, until central sewer and water services become 
available. This category permits schools and other public uses 
appropriate to agricultural areas and single family 
neighborhoods. 

b. The primary function of the Residential Low Density 
classification is to accommodate low density residential 
development consisting of single family dwellings. This 
category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, 
along with structures accessory to residential use. Maximum 
density is four dwelling units per acre. This category permits 
schools and other public uses appropriate to residential 
neighborhoods. 

c. The primary function of the Residential Medium Density 
classification is to accommodate multi-family residential 
development. Permitted uses include duplexes, apartments, 
condominiums, manufactured (mobile) home parks or 
subdivisions, RV parks, and single family homes. Intensity is 
one single family home per lot; or one duplex per lot; or two 
buildings of five units each per lot. Maximum density is 10.0 
residential dwe!ling units per acre. This category permits 
schools and other public uses appropriate to residential 
neighborhoods. 

Ordinance 1239-A: The 63.29 +/- acres located in Sections 28 
and 33, Township 26 South, Range 25 East; generally located 
on Smith Road in the eastern quadrant of the City, shall be 

5 



designated "Residential Medium" on the Future Land Use 
Map; shall be developed with central potable water and sewer 
and shall be limited to a residential density not to exceed 861 
dwelling units (achieved by a density of 6.68 dwelling units per 
acre on the 63.29 acres, and a density transfer of 6.68 
dwelling units per acre from the 65.58 acres of Conservation 
directly adjacent to the RM); and shall be subject to other 
applicable land development regulations within the City. 
(Ordinance 1239-A, December 9, 2008, adoption) 

g. Mixed Use: The primary function of the Mixed Use 
classification is to apply to developments in which a mix of 
residential and non-residential uses (commercial. office, light 
industrial. institutional, and civic uses) are planned. ''fbe 
maximum density aflowed . is 1O dwelling units per acre. The 
maximum floor area ratio allowed is 1.Q. Such development 
shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A 
balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including 
residences, shops. work places. parks, and other urban uses 
shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as 
interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian access. 

a~. The primary function of the Commercial classification is to 
accommodate the shopping needs of residents living in and 
near Polk City. The Commercial classification permits 
neighborhood service commercial uses; and accommodates 
traditional retail commercial needs of the market area both 
along the highway and in the downtown core of the market 
area. This category permits schools and other public uses 
appropriate to commercial areas. Floor area ratio for 
commercial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 

ef. The primary function of the Industrial classification is to 
accommodate the industrial needs of the market area, both 
light industry and heavy industry. This category permits 
vocational and technical schools and other public uses 
appropriate to industrial areas. Floor area ratio for industrial 
structures shall not exceed 0.35. 

fg. The primary function of the Public Uses classification is to 
provide for areas for existing or future government-owned or 
leased buildings or grounds including schools, libraries, 
medical facilities, parks and open space areas; and private 
buildings or grounds such as hospitals, camps, clubs, private 
schools, museums and similar land uses. Floor area ratio for 

6 



public and private use structures under this classification shall 
not exceed 0.35. For schools, one residential unit per school is 
permitted to accommodate an on-site security guard/ 
caretaker. For parks, one residential unit per 40 acres is 
permitted to accommodate an on-site security guard/ park 
ranger. 

9b_. The primary function of the Recreation classification is to 
provide for areas for existing or future public parks, recreation 
uses and open space areas. Permitted uses include public 
open space, recreation areas and parks; and private parks 
and recreation uses, such as golf courses. All recreation uses 
within Polk City shall be included in this category. One 
dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park 
rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 
20 acres. Maximum lot coverage by buildings plus all 
impervious surface area shall not exceed 5% of the total 
parcel. 

hi. The primary function of the Conservation classification is to 
protect natural resources, improve lake, r1ver and groundwater 
quality. The Conservation designation includes land within the 
100-year floodplain of any lake or river; wetlands; soils-limited 
areas; wellhead protection areas; and ancient scrub lands. No 
development is allowed in conservation areas. One dwelling 
unit per park is allowed_ for caretakers and park rangers, with 
the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. 
Maximum lot coverage by buildings and all impervious surface 
shall not exceed 1% of the total land area of the parcel. No 
other uses are allowed in this classification. 

ii, The primary function of the Conservation/Passive Recreation 
classification is to protect natural resources while allowing 
passive recreation. Commercial uses such as equipment 
rental shops and snack huts are permissible to serve the users 
of the recreation area. Passive recreation land uses, such as 
boat docks, beaches and hiking trails are permissible. One 
dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park 
rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 
20 acres. Maximum lot coverage by buildings and all 
impervious surface shall not exceed 1 % of the total land area 
of the parcel. 

t.!s- Public schools are allowed in all land use classifications 
except Polk City's Future Land Use classifications of 
Conservation and Conservation/ Passive Recreation. This 

7 



provision applies to lands contiguous to existing schools, as 
well as development of vacant land for new schools. Further, 
Polk City hereby encourages the co-location of public facilities 
such as parks, libraries, and community centers, with schools, 
when planning and reviewing a proposed site for new or 
expanded facilities, and shall adopt criteria for collocation in 
the Unified Land Development Code. 

8 



TEXT AMENDMENT 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 

OF THE 
POLK CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

OCTOBER 21, 2019 

TO: POLK CITY COMMISSION 

FROM: CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2019-06: City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City 
Comprehensive Plan to add the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use designation to the Future 
Land Use Element. 

AGENDA & HEARING DATES: 
May 30, 2019 at 6:00 PM: Planning Commission Hearing 
August 19, 2019, 7:00 PM: City Commission (First Reading, Public Transmittal Hearing) 
October 21, 2019, 7:00 PM: City Commission Meeting (Second Reading, Public 
Adoption Hearing) 

POLK CITY PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
On Thursday, May 30, 2019, the Polk City Planning Commission held a public Hearing to amend the Polk 
City Comprehensive Plan to create a new Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use. The Planning 
Commission voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the City Commission with a 
recommendation of approval. 

POLK CITY COMMISSION ACTION: 
On Monday, August 19, 2019, the Polk City Commission held a public hearing on Ordinance 2019-06 and 
voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity for review. 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY REVIEW: 
The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density ( dwelling units per 
acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 2019-
06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area 
ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. 

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS: 

1. I move the City Commission adopt with changes Ordinance 2019-06 on second reading. 

2. I move the City Commission not adopt Ordinance 2019-06 on second reading. 



OVERVIEW REPORT: 

The Future Land Use Element of the Polk City Comprehensive Plan currently provides for the 
following Future land Use designations within the Green Swamp Exemption Area of the City. 

Residential Very Low Density 

Residential Low Density 

Residential Medium Density 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Public Use 

Recreation 

Conservation 

Conservation/ Passive Recreation 

Staff has determined that a new Future Land Use designation of "Mixed Use" should be added to 
the Comprehensive Plan. Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple 
or mixed uses which require specific or selected land use districts. This type of flexible land use 
category is not set forth by the City's existing Future Land Use designations. 

The proposed text to be added to Policy 4.2 and as Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element is 
provided below. All subsequent policies will be renumbered. 

Page 2 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that 
is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. 
Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity. 

Policy 4.2: The following land use categories are hereby established for the purpose of 
managing future development and redevelopment activities. The Future 
Land use categories are identified by location in the Polk City Exemption 
Area, Polk City Special Protection Area and Polk County Rural Special 
Protection Area: 

a. Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories 
Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element provides density and 
intensity standards for the following Future Land Use categories. 

1. Residential Very Low Density 

11. Residential Low Density 

m. Residential Medium Density 

Iv. Mixed Use 

v. Commercial 

v1. Industrial 

VIL Public Use 

v111. Recreation 

IX. Conservation 

x. Conservation/ Passive Recreation 

Policy 4.3: Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories and Description. 
The following Future Land Use Categories are located within the Polk City 
Exemption Area. Policy 4.1.a. provides a description of the Polk City 
Exemption Area. 

a. The primary function of the Residential Very Low Density 
classification is to accommodate very low density residential 
development consisting of single family dwellings. This category 
permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, along with 

Page 3 



structures accessory to residential use. Maximum density is 1 
dwelling unit per 5 acres for single family uses; agricultural uses are 
permissible in this category, with or without a dwelling unit included; 
single family homes whh horses are allowed, one home per lot and a 
minimum density of 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres. This category allows 
for the establishment of 1 manufactured (mobile) home per 5 acres for 
undeveloped and previously unplatted areas having severe soil 
suitability for septic tanks and buildings without basements, until 
central sewer and water services become available. This category 
permits schools and other public uses appropriate to agricultural areas 
and single family neighborhoods. 

b. The primary function of the Residential Low Density classification is 
to accommodate low density residential development consisting of 
single family dwellings. This category permits one single family 
dwelling unit on each lot, along with structures accessory to residential 
use. Maximum density is four dwelling units per acre. This category 
permits schools and other public uses appropriate to residential 
neighborhoods. 

c. The primary function of the Residential Medium Density classification 
is to accommodate multi-family residential development. Permitted 
uses include duplexes, apartments, condominiums, manufactured 
(mobile) home park£ or subdivisions, RV parks, and single family 
homes. Intensity is one single family home per lot; or one duplex per 
lot; or two buildings of five units each per lot. Maximum density is 
10.0 residential dwelling units per acre. This category permits schools 
and other public uses appropriate to residential neighborhoods. 

Ordinance 1239-A: The 63.29 +/- acres located in Sections 28 and 33, 
Township 26 South, Range 25 East; generally located on Smith Road 
in the eastern quadrant of the City, shall be designated "Residential 
Medium" on the Future Land Use Map; shall be developed with 
central potable water and sewer and shall be limited to a residential 
density not to exceed 861 dwelling units ( achieved by a density of 6.68 
dwelling units per acre on the 63.29 acres, and a density transfer of 
6.68 dwelling units per acre from the 65.58 acres of Conservation 
directly adjacent to the RM); and shall be subject to other applicable 
land development regulations within the City. (Ordinance 1239-A, 
December 9, 2008, adoption) 

g. Mixed Use: The primary function of the Mixed Use 
classification is to aµply to developments in which a mix of 
residential and non-residential uses (commercial, office, light 
industrial, institutional, and civic uses) are planned.. The 
maximum density allowed is 1 O dwelling units per acre. the 
maximum floor area ratio allowed is 1..0. Such development 
shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A 
balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including 
residences, shops, work places, parks, and other urban uses 

Page4 



shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as 
interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian access. 

a~. The primary function of the Commercial classification is to 
accommodate the shopping needs of residents living in and near Polk 
City. The Commercial classification permits neighborhood service 
commercial uses; and accommodates traditional retail commercial 
needs of the market area both along the highway and in the downtown 
core of the market area. This category permits schools and other 
public uses appropriate to commercial areas. Floor area ratio for 
commercial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 

ef. The primary function of the Industrial classification is to accommodate 
the industrial needs of the market area, both light industry and heavy 
industry. This category permits vocational and technical schools and 
other public uses appropriate to industrial areas. Floor area ratio for 
industrial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 

ig. The primary function of the Public Uses classification is to provide for 
areas for existing or future government-owned or leased buildings or 
grounds including schools, libraries, medical facilities, parks and open 
space areas; and private buildings or grounds such as hospitals, camps, 
clubs, private schools, museums and similar land uses. Floor area ratio 
for public and private use structures under this classification shall not 
exceed 0.35. For schools, one residential unit per school is permitted 
to accommodate an on-site security guard/ caretaker. For parks, one 
residential unit per 40 acres is permitted to accommodate an on-site 
security guard/ park ranger. 

gl!. The primary function of the Recreation classification is to provide for 
areas for existing or future public parks, recreation uses and open 
space areas. Permitted uses include public open space, recreation 
areas and parks; and private parks and recreation uses, such as golf 
courses. All recreation uses within Polk City shall be included in this 
category. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and 
park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 
acres. Maximum lot coverage by buildings plus all impervious surface 
area shall not exceed 5% of the total parcel. 

fli. The primary function of the Conservation classification is to protect 
natural resources, improve lake, river and groundwater quality. The 
Conservation designation includes land within the 100-year floodplain 
of any lake or river; wetlands; soils-limited areas; wellhead protection 
areas; and ancient scrub lands. No development is allowed in 
conservation areas. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for 
caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one 
dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot coverage by buildings and 
all impervious surface shall not exceed 1% of the total land area of the 
parcel. No other uses ar~ allowed in this classification. 

Page 5 



ij. The primary function of the Conservation/Passive Recreation 
classification is to protect natural resources while allowing passive 
recreation. Commercial uses such as equipment rental shops and 
snack huts are permissible to serve the users of the recreation area. 
Passive recreation land uses, such as boat docks, beaches and hiking 
trails are permissible. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for 
caretakers and park rangers, with the derisity not to exceed one 
dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot coverage by buildings and 
all impervious surface shall not exceed 1 % of the total land area of the 
parcel. 

ik- Public schools are allowed in all land use classifications except Polk 
City's Future Land Use classifications of Conservation and 
Conservation/ Passive Recreation. This provision applies to lands 
contiguous to existing schools, as well as development of vacant land 
for new schools. Further, Polk City hereby encourages the co-location 
of public facilities such as parks, libraries, and community centers, 
with schools, when planning and reviewing a proposed site for new or 
expanded facilities, anrl shall adopt criteria for collocation in the 
Unified Land Development Code. 

Page 6 



Ron DeSantis Ken Lawson 
GOVERNOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT ,f 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 

October 10, 2019 

The Honorable Joe LaCascia 
Mayor, City of Polk City 
123 Broadway Boulevard Southeast 
Polk City, Florida 33868 

Dear Mayor LaCascia: 

The Department of Economic Opportunity ("Department'') has reviewed the City of Polk City 
proposed comprehensive plan amendment (Amendment No. 19-02ESR), received on September 12, 
2019, pursuant to the expedited state review process in Section 163.3184(2)(3}, Florida Statutes (F.S.). 
We have identified no comment related to adverse impacts to important state resources and facilities 
within the Department's authorized scope of review. 

We are, however, providing a technical assistance comment consistent with Sectiqn 
163.3168(3), F.S. The technical assistance comment will not form the basis of a challenge. It is offered 
either as a suggestion which can strengthen the City's comprehensive plan in order to foster a vibrant, 
healthy community or is technical in nature and designed to ensure consistency with the Community 
Planning Act in Chapter 163, Part 11, F.S. The technicc1I assistance comment is: 

The proposed amendment to Future Land Use Element Policies 4.2 and 4 .3.d establishes the 
uMixed Use" future land use category for the Polk City Exemption Area. The proposed Mixed Use 
category allows residential and various non-residential (commercial, office, light industrial, institutional, 
and civic uses) land uses. The proposed amendment does not establish a density standard for the 
residential use and an intensity standard for the non-residential uses allowed within the Mixed Use 
category. Section 163.3177(6)(a)1., Florida Statutes, requires that each future land use category include 
density and intensity of use standards. Therefore, the City should consider revising the amendment to 
establish meaningful and predictable standards for density and intensity of land use for the Mixed Use 
category. 

The City should act by choosing to adopt, adopt with changes, or not adopt the proposed 
amendment. For your assistance, we have enclosed the procedures for adoption and transmittal of the 
comprehensive plan amendment. In addition, the City is reminded that: 

• Section 163.3184{3){b), F.S., authorizes other reviewing agencies to provide comments directly 
to the City. If the City receives reviewing agency comments and they are not resolved, these 
comments could form the basis for a challenge to the amendment after adoption. 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity I Caldwell Building 1107 E. Madison Street I Tallahassee, FL 32399 
850.245.7105 Iwww.FloridaJobs.org 

www.twitter.com/FLDEO 1www.facebook.com/FLDEO 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and service are available upon request to individuals with 
disabilities. All voice telephone numbers on this document may be reached by persons using TTYITTD equipment via 

the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

https://1www.facebook.com/FLDEO
www.twitter.com/FLDEO
www.FloridaJobs.org


The Honorable Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
October 10, 2019 

Page 2 of2 

• The second public hearing, which shall be a hearing on whether to adopt.one or more 
comprehensive plan amendments, must be held within 180 days of your receipt of agency 
comments or the amendment shall be deemed withdrawn unless extended by agreement with 
notice to the Department and any affected party that provided comment on the amendment 
pursuant to Section 163.3184{3)(c)l., F.$. 

• The adopted amendment must be rendered to the Department. Under Section 
163.3184(3)(c)2. and 4., F.S., the amendment effective date is 31 days after the Department 
notifies the City that the amendment package is complete or, if challenged, until it is found to be 
in compliance by the Department or the Administration Commission. 

If you have any questions concerning this review, please contact Scott Rogers, Planning Analyst, 

by telephone at (850) 717-8510 or by email at scott.rogers@deo.myflorida.com. 

IJffJ!MP"" ;J. 
J es D. Stansbury, Chief 

ureau of Community Planning and Growth 

JDS/ sr 

Enclosure(s}: Procedures for Adoption 

cc: Kathy Delp, Development Services Director, Polk City 
Patricia Steed, Executive Director, Central Florida Regional Planning Council 

mailto:scott.rogers@deo.myflorida.com


SUBMITTAL OF ADOPTED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 

FOR EXPEDITED STATE REVIEW 

Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes 

NUMBER OF COPIES TO BE SUBMlmD: Please submit three complete copies of all comprehensive plan 

materials, of which one complete paper copy and two complete electronic copies on CD ROM in 

Portable Document Format (PDF) to the State Land Planning Agency and one copy to each entity below 

that provided timely comments to the local government: the appropriate Regional Planning Council; 

Water Management District; Department of Transportation; Department of Environmental Protection; 

Department of State; the appropriate county (municipal amendments only); the Florida Fish and Wildlife 

Conservation Commission and the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (county plan 

amendments only); and the Department of Education (amendments relating to public schools); and for 

certain local governments, the appropriate military installation and any other local government or 

governmental agency that has filed a written request. 

SUBMITTAL LETTER: Please include the following information in the cover letter transmitting the 
adopted amendment: 

__ State Land Planning Agency identification number for adopted amendment package; 

__ Summary description of the adoption package, including any amendments proposed but not 
adopted; 

__ Identify if concurrency has been rescinded and indicate for which public facilities. 
(Transportation, schools, recreation and open space). 

__ Ordinance number and adoption date; 

__ Certification that the adopted amendment(s) has been submitted to all parties that provided 
timely comments to the local government; 

__ Name, title, address, telephone, FAX number and e-mail address of local government contact; 

__ Letter signed by the chief elected officia I or the person designated by the local government. 

Revised: June 2018 Page 1 



ADOPTION AMENDMENT PACKAGE: Please include the following information in the amendment 
package: 

__ In the case of text amendments, changes shoulc:4 be shown in strike-through/underline format. 

___ In the case of future land use map amendments, an adopted future land use map, in color 
format, clearly depicting the parcel, its future land use designation, and its adopted designation. 

__ A copy of any data and analyses the local government deems appropriate. · 

Note: If the.local government is relying on previously submitted data and analysis, no additional data 
and analysis is required; 

__ Copy of the executed ordinance adopting the comprehensive plan amendment(s); 

Suggested effective date language for the adoption ordinance for expedited review: 

"The effective date of this plan amendment, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that the plan 
amendment package is complete. If the amendment is timely challenged, this amendment shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration Commission 
enters a final order determining this adopted amendment to be in compliance." 

__ List of additional changes made in the adopted amendment that the State Land Planning Agency 
did not previously review; 

__ List of findings of the local governing body, if any, that were not included in the ordinance and 
which provided the basis of the adoption or determination not to adopt the proposed amendment; 

__ Statement indicating the relationship of the additional changes not previously reviewed by the 
State Land Planning Agency in response to the comment letter from the State Land Planning Agency. 

Revised: June 2018 Page2 



AGENDA ITEM #2: 

City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2019-07-AN ORDINANCE OF 
POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING ARTICLE 2, REGULATIONS 
FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, INCLUDING ADDING A NEW 
ZONING DISTRICT AS SECTION 2.04.02.17 MU MIXED USE 
DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second 
and Final Reading 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: 

Ordinance 2019-07 is a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development Code to 
add the "Mixed Use" Zoning District to Article 2 - Regulations for Specific Districts. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

-Ordinance 2019-07 
-Staff Overview Report 

ANALYSIS: 

The Commission passed Ordinance 2019-07 on first reading August 19, 2019 and submitted to DEO 
for review. 

Upon review the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density 
(dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed-Use Future 
Land Use. Ordinance 2019-06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units 
per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. The text for the zoning has 
also been modified to address density and intensity as well - respecting the existing City zoning 
districts. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Ordinance 2019-07, with changes, on Second and Final Reading 

https://2.04.02.17


ORDINANCE 2019-07 

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING ARTICLE 2, REGULATIONS FOR 
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, INCLUDING ADDING A NEW ZONING DISTRICT AS 
SECTION 2.04.02.17 MU ~IXED USE DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 
APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDJNG FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, 
FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance and amending the 
City's Unified Land Development Code, the City Commission of Polk City, Florida hereby 
makes the following findings: 

(1) Section 163.3167(c), Florida Statutes, empowers the City to adopt land 
development regulations to guide the growth and development of the City. 

(2) Pursuant to state law, the City adopted a unified land development code ("Land 
Development Code"). 

(3) The City has prepared a text amendment to Article 2 - Regulations for Specific 
Districts to Table 3 - Zoning Districts Name and Section 2.04.02.17 adding the new Mixed Use 
Zoning District. 

(4) The City Commission of Polk City has determined it necessary and desirable to 
amend the regulations to allow for the new Mixed Use Zoning District. 

(5) Pursuant to Section 166.041 (c)2, Florida Statutes, the Planning Commission 
and the City Commission have held duly advertised and noticed public meetings and hearings 
to obtain public comment for the purpose of amending the Unified Land Development Code as 
presented in the exhibit attached to and incorporated in this Ordinance as Exhibit "A". 

(6) Having considered written and oral comments received during public hearings, 
the City Commission find the changes necessary and appropriate to the needs of the City. 

(7) The City Commission finds that the proposed text amendment to the Land 
Development Code is in the best interests of tha health,· safety, and welfare of the general 
public and the City's residents, further the purposes of, and is consistent with the City's Land 
Development Code, and is consistent with and compliant with State law, including, but not 
limited to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 2. LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT. Article 2 - Regulations 
for Specific Districts is hereby amended to include the text set forth in Exhibit "A", which is 
attached hereto and included herein by reference, which amends Table 3 and creates a new 
Section 2.04.02.17 MU Mixed Use Zoning District. 

https://2.04.02.17
https://2.04.02.17
https://2.04.02.17


SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared 
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all 
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All existing ordinances or parts of existing ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 5. CODIFICATION. An official, true and correct copy of this Ordinance and 
the City's Comprehensive Plan, as adopted and amended from time to time, shall be 
maintained by the City Clerk. The City Clerk will make copies available to the public for a 
reasonable publication charge. 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be effective 10 days after 
passage upon Second Reading. 

INTRODUCED, PASSED on FIRST READING, this 19th day of August, 2019. 

POLK CITY, FLORIDA 

Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
CORRECTNESS 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present and 
voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this _ day of 
October, 2019. 

Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 
POLK CITY ORDINANCE 2019-07 

Page 2 



EXHIBIT "A" 

AMENDMENTS TO 

ARTICLE 2 - REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS 

The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is 
underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text 
that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunity. 

Table 3- Zoning District Name 
Zoning Districts Map 

Designation 
AG1 Agriculture 
AG2 Single Family Residential Plus Horses 
R1 Single Family Residential 
R2 Single Family Residential 
R3 Single Family and Duplex Residential 
R4 Mixed Residential Use 
RS Multi Family Residential 
MH Mobile Home Park 
C1 Residential, Business and Professional District 
C2 General Commercial 
M1 Light Industrial 
M2 Heavy Industrial 
PB Public Buildings and Grounds 
PR Public Recreation 
CON Conservation 
PD Planned Unit Development 
MU Mixed Use 

Page 3 



- -

2.04.02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 

The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 

2. 04. 02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 
The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 

2.04.02.17 MU Mixed Use District 

(A) FLUM Designation: 
Mixed Use 

ill)_ Purpose: 
To designate areas within Polk City in which proposed development encompasses a mix of 
residential and non-residential uses (commercial. office. lieht industrial. institutional. and civic 
uses) are planned. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater services. 
A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences. shops, work places, 
parks. and other urban uses shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as 
interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian access. The City's residential and non-residentia1 
zomng districts provide the allowable uses: and density and dimensional standa.rds. 

_(Q Permitted Principal Uses & Structures: 
l"h.e City'.s residential and non--residential zomng districts provide the .. list of permitted uses in 
~~. d.i~tfi~t. Uses permitted in this district are detailed in the Table of Land Uses in Section 
2.04.0 1, Table 4 in the residential and commercial zoning districts. Permitted uses are desitmated 
by the letter "P". Uses designated by the letter "D" are also permitted. but require the submission 
and approval of a Site Development Plan prior to application for a Development Permit. Review 
of an application for approval of a Site Development Plan is governed by Article 7. 

@Accessory Uses: 
Accessory uses and structures customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted principal uses 
and structures: provided. however. that no accessory structures shall be located on property other 
than that on which the principal structure i~ located. Section 2.05 contains detailed guidance and 
regulations for permitted accessory uses. 

.(fil Development Standards: Development standards for uses in this district are detailed in the Table of 
Development Standards in Section 2.04.01. Table 5. Specifically. standards are established for 
Maximum Density: Minimum Lot Size: Minimum Lot Width: Minimum Lot Depth; Mimmum 
Floor Area; Floor Area Ratio (as applicable): Setbacks: Maximum Lot Coverage: and Maximum 
Building Heit!ht. The City's residential and non-residential zomng districts provide the. alfowa:I,le 

-~-· .---- - - .. ..... .. -··-- ·- .. ·- ·-- --- - ----- ·· -" 

&ses.and. d:ensim, ~ cl1Ill~t1siori~l standards. 

!El Other Requirements: none. 

Page 4 

https://2.04.02.17


TEXT AMENDMENT 

TEXT AMENDMENT 
OF THE 

POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

OCTOBER 21, 2019 

TO: POLK CITY COMMISSION 

FROM: CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2019-07: City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land 
Development Code to add the "Mixed Use" Zoning District to Article 2 - Regulations for 
Specific Districts. 

AGENDA & HEARING DATES: 
May 30, 2019 at 6:00 PM: Planning Commission Hearing 
August 19, 2019 at 7:00 PM: City Commission (First Reading, Public Transmittal 
Hearing) 
October 21, 2019 at 7:00 PM: City Commission Meeting (Second Reading, Public 
Adoption Hearing) 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
On Thursday, May 30, 2019, the Polk City Planning Commission held a public Hearing to amend the Polk 
City Comprehensive Plan to create a new Zoning District titled of Mixed Use. The Planning Commission 
voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the City Commission with a recommendation of 
approval. 

POLK CITY COMMISSION ACTION: 
On Monday, August 19, 2019, the Polk City Commission held first reading on Ordinance 2019-07 and 
voted unanimously to approve the ordinance on first reading. 

AMENDMENT CHANGES SINCE FIRST READING: 
The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density ( dwelling units per 
acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 2019-
06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area 
ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. The text for the zoning has also been modified to address density and 
intensity as well - respecting the existing City zoning districts. 

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS: 

1. I move the City Commission approve with changes Ordinance 2019-07 on Second Reading. 



2. I move the City Commission deny Ordinance 2019-07 on Second Reading. 
OVERVIEW REPORT: 

Article 2 of the Polk City Land Development Code currently provides for the following Zoning 
Districts within the Green Swamp Exemption Area of the City. The proposed amendments to 
the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be 
added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highfighteid 
has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity. 

Table 3- Zoning District Name 
Zoning Districts Map 

Designation 
AG1 Agriculture 
AG2 Single Family Residential Plus Horses 
R1 Single Family Residential 
R2 Single Family Residential 
R3 Single Family and Duplex Residential 
R4 Mixed Residential Use 
RS Multi Family Residential 
MH Mobile Home Park 
C1 Residential, Business and Professional District 
C2 General Commercial 
M1 Light Industrial 
M2 Heavy Industrial 
PB Public Buildings and Grounds 
PR Public Recreation 
CON Conservation 
PD Planned Unit Development 
MU Mixed Use 

Staff has determined that a new Zoning District of "Mixed Use" should be added to the Land 
Development Code. Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple or 
mixed uses which require specific or selected land use districts. This type of flexible land use 
category is not set forth by the City's existing Zoning Districts. 

The proposed text to be added to Section 2.04.02 of Article 2 of the Land Development Code. All 
subsequent regulations will be renumbered. 

Page 2 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that 
is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. 
Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity. 

2.04.02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 
The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 

2.04.02.17 MU Mixed Use District 

@FLUMDesiznation: 
Mixed Use 

@Purpose: 
To designate areas within Polk City in which proposed development encompasses a mix of 
residential and non-residential uses (commercial, office. light industrial. institutional, and 
civic uses) are planned. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater 
services. A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences. 
shops. work places. parks, and other urban uses shall allow for internal capture of daily 
trips as well as interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian access. The City's residential! 
and no~residential zoning districts provide the allowable uses and density. and dimen~iC>na.l 
stan&ltds•. 

.(Q Permitted Principal Uses & Structures: 
The City's residential and non--residential zoning districts provide the list of permittec.i 11st:is 
in this district. Uses permitted in this district are detailed in the Table of Land Uses in 
Section 2.04.01. Table 4 in the residential and commercial zoning districts. Permitted uses 
are designated by the letter "P". Uses designated by the letter "D" are also permitted. but 
require the submission and approval of a Site Development Plan prior to application for a 
Development Permit. Review of an application for approval of a Site Development Plan is 
governed bv Article 7 . 

.{Q)_Accesson Uses: 
Accessory uses and structures customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted principal 
uses and structures: provided. however. that no accessory structures shall be located on 
propertv other than that on which the principal structure is located. Section 2.05 contains 
detailed guidance and regulations for permitted accessory uses. 

® Development Standards: Development standards for uses in this district are detailed in the 
Table of Development Standards in Section 2.04.01. Table 5. Specifically, standards are 
established for Maximum Density: Minimum Lot Size: Minimum Lot Width: Minimum Lot 
Depth: Minimum Floor Area: Floor Area Ratio {as applicable): Setbacks: Maximum Lot 

Page 3 

https://2.04.02.17


Coverage; and Maximum Building Hei ght. The City's residential and non-residentiaj _~C)Bm:g 
districts provide the allowable uses and density and dimension.al standards. 

ill Other Requirements: none. 

Page 4 

https://dimension.al


AGENDA ITEM #3: 

City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2018-13 - AN ORDINANCE OF 
POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE FINAL BUDGET; 
REALLOCATING AND REAPPROPRIATING MONIES WITHIN THE 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019; PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER 
ITEMS IN THE BUDGET OF EXPENSES TO REMAIN UNCHANGED; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
First Reading 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
_x_ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: 

Ordinance 2019-13, Providing for the Amendment of the Final Budget for FY 2018-2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance 2019-13, with exhibits 

ANALYSIS: 

The City is required to amend a budget if the expenditures exceed the amount that was budgeted in a 
fiscal year. During the fiscal year of 2018-2019, the Commission approved the S.R. 33 Sprayfield 
Relocation Project, which was not a budgeted item. 

The total FY 2018-2019 budget will go from $5,816,701 to $7,652,288 (an increase of $1,835,587) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Ordinance 2019-13 on First Reading. 



ORDINANCE 2019-13 

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; 
AMENDING THE FINAL BUDGET; REALLOCATING 
AND REAPPROPRIATING MONIES WITHIN THE 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019; 
PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER ITEMS IN THE 
BUDGET OF EXPENSES TO REMAIN 
UNCHANGED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of Polk City did on September 24, 2019 
adopt a final budget for Polk City through and by Ordinance 2019-11; and, 

WHEREAS, Polk City Code of Ordinances (the "Code") sets the level of 
budgetary control at the fund level; and, 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the Code, it is necessary to amend 
the final budget for fiscal year 2018-2019; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. REAPPROPRIATED REVENUE: MODIFIED BUDGET. 
The final budget for Polk City for the fiscal year 2018-2019 shall be set forth in 
the Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as "Exhibit A-1 and A-2", with any modifications adopted at 

18ththe public hearing held on the day of November, 2019 as shown by the 
changed figures for any such items changed. If there are no changes to the 
figures in the proposed columns, then the figures and the budget adopted for 
fiscal year 2018-2019 shall stand as the final budget for that fiscal year. The 
revenue received by the Polk City, Florida, from the sources of revenue identified 
in Exhibit A-1 and A-2 are not otherwise allocated or pledged are hereby re
appropriated and re-designated for the payment of general governmental 
expenditures and other municipal expenditures incident to the operation of the 
City in all governmental functions and capacities, as the same are designated, 
adjusted and set forth in the reallocation of funds for the fiscal year 2018-2019, 
attached as Exhibit A-1 and A-2. 

SECTION 2. CONFLICTS. All other provisions of Ordinance No. 2019-11 
and the 2018-2019 budget of expenses which are not in conflict with this or any 
part of the Ordinance shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Ordinance or the 
application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the 

I 



invalid provIsIons or applications, and to this end, the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby declared severable. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon its adoption as a non-emergency ordinance in accordance with 
chapter 166, Florida Statutes. 

INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first reading in regular session of the City 
Commission of Polk City this the __ day of ______ , 2019. 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

PASSED AND CERTIFIED AS TO PASSAGE on the second reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Polk City, Florida, at regular session this __· day of 
_____,2019 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY 

Thomas A Cloud, City Attorney 

2 



EXHIBIT "A-1" 

FY 2019 Budget Summary 

Original Total Amended Budget 

Funds Budget Chance In Amount to Budget Amount 

General Fund $2,782,476.00 $0.00 $2,782,476.00 

Enterprise Fund $3,034,225.00 $1,835,587.00 $4,869,812.00 

Total $5,816,701.00 $1,835,587.00 $7,652,288.00 

https://7,652,288.00
https://1,835,587.00
https://5,816,701.00


EXHIBIT "A-2" 

Polk City Budget Amendment FY 2018 
Enterprise Fund 

Revenues: 

Amended 

_G.L. Account Original Chance In Budget 

Number Account Description Budget Amount Amount 

05-331-350 Sewer /Wastewater Grants $0.00 $1,707,587.00 $1,707,587.00 
05-331-370 Small Community Wastewater Grant $0.00 $128,000.00 $128,000.00 

Total $0.00 $1,835,587.00 $1,835,587.00 

Expenditures 

Amended 

G.L. Account Original Chance In Budget-
Number Account Description Budget Amount Amount 

05-535-650 Construction in Progress $0.00 $1,835,587.00 $1,835,587.00 

Total $0.00 $1,835,587.00 $1,835,587.00 

https://1,835,587.00
https://1,835,587.00
https://1,835,587.00
https://1,835,587.00
https://1,835,587.00
https://1,835,587.00


City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM #4: Resolution 2019-05 - Approving execution of an Intergovernmental 
Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of 
Transportation 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: 

Resolution 2019-05 - approving execution of an Intergovernmental Maintenance Agreement with the 
Florida Department of Transportation. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 2019-05 
Maintenance Agreement 

ANALYSIS: 

Polk City currently as a three-year maintenance agreement with the Florida Department of 
Transportation for the maintenance of the State Rights of Way in Polk City. That agreement expires 
November 2, 2019. 

Attached for your review is the new three-year Maintenance Agreement, which will be increased from 
$16,303.83 per year (quarterly payments) to $17,872.64 per year (quarterly payments); this is an 
increase of $1,568.81. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2019-05 - the execution of the three-year lnterlocal Maintenance Agreement with 
the Florida Department of Transportation. 

https://1,568.81
https://17,872.64
https://16,303.83


RESOLUTION 2019-05 

A RESOLUTION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, APPROVING 
THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REGARDING THE 
MAINTENANCE OF THE STATE ROAD RIGHTS OF WAY 
IN POLK CITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation desires to enter an 

agreement entitled STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT and classified as Contract 

No.BE877; FM NO: 432727-1-78-33, for the maintenance of the state road rights 

of way, and 

WHEREAS, the Commission of Polk City, Florida determines it is 

beneficial to the City to enter into such agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 

POLK CITY THAT: 

SECTION 1 -RECITALS INCORPORATED. 

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2 -AUTHORIZATION. 

The Mayor of Polk City is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of Polk 

City, the State of Florida Department of Transportation Maintenance 

Agreement, which is attached hereto for the maintenance of state road 

rights of way as outlined in the Agreement. 

SECTION 3 -EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 



PASSED AND CERTIFIED AS TO PASSAGE this the 21 st day of October, 
2019. 

Polk City 

Joe LaCascia, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT AND FORM 

Thomas Cloud, Esquire 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-78-33 

Page I of7 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

This is an Agreement by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, an Agency of the State of Florida, (hereinafter, "DEPARTMENT") and 
CITY OF POLK CITY (hereinafter, "AGENCY") for the AGENCY to provide maintenance 
services. 

WITNESSETH 

1. WHEREAS, the AGENCY has the authority to enter into said Agreement and to undertake 
the project hereinafter described, and the DEPARTMENT has been granted the authority to 
function adequately in all areas of appropriate jurisdiction and is authorized under Fla. Stat. 
§334.044 to enter into this Agreement; and 

2. WHEREAS, the AGENCY by Resolution No. ____ dated the __ day of 
______, ___, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, has 
authorized its officers to enter into this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1.- SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE 

1. The AGENCY shall furnish certain services as described in ATTACHMENTS A and B, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

2. Locations, activities, quantities, cycles, and unit costs to be performed are listed in 
ATTACHMENT A. 

3. Descriptions of how the activities are to perfonned are included in ATTACHMENT B. 

4. A Supplemental Agreement shall be executed by both panies for any additions or 
deletions to the work described in ATTACHMENTS A and/or ATTACHMENT B. No 
work may commence without an executed Supplemental Agreement involving any such 
changes or revisions required to be covered in a Supplemental Agreement. Perfonnance 
of any such services prior to the execution of a Supplemental Agreement will result in 
nonpayment of those services. 

S. The DEPARTMENT will be entitled at all times to be advised, at its request, as to the 
status of work being done by the AGENCY and of the details thereof. Coordination shall 
be maintained by the AGENCY with representatives of the DEPARTMENT. 

6. All services shall be performed by the AGENCY to the satisfaction of the Director who 
shall decide all questions, difficulties and disputes of any nature whatsoever that may arise 
under or by reason of this Agreement. The Director's decision upon all claims, questions 
and disputes shall be final and binding upon all parties. Adjustments of compensation and 
contract time because of any major changes in the work that may become necessary or 
desirable shall be left to the absolute discretion of the Director. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page 2 of7 

7. The work specified in this Agreement is governed by ATTACHMENT A and 
ATTACHMENT B. 

8. Reference herein to Director shall mean the DEPARTMENT'S District Secretary for 
District One. or authorized designee. 

9. Upon execution of the Agreement, the NOTICE TO PROCEED signed by the District 
Secretary, or designee, will be sent to the AGENCY. The NOTICE TO PROCEED must 
be issued to the AGENCY within sixty (60) days after Agreement execution. 

II. TERM 

1. This Agreement shall take effect on the execution date listed on page 7. The term for 
providing service under this Agreement shall be a period of three (3) years ("INITIAL 
SERVICE TERM"). Calculation for the INITIAL SERVICE TERM shall begin on the 
fourteenth (14th) calendar day after issuance of the NOTICE TO PROCEED, or on the day 
the AGENCY begins work after receipt of the NOTICE TO PROCEED. whichever date 
is earlier. 

2. Prior to expiration of the INITIAL SERVICE TERM, and subject to mutual agreement of 
the parties, this Agreement may be renewed ("RENEW AL TERM") for an additional 
three (3) years. Renewals shall be contingent upon satisfactory performance evaluations 
by the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT'S performance and obligation to pay 
under any such renewal is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. 
Any renewal or extension shall be in writing and executed by both parties, and shall be 
subject to the same terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

3. The AGENCY shall provide services unless terminated in accordance with Section VI 
below of this Agreement. 

III. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 

I. The DEPARTMENT shall pay the AGENCY for services rendered in accordance with 
this Agreement annually, as follows: 

Four (4) quarterly lump sum payments will be made in the amount of Four 
Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars and Sixteen Cents ($4,468.16). 
The total annual contract/expenditure amount is Seventeen Thousand Eight 
Hundred Seventy-Two Dollars and Sixty-Four Cents ($17,872.64). unless the 
contract is amended. 

The total contract amount, unless amended, for all three (3) years is Fifty-Three 
Thousand Six Hundred Seventeen Dollars and Ninetv-Two Cents 
($53,617.92). 

https://53,617.92
https://17,872.64
https://4,468.16


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page 3 of7 

2. The lump sum payment above is based on the unit price for services that are listed in 
ATIACHMENT A. 

3. The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to retain out of any payment due the AGENCY 
under this Agreement an amount sufficient to satisfy any amount due and owing to the 
DEPARTMENT by the AGENCY on any other Agreement between the AGENCY and 
the DEPARTMENT. 

4. Payment shall be made only after receipt and approval of goods and services unless 
advance payments are authorized by the State Comptroller under Fla. Stat. §2 l 5 .422( 14). 

5. If this Agreement involves units of deliverables, then such units must be received and 
accepted in writing by the DEPARTMENT'S Project Manager prior to payments. 

6. Bills for fees or other compensation for services or expenses shall be submitted in detail 
sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof. 

7. AGENCY providing goods and services to the DEPARTMENT should be aware of the 
following time frames. Upon receipt, the DEPARTMENT has five (5) working days to 
inspect and approve the goods and services, unless the Agreement specifies otherwise. 
The DEPARTMENT has twenty (20) days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to 
the DEPARTMENT of Banking and Finance. The twenty (20) days are measured from 
the latter of the date the invoice is received or the goods or services are received, inspected 
and approved. 

8. If a payment is not available within forty (40) days, a separate interest penalty in 
accordance with Fla. Stat. §215.422(3)(b), will be due and payable, in addition to the 
invoice amount, to the AGENCY. Interest penalties of less than one (I) dollar will not be 
enforced unless the AGENCY requests payment. Invoices which have to be returned to 
an AGENCY because of AGENCY preparation errors will result in a delay in the 
payment. The invoice payment requirements do not start until a properly completed 
invoice is provided to the DEPARTMENT. 

9. A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the DEPARTMENT of Banking and 
Finance. The duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for 
contractors/vendors who may be experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) 
from a state AGENCY. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516. 

10. Records of costs incurred under tenns of this Agreement shall be maintained and made 
available upon request to the DEPARTMENT at all times during the period of this 
Agreement and for three (3) years after final payment is made. Copies of these documents 
and records shall be furnished to the DEPARTMENT upon request. Records of costs 
incurred include the AGENCY'S general accounting records and the project records, 
together with supporting documents and records of the AGENCY and all subcontractors 
performing work on the project, and all other records of the AGENCY and subcontractors 
considered necessary by the DEPARTMENT for a proper audit ofcosts. 

l 1. The DEPARTMENT, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, 
or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess 
of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any 
contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this subsection is null and void, and no 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page 4 of7 

money may be paid on such contract. The DEPARTMENT shall require a statement 
from the Comptroller of the DEPARTMENT that funds are available prior to entering 
into any such contract or other binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained 
shall prevent the making of contracts for periods exceeding one year, but any contract so 
made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or agreed to be 
paid for in succeeding fiscal years. Accordingly, the State of Florida's performance and 
obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the 
Legislature. 

12. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a 
conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any 
goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on 
leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a 
contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity 
and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount 
provided in Fla. Stat. §287.017, for Category Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months 
from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 

IV. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

1. LIABILITY INSURANCE. The AGENCY shall carry and keep in force during the 
period of this Agreement a general liability insurance policy or policies with a company or 
companies authorized to do business in Florida, affording public liability insurance with 
combined bodily injury limits of at least $250,000 per person and $500,000 each 
occurrence, and property damage insurance of at least $50,000 each occurrence, for the 
services to be rendered in accordance with this Agreement. In the alternative, the 
AGENCY may satisfy the requirements of this paragraph by providing to the 
DEPARTMENT written evidence ofbeing self-insured. 

2. WORKER'S COMPENSATION. The AGENCY shall also carry and keep in force 
Worker's Compensation insurance as required for the State of Florida under the Worker's 
Compensation Law. In the alternative, the AGENCY may satisfy the requirements of this 
paragraph by providing to the DEPARTMENT written evidence ofbeing self-insured. 

3. To the extent pennitted by law, AGENCY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
DEPARTMENT against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, or 
resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of AGENCY, or any of its officers, agents or 
employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment, in connection with the 
obligations and rights granted to or exercised by AGENCY hereunder, to the extent and 
within the limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The foregoing indemnification 
shall not constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the limits set forth in Florida 
Statutes, Section 768.28, nor shall the same be construed to constitute agreement by 
AGENCY to indemnify DEPARTMENT for the negligent acts or omissions of 
DEPARTMENT, its officers, agents or employees, or for the acts of third parties. Nothing 
herein shall be construed as consent by AGENCY to be sued by third parties in any 
manner arising out of this agreement. The AGENCY shall also require all contractors and 
subcontractors who conduct operations within the Project to indemnify and hold 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-78-33 

Pages or7 

DEPARTMENT harmless against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating 
to, or resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of said Contractor or Subcontractor or 
any of their officers, agents or employees, acting within the scope of their office or 
employment. The indemnities assumed by the AGENCY shall survive termination of this 
agreement. 

V. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

t. The AGENCY shall allow public access to an documents, papers, letters, or other 
material subject to the provisions of Fla. Stat. §119, and made or received by the 
AGENCY in conjunction with this Agreement. Failure by the AGENCY to grant such 
public access shall be grounds for immediate unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by 
the DEPARTMENT. 

2. The AGENCY shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances 
applicable to the work or payment for work thereof, and shall not discriminate on the 
grounds of race, color, religion, sex or national origin in the performance of work under 
this Agreement. 

3. E-Verify. The Agency shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify 
system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency 
during the term of the Agreement and shall expressly require any subcontractors 
performing work or providing services pursuant to the Agreement to likewise utilize the 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System to verify the employment 
eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the Agreement term. 

VI. TERMINATION AND DEFAULT 

I. This Agreement may be canceled by the DEPARTMENT in whole or in part at any time 
the interest of the DEPARTMENT requires such tennination. The DEPARTMENT also 
reserves the right to seek termination or cancellation of this Agreement in the event the 
AGENCY shall be placed in either voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy. The 
DEPARTMENT further reserves the right to tenninate or cancel this Agreement in the 
event an assignment is made for the benefit of creditors. This Agreement may be canceled 
by the AGENCY upon sixty (60) days written notice to the DEPARTMENT. 

2. If the DEPARTMENT determines that the performance of the AGENCY is not 
satisfactory, the DEPARTMENT shall have the option of (a) immediately terminating the 
Agreement, or (b) notifying the AGENCY of the deficiency with a requirement that the 
deficiency be corrected within a specified time, otherwise the Agreement will be 
terminated at the end of such time, or (c) take whatever action is deemed appropriate by 
the DEPARTMENT. 

3. If the DEPARTMENT requires termination of the Agreement for reasons other than 
unsatisfactory performance of the AGENCY, the DEPARTMENT shall notify the 
AGENCY of such termination, with instructions to the effective date of termination or 
specify the stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page 6of7 

If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, the AGENCY shall be 
paid only for that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. 
Such payment, however, may not exceed an amount which is the same percentage of the 
contract price as the amount of work satisfactorily completed is a percentage of the total 
work called for by this Agreement. All work in progress will become the property of the 
DEPARTMENT and will be turned over promptly by the AGENCY. 

VII. MISCELLANEOUS 

I. The AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT agree that the AGENCY, its employees, and 
subcontractors are not agents of the DEPARTMENT as a result of this Agreement for 
purposes other than those set out in Fla. Stat. §337.274. 

2. All words used herein in the singular form shall extend to and include the plural. All 
words used in the plural form shall extend to and include the singular. All words used in 
any gender shall extend to and include all genders. 

3. This Agreement embodies the whole agreement of the parties. There are no promises, 
terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement 
shall supersede all previous communications, representations, or agreements, either verbal 
or written, between the parties hereto. 

4. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement is by the courts held to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of 
Florida, the validity of the remaining portiong or provisions shall not be affected, and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement 
did not contain the particular part, tenn or provision held to be invalid. 

5. This Agreement shalJ be governed by and construed in accordance with the Jaws of the 
State ofFlorida. 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 

I . AU AITACHMENTS referenced in this Agreement are incorporated and made a part of 
this Agreement. 

ATTACHMENT A - Location and Cost Breakdown 
ATTACHMENT B-Description of Maintenance Activities 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# RE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page 7 of7 

IX. EXECUTION 

In witness whereof, CITY OF POLK CITY has caused this Agreement to be executed in its 
behalf, by the ______ or its designee, as authorized by its Resolution. and the 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this agreement to be 
executed in its behalf through its District Secretary or authorized designee. The execution date of 
this Agreement shall be this ___ day of ______ _ _ _ ___ 

FOOT to enter effective date. 

POLK CITY, FLORIDA 

ATTEST: 

BY: i3Y: 

CLERK 

(SEAL) TITLE 

DATE PRINT NAME DATE 

______.LEGAL REVIEW: 

BY: 

DATE 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

ArrEST: 

BY: BY: 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (SEAL) DISTRICT ONE SECRETARY OR DESIGNEe 

PRINT NAME DATE PR1NTNAME DATE 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS APPROVAL: 

10/3/2019 

DATE DATE 

~.1 DISTRICT MAINTENANCE ADMINISTRATOR 
.,)iijt"t\PPROVAL: 

1 

DATE 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 

Page I of I 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
LOCATIONS AND PRICES FOR THE CITY OF POLK CITY 

ILocation: 1 
Section: 160700000 Mlle Post: 11.391 -15.620 
State Road: SR 33., Beg Inat Mt 011ve Road t0 639' N orth of Yamaha Lane 

Activity Quantitv Units Cvcles Unit Cost Location Cost 
Large Machine Mowing 39.78 Acres 11 $16.70 $7,307.59 
Slope Mowini::a 2.4 Acres 6 $83.20 $1,198.08 
Intermediate Machine Mowing 0.4 Acres 11 $49.50 $217.80 
Litter Removal 42.58 Acres 14 $9.40 $5,603.53 
Edoina and Sweeoina 1.845 Miles 6 $85.00 $940.95 

ILocation: 2 

Section: 161600000 Mlle Post: 8.279 - 10.068 
State Road· . SR 559 Beg Inat CR 557/C amp Gilead R oad to SR33' 1 

Activity Quantity Units Unit CostCvcles Location Cost 
larQe Machine MowinQ 8.261 11 $16.70AcrF.IS $1,517.55 

8.261 $9.40Litter Removal Acres 14 $1,087.15 

SUMMARY 
Quantity 

Units 
Cost Cycles Activity 

Laree Machine Mowing 48.041 $16.70 11 
Slope Mowim:i 2.4 $83.20 6 
Intermediate Machine Mowina 0.4 $49.50 11 
Litter Removal 50.841 $9.40 14 
Edaina and Sweepino 1.845 $85.00 6 

Total Annual Cost $17,872.64 
Four Quarterly Payments $4,468.16 

https://4,468.16
https://17,872.64
https://1,087.15
https://1,517.55


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 1 of32 

ATTACHMENT "8" 

SPECIFICATIONS 

AW ARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT- PUBLIC RECORDS. 
(REV 10-17-16) (FA 10-24-16) (7-19) 

ARTICLE 3-9 is expanded by the following: 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS AT: 

District 1 
863-519-2623 
D 1 prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us 
Florida Department of Transportation 
District 1 - Office of General Counsel 
801 N. Broadway 
Bartow, FL 33830 

SECTION 102 
MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 

102-1 Description. 
Maintain traffic within the limits ofthe project for the duration of the construction period, 

including any temporary suspensions of the work. Construct and maintain detours. Provide 
facilities for access to residences, businesses, etc., along the project. Furnish, install and maintain 
traffic control and safety devices during construction. Furnish and install work zone pavement 
markings for maintenance of traffic (MOT) in construction areas. Provide any other special 
requirements for safe and expeditious movement oftraffic specified in the Plans. MOT includes 
all facilities, devices and operations as required for safety and convenience ofthe public within 
the work zone. 

Do not maintain traffic over those portions of the project where no work is to be 
accomplished or where construction operations will not affect existing roads. Do not obstruct or 
create a hazard to any traffic during the performance of the work, and repair any damage to 
existing pavement open to traffic. 

mailto:prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 2 of32 

102-2 Materials. 
Meet the following requirements: 

Bituminous Adhesive ......................................... Section 970 
Temporary Raised Pavement Markers ............... Section 990 
Paint ............................. .... ......................................... Section 971 
Removable Tape ................................................ Section 990 
Glass Spheres ........................ , ..,.. ,............................... Section 971 
Temporary Traffic Control Device Materials .... Section 990 
Retroreflective and Nonreflective Sheeting 
for Temporary Traffic Control Devices ............. Section 994 

102-2.1 Temporary Traffic Control Devices: Use on]y the materials meeting the 
requirements ofSection 990, Section 994, Standard Plans and the Manual on Unifonn Traffic 
Control Devices (MUTCD). 

102-2.2 Detour: Provide all materials for the construction and maintenance ofan 
detours. 

102-2.3 Commercial Materials for Driveway Maintenance: Provide materials of the 
type typica1ly used for base, including reclaimed asphalt pavement (RAP) material, and having 
stability and drainage properties that wil1 provide a finn surface under wet conditions. 

102-3 Specific Requirements. 
102-3.1 Beginning Date of Contractor's Responsibility: Maintain traffic starting the day 

work begins on the project or on the first day Contract Time is charged, whichever is earlier. 
102-3.2 Worksite Traffic Supervisor: Provide a Worksite Traffic Supervisor who is 

responsible for initiating, installing, and maintaining al1 temporary traffic control devices as 
described in this Section and the Contract Documents. Provide all equipment and materials 
needed to set up, take down, maintain traffic control, and handle traffic-related situations. Use 
approved alternate Worksite Traffic Supervisors when necessary. 

The Worksite Traffic Supervisor must meet the personnel qualifications specified 
in Section 105. 

The Worksite Traffic Supervisor is to perfonn the following duties: 
1. On site direction of all temporary traffic control on the project. 
2. Is on site during all set up and take down and perfonns a drive through 

inspection immediately after set up. 
3. Is on site during all nighttime operations ensuring proper temporary 

traffic control. 
4. Immediately corrects all safety deficiencies and corrects minor 

deficiencies that are not immediate safety hazards within 24 hours. 
5. Is available on a 24 hour per day basis and present at the site within 45 

minutes after notification ofan emergency situation and is prepared to respond to maintain 
temporary traffic control or to provide alternate traffic arrangements. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page3of32 

6. Conducts daily daytime and weekly nighttime inspections ofprojects 
with predominately daytime work activities, and daily nighttime and weekly daytime inspections 
ofprojects with predominantly nighttime work activities ofall traffic control devices, traffic 
flow. pedestrian, bicyclist, and business accommodations. 

Advise the project personnel of the schedule of these inspections 
and give them the opportunity to join in the inspection as deemed necessary. Pedestrians are to 
be accommodated with a safe, accessible travel path around work sites separated from mainline 
traffic in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for 
Transportation Facilities. Maintain existing or detour bicyc)e facilities satisfactorily throughout 
the project limits. Existing businesses in work areas are to be provided with adequate entrances 
for vehicular and pedestrian traffic during business hours. 

The Department may disqualify and remove from the project a Worksite Traffic 
Supervisor who fails to comply with the provisions of this Section. The Department may 
temporarily suspend all activities, except traffic, erosion control and such other activities that are 
necessary for project maintenance and safety, for failure to comply with these provisions. 

102-3.3 Lane Closures: Approval for all lane closures, mobile operations, and traffic 
pacing operations is required. Submit routine requests to the Engineer fourteen calendar days in 
advance ofplanned lane closures, mobile operations, and traffic pacing operations. For , 
unforeseen events that require cancelling or rescheduling lane closures, mobile operations, and 
traffic pacing operations, revise the lane closure request as soon as possible. 

102-4 Alternative Traffic Control Plan. 
The Contractor may propose an alternative traffic control plan (TCP) to the plan 

presented in the Contract Documents. The Contractor's Engineer of Record must sign and seal 
the alternative plan and submit to the Engineer. Prepare the TCP in conformance with and in the 
fonn outlined in the current version of the FOOT Design Manual. Indicate in the plan a TCP 
foreach phase ofactivities. Take responsibility for identifying and assessing any potential 
impacts to a utility that may be caused by the alternate TCP proposed by the Contractor, and 
notify the Department in writing ofany such potential impacts to utilities. 

For projects with nighttime lane closure restrictions where paving is expected to extend 
into the winter months, the Contractor may propose an alternative TCP allowing for daytime lane 
closures for friction course paving. The alternative TCP must be a Jane closure analysis based;on 
actual traffic counts and prepared in accordance with the FOOT Design Manua1. 

Engineer's approval of the alternate TCP does not relieve the Contractor of sole 
responsibility for all utility impacts, costs, delays or damages, whether direct or indirect, 
resulting from Contractor initiated changes in the design or construction activities from those in 
the original Contract Specifications, Design Plans (including TCPs) or other Contract Documents 
and which effect a change in utility work different from that shown in the Utility Plans, joint 
project agreements or utility relocation schedules. 

The Department reserves the right to reject any alternative TCP. Obtain the Engineer's 
written approval before beginning work using an alternate TCP. The Engineer's written approval 
is required for all modifications to the TCP. The Engineer will only allow changes to the TCP in 
an emergency without the proper documentation. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 4 of32 

102-5 Traffic Control. 
102-5.1 Standards: FOOT Standard Plans are the minimwn standards for the use in the 

development of all TCPs. The MUTCD, Part VI is the minimum national standard for traffic 
control for highway construction, maintenance, and utility operations. Follow the basic principles 
and minimum standards contained in these docwnents for the design, application, installation, 
maintenance, and removal ofall traffic control devices, warning devices and barriers which are 
necessary to protect the public and workers from hazards within the project limits. 

102-5.2 Maintenance of Roadway Surfaces: Maintain an lanes that are being used for 
the MOT, including those on detours and temporary facilities, under all weather conditions. Keep 
the Janes reasonably free ofdust, potholes and rutting. Provide the lanes with the drainage 
facilities necessary to maintain a smooth riding surface under all weather conditions. 

102-5.3 Number of Traffic Lanes: Maintain one lane of traffic in each direction. 
Maintain two lanes of traffic in each direction at existing four (or more) lane cross roads, where 
necessary to avoid undue traffic congestion. Construct each lane used for MOT at least as wide 
as the traffic lanes existing in the area before commencement of construction. Do not allow 
traffic control and warning devices to encroach on lanes used for MOT. 

The Engineer may allow the Contractor to restrict traffic to one-way operation for 
short periods of time provided that the Contractor employs adequate means of traffic control and 
does not unreasonably delay traffic. When a construction activity requires restricting traffic to 
one-way operations, locate the flaggers within view ofeach other when possible. When visual 
contact between flaggers is not possible, equip them with 2-way radios, official, or pilot vehicles, 
or use traffic signals. 

102-5.4 Crossings and lntenections: Provide and maintain adequate accommodations 
for intersecting and crossing traffic. Do not block or unduly restrict any median opening, road or 
street crossing the project unless approved by the Engineer. Before beginning any construction, 
submit to the Engineer the names and phone numbers ofpersons that can be contacted when 
signal operation malfunctions. 

102-5.5 Access for Residences and Businesses: Provide continuous access to all 
residences and all places ofbusiness. 

102-5.6 Protection of the Work from Injury by Traffic: Where traffic would be 
injurious to a base, surface course, or structure constructed as a part of the work, maintain all 
traffic outside the limits ofsuch areas until the potential for injury no longer exists. 

102-5.7 Flagger: Provide flaggers to control traffic when traffic in both directions must 
use a single lane and in other situations as required. All flaggers must meet the personnel 
qualifications specified in Section 105. 

102-S.8 Conflicting Pavement Marktngs: Where the lane use or where normal vehicle 
or pedestrian paths are altered during construction, remove all pavement markings (paint, tape, 
thermoplastic, raised pavement markers, etc.) that will conflict with the adjusted vehicle or 
pedestrian paths. Use ofpaint to cover conflicting pavement markings is prohibited. Remove 
conflicting pavement markings using a method that will not damage the surface texture of the 
pavement and which will eliminate the previous marking pattern regardless ofweather and light 
conditions. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432717-1-72-33 

Page5of31 

Remove an pavement markings that will be in conflict with "next phase of 
operation.. vehicle pedestrian paths as described above, before opening to vehicle traffic or use 
by pedestrians. 

Cost for removing conflicting pavement markings (paint, tape, thennoplastic, 
raised pavement markers, etc.) to be included in Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 

102-S.9 Vehicle and Equipment Visibility: Equip all pickups and automobiles used on 
the project with a minimum ofone Class 2 warning light that meets the Society ofAutomotive 
Engineers Recommended Practice SAE 1595, dated November 1, 2008, or SAE 1845, dated 
December 1, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference. Existing lights that meet SAE 1845, 
dated March, 1992, or SAE 11318, dated April, 1986, may be used to their end ofservice Iife. 
The warning lights must be a high intensity amber or white rotating, flashing, oscillating or ' 
strobe light. Lights must be unobstructed by ancillary vehicle equipment such as ladders, racks or 
booms and be visible 360 degrees around the vehicle. If the light is obstructed, additional lights 
will be required. The lights must be operating when the vehicle is in a work area where a 
potential hazard exists, when operating at less than the average speed for the facility while 
performing work activities, making frequent stops or called for in the Plans or Standard Plans. 

Equip all other vehicles and equipment with a minimum of4 square feet of 
retroreflective sheeting or warning lights. 

102-5.10 No Waiver of Liability: Conduct operations in such a manner that no undue 
hazard results due to the requirements ofthis Article. The procedures and policies described 
herein in no way acts as a waiver of any terms of the liability ofthe Contractor or his surety. 

102-6 Detours. 
102-6.1 General: Construct and maintain detour facilities wherever it becomes necessary 

to divert traffic, including pedestrians and bicyclists, from any existing facility, or wherever 
construction operations block the flow of traffic. 

102-6.2 Construction: Plan, construct, and maintain detours for the safe passage of 
traffic in all conditions ofweather. Provide the detour with all facilities necessary to meet this 
requirement. 

Where pedestrian facilities are detoured, blocked or closed during the work, 
provide safe alternate accessible routes through or around the work zone meeting the 
requirements of the ADA Standards for Transportation Facilities. When temporary walkway 
surfaces and ramps are required to be constructed, ensure surfaces are stable, firm, slip resistant, 
and kept free ofany obstructions and hazards such as holes, debris, mud, construction 
equipment and stored materials. 

When the Plans call for the Department to furnish detour bridge components, 
construct the pile bents in accordance with the Plans, unless otherwise authorized by the 
Engineer. 

Provide two Contractor representatives, who will be directly involved in the 
erection ofDeparbnent-owned temporary bridging, to attend a mandatory one-day training 
session to be conducted at the Department's storage facility. No bridging will be released to the 
Contractor prior to the completion of this training. 

Submit the following: company name, phone number, office address, project 
contact person, names of the representatives who will attend the training described above, project 

https://102-5.10


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 6of32 

number, detour bridge type, bridge length, span length, location and usage time frames, to the 
Engineer at least 30 calendar days before the intended pick-up date, to obtain the storage facility 
location and list of components for the project. Upon receipt, the Engineer will, within 
IO calendar days submit an approved material list to the Contractor and the appropriate 
Department storage yard. 

Submit the name of the representative with authority to pick up components, to 
the Engineer at least IO calendar days before the proposed pick-up date. The Department is net 
obligated to load the bridge components without this notice. Take responsibility and sign for 
each item loaded at the time ofissuance. 

Provide timber dunnage and transport the bridge components from the designated 
storage facility to the job site. Unload, erect, and maintain the bridge, then dismantle the bridge 
and load and return the components to the designated storage facility. 

Notify the Engineer in writing at least 10 calendar days before returning the 
components. Include in this notice the name of the Contractor's representative authorized to sign 
for return of the bridge components. The yard supervisor is not obligated to unload the bridge 
components without this notice. 

The Department will provide equipment and an operator at the Department's 
storage facility to assist in loading and unloading the bridge components. Furnish all other labor 
and equipment required for loading and unloading the components. 

The Department's representative will record all bridge components issued or 
returned on the Detour Bridge Issue and Credit Ticket. The tickets must be signed by a 
Department and a Contractor representative, after loading or unloading each truck to document 
the quantity and type ofbridging issued or returned. 

Bind together all bridge components to be returned in accordance with the 
instructions given by the storage facility. The yard supervisor will repack components that are 
not packed in compliance with these instructions. Upon request, written packing instructions will 
be made available to the Contractor, before dismantling of the bridge for return to the 
Department's storage facility. 

Assume responsibility for any shortage or damage to the bridge components. 
Monies due the Contractor will be reduced at the rate of$35.00 per hour plus materials for 
repacking, repairs or replacement ofbridge components. 

The skid resistance ofopen steel grid decking on the detour bridge may decrease 
gradually after opening the bridge to traffic. The Department will furnish a pneumatic floor 
scabbier machine for roughening the roadway surface ofthe detour bridge decking. Provide an 
air compressor at the job site with 200 cubic feet per minute capacity, 90 psi air pressure for the 
power supply of the machine, and an operator. Transport the scabb)er machine to and from the 
Department's structures shop. Repair any damage to the scabbier machine caused by operations 
at no expense to the Department. Perfonn scabbling when detennined necessary by the 
Engineer. The Department will pay for the cost of scabbling as Unforeseeable Work in 
accordance with 4-4. 

Return the bridge components to the designated storage facility beginning no later 
than 10 calendar days after the date the detour bridge is no longer needed, the date the new 
bridge is placed in service, or the date Contract Time expires, whichever is earliest. Return the 
detour bridging at an average ofnot less than 200 feet per week. Upon failure to return the bridge 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 7of32 

components to the Department within the time specified, compensate the Department for the 
bridge components not returned at the rate of$5.00 per JO feet, per day, per bridge, for single 
lane; and $10.00 per 10 feet, per day, per bridge, for dual lane until the bridge components are 
returned. to the Department. 

102-6.3 Construction Methods: Select and use construction methods and materials that 
provide a stable and safe detour facility. Construct the detour facility to have sufficient durability 
to remain in good condition, supplemented by maintenance, for the entire period that the detour 
is required. 

102-6.4 Removal of Detours: Remove detours when they are no longer needed and 
before the Contract is completed. Take ownership of all materials from the detour and dispose 
of them, except for the materials on loan from the Department with the stipulation that they are 
returned. 

102-6.S Detours Over Existing Roads and Streets: When the Department specifies that 
traffic be detoured over roads or streets outside the project area, do not maintain such roads or 
streets. However, maintain all signs and other devices placed for the purpose of the detour. 

102-6.6 Operation of Existing Movable Bridges: The Department will maintain and 
operate existing moveable bridges that are to be removed by the Contractor until such time as 
they are closed to traffic. During this period, make immediate repairs ofany damage to such 
structures caused by use or operations related to the work at no expense to the Department, but 
do not provide routine repairs or maintenance. In the event that use or operations result in 
damage to a bridge requiring repairs, give such repairs top priority to any equipment, material, or 
labor available. 

102-6.7 Special Detour: A special detour is defined as a diversion or lane shift for 
vehicular traffic that requires temporary pavement. 

102-6.8 Pedestrian Special Detour: A pedestrian special detour is defined as a 
temporary pedestrian way that requires temporary pavement or other $table, firm, slip-resistant 
surface. 

102-7 Traffic Control Officer. 
Provide uniformed law enforcement officers, including marked law enforcement 

vehicles, to assist in controlling and directing traffic in the work zone when the following types 
ofwork is necessary on projects: 

I. When directing traffic/overriding the signal in a signalized intersection. 
2. When Standard Plans, Index 102-619 is used on freeway facilities (interstates, 

toll roads, and expressways) at nighttime for work within the travel lane. 
3. When Standard Plans, Index 102-655 Traffic Pacing is called for in the Plans 

or approved by the Engineer. 
4. When pulling conductor/cable above an open traffic lane on limited access 

facilities, when called for in the Plans or approved by the Engineer. 
5. When Standard Plans, Index 102-625 Temporary Road Closure 5 Minutes or 

Less is used. 
6. When perfonning lane closures during nighttime operations on roadways with 

posted speed limits 55 mph or greater. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 8of32 

At the Contractor's option, traffic control officers may be used for operations other than 
those listed above. 

Cost for traffic control officers will be paid for as described in 102-11.2. 
The Department will not consider any claim arising from the failure of a traffic control 

officer to be present or available on the project. A noncompensable time extension may be 
granted when a state or local emergency requires an area law enforcement officers to be on-duty 
and not available for hire. 

102-8 Driveway Maintenance. 
102-8.1 General: Ensure that each residence and business has safe, stable, and 

reasonable access. 
102-8.2 Construction Methods: Place, level, manipulate, compact, and maintain the 

material, to the extent appropriate for the intended use. 
As pennanent driveway construction is accomplished at a particular location, the 

Contractor may salvage and reuse previously placed materials that are suitable for reuse on other 
driveways. 

102-9 Temporary Traffic Control Devices. 
102-9.1 Installation and Maintenance: Install and maintain temporary traffic control 

devices as detailed in the Plans, Index I02-600 ofthe Standard Plans and when applicable, in 
accordance with the approved vendor drawings, as provided on the Department's Approved 
Product List (APL). Erect the required temporary traffic control devices to prevent any 
hazardous conditions and in conjunction with any necessary traffic re~routing to protect the 
traveling public, workers, and to safeguard the work area. Use only those devices that are on the 
APL or meeting the requirements of the Standard Plans. Immediately remove or cover any 
devices that do not apply to existing conditions. _ 

The APL number is to be pennanently marked on the device at a readily visible 
location. Sheeting used on devices is exempt from this marking requirement. 

Notify the Engineer in writing ofany scheduled operation that wiU affect traffic 
patterns or safety sufficiently in advance ofcommencing such operation to permit review ofthe 
plan for the proposed installation of temporary traffic control devices. 

Assign an employee the responsibility ofmaintaining the position and condition 
ofall temporary traffic control devices throughout the duration of the Contract. Keep the 
Engineer advised at all times of the identification and means of contacting this employee on a 24 
hour basis. 

Maintain temporary traffic control devices in the correct position, properly 
oriented, clearly visible and clean, at all times. All applicable temporary traffic control devices 
must meet the classification category ofAcceptable as defined in the American Traffic Safety 
Services Association (ATSSA) Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and 
Features. Temporary concrete barriers must meet the classification category ofAcceptable 
defined in the Department's Temporary Concrete Barrier Evaluation Guide, which may be 
viewed at the following URL: 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-71-33 

Page 9of32 

https:/ /tootwww. blob.core. wi ndows.nct/si tefinit y/ docs/dcfault
sourcc/programmanagcment/implementcd/urlinspecs/filcs/docs/dcfaul t-source/content
docs/programmanagemcnt/implcmented/urlinspccs/files/tcmporaryconcrctebarricrguide. pd[pdf? 
sfvrsn=343b4c97 10. Pedestrian longitudinal channelizing devices (LCDs) must meet the 
classification category ofAcceptable as defined in the Pedestrian LCD Evaluation Guide, which 
may be viewed at the following URL: 
https://fdotwww .blob.core.wi ndows.nct/sitefini ty/docs/dcfault
sourcc/programmanagcment/implementcd/urlinspecs/fi I cs/JcdevaJuationl!uide.pdl'?sfvrsn= I 66e0f 
16 2. Immediately repair, replace or clean damaged, defaced or dirty devices. Traffic control 
devices must not be cleaned while installed/used. Use ofwarning lights on any temporary traffic 
control device is prohibited, with the exception of the trailer mounted portable regulatory signs. 

Employ an approved independent Channelizing Device Supplier (CDS) to provide 
and maintain the condition of the following non-fixed channelizing devices: drums, cones, 
vertical panels, barricades, tubular markers, and longitudinal channelizing devices. Cones may 
be provided and maintained by the Contractor. 

The CDS shall not be affiliated with the Contractor and shall be approved by the 
Engineer in accordance with I 02-9.1.1. The CDS shall submit a monthly certification on 
letterhead that the channelizing devices mentioned above instaUed/used within the work zone 
meet classification category of Acceptable as defined in the Pedestrian LCD Evaluation Guide 
and the ATSSA Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and Features. The 
CDS shall submit the monthly certification on letterhead for channelizing devices instaJled/used 
within the work zone. The CDS certification shall include the following statement, "I certify that 
I have provided and maintained the following devices <list devices covered under the 
certification> in accordance with Pedestrian LCD Evaluation Guide and the ATSSA Quality 
Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and Features." If the Contractor chooses to 
provide and maintain cones, the Contractor must submit a monthly Contractor certification on 
letterhead that all cones installed/used within the work zone meet acceptable standards as 
outlined in the ATSSA Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and Features. 
The Contractor certification shall include the following statement, "I certify that I have provided 
and maintained cones in accordance with the ATSSA Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic 
Control Devices and Features." 

102-9.1.1 Approved Independent Channelizing Device Supplier (CDS) 
Requirements: Submit the foUowing documents to the Engineer for independent CDS approval 
at the preconstruction conference. A CDS may elect to provide a one-time submittal ofthis 
infonnation to the State Construction Office for review and pre-approval. Department approv_ed 
CDSs are listed on the State Construction Office website. Infonn the Engineer at the 
preconstruction conference of this approval. 

1. A letter on company letterhead signed and dated by the owner of the 
company or company officer with the following infonnation and statements: 

a. The company's owners, stockholders, and officers. 
b. A statement declaring that the company will not perfonn as a 

CDS on any project where there is common ownership, directly or indirectly, between the 
company and the Contractor. 

https://fdotwww


MAINTENAN~E AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727•1•72-33 

Page 10 of32 

c. A statement declaring that the company will furnish and 
maintain the condition ofall channelizing devices with the exception ofcones as required in I 02-
9.1 with its own forces. 

d. A statement declaring at least five years ofexperience in 
providing channelizing device supplier services, with its own inventory ofchannelizing devices. 

e. On a separate sheet, list a slllTlple project history of the 
company's experience as a channelizing device supplier for the five years declared in item l(d) 
above including the following information: 

I. Project name and number and a brief description ofCDS 
work perfonned, 

2. Beginning and ending date ofCDS project activities, 
3. Location ofproject (city, state), 
4. Monetary lllTlount ofCDS work on project, 
5. Owner ofproject, contact person and phone number 

with area code, 
6. Name ofContractor (client) that the work was 

performed for and phone number with area code. 
2. A maintenance plan for approval by the Department that outlines the 

frequency and methods for maintaining the condition ofall channelizing devices, except cones 
owned and maintained by the Contractor, installed/used in the work zone. 

102-9.2 Work Zone Signs: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate signs in 
accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102-600. Use signs that meet the material 
and process requirements of Section 994. Use Type IV sheeting for fluorescent orange work 
zone signs. Roll-up signs must meet the requirements ofType VI sheeting. Use Type IV or Type 
XI sheeting for alJ other work zone signs. Attach the sign to the sign support using hardware 
meeting the manufacturer's recommendations on the APL vendor drawings or as specified in the 
Standard Plans. 

102-9.2.1 Post Mounted Sign,i: Meet the requirements of990-8. 
102-9.2.2 Portable Signs: Use only approved systems, which includes sign 

stands and attachment hardware (nuts, bolts, clamps, brackets, braces, etc.), meeting the vendor 
requirements specified on the APL drawings. Provide Federal Highway Administration's 
(FHWA) accepted sign substrate for use with accepted sign stands on the National Highway 
System (NHS) under the provisions of the NCHRP Report 350 "Recommended Procedures for 
the Safety Perfonnance Evaluation ofHighway Features." 

102-9.2.3 Barrier Mounted Signs: If post mounting criteria cannot be achieved 
in accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-600 and a barrier or traffic railing exists, use 
temporary sign criteria provided in Standard Plans, Index 700-013. 

102-9.3 Business Signs: Provide and place signs in accordance with the Plans and 
Standard Plans, Index 102 series. Furnish signs having retroreflective sheeting meeting the 
requirements of Section 990. 

102-9.4 Project Information Signs: Provide and place signs in accordance with the 
Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102 series. Furnish signs having retroreflective sheeting meeting 
the requirements ofSection 990. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 11 of32 

102-9.S Channelizing Devices: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate 
channelizing devices in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans. 

l02-9.5.1 Retroreftective Collars for Traffic Cones: Use collars for traffic 
cones listed on the APL that meet the requirements ofSection 990. Use cone collars at night 
designed to properly fit the taper ofthe cone when installed. Place the upper 6 inch collar a 
unifonn 3-1/2 inches distance from the top of the cone and the lower 4 inch collar a unifonn 2 
inches distance below the bottom ofthe upper 6 inch collar. 
Col1ars must be capable ofbeing removed for temporary use or attached pennanently to the cone 
in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Provide a white sheeting having a 
smooth outer surface and that has the property ofa retroreflector over its entire surface. 

102-9.5.2 Longitudinal Channelizing Devices (LCDs): Use LCDs listed on the 
APL and meeting the requirements ofSection 990 and the Standard Plans. LCDs must be 
interlocked except for the stand-alone unit placed perpendicular to a sidewalk. For LCDs 
requiring internal ballasting, an indicator that clearly identifies the proper bal1ast level will b~ 
required. For LCDs requiring external ballasting, the ballasting methods must be detailed in the 
APL drawings including ballasting type and minimum weight. 

Ensure that joints on the pedestrian LCDs are free ofsharp edges and have 
a maximum offset of 1/2 inch in any plane. 

Use alternating orange and white solid color vehicular LCDs. Vehicular 
LCDs may be substituted for drums, vertical panels, or barricades. 

102-9.6 Temporary Barrier: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate temporary 
barrier in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans. Obtain and use precast temporary 
concrete barrier from a manufacturing plant that is on the Department's Production Facility 
Listing. Temporary concrete barrier must meet the material and construction requirements of 
Section 521 unless noted otherwise in the Standard Plans. Proprietary temporary concrete, steel, 
or water filled barrier used must be listed on the APL. 

The maximum allowable height increase between consecutive temporary barrier 
units in the direction oftraffic is 1 inch. 

Temporary barrier must comply with Standard Plans, Index 102-100 or 102-120. 
Install temporary barriers as either anchored or freestanding as shown in the Plans or the 
Standard Plans. An anchored unit is defined as having at least one stake or bolt into the 
underlying pavement or bridge deck. All other units, including those with keeper pins, are 
considered freestanding. 

Remove temporary asphalt pads and repair all attachment scars to permanent 
structures and pavements after barrier removal. Make necessary repairs due to defective material, 
work, or Contractor operations at no cost to the Department. Restore barrier damaged by the 
traveling public within 24 hours after notification as authorized by the Engineer. 

Trailer mounted barriers listed on the APL may be used at the option of the 
Contractor. Trailer mounted barriers listed on the APL must have an FHWA eligibility letter and 
be successfully crash tested in accordance with MASH TL-3 criteria. All trailer mounted baniers 
must be equipped with an APL listed truck mounted attenuator, an APL listed vehicle mounted 
,arrow board and vehicle warning lights in accordance with this Section. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 12 of32 

102-9.6.l.1 Temporary Barrier Meeting the Requirements of 
Standard Plans, Index 102-120 and 102-110: Ensure the marking requirements of the 
respective Index are met. 

102-9.6.2.2: Proprietary Precast Temporary Concrete Barrier 
Fabricated prior to 200S: Submit a certification stating that all unmarked barrier units meet the 
requirements of the Specifications and the Standard Plans. Certifications will be project specific 
and non-transferable. 

102-9.6.2.3 Proprietary Precast Temporary Concrete Barrier 
Fabricated in 2005 or later: Ensure each barrier unit has pennanent clear markings, showing the 
manufacture date, serial number, manufacturer's name or symbol, and the APL number. Label the 
markings on a plate, plaque, or cast in the unit. Proprietary harrier fabricated prior to 2016 and 
marked with the "INDX 521" in lieu of the APL number will be pennitted. 

102-9.6.2.4 Temporary Concrete Barrier Repair: Before beginning the 
repair, remove all laitance, loose material, and any other deleterious matter to sound concrete or 
a minimum depth ofone inch. Additionally, when reinforcing bars, inserts or weldments are 
exposed, remove the concrete to provide a minimum one inch clearance all around. Fill the repair 
area with an approved high performance concrete repair material in accordance with 930-5 and 
the manufacturer's recommendations. Restore surfaces and edges to the original dimensions and 
shape ofthe barrier. 

Repairs are not allowed on barrier units that have one or more of the 
following deficiencies: structural cracking or cracks that exist through the entire cross-section; 
unit-to-unit connection assemblies or anchor slots are broken or no longer in a fixed position. 

Do not paint repaired barriers. 
102-9.7 Barrier Dellneators: Install barrier delineators on top of temporary barrier and 

vehicular LCDs meeting the requirements ofSection 705. 
102-9.8 Temporary Glare Screen: Use temporary glare screens listed on the APL that 

meet the requirements ofSection 990. Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate glare 
screen systems in conjunction with temporary barrier at locations identified in the Plans. 

The anchorage ofthe glare screen to the barrier must be capable ofsafely resisting 
an equivalent tensile load of600 pounds per foot ofglare screen, with a requirement to use a 
minimum of three fasteners per barrier section. 

When glare screen is utilized on temporary barrier, barrier delineators will not be 
required. 

102-9.9 Temporary Crash Cushion (Redirective or Gating): Furnish, install, maintain 
and subsequently remove temporary crash cushions in accordance with the details and notes 
shown in the Plans, Standard Plans, and requirements of the pre-approved alternatives listed on 
the APL. -

Temporary crash cushions can be either new or used functionally sound 
refurbished devices. Perfonnance of intended function is the only condition for acceptance. All 
metallic components must be galvanized in accordance with Section 967. 

Anchor abutting temporary barrier in accordance the Standard Plans or APL 
drawings, as required. Bidirectional installations must have a transition panel installed between 
the crash cushion and the abutting barrier. DeUneate the crash cushion in accordance with 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM # 432727-1-72-33 

Page 13of32 

Section 544. Maintain the crash cushions until their authorized removal. Do not place any 
materials or equipment within the length of the crash cushion. 

Remove temporary asphalt or concrete pads and repair all attachment scars to 
permanent structures and pavements after crash cushion removal. Make necessary repairs due to 
defective material, work, or Contractor operations at no cost to the Department. Restore crash 
cushions damaged by the traveling public within 24 hours after notification as authorized by the 
Engineer. 

102-9.10 Temporary Guardrail: Furnish temporary guardrail in accordance with the 
Plans and Standard Plans. Meet the requirements ofSection 536. 

102-9.11 Arrow Board: Furnish arrow boards that meet the requirements ofSection 990 
as required by the Plans and Standard Plans to advise approaching traffic oflane closures or 
shoulder work. Ensure that the arrow board display panel is raised to a fully upright position and 
is fully visible to motorists. Type B arrow boards may be used on low to intermediate speed (0 
mph to 50 mph) facilities or for maintenance or moving operations on any speed facility. Type C 
arrow boards must be used for all other operations on high-speed (50 mph and greater) facilities 
and may be substituted for Type B arrow boards on any speed facility. 

102-9.12 Portable Changeable Message Sign (PCMS): Furnish PCMSs or truck 
mounted changeable message signs that meet the requirements ofSection 990 as required by the 
Plans and Standard Plans to supplement other temporary traffic control devices used in work 
zones. Ensure that the PCMS display panel is raised to a fully upright position and is ful)y visible 
to motorists. 

Messages must have no more than two phases. The display time for each phase 
must be at least two seconds but no more than three seconds. The sum ofthe display time must 
be a maximum of six seconds. 

102-9.13 Portable Regulatory Signs (PRS): Furnish PRSs that meet the requirements of 
Section 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans. Ensure that the PRS sign panel is raised 
to a fully upright position and is fully visible to motorists. 

Activate portable regulatory signs only during active work activities and 
deactivate when no work is being performed. 

102-9.14 Radar Speed Display Unit (RSDU): Furnish RSDUs that meet the 
requirements ofSection 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans to inform motorists of 
the posted speed and their actual speed. Ensure that the RSDU display panel is mounted in 
accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. 

Activate the radar speed display unit only during active work activities and 
deactivate when no work is being performed. 

102-9.15 Temporary Signalization and Maintenance: Provide temporary signalization 
and maintenance at existing, temporary, and new intersections including but not limited to the 
following: 

1. Installation of temporary poles and span wire assemblies as shown in 
the Plans, 

2. Temporary portable traffic signals as shown in the Plans, 
3. Adding or shifting signal heads, 
4. Trouble calls, 
5. Maintaining intersection and coordination timing and preemption 

https://102-9.15
https://102-9.14
https://102-9.13
https://102-9.12
https://102-9.11
https://102-9.10


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# B£877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 14 of32 

devices. Coordination timing will require maintaining functionality ofsystem communications. 
Restore any loss ofoperation within 12 hours after notification. Provide alternate 

temporary traffic control until the signalization is restored. 
Provide traffic signal equipment that meets the requirements of the Standard Plans 

and 603-2. The Engineer may approve used signal equipment if it is in acceptable condition. 
Replacement components for traffic signal cabinet assemblies will be provided by the 
maintaining agency. For temporary signals used for lane closure operations on two-lane, two
way roadways meet the requirements in I 02-9.21. 

102-9.16 Temporary Traffic Detection and Maintenance: Provide temporary traffic 
detection and maintenance at existing, temporary, and new signalized intersections. Provide 
temporary traffic detection equipment listed on the APL. Restore any loss ofdetection within 12 
hours. Ensure 90% accuracy per signal phase, measured at the initial installation and after any 
lane shifts, by comparing sample data collected from the detection system with ground truth data 
collected by human observation. Collect the sample and ground truth data for a minimum of five 
minutes during a peak and five minutes during an off-peak period with a minimum three 
detections for each signal phase. Perform the test in the presence of the Engineer. 

102-9.17 Truck Mounted Attenuators and Trailer Mounted Attenuators: Furnish, 
operate and maintain APL listed truck mounted and trailer mounted attenuators in accordance 
with the manufacturer's recommendations. 

For posted speeds of 50 mph or greater, use either truck mounted attenuators or 
trailer mounted attenuators that meet TL-3 criteria {NCHRP Report 350 or MASH). For posted 
speeds of45 mph or less, use either truck mounted attenuators or trailer mounted attenuators that 
meet TL-2 or TL-3 criteria (NCHRP Report 350 or MASH). 

Attenuators will not be paid for separately. Include the cost of the truck with 
either a truck mounted attenuator or a trailer mounted attenuator in Maintenance ofTraffic, lump 
sum. Payment includes all costs, including furnishing, operating maintaining and removal when 
no longer required, and all materials, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals required for 
attenuator maintenance. 

102-9.18 Temporary Raised Rumble Strip Set: Furnish, install, maintain, remove, and 
reinstall temporary raised rumble strips per the manufacturer's recommendations and in 
accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-603. 

The temporary raised rumble strip may be either a removable polymer striping 
tape or a molded engineered polymer material. 

102-9.19 Automated Flagger Assistance Devices (AFAD): Furnish, install, maintain, 
remove, and relocate AF ADs in accordance with the Plans, Standard Plans, Index I 02-603, and 
APL vendor drawings. 

Position AFADs where they are clearly visible to oncoming traffic. AFADs may 
be placed on the centerline if they have been successfully crash tested in accordance with MASH 
TL-3 criteria. A gate ann is required in accordance with Section 990 if a single AFAD is used on 
the shoulder to control one direction of traffic. 

The devices may be operated either by a single flagger at one end ofthe traffic 
control zone, from a central location, or by a separate flagger near each device location. Use only 
flaggers trained in accordance with Section I 05 and in the operation of the AFAD. When in use, 
each AFAD must be in view of, and attended at all times by, the flagger operating the device. 

https://102-9.19
https://102-9.18
https://102-9.17
https://102-9.16


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page 1Sof32 

Provide two flaggers on-site and use one of the following methods in the 
deployment ofAFADs: 

1. Place an AFAD at each end ofthe temporary traffic control zone, or 
2. Place an AFAD at one end of the temporary traffic control zone and a 

flagger at the opposite end. 
A single flagger may simultaneously operate two AF ADs as described in (1) or a 

single AFAD as described in (2) if all of the following conditions are met: 
1. The flagger has an unobstructed view of the AFAD(s), 
2. The flagger has an unobstructed view of approaching traffic in both 

directions, 
3. For two AF ADs, the AFADs are less than 800 feet apart. For one 

AFAD, the AFAD and the flagger are less than 800 feet apart. 
4. Two flaggers are available on-site to provide normal flagging 

operations should an AFAD malfunction. 
AFADs may be either a remotely controlled Stop/Slow AF AD mounted on either 

a trailer or a movable cart system, or a remotely controlled RedNellow Lens AFAD. 
Illuminate the flagging station when the AF AD is used at night. When the AFAD 

is not in use, remove or cover signs and move the AFAD device outside the clear zone or shield 
it with a barrier. 

AFADs will not be paid for separately. AF ADs may be used as a supplement or an 
alternate to flaggers in accordance with the Plans, Standard Plans, Index I 02-603, and the APL 
vendor drawings. Include the cost for AFADs in Maintenance ofTraffic, Lump Sum. 

102-9.20 Temporary Lane Separator: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate 
temporary lane separator in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102-600. 
Anchor the portable temporary lane separator with a removable anchor bolt. Use epoxy on bridge 
decks where anchoring is not allowed. Remove the epoxy from the bridge deck by hydroblasting 
or other method approved by the Engineer. 

102-9.21 Temporary Signals for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way Roadways: 
Furnish, install, maintain, remove, and relocate temporary signals for lane closure operations on 
two-lane, two-way roadways at the locations shown in the Plans. Temporary signals may be used, 
at the Contractor's option, as an alternate to flaggers for lane closure operations on two-lane, two
way roadways in accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-606. Temporary signals can either 
be portable signals or span wire signals and must be listed on the APL. 

102-10 Work Zone Pavement Marking. 
102-10.1 Description: Furnish and install work zone pavement markings for MOT in 

construction areas and in close conformity with the lines and details shown in the Plans and 
Standard Plans. 

Centerlines, lane lines, edge lines, stop bars, standard crosswalks, and tum arrows 
will be required in work zones prior to opening the road to traffic. 

https://102-9.21
https://102-9.20


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727•1•72-33 

Page 16of31 

102.10.2 Painted Pavement Markings: 
102-10.2.1 General: Use painted pavement markings meeting the requirements of 

Section 710. Use standard paint unless otheiwise identified in the Plans or approved by the 
Engineer. 

102-10.3 Removable Tape: 
102-10.3.1 General: Use removable tape listed on the APL as shown in the Plans 

and meeting the requirements of990-4. 
102-10.3.2 Application: Apply removable tape with a mechanical applicator to 

provide pavement lines that are neat, accurate and uniform. Equip the mechanical applicator with 
a film cut-off device and with measuring devices that automatically and accumulatively measure 
the length of each line placed within an accuracy tolerance ofplus or minus 2%. Ensure 
removable tape adheres to the road surface. Removable tape may be placed by hand on short 
sections, 500 feet or less, if it is done in a neat accurate manner. 

102-10.3.3 Retroreflectivity: Apply white and yellow pavement markings that 
will attain an initial retroreflectivity ofnot less than 300 mcd/lx·m2 for white and contrast 
markings and not less than 250 mcd/lx·m2 for yellow markings. Black portions ofcontrast tapes 
and black masking tapes must be non-reflective and have a reflectance ofless than 5 med/Ix m2• 

At the end ofthe six month service life, the retroreflectance ofwhite and yellow removable tape 
shall not be less than 150 mcd/lx·m2• 

102-10.3.4 Removability: Provide removable tape capable ofbeing removed 
from bituminous concrete and portland cement concrete pavement intact or in substantially large 
strips, either manually or by a mechanical roll-up device, at temperatures above 400F, without the 
use of heat, solvents, grinding or blasting. 

102-10.4 Temporary Raised Pavement Markers (RPMs): Use Class B RPMs 
except for work that consists ofground-in mmble strips at centerline locations. For ground-in 
rumble strips at centerline locations, use temporary RPMs in accordance with Section 710. 
Provide only temporary RPMs listed on the APL. Install all markers in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendations, the Standard Plans, and Section 706. After initial installation, 
replace broken or missing temporary RPMs in locations where more than three consecutive 
temporary RPMs are broken or missing at no expense to the Department. 

102-11 Method of Measurement. 
102-11.1 General: Devices installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion 

thereof, within the Contract Time, including time extensions which may be granted, will be paid 
for at the Contract unit price for the applicable pay item. Include the cost ofany work that is 
necessary to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents for MOT under Maintenance of 
Traffic, lump sum when separate payment is not provided. 

102-11.2 Traffic Control Officers: The quantity to be paid for traffic control officers as 
specified in 102-7(1) through (5) will be at the Contract unit price per hour (4 hour minimum) 
for the actual number ofofficers certified to be on the project site, including any law 
enforcement vehicles and all other direct and indirect costs. Payment will be made only for those 
traffic control officers specified in the Plans and authorized by the Engineer. 

Cost for traffic control officers as specified in I 02-7(6) or used at the Contractor's 
option will be paid for under Maintenance of Traffic, lump sum. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page 17of32 

102-11.3 Special Detours: When a special detour is shown in the Plans, the work of 
constructing, maintaining, and subsequently removing such detour facilities will be paid for 
under Special Detour, lump sum. However, traffic control devices, warning devices, barriers, 
signing, pavement markings, and restoration to final configuration will be paid for under their 
respective pay items. 

When the Plans show more than one special detour, each special detour will be 
paid for separately, at the Contract lump sum price for each. 

102-11.4 Commercial Material for Driveway Maintenance: The quantity to be paid 
for will be the certified volume, in cubic yards, of all materials authorized by the Engineer, 
acceptably placed and maintained for driveway maintenance. The volume, which is authorized to 
be reused, and which is acceptably salvaged, placed, and maintained in other designated 
driveways will be included again for payment. 

102-11.S Work Zone Signs: The number of temporary post-mounted signs (temporary 
regulatory, warning and guide) certified as installed/used on the project will be paid for at the 
Contract unit price for work zone signs. When multiple signs are located on single or multiple 
posts, each sign panel will be paid individually. Signs greater than 20 square feet and detailed in 
the Plans will be paid for under Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 

Temporary portable signs (excluding mesh signs) and vehicular mounted sign~ 
will be included for payment under work zone signs, only if used in accordance with the 
Standard Plans. 

The number oftemporary barrier mounted signs (temporary regulatory, warning 
and guide) certified as installed/used on the project will be paid for at the Contract unit price for 
barrier mounted work zone signs. 

Work zone signs may be installed fourteen days prior to the start ofContract Time 
with the approval of the Engineer and at no additional cost to the Department. 

102-11.6. Business Signs; The number ofbusiness signs certified as installed/used on the 
project will be paid for at the Contract unit price for business signs. 

102-11.7 Project Information Signs: No separate payment will be made for project 
information signs. Payment will be included under Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 

102-11.8 Channelizing Devices: The number ofdrums, vertical panels, and Type I, Type 
II, Type III, or direction indicator barricades, certified as installed/used on the project meeting 
the requirements ofStandard Plans, Index l02-600 and have been properly maintained will b"e 
paid for at the Contract unit prices for channelizing device. 

Payment for drums, vertical panels, and Type I, Type II, Type Ill, and direction 
indicator barricades wi11 be paid per each per day. 

Payment for vehicular LCDs will be paid as the length in feet installed divided by 
the device spacing for barricades, vertical panels, and drums and certified as installed/used on the 
project meeting the requirements of Standard Plans, Index 102-600 and have been properly 
maintained will be paid for at the Contract unit price for channelizing device. 

Payment for pedestrian LCDs will be paid as the plan quantity length in feet, in 
place and accepted. For sidewalk closures, the plan quantity length will be based on the width of 
the sidewalk. The quantity ofpedestrian LCDs will be paid for regardless ofwhether materials 
are new, used, or relocated from a previous installation on the project. Placement ofpedestrian 
LCDs at locations not shown in the Plans, or not authorized by the Engineer, will be at the 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page 18of32 

Contractor's expense. Payment for pedestrian LCD mounted signs will be made under Work 
Zone Signs, per each per day. 

Payment will not be made for channelizing devices unsatisfactorily maintained, as 
determined by the Engineer. Payment will be made for each channelizing device that is used to 
delineate trailer mounted devices. Payment will be made for channelizing devices delineating 
portable changeable message signs during the period beginning 14 working days before Contract 
Time begins as authorized by the Engineer. 

102-11.9 Temporary Barrier: The quantity to be paid for will be the length, in feet, of 
freestanding units or anchored units certified as installed/used on the project. The quantity to be 
paid for relocating barrier will be based on the relocated installation type. No separate payment 
will be made for the asphalt pad. 

102-11.10 Barrier Delineators: No separate payment will be made for barrier 
delineators installed on top of temporary barrier and vehicular LCDs. Include the cost for barrier 
delineators in the cost of the barrier or vehicular LCD. 

102-11.11 Temporary Glare Screen: The certified quantity to be paid for will be 
determined by the number ofsections times the nominal length ofeach section. 

102-11.12 Temporary Crash Cushions: No separate payment will be made for the 
concrete or asphalt pad. 

102-11.12.1 Redlrective: The quantity to be paid for will be the nuinber of temporary 
crash cushions (redirective) certified as installed/used and maintained on the project, including 
anchoring of temporary barrier necessary for transition to the crash cushion and delineation. 

102-11.12.2 Gating: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of temporary crash 
cushions (gating) certified as installed/used and maintained on the project, including anchoring of 
temporary barrier necessary for transition to the crash cushion and delineation. 

102-11.13 Temporary Guardrail: The quantity to be paid for will be the length, in feet, 
oftemporary guardrail constructed and certified as installed/used on the project. The length of a 
run ofguardrail will be determined as a multiple of the nominal panel lengths. 

102-11.14 Arrow Board: The quantity to be paid at the contract unit price will be for the 
number ofarrow boards certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion 
thereof within the Contract Time. 

102-11.1S Portable Changeable Message Sign: The quantity to be paid at the Contract 
unit price will be for the number ofPCMSs or truck mounted changeable message signs certified 
as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof within the Contract Time. 
Payment will be made for each portable changeable message sign that is used during the period 
beginning fourteen working days before Contract Time begins as authorized by the Engineer. 

102-11.16 Portable Regulatory Signs: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of 
portable regulatory signs certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion 
thereof within the Contract Time, will be paid for the Contract unit price for portable regulatory 
sign. 

102-11.17 Radar Speed Display Unit: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of 
radar speed display units certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion 
thereof within the Contract Time, will be paid for the Contract unit price for radar speed display 
unit. 

https://102-11.17
https://102-11.16
https://102-11.1S
https://102-11.14
https://102-11.13
https://102-11.12
https://102-11.11
https://102-11.10


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page 19 .of 32 

102-11.18 Temporary Signalization and Maintenance: For existing intersections, the 
certified quantity to be paid for will be the number ofsignalized intersections per day for the full 
duration ofthe Contract. For temporary intersections, the certified quantity to be paid for will be 
the number ofsignalized intersections per day for the duration ofthe temporary intersection. No 
separate payment will be made for temporary signalization and maintenance at new intersections. 

102-11.19 Temporary Traffic Detection and Maintenance: For existing intersections, 
the certified quantity to be paid for will be the number of signalized intersections per day 
beginning the day Contract Time begins and ending the day the permanent detection is 
operational and the final lane configuration is in place. For temporary and new intersections, the 
certified quantity to be paid for will be the number of signalized intersections per day ~eginning 
the day the temporary detection is functional and ending the day: the permanent detection is 
operational and the final lane configuration is in place for a new intersection; or, when the 
detection is removed for a temporary intersection. 

102-11.20 Work Zone Pavement Markings: The quantities ofwork zone pavement 
markings authorized and acceptably applied under this Section and certified as installed/used on 
the project, will be paid for as follows: 

1. The length in gross miles, of solid, 10' -30' skip, 3'-9' dotted, 6 • -10' dotted, 
and 2 '-4' dotted lines. 

The gross mile measurement will be taken as the distance from the 
beginning ofthe painted line to the end of the painted line and will include the unmarked gaps 
for skip and dotted lines. The gross mile measurement will not include designated unmarked 
lengths at intersections, tum lanes, etc. Final measurement will be determined by plan 
dimensions or stations, subject to 9-1.3 .1. 

2. The length, in linear feet, oftransverse lines, diagonal lines, chevrons, and 
parking spaces. 

3. The number ofpavement messages, symbols, and arrows. Each arrow is paid 
as a complete marking, regardless of the number of"points" or directions. 

4. The number of temporary RPM's authorized and acceptably applied. 
102-11.21 Temporary Raised Rumble Strips: The quantity to be paid for will be the 

number ofcalendar days, or portions thereof, that temporary raised rumble strips are certified as 
installed/used on the project within the Contract Time. The number ofstrips used must meet the 
requirements ofStandard Plans, Index 102-603. No adjustment will be made to the per day 
measurement for the number ofstrips or sets used, or for the number of times the sets are 
relocated. 

102-11.22 Temporary Lane Separator: The quantity to be paid for will be the field 
measure, in feet, of temporary lane separator certified as installed/used on the project, including 
drainage gaps, completed and accepted. 

102-11.23 Temporary Signals for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way 
Roadways: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of temporary signals per day 
installed/used at the locations shown in the Plans. Temporary signals installed/used at the 
Contractor's option as an alternative to flaggers will be included in Maintenance ofTraffic, 
Jump sum. 

102-11.24 Temporary Highway Lighting: When temporary highway lighting is 
required by the Plans, the work ofconstructing, maintaining, and removing the temporary 

https://102-11.24
https://102-11.23
https://102-11.22
https://102-11.21
https://102-11.20
https://102-11.19
https://102-11.18


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432717-1-72-33 

PagelO of32 

highway lighting, including all materials and any necessary design work, will be paid for under 
temporary highway lighting, lump sum. 

102-11.25 Pedestrian Special Detours: When a pedestrian special detour is shown in the 
Plans, the work ofconstructing, maintaining, and subsequently removing such detour facilities 
will be paid for under pedestrian special detour, lump sum. However, traffic control devices, 
warning devices, barriers, signing, pavement markings, and restoration to final configuration will 
be paid for under their respective pay items. 

102-12 Submittals. 
102-12.1 Submittal Instructions: Prepare a certification ofquantities, using the 

Department's current approved form, for certified MOT payment items for each project in the 
Contract. Submit the certification ofquantities to the Engineer. The Department will not pay for 
any disputed items until the Engineer approves the certification ofquantities. 

102-12.2 Contractor's Certification of Quantities: Request payment by submitting a 
certification ofquantities no later than Twelve O'clock noon Monday after the estimate cut-off 
date or as directed by the Engineer, based on the amount ofwork done or completed. Ensure the 
certification consists of the following: 

1. Contract Number, FPID Number, Certification Number, Certification Date and 
the period that the certification represents. 

2. The basis for arriving at the amount of the progress certification, less payments 
previously made and less an amount previously retained or withheld. The basis wilJ include a detail 
breakdown provided on the certification ofitems ofpayment in accordance with 102-13. After the 
initial setup ofthe MOT items and counts, the interval for recording the counts will be made 
weekly on the certification sheet unless there is a change. This change will he documented on the 
day ofoccurrence. Some items may necessitate a daily interval ofrecording the counts. 

102-13 Basis of Payment. 
102-13.1 Maintenance of Traffic (General Work): When an item ofwork is included in 

the proposal, price and payment will be full compensation for all work and costs specified under 
this Section except as may be specifically covered for payment under other items. 

102-13.2 Traffic Control Officen: Price and payment will be full compensation for the 
services of the traffic control officers. 

102-13.3 Special Detours: Price and payment will be full compensation for providing all 
detour facilities shown in the Plans and all CO:.its incurred in carrying out all requirements ofthis 
Section for general MOT within the limits ofthe detour, as shown in the Plans. 

102-13.4 Commercial Materials for Driveway Maintenance: Price and payment will 
be full compensation for all work and materials specified for this item, including specifically all 
required shaping and maintaining ofdriveways. 

102-13.S Work Zone Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work 
and materials for furnishing signs, supports and necessary hardware, installation, relocating, 
maintaining and removing signs. 

102-13.6. Business Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all materials 
and labor required for furnishing, installing, relocating, maintaining, and removing the signs as 
we]) as the cost of installing any logos provided by business owners. 

https://102-11.25


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page 21 of31 

102-13.7 Project Information Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all 
materials and labor for furnishing, installing, relocating, maintaining and removing signs. 

102-13.8 Channelizing Devices: Prict:S and payment will be full compensation for 
fumishing, installing. relocating, maintaining and removing the channelizing devices. 

102-13.9 Temporary Barrier: Price and payment will be full compensation for 
furnishing, installing. maintaining, and removing the barrier and asphalt pad. When called for, 
temporary barrier (relocate) will be full compensation for relocating the barrier. 

102-13,10 Temporary Glare Screen: Price and payment will be full compensation for 
furnishing. installing. maintaining, and removing the glare screen certified as installed/used on 
the project. When called for, glare screen (relocate) will be full compensation for relocating the 
glare screen. 

102-13.11 Temporary Crash Cushion (Redirective or Gating): Price and payment will 
be full compensation for furnishing, installing, maintaining, and removing crash cushions and 
concrete or asphalt pads. 

102-13.12 Temporary Guardrail: Price and payment will be full compensation for 
furnishing all materials required for a complete installation, including end anchorage assemblies 
and any end connections to other structures and for installing, maintaining and removing 
guardrail. 

102-13.13 Arrow Board: Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, 
installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing arrow boards. 

102-13.14 Portable Changeable Message Sign: Price and payment will be full 
compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing portable 
changeable message signs. 

102-13.15 Portable Regulatory Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for 
furnishing, installing, relocating. operating, maintaining and removing a completely functioning 
system as described in these Specifications. 

Payment will include all labor, materials, incidentals, repairs and any actions 
necessary to operate and maintain the unit at all times that work is being performed or traffic is 
being affected by construction and/or MOT operations. 

102-13.16 Radar Speed Display Unit: Price and payment will be made only for a 
completely functioning system as described in these Specifications. Payment will include all 
labor, hardware, accessories, signs, and incidental items necessary for a complete system.Payment 
will include any measurements needed to ensure that the unit conforms to all Specification 
requirements. 

Payment will include all labor, materials, incidentals, repairs and any actions 
necessary to operate and maintain the unit at all times that work is being performed or traffic is 
being affected by construction and MOT operations. Price and payment will be full 
compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing radar 
speed display unit. 

102-13.17 Temporary Signalization and Maintenance: Price and payment will 
constitute full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining and removing 
temporary traffic control signals including all equipment and components necessary to provide 
an operable traffic signal. Payment will be withheld for each day at each intersection where the 
temporary signalization is not operational within 12 hours after notification. 

https://102-13.17
https://102-13.16
https://102-13.15
https://102-13.14
https://102-13.13
https://102-13.12
https://102-13.11


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Pagell of32 

102-13.18 Temporary Traffic Detection and Maintenance: Price and payment will 
constitute full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining and removing 
temporary traffic detection including all equipment and components necessary to provide an 
acceptable signalized intersection. Take ownership ofall equipment and components. Payment 
will be withheld for each day at each intersection where the temporary detection is not 
operational within 12 hours after notification. 

102-13.19 Work Zone Pavement Markings: Price and payment will be full 
compensation for all work specified including, all cleaning and preparing ofsurfaces, furnishing 
ofall materials, application, curing and protection ofall items, protection of traffic, furnishing of 
all tools, machines and equipment, and all incidentals necessary to complete the work. Final 
payment will be withheld until all deficiencies are corrected. 

Removable tape may be substituted for standard paint at no additional cost to the 
Department. 

Payment for temporary RPMs used to supplement line markings will be paid for 
under temporary raised pavement markers. Install these RPMs as detailed in the Standard Plans. 

102-13.20 Temporary Raised Rumble Strips: Price and payment will be full 
compensation for all work and materials described in this Section, including all cleaning and 
preparing ofsurfaces, disposal of all debris, furnishing of all materials, application, curing, 
removal, reinstalling and protection of all items, protection of traffic, furnishing ofall tools, 
machines and equipment, and al1 incidentals necessary to complete the work. 

102-13.21 Temporary Lane Separator: Price and payment will be full compensation 
for all work specified in this Section. 

102-13.22 Temporary Signals for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way 
Roadways: Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, 
maintaining and removing temporary traffic signal including all equipment and components 
necessary to provide an operable portable traffic signal. 

102-13.23 Temporary Highway Lighting: Price and payment will be full compensation 
for providing all temporary highway lighting shown in the Plans. 

102-13.24 Pedestrian Special Detours: Price and payment will be full compensation for 
providing all pedestrian special detours shown in the Plans. 

102-13.2S Payment Items: Payment will be made under: 
Item No. I 02- I- Maintenance ofTraffic - lump sum. 
Item No. I 02- 2- Special Detour - lump sum. 
Item No. I02- 3- Commercial Material for Driveway Maintenance - per 

cubic yard. 
Item No. 102- 4- Pedestrian Special Detour - Jump sum. 
Item No. 102- 14- Traffic Control Officer - per hour. 
ltem No. 102- 30- Temporary Highway Lighting - lump sum. 
Item No. 102- 60- Work Zone Sign - per each per day. 
ltem No. 102- 61- Business Sign - each. 
Item No. 102- 62- Barrier Mounted Work Zone Sign - per each per day 
ltem No. 102- 71- Temporary Barrier- per foot. 
Item No. 102- 75- Temporary Lane Separator - per foot 
ltem No. 102- 73- Temporary Guardrail - per foot. 

https://102-13.2S
https://102-13.24
https://102-13.23
https://102-13.22
https://102-13.21
https://102-13.20
https://102-13.19
https://102-13.18


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-'11-33 

Page23of31 

Item No. 102- 74- Channelizing Devices 
ltem No. 102- 76- Arrow Board - per each per day. 
ltem No. I 02- 78- Temporary Raised Pavement Markers - each. 
Item No. 102- 81· Temporary Crash Cushion, Gating - per location. 
Item No. 102- 89- Temporary Crash Cushion, Redirective- per location. 
Item No. 102- 94- Glare Screen - per foot. 
Item No. 102- 99- Portable Changeable Message Sign - per each per day. 
Item No. 102-104- Temporary Signalization and Maintenance - per 

intersection per day. 
ltem No. 102-107- Temporery Traffic Detection and Maintenance - per 

intersection per day. 
ltem No. 102-120- Temporary Signal for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two

Way Roadways - per each per day. 
Item No. 102-150- Portable Regulatory Sign - per each per day. 
Item No. I02-150- Radar Speed Display Unit - per each per day. 
Item No. 102-909- Temporary Raised Rumble Strips - per day. 
Item No. I02-91 I Removable Tape (White/Black) - per gross mile. 
Item No. 102-912- Removable Tape (Yellow) - per gross mile. 
Item No. 710- Painted Pavement Markings. 

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC. 
(REV 9-7-18) (7-19) 

ARTICLE I 02-3 is expanded by the following new Subarticle: 

SUBARTICLE 102-3.3 is deleted. 

102-3.4 MOT Maintenance Services: Provide personnel to perfonn MOT setup, 
maintenance and take-down duties when a Work Document is issued. 

Time begins when the Engineer is notified that setup is complete and flagging 
operations and maintenance ofdevices are ready to begin. Travel time to and from the work site 
is not included. Provide only one person for the maintenance ofdevices unless otherwise 
directed by the Engineer. Notify the Engineer when time ends and setup or take-down begins. 

Mobilization and all costs incurred will be considered incidental to the work. 
Emergency mobilization will be paid when a Work Document is issued with a start date ofless 
than 72 hours. 

SUBARTICLE 102-5.4 is deleted and the following substituted: 

102-5.4 Crossings and Intersections: Provide and maintain adequate accommodations 
for intersecting and crossing traffic. Do not block O!' unduly restrict any median opening, road or 
street crossing the project unless approved by the Engineer. Maintain all existing actuated or 
traffic responsive mode signal operations for main and side street movements for the duration of 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-71-33 

Page 24 of31 

the work. Restore any loss ofdetection within 12 hours. Use only detection technology listed on 
the Department's Approved Products List (APL) and approved by the Engineer to restore 
detection capabilities. Before beginning any construction, submit to the Engineer the names and 
phone numbers ofpersons that can be contacted when signal operation malfunctions. 

ARTICLE 102-7 is expanded by the following: 

Provide off-duty law enforcement officer when required by the Work Document or as 
directed by the Engineer. 

SUBARTICLE I 02-9.17 is deleted and the following substituted: 

102-9.17 Truck Mounted Attenuators and Trailer Mounted Attenuators: Furnish, 
install and maintain only those attenuators that meet the requirements ofNCHRP 350 or the 
MASH. 

Use truck mounted attenuators or trailer mounted attenuators, when called for in 
the Design Standards. Use attenuators listed on the APL. 

When attenuators are called for, use either a truck mounted attenuator or a trailer 
mounted attenuator system designed and installed in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

Equip the attenuator cartridge with lights and reflectors in compliance with 
applicable Florida motor vehicle laws, including turn signals, dual tail lights, and brake lights. 
Ensure that lights are visible in both the raised and lowered positions if the unit is capable of 
being raised. 

Install either alternating black with yellow or white with orange sheeting on the 
rear oftrailer mounted attenuators and on truck mounted attenuators, in both the operating and 
raised position. Use Type Ill (work zone) or Type IV sheeting consisting of4 or 6 inch wide 
stripes installed to form chevrons that point upward. All sheeting except black shall be 
retroreflective. · 

Payment wm be made per day when included in the Work Document or as 
directed by the Engineer. Payment includes all costs for materials, labor, tools, equipment and 
incidentals required for performing the work clescribed in this Section. 

SUBARTICLE I 02-11. l is deleted and the following substituted: 

102-11.1 General: Devices installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion 
thereof, within the Contract Time, including time extensions which may be granted, will be paid 
for at the Contract unit price for the applicable pay item. 

For this Contract, all pay items with unit "Each Day (ED)" and "Hour (HR)" will 
be defined as follows: 

https://102-9.17


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page25 of32 

I . Time for "Each Day" will be calculated in 24 hour increments starting at the 
time specified in the Work Document. 

2. "Hour" rates will be paid in increments of 1 hour, rounded up to the hour. 

ARTICLE I02-11 is expanded by the following new Subarticles: 

102-11.23 MOT Maintenance Services: The quantity to be paid wilJ be the number of 
hours that MOT duties are performed, beginning when setup is complete to the initiation of 
takedown. 

102-11.25 Truck Mounted Attenuator: The quantity to be paid will be the number of 
days, per day, regardless of the number oflocations work is perfonned at each site. 

ARTICLE 102-12 is deleted. 

ARTICLE l 02-13.1 is deleted and the following substituted: 

102-13 Basis of Payment. 
102-13.1 Maintenance of Traffic (General Work): When an item of work is included 

in the proposal, price and payment will be full compensation for all work and costs specified 
under this Section except as may be specifically covered for payment under other items. 

When the proposal does not include a separate item for Maintenance ofTraffic, 
all work and incidental costs specified as being covered under this Section will be included for 
payment under the several scheduled items ofthe overall Contract and no separate payment will 
be made therefore. 

SUBARTICLE 13.23 is deleted and the following substituted: 

102-13.23 MOT Maintenance Services: Price and payment will be full compensation 
for work performed. 

102-13.24 Truck Mounted Attenuator: Price and payment wil1 be full compensation for 
proviaing truck mounted attenuators each day regardless of the number of locations work is 
performed at each site. 

102-13.25 Payment Items: Payment will be made under the items shown in the Bid 
Price Proposal. 

https://102-13.25
https://102-13.24
https://102-13.23
https://102-11.25
https://102-11.23


MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM#432727-1-72-33 

Page26 of32 

104-40 ROADSIDE MOWING. 
(REV 9-24-14) (7-19) 

The following new Section is added after Section 104: 

SECTION 104-40 
ROADSIDE MOWING 

104-40.1 Description. 
Mow grass or vegetation in roadside areas with conventional mowing equipment. Use 

specialized equipment or hand labor when required to perfonn specified work in certain areas or 
during certain times. Vegetation consists ofplanted and/or natural grasses, weeds, and other 
vegetation within the area to be mowed. Comply with the current edition of the Department•~ "A 
Guide to Roadside Vegetation Management". 
104-40.2 Types of Mowing Areas. 

104-40.2.1 General: The Engineer will determine the areas to be cut and type ofmowing 
to be accomplished in each. 

All hand labor required to perfonn the specified work around appurtenances will 
be incidental to the type ofmowing being perfonned. Appurtenances include, but are not limited 
to, sign post and bases, delineator post, fences, guardrail, barrier walls, end walJs, pipes, drainage 
structures, poles, guys, mail boxes, landscaped areas, and trees. 

104-40.2.2 Large Machine Mowing: Large machine mowing encompasses the routinely 
mowed areas ofshoulders, front and back slopes that are 3 horizontal to 1 vertical or less, 
roadside ditch bottoms, large median islands and similar areas conducive to the use oflarge 
machine mowing equipment. 

104-40.2.3 Slope Mowing: Slope mowing is generally limited to slopes greater or steeper 
than 3 horizontal to I vertical and are relatively inaccessible to the use ofconventional style · 
equipment, e.g., steep slopes, wet roadside ditch bottoms, canal banks, intersections, overpasses, 
etc. These type areas will require the use of specialized equipment designed for slope mowing. 

104-40.2.4 Intermediate Machine Mowing: Intermediate machine mowing consists of 
mowing areas not accessible by large machine mowing equipment but not conducive to the use 
ofsmall machine mowing equipment. These areas consist ofshoulders, roadside ditch bottoms, 
raised median islands, various width utility strips, and similar areas. 

104-40.2.S Small Machine Mowing: Small machine mowing consists ofmowing areas 
not accessible by large and intermediate machine mowing equipment. These areas consist of 
narrow shoulders, landscaped shoulders, narrow roadside ditch bottoms, raised landscaped 
median islands, narrow width utility strips, and similar areas. 
104-40.3 Frequency of Mowing. 

The area and limits ofmowing have been previously established and are distinguishable 
in the field. Where landscaping has been established or natural landscaping has been preserved. 
mow confonning to the established mowing contours. Mow up to the limits maintained by the 
Department and around existing appurtenances located within the roadway right-of-way as 
directed by the Engineer. 

The Engineer wm determine the type ofmowing, the estimated number ofacres to be 
accomplished within a specified number ofcalendar days (cycle), when to begin each mowing 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM # 432727-1-72-33 

Page 27of32 

cycle, and the total number ofcycles. Complete eacb mowing cycle within (to be determined by 
the engineer) calendar days ofbeginning the cycle, weather pennitting. The approximate 
number ofcycles for each type ofmowing will be as follows: 

Large Machine Mowing ...!L cycles (N/A minimum cycles) 
Slope Mowing __!_cycles~ minimum cycles) 
Intennediate Machine Mowing ...!L cycles (NIA minimum cycles) 
Small Machine Mowing N/A cycles (N/A minimum cycles) 
Mow Wildflower plots approximately NIA times per year. 

Wildflower plots or naturally occurring wildflowers are to be avoided when in bloom and 
when re-seeding. A deduction will not be made from the pay quantities for any wildflower area 
not mowed, unless it exceeds one acre. 

Quantities wm be agreed upon prior to beginning work in any area in question. 
104-40.4 Equipment. 

Equip all mowing equipment with a slow-moving vehicle sign located on the rear of the 
tractor, amber flashing light or white strobe light mounted on the tractor, 18 inch X 18 inch 
fluorescent orange warning flags mounted on each side of the rear of the mower, protective 
devices on the mower to prevent objects from being thrown into traffic, and safety devices 
installed by the manufacturer. Properly install and maintain safety devices at all times when the 
equipment is in use. 

If the Engineer detennines that any equipment is deficient in safety devices, remove the 
equipment from service immediately. Keep the equipment out ofservice until the deficiency is 
corrected to the satisfaction ofthe Engineer. Inspection ofthe equipment by the Engineer will 
not relieve the Contractor of responsibility or liability for injury to persons or damage to property 
caused by the operation of the equipment, nor will it relieve the Contractor of the responsibility 
to meet the established time for the completion ofthe mowing cycle. 

Maintain the mowing equipment so as to produce a clean, sharp cut and uniform 
distribution of the cuttings at all times. The mowing equipment used will have the capability of 
cutting a height from 4 inches to 12 inches. 

Furnish equipment of a type and quantity to perfonn the work satisfactorily within the 
time specified herein. 
104-40.S Method of Operation. 

Begin any mowing cycle when authorized by the Engineer in writing. 
Notify the Engineer when a cycle is started and when work is interrupted for any reason. 
Prior to beginning work on the first cycle, provide a pattern or plan for mowing to the 

Engineer for approval. Subsequent cycles will follow the pattern adopted for the first cycle. 
Mow shoulders and medians concurrently within the limits of the area mowed so that not 

more than one mile wm be ]eft partiaUy mowed at the conclusion of the working day. Mow grass 
and vegetation on s]opes or around appurtenances concurrent with the mowing operation. 

Complete each mowing cycle in its entirety prior to beginning another cyc]e. 
When work by other's, or weather conditions ofa temporary nature, prevent the mowing 

of any areas, and such conditions are eliminated during the period designated for that mowing 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# B£877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page 28 of32 

cycle, the Engineer may require mowing of these areas as part ofthe cycle without penalty for 
exceeding the time allowed or additional compensation. 

Do not mow-grassed areas saturated with standing water to the point standard mowing 
equipment may not be used without excessive damage to the turf. At the Engineer's discretion, 
mow the areas during a subsequent cycle, or cut ~o the surface of the water using hand labor or 
other specialized equipment. Additional compensation may be requested for alternate methods 
used to mow wet areas (as specified in I 04-40-9). Quantities will be agreed upon prior to 
beginning work in any area in question. No deduction will be made from the pay quantities for 
any one area authorized by the Engineer to remain un-mowed during a cycle unless it exceeds 
one acre in extent. 

Prior to mowing, pickup, remove and dispo~e from the right-of-way, any large items such 
as wood, tires, cans, bags of trash, newspapers, magazines, large boxes, etc., that would be tom, 
ripped, or scattered by the mower and result in an objectionable appearance. 

Exercise the necessary care to preclude any source of litter. · 
104-40.6 Limitation of Operation. 

Maintenance of traffic will be in accordance with Section I02. When mowing within four 
feet of the travel-way (travel lane), operate the equipment in the same direction of the traffic, 
unless the adjacent lane is closed to traffic. All lane closures will have the prior approval of the 
Engineer. Mowers may operate in either direction when mowing four feet or more from the 
travel-way. 

Perfonn all work during daylight hours. 
The foregoing requirements are to be considered as minimum and compliance will in no 

way relieve the Contractor of final responsibility for providing adequate traffic control devices 
for the protection ofthe public and employees throughout the work areas. 
104-40.7 Quality. 

Completed areas will be reviewed for quality and acceptance by the Engineer. Re-mow 
areas determined to be unsatisfactory, by the Engineer, at no additional cost to the Department. 
Complete areas requiring re-mowing within the mowing cycle time specified in Subarticle 104-
40-3. 

Mow all grass and vegetation to a height of6 inches plus or minus J/2 inch. When 
determined by the Engineer, certain areas, due to location, may be cut to a height of4 inches plus 
or minus I/2 inch. 

No streaking or scalping will be allowed in the areas mowed. Mowing areas ofdifferent 
widths will be connected with smooth flowing transitions. No accumulation or piling ofcuttings 
will be allowed as a result ofcleaning ofthe equipment. 

Mow all grass and vegetation on slopes or around appurtenances to the same height and 
quality as the surrounding mowed area when using hand tools. 

Negligence that results in damage to turf, curbs, sidewalks, pavement, signs or structures, 
mail boxes, appurtenances, etc. wil1 be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction of the Engineer at 
no additional cost to the Department. Complete repairs prior to submission of the invoice for 
work accomplished during the cyc)e. 

It is not required to remove grass or other vegetation cuttings from the right-of-way, or 
required to rake or pick up the cuttings in rural areas. In Urban Areas, with Small, Intermediate, 
or Large Machine Mowing the cuttings (to be determined by the engineer} need to be removed 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page29of32 

from sidewalks, curb & gutter, gutter, and inlets by the Contractor. The use ofblowers (away 
from traffic) (to be determined by the engineer) be allowed to remove the cuttings. 
104-40.8 Method of Measurement. 

The quantities to be paid for will be the area, in acres, ofmowing completed and 
accepted. 
104-40.9 Basis of Payment. 

Additional compensation for hand labor or the use ofspecialized equipment in cutting 
wet areas will be included under Item No. E104-4-2 Slope Mowing. 

Prices and payment will be full compensation for furnishing all equipment, materials, 
labor, and incidentals necessary to complete all mowing operations specified. Compensation will 
be the unit price per acre for mowing times the actual acres completed and accepted. 

Payment will be made under the items specified in the Bid Price Proposal. 

110-30 ROADSIDE LITTER REMOVAL. 

(REV 8-1-13) (7-19) 

The following new Section is added at the end of Section 110: 

SECTION 110-30 
ROADSIDE LITTER REMOVAL 

110-30.1 Description. 
Provide pickup, removal, disposal of litter, and otherwise undesirable or objectionable 

appearing debris within the maintained limits of the highway right-of-way. 
Litter or debris may consist ofvaried sizes ofbottles, cans, paper, tires, tire pieces, 

lumber, vehicle parts, metal junk, brush, and other items to be removed under this work. 
110-30.2 Frequency of Removal. 

The Engineer will determine when to begin each pickup. Areas or portions ofareas may 
be increased or decreased, as determined by the Engineer. The total number and the timing of 
pickup will depend upon the litter conditions that exist. Areas specified as litter removal areas 
will be picked up approximately 14 times. The actual number oflitter pickups maybe increased 
or decreased, as determined by the Engineer, due to the intensity of litter or special events. 

Complete each litter removal cycle within (to be determined by the engineer) calendar 
days ofbeginning the cycle, weather permitting, as determined by the Engineer. 
110-30.3 Equipment. 

Equipment that is utilized to transport litter will be constructed in a manner to preclude 
further distribution or loss of litter along the roadway. Cover and secure all open top carriers 
with tarpaulins. 

Submit a written request for approval, to the Engineer, for the use ofspecialized 
equipment designed for mechanized removal of litter and debris. Demonstrate satisfactory results 
at no cost to the Department that the specialized equipment will produce quality litter removal, if 
deemed necessary by the Engineer. The Engineer may require additional safety devices or 
precautions unique to the equipment. 

Equipment that damages curbs, pavement, or turf will not be allowed. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page30of32 

110-30.4 LJmltation of Operation. 
Any equipment left on the right-of-way overnight will be parked outside the clear zone, 

except in median areas where no equipment will be permitted to be parked overnight. All service 
and supply operations will be conducted between the travel-way and the right-of-way line and be 
outside the clear zone. No supply vehicles wm enter the median for any purpose. No service 
vehicle will enter the median except when necessary to repair or remove inoperable equipment. 

No work wiJI be pennitted during non-daylight hours. 
Workmen will wear orange clothing ofhigh visibility such as a vest, shirt, or jacket, 

when performing litter pickup operations. 
110-30.S Disposal of Litter and Debris. 

Provide locations for disposal and remove all litter that has been placed in trash bags for 
pick up from the right-of-way at the end ofeach working day. Be responsible for disposal of 
litter and debris and any cost that may incur in accordance with applicable Federal, State and 
Local Rules and Regulations. Storage or stockpiling of litter or debris on the right-of-way wil1 
not be permitted. 

Provide the landfill receipts with each invoice submittal. 
110-30.6 Quality. 

Completed areas will be reviewed for quality and acceptance by the Engineer. Areas 
determined to be unsatisfactory, by the Engineer, wil1 be re-cleaned at no additional cost. Areas 
will be cleaned in a manner that they are left reasonably free ofall litter and debris. The Engineer 
will not penalize for litter and debris that may have been deposited between the time the work 
was completed and the time when the Engineer approves the work. However, the Engineer's 
judgment when evaluating completed work will be final. 
110-30.7 Method of Measurement. 

The quantities to be paid for under this Section will be the number ofacres ofroadside 
cleaned and accepted. 
110-30.8 Basis of Payment. 

Payment will be full compensation for furnishing all equipment, materials, labor, 
disposal, and incidentals necessary to complete designated areas oflitter and debris removal, less 
any areas omitted. 

Payment will be made under the items specified in the Bid Price Proposal. 

110-32 EDGING 
(REV 7-12-19) (7-19) 

The following new Section is added at the end ofSection 110: 

SECTION l l0-32 
EDGING 

110-32.1 Description. 
Edge, sweep, remove and dispose of vegetation and debris from curb and gutter and 

sidewalk areas including, but not limited to, median island curbs, roadside curbs, gutters, the 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 

Page3t of32 

front and backside and joint areas ofsidewalks, bike paths, curb in1ets throats and other areas as 
designated by the Engineer. 
110-32.2 Frequency 

The Engineer will determine the tota1 number ofedging cycles and when to begin each 
cycle. All areas designated are to be edged approximately j times per year. Complete each cycle 
within (to be determined by the engineer) ca1endar days from the beginning of the cyc1e, 
weather pennitting, as determined by the Engineer. 

Quantities will be agreed upon prior to beginning work in any area in question. 
110-32.3 Equipment. 

Provide effective means to control dust from all edging operations, including remova1 
and disposal ofdebris. 

Use equipment for removal or transportation ofdebris or litter that prevents distribution 
or loss ofdebris or litter along the roadway. 

Operate moving equipment in the same direction as the flow oftraffic. 
110-32.4 Method of Operation. 

Do not begin work until authorized, in writing, by the Engineer. Develop a work pattern 
from the locations listed in the work document, unless the Engineer designates the priority of the 
work. 

The blade ofthe edger must produce a clear sharp cut. The trench resulting from the 
actions of the cutting blade must not exceed one inch in width from the edge of the surface being 
edged. Do not allow grass or weeds into the trench. 

Sweep all debris (grass, weeds, soil, litter, etc.) from the curb and gutters, inlet throats 
and grates, sidewalk and sidewalk joints, and bike paths to produce a clean appearance. The use 
ofblowers (away from traffic) (to be determined by the engineer) be allowed to remove the 
cuttings. 

Unifonnly cut and remove all vegetation extending over the curb, sidewalk, bike paths, or 
other designated area to the back edge of the curb, sidewalk, bike path, or other designated area, 
inc)uding sidewalk joints. Removal ofvegetation indudes grass, weeds, or bushes up to one inch 
in diameter that extend beyond the normal grassed areas onto the curb, sidewalk, bike paths, or 
other designated areas. 

Remove and properly dispose of all debris produced by the edging, vegetation removal 
and sweeping operations from the job site daily. Do not stockpile or store debris on the right-of
way overnight. Dispose of all debris in accordance with Federal, State, and Local Rules and 
Regulations. Include the cost ofvegetation removal, sweeping, and disposal of the debris, litter, 
soil and vegetation trimmings in the contract unit price for edging. Remove any debris that falls 
into any part of the storm water system at no additional compensation. 

Conduct all edging activities during daylight hours only, unless otherwise specified in the 
contract documents or approved by the Engineer. The Engineer may approve nighttime 
operations upon request, at no additional compensation for nighttime traffic control. The 
Engineer may restrict the hours ofoperations based on peak traffic hours, local conditions, or 
special events. Complete all required edging operations within the limits worked by the 
conclusion ofeach workday. In areas where access is blocked by parked vehicles or other 
obstructions, return to the area(s) to complete the edging as necessary at no additional expense to 
the Department. 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 

Page32of32 

The quality and acceptance ofwork will be detennined by the Engineer. Re-edge, 
including vegetation removal and sweeping, areas that are detennined to be unacceptable at no 
additional cost to the Department. 

Repair or replace damage to curbs, sidewalks, pavement, or turf due to negligence to the 
satisfaction ofthe Engineer at no additional compensation. 
110-32.S Method of Measurement. 

Quantities to be paid will be the total number ofmiles ofedging operations completed 
and accepted, including each pass for roadside, median island, inlet throats, curbs and gutters, 
bike paths and sidewalks. Areas that are maintained by others, or areas where the grass and/or 
weeds fail to grow sufficiently to justify perfonning this work may be omitted as determined by 
the Engineer. 
110-32.6 Basis of Payment. 

Price and payment will be full compensation for all the work specified in this Section and 
will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. 

Payment will be made under: 
Ell0- 32- 1- Edging - mile. 



City Commission Meeting 
October 21, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM #5: Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for CDBG Program 

__INFORMATION ONLY 
X ACTION REQUESTED 

ISSUE: 

Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for CDBG Program 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Applications for Task Force 

ANALYSIS: 

Polk City will be applying for CDBG Funds through the State of Florida once the next application 
period opens, which should be early 2020. One of the requirements is to appoint a Citizen Advisory 
Task Force, to include at least three members that reside in the area that is qualified to receive 
funding. We will be looking at the area of Citrus Grove Blvd. (the entire area adjoining). 

We have five applications to submit, and all qualify for the Task Force. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Citizen Advisory Task Force Members as recommended. 



POLK CITY 
CITIZEN ADVISORY TASK FORCE (CATF) MEMBER 

Please circle your Household Size and then circle the Annual Household Income amount 
that is just above your actual Annual Household Income.* 

fIHousehokl 1 person 2 person 4person 5 person 6 person 7 person ·~1Site i 
Annual lessthari less than· I less tha~l less than I less than less than 
.Household $571750$41,900 $46,550 I $61,450I$32,600 $37,250 i 
Income i 

Certification: I, the undersigned, certify that the information $tated above Is true and 
accurately reflects my household composition and•income data. 

CATF Member: ---+"'~-=-L..:.::::- ~ ---=-~-=---=------- 0,--' 5- IO,~;;....=....-=--_____,;.~ " Date: __·,.... l'--________ 
Signature 

Typed or Printed Name 

*As required by the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), the CATF shall have at least five members and must be 
comprised of residents of the County and at least 51% of the members must be from LMI households. None of the 
members can be an elected official and only one member can be an employee of the County. jncome data available from 
the following HUD website: htt : www.huduser.or /purta l/datasets1il.html 

www.huduser.or


POLK CITY 
CITIZEN ADVISORY TASK FORCE (CATF) MEMBER 

Please circle your Household Size and then circle the Annual Household Income amount 
that is just above your actual Annual Household Income.• 

IHousehold 1 person person I4 person 5 petson 6 person 7 person 
Size 

Annual less than less than less than less than less than 
Household $32,600
Income 

$50,300 $54,000 $57,750 

- - -

8 person 

less than 

$61,450 

Certification: I, the undersigned, certify that the information stated above is true and 
accurately reflects my household composition and income data. 

•As required by the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), the CATF shall have at least five members and must be 
comprised ofresidents of ttie County and at least 51% of the members must be from LMI households. None of the 
members can be an elected official arid only one member can be an employee of the County. lncome data available from 
the following HUD website: http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/:l.html 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/:l.html











































































































	Structure Bookmarks
	POLK CITY 
	POLK CITY 
	City Commission Workshop (6 pm) City Commission Meeting (7 pm) 
	October 21, 2019 Polk City Government Center 123 Broadway Blvd., SE 
	CALL TO ORDER -Mayor Joe LaCascia 
	INVOCATION -Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church 
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -Mayor Joe LaCascia 
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -Mayor Joe LaCascia 
	ROLL CALL -Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 
	ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
	APPROVECONSENTAGENDA 
	PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
	PUBLIC COMMENT -ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3 minutes) 

	AGENDA 
	AGENDA 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-06 -An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Revising the Future Land Use Element to add the Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use; and transmitting said Amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for Finding of Compliance; Providing for Severability; Providing for Conflict; and Providing for an Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 

	2. 
	2. 
	PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-07 -An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida amending the Polk City Land Development Code, amending Article 2, regulations for specific districts, including adding a new Zoning District as Section MU Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; providing for Repeal; Severability; and an Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 
	2.04.02.17 


	3. 
	3. 
	PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-13 -An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida; amending the Final Budget; Reallocating and Reappropriating monies within the budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019; providing for all other items in the budget of expenses to remain unchanged; providing for severability; providing for an effective date. First Reading 

	4. 
	4. 
	Resolution 2019-05 -Approving the execution of an Inter-Governmental Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation regarding the maintenance of the State Road Rights of Way in Polk City; and providing an effective date. 


	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for COBG Program 

	6. 
	6. 
	Planning Services Agreement -Central Florida Regional Planning Council 

	7. 
	7. 
	Audit Services Agreement -Brynulfson, CPA, PA 

	8. 
	8. 
	Polk County Sheriff's Office lnterlocal Agreement for Dispatcher Services 

	9. 
	9. 
	2019 City Manager Evaluation CITY MANAGER ITEMS 


	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Closing of S.R 33 for Christmas Parade, Saturday, December 7, 2019 

	2. 
	2. 
	Advertise -Consultant for CDBG Program 


	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
	Vice Mayor Kimsey Commissioner Blethen Commissioner Carroll Commissioner Harper Mayor LaCascia 
	ANNOUNCEMENTS ADJOURNMENT 
	Please note: Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter considered during this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, a person with disabilities needing any special accommodations to participate in city meetings shou
	CONSENT AGENDA October 21, 2019 
	MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, and add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to the subject. 


	A. CITY CLERK 
	A. CITY CLERK 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -September 12, 2019 -Budget Hearing -1Reading 
	st 


	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -September 16, 2019 -City Commission Workshop 

	3. 
	3. 
	Accept minutes -September 16, 2019-City Commission Meeting 

	4. 
	4. 
	Accept minutes -September 24, 2019 -Final Budget Hearing 


	B. REPORTS 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Building Permits Report -September 2019 

	2. 
	2. 
	Code Enforcement Report -September 2019 

	3. 
	3. 
	Financial Report-September 2019 

	4. 
	4. 
	Library Report-September 2019 

	5. 
	5. 
	Polk County Fire Rescue -September 2019 

	6. 
	6. 
	Polk Sheriff's Report -September 2019 

	7. 
	7. 
	Public Works Report-September 2019 

	8. 
	8. 
	Utilities Report-July/September 2019 



	C. OTHER 
	C. OTHER 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -September 12, 2019-Budget Hearing -1Reading 
	st 


	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -September 16, 2019-Regular City Commission Meeting 

	3. 
	3. 
	Accept minutes-September 16, 2019-City Commission Workshop 

	4. 
	4. 
	Accept minutes -September 24, 2019 -Final Budget Hearing 


	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval ATTACHMENTS: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -September 12, 2019 -Budget Hearing -1Reading 
	st 


	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -September 16, 2019 -Regular City Commission Meeting 

	3. 
	3. 
	Accept minutes -September 16, 2019-City Commission Workshop 


	4. Accept minutes -September 24, 2019 -Final Budget Hearing ANALYSIS: N/A STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes 
	CITY COMMISSION MINUTES BUDGET HEARING 
	CITY COMMISSION MINUTES BUDGET HEARING 
	September 12, 2019 
	Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
	ROLL CALL -Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 
	Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper and City Manager Jackson 
	Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud 

	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	PUBLIC HEARING ORDINANCE 2019-10 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE LEVYING OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR POLK CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading. 
	City Manager Jackson read Ordinance 2019-10 by title only. 
	City Manager Jackson advised the Polk City's certified value is $. The FY 2019-2020 operating millage rate for Polk City is 6.0000 mills. The rollback rate computed for Polk City for FY 2019-2020 is 6.6487 mills; therefore, the percentage by which the above specified final millage rate to be levied by Polk City is -9.76 percent of the roll back rate. 
	162,781,114.00

	Mayor LaCascia. opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the Ordinance 2019-10; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper. 
	Vote: Mayor LaCascia -aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey -aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, Commissioner Blethen -aye, Commissioner Harper -aye 
	Motion carried 5/0. 
	Motion carried 5/0. 
	ORDINANCE 2019-11 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, PROVIDING FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. First Reading 
	City Manager Jackson read Ordinance 2019-11 by title only. City Manager Jackson advised the total budget for FY 2019-2020 is $. 
	6,201,331.00

	Various revenues accruing to Polk City and set aside for the purpose of paying expenses and maintaining the Government of Polk City for FY 2019-2020. City Manager Jackson stated the second and final reading of the FY 2019-2020 Budget 
	will be Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 7:00 pm. 
	Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. Commissioner Blethen inquired about the City's debt and how it's paid. City Manager Jackson responded paying down the debt comes out of Unrestricted 
	Funds. Brief discussion ensued. Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2019-11; this motion was 
	seconded by Commissioner Carroll. Vote: Commissioner Harper -aye, Commissioner Blethen -nay, Commissioner Carroll -aye, Mayor LaCascia -aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey -aye 
	Motion carried 4/1. 
	The meeting adjourned at 7: 15 p.m. 
	Patricia R Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	2 
	CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MINUTES 
	September 16, 2019 
	Mayor LaCascia called the Workshop to order at 6:00 p.m. 
	Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Joe LaCascia. 
	Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vica Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper, City Attorney Thomas Cloud and City Manager Patricia Jackson 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	Agenda Review -City Commission Meeting -September 16, 2019 
	Mayor LaCascia stated the purpose of the Workshop is to discuss items being presented on the 7pm Regular Meeting Agenda and address any questions or concerns and ultimately be able to proceed in a more efficient manner at the Regular Meeting. 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2019-06 An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Revising the Future Land Use Element to add the Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use; and transmitting said Amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for Finding of Compliance; Providing for Severability; Providing for Conflict; and Providing for an Effective Date. First Reading 
	This item will be tabled. 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2019-07 An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida amending the Polk City Land Development Code, amending Article 2, regulations for specific districts, including adding a new Zoning District as Section MU Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; Repealer; Severability; and an Effective Date. First Reading 
	2.04.02.17 

	This item will be tabled. 
	Public Hearing -Ordinance 2019-12 An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Code o Ordinances and the Unified Land Development Code of Polk City, Florida; amending Article 3, Development Design and Improvement Standards, to add a new Section 3.08.00, Water Conservation for Landscape Irrigation, Irrigation System Design and Installation Standards, Efficient Plumbing Requirements; providing for repeal of conflicting Ordinances; providing for severability; providing an effective date, First Re
	Jennifer Coda-Salisbury provided a presentation regarding Florida Water Star Program. SWFWMD staff will be at the Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm to provide a thorough explanation about water conservation and the Florida Water Star Program. 
	Commissioner Blethen shared concerns regarding just receiving this information, stressing the need for the public to be more informed. 
	City Attorney Cloud, City Manager Jackson, Mayor LaCascia and Kathy Delp, Development Services Director provided a detailed explanation on the process of the Florida Water Star Program. 
	Lengthy discussion ensued. 

	Bid Award -Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks -Mt. Olive Estates WTP 
	Bid Award -Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks -Mt. Olive Estates WTP 
	City Manager Jackson discussed the bid award for replacement of the two Hydropneumatic tanks at Mt. Olive Estates V\/TP (Jacobs Water Plant). There were a total of eight bids received. Sealed Bids were received and opened on September 10, 2019. 

	The two low bids are: 
	The two low bids are: 
	-Jan and Jeff Services Inc. -$
	124,934.00 

	-Utility Technicians -$
	127,074.00 

	The lowest bid is from Jan & Jeff Services Inc. in the amount of $; the bids are on file in the City Manager's Office. 
	124,934.00

	Jan & Jeff Services Inc representatives will be present at the 7pm meeting to discuss their experience and address any questions from the Commission. 
	Discussion ensued. 
	Presentation of the Financial Statement for year ending September 30, 2018 Audit -Mike Brynjulfson 
	-

	This item was not discussed. 
	ADJOURNMENT -6:53 pm 
	Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	2 
	CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
	September 16, 2019 
	Mayor Joe LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Pastor Walter Lawlor gave the invocation. Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor LaCascia. ROLL CALL -Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike 
	Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper, City Attorney Thomas Cloud and City Manager Patricia Jackson 
	APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
	Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the Consent Agenda; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 
	PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS-None 
	PUBLIC COMMENT 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	PUBLIC HEARING-ORDINANCE 2019-06 -An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending the Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Revising the Future Land Use Element to add the Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use; and transmitting said Amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for Finding of Compliance; Providing for Severability; Providing for Conflict; and Providing for an Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 
	This item was Tabled. 
	PUBLIC HEARING-ORDINANCE 2019-07 -An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida amending the Polk City Land Development Code, amending Article 2, regulations for specific districts, including adding a new Zoning District as Section MU Mixed Use District; Providing for Applicability; Repealer; Severability; and an Effective Date. Second and Final Reading 
	2.04.02.17 

	This item was Tabled. 
	PUBLIC HEARING -ORDINANCE 2019-12 -Amend the Polk City Code of Ordinances and the Unified Land Development Code of Polk City, Florida, amending Article 3, Development Design and Improvement Standards, to add a new section 3.08.00, Water Conservation for Landscape Irrigation, Irrigation System Design and Installation Standards, and Efficient Plumbing Requirements. First Reading 
	City Attorney Cloud read the Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing; hearing no one speak for or against this Ordinance, Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2019-12 on First Reading; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll. 
	Robin Grantham (SWFWMD) provided an overview of the Florida Water Star Program and addressed any questions or concerns regarding this Ordinance. 
	Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Harper -aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey -aye, Mayor LaCascia -aye, Commissioner Carroll -aye, Commissioner Blethen -aye 
	Motion carried unanimously. 
	Bid Award -Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks -Mt. Olive Estates 
	City Manager Jackson discussed the bid award for replacement of the two Hydropneumatic tanks at Mt. Olive Estates. There were a total of eight bids received. Sealed Bids were received and opened on September 10, 2019. 
	The low bid is from Jan & Jeff Services Inc. in the amount of $; the bids are on file in the City Manager's Office. 
	124,934.00

	Jan & Jeff Services Inc representatives were present to discuss their experience, the replacement process and addressed questions from the Commission. 
	Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the Bid Award for Replacement of Two Hydropneumatic Tanks at Mt. Olive Estates WTP; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper. 
	Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 
	Presentation of the Financial Statement ending September 30, 2018 
	FY 2018 Audit was presented by Mike Brynjulfson (President, Brynjulfson CPA's). Polk City had two (2) findings: #1 -Bank Statement reconciliations were delayed because of the conversion to ADG Software and; #2 -the Audit is late because of Finding #1. However, Polk City is in good financial condition. After a lengthy presentation, Mr. Brynjulfson addressed questions by the Commissioners. 
	2 
	The Commissioners expressed their appreciation to Mr. Brynjulfson and City Staff for their work on the FY 2018 Audit. 
	Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the Presentation of the Financial Statement ending September 30, 2018 by Mike Brynjulfson; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen. 
	Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote. 
	CITY MANAGER ITEMS 
	1) Fence installation at the Pier 
	2) New Locks and key fobs being installed this week 
	3) Budget Hearing -Tuesday, September 24, 2019 -7:00 pm 
	4) Mayors Roundtable -Wednesday, September 25, 2019 
	CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS -None 
	COMMISSIONER ITEMS 
	Vice Mayor Kimsey -Discussed 1) damage to the fence at the Trail; 2) completed the City Manager Evaluation; wants to add lowering water bill as a Goal for City Manager Jackson. 3) City Manager Jackson and Mayor LaCascia are responsible for getting Polk City back on track. 
	Mayor LaCascia responded there is very little we can do with water rates. 
	City Attorney Cloud stated the Bond Covenant won't allow it. 
	Commissioner Blethen -Requested date of the Mayor's Roundtable. 
	Commissioner Carroll -None 
	Commissioner Harper -The Audit Report is a reflection of staff. Thanked everyone for coming. 
	Mayor LaCascia -None 
	ANNOUNCEMENTS -None 
	ADJOURNMENT -8:45 pm 
	Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	3 
	CONSENT AGENDA September 16, 2019 
	MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion, and add it to the regular agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to the subject. 


	A. CITY CLERK 
	A. CITY CLERK 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept minutes -May 28, 2019 -City Commission Workshop 

	2. 
	2. 
	Accept minutes -August 12, 2019 -Special City Commission Meeting 

	3. 
	3. 
	Accept minutes -August 19, 2019 -City Commission Workshop 

	4. 
	4. 
	Accept minutes -August 19, 2019 -City Commission Meeting 

	5. 
	5. 
	Accept minutes -August 20, 2019 -Budget Workshop #1 

	6. 
	6. 
	Accept minutes -September 5, 2019 -Budget Workshop #2 



	B. REPORTS 
	B. REPORTS 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Building Permits Report -August 2019 

	2. 
	2. 
	Financial Report -August 2019 

	3. 
	3. 
	Library Report -August 2019 

	4. 
	4. 
	Polk County Fire Rescue -August 2019 

	5. 
	5. 
	Polk Sheriff's Report -August 2019 

	6. 
	6. 
	Public Works Report -August 2019 

	7. 
	7. 
	Utilities Report -August 2019 


	c. OTHER 
	4 
	CITY COMMISSION MINUTES FINAL BUDGET HEARING 
	September 24, 2019 
	Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
	ROLL CALL -Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn 
	Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Mike Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll, Commissioner Wayne Harper and City Manager Jackson 
	Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud 
	ORDER OF BUSINESS 
	PUBLIC HEARING ORDINANCE 2019-10 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE LEVYING OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR POLK CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading. 
	Mayor LaCascia read Ordinance 2019-10 by title only. 
	City Manager Jackson advised that Polk City's certified value is $. The FY 2019-2020 operating millage rate for Polk City is 6.0000 mills. The rollback rate computed for Polk City for FY 2019-2020 is 6.6487 mills; therefore, the percentage by which the above specified final millage rate to be levied by Polk City is -9.76 percent of the roll back rate. 
	162,781,114.00

	Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve the Ordinance 2019-10; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen. 
	Vote: Mayor LaCascia -aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey -aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, Commissioner Blethen -aye, Commissioner Harper-aye 
	Motion carried 5/0. 
	ORDINANCE 2019-11 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, PROVIDING FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading 
	ORDINANCE 2019-11 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, PROVIDING FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading 
	Mayor LaCascia read Ordinance 2019-11 by title only. 

	City Manager Jackson advised the total budget for FY 2019-2020 is $. Various revenues accruing to Polk City and set aside for the purpose of paying expenses and maintaining the Government of Polk City for FY 2019-2020. 
	6,201,331.00

	Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing. 
	Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve Ordinance 2019-11; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper. 
	Vote: Commissioner Harper -aye, Commissioner Blethen -nay, Commissioner Carroll -aye, Mayor LaCascia -aye, Vice Mayor Kimsey-aye 
	Motion carried 4/1. 
	The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
	Patricia R Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	2 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports 
	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval. 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	Monthly Department Reports for: 
	1. Building Permits Report -September 2019 
	2. Code Enforcement Report -September 2019 
	3. Finance Report -September 2019 
	4. Library Report -September 2019 
	5. Polk County Fire Rescue Report -September 2019 
	6. Polk County Sheriff's Office -September 2019 
	7. Public Works Report -September 2019 
	8. Utilities Report-July/September 2019 
	ANALYSIS: 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda 
	COMMERCIAL 
	COMMERCIAL 
	:e,umtt·t41lfflbet 
	BC.-2019-1276 

	ELECTRICAL 
	ELECTRICAL 
	Pennll :Number 
	BT-2019-12157 BT-2019-12273 
	fENCEWALL 
	fENCEWALL 
	e1!1Di1Numbm: 
	BT-2019-12890 
	.MECHANICAL 
	Pgl!!)ll ~umber BT-2019-12014 BT-2019-12662 BT-2019-12969 


	RE-ROOF 
	RE-ROOF 
	Permit Numbm: 
	BT-'2019-12233 BT-2019-12518 BT-2019-12571 BT-2019-12575 BT-2019-12794 
	RESIDENTIAL 
	RESIDENTIAL 
	Permit H1.1mber 
	BR--2019-7943 BR-2019-8510 BR-2019-8593 BR-2019-8666 -BR-2019-8667 BR-2019-8668 
	Polk City Permits Added From; 09/01/19 To: 0~30/2019 
	Address 
	224 N COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 1246 ORANGE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 545 ORANGE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Addrass 370 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 525 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 338.68 928 LAKESHORE DR, POLK C!TY, FL 33868 126 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 
	·438 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 117 S CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 228 S BOUGAINVILLEA AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 818 SW COMMONWEALTH A.VE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 512 EDGEWATER DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 

	Subtotal: 
	Subtotal: 
	Address 
	213·HONEY·BEE-LN,·POl::K CFFY, ·FL 33868 
	830 TWO POND RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 
	307 BAYBERRY OR; POLK CITY, FL ~3868 
	8739 Conoy AVE, Polk City, FL 33868 -8727-Conoy AVE, Polk· City.FL-33868 8719 Conoy AVE, Polk City, FL 33868 
	Oeclared :va!UI DateAddad 
	09124/2019 
	4,352.00 

	$4,352.00 
	$4,352.00 
	$4,352.00 

	Oecia!ml Vaii:m 2,400.00 1,500.00 
	Oecia!ml Vaii:m 2,400.00 1,500.00 
	Date ·Addg_g 09/09/2019 09/10/2019 


	$3,900.00 
	$3,900.00 
	$3,900.00 

	Dagarad ~all.II 
	Dagarad ~all.II 
	!21tg Add!ffl 

	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	09/24/2019 


	$2,000.00 
	$2,000.00 
	$2,000.00 

	DtH:llilmd ~lu& 6,020.00 5,500.00 9,483.00 
	DtH:llilmd ~lu& 6,020.00 5,500.00 9,483.00 
	Dii!ll&ldld 09/05/2019 09/18/2019 09/26/2019 


	$21,003.00 
	$21,003.00 
	$21,003.00 

	Degared ~all.II 6;400;00 6,000.00 8,490.00 4,500.00 6,000.00 
	Degared ~all.II 6;400;00 6,000.00 8,490.00 4,500.00 6,000.00 
	DateAgded 09/10/281'9 09/16/2019 09/17/2019 09/17/2019 09/22/2019 


	$31,390.00 
	$31,390.00 
	$31,390.00 

	Decla[ld ~IIUI 2,478.24 24,742.68 30,000.00 108,900.00 108,900;80 101,200.00 
	Decla[ld ~IIUI 2,478.24 24,742.68 30,000.00 108,900.00 108,900;80 101,200.00 
	Datg Addad -09,0312019 09/20/2019 09/09/2019 09/23/2019 ·09/26/201-9 09/26/2019 


	Polk City Permill Page 1 of2 10/1/2019 3:06 PM 
	BR-2019-8669 8850 Fox DR, Polk City, FL 33868 09/26/2019 BR-2019-8670 8845 Fox DR, Polk City, FL 33868 09/26/2019 BR-2019-8671 5524 Ottawa ST, Polk City, FL 33868 09/26/2019 BR-2019-8672 ·8805 Fox DR.·Polk City.-FL 33868 09/26/2019 BR-2019-8678 8809 Fox DR. Polk City, FL 33868 09/27/2019 BR-2019-8679 8739 Rindge RD, Polk City, FL 33868 09/27/2019 BR-2019-8680 8764 Rindge RO, Polk City, FL 33868 09/27/2019 
	108,900.00 
	96,800.00 
	96,800.00 
	112,604.00 
	96,800.00 
	111,100.00 
	127,600.00 

	Subtotal: $
	Subtotal: $
	1,126,824.92 

	Grand Total: $
	1,189,469.92 

	Figure
	Polk City Perm11S Page2of2 10/1/2019 3:06 PM 
	tode_'.lmfo,qment Repa~ 
	1] 






	8EPTIMBER ID19 
	8EPTIMBER ID19 
	DATE 9/3/2019 9/4/2019 9/4/2019 9/4/2019 9/5/2019 9/5//2019 9/5/2019 9/5/2019 9/5/2019 9/5/2019 9/10/2019 9/10/2019 9/10/2019 9/10/2019 9/11/2019 9/11/2019 9/12/2019 9/12/2019 9/12/2019 ADDRESS VIOLATION STATUS CITYWIDE SNIPE SIGN 14 121 COMMONWEALTH REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY IN COMPLIANCE C/O REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 213 HONEY BEE LN IN COMPLIANCE C/O 518 CITRUS GROVE REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY IN COMPLIANCE C/O 203 HYDRANGEA AVE REINSPECTED FGUND PROPERTY IN COMPLIANCE C/O REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 0 
	2]
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	PREP FOR SPECIAL MAGISTRATE
	PREP FOR SPECIAL MAGISTRATE
	OFFICE /FIELD

	9/17/2019 
	PAPERWORK 
	COMM CHAMBERS SPECIAL 
	COMM CHAMBERS SPECIAL 
	STARTED AT 4PM

	9/18/2019 
	PRESENTED CASES
	MAGISTRATE 
	MAGISTRATE 
	MAILED FINDING OF FACTS

	OFFICE
	9/19/2019 
	FILED IN CASES 
	RE INSPECTED TO FIND 
	624 CITRUS GROVE
	9/19/2019 
	C/O
	VIOLATIONS CORRECTED REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	710 3RD STREET
	9/19/2019 
	C/O
	IN COMPLIANCEE REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	411 SUNSHINE
	9/19/2019 
	C/O
	IN COMPLIANCE REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	0 2ND STREET
	9/19/2019 
	C/O
	C/O
	IN COMPLIANCE 

	FOUND IN VIOLATION
	FOUND IN VIOLATION
	0 CENTRAL AVE

	9/24/2019 
	LETTER SENT 
	INSPECTED TO FIND 
	550 SUNRISE
	9/24/2019 
	LETTER SENT
	VIOLATIONS REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	212 SUNSHINE
	212 SUNSHINE
	9/24/2019 
	C/O

	IN COMPLIANCE REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	524 ROSEWOOD
	524 ROSEWOOD
	9/25/2019 
	C/O

	IN COMPLIANCE 
	FOUND IN VIOLATION
	144 HONEYBEE
	9/25/2019 
	LETTER SENT 
	REINSPECTED FOUND PROPERTY 
	617 4TH STREET
	9/26/2019 
	9/26/2019 
	C/O

	IN COMPLIANCE 
	FOUND IN VIOLATION
	630 2ND STREET
	9/26/2019 
	LETTER SENT 
	FOUND IN VIOLATION
	718 4TH STREET
	9/26/2019 
	LETTER SENT 
	POLK CITY 
	10/16/201915:03 Page 1 of 1
	Simple Balance Sheet 
	Simple Balance Sheet 
	gb614_pg,php/Job No: 37523 USER: JOANNAK For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 01 
	Account Account Bnding Net Number Title Bal Amount 
	01-101-100 01-101-800 01-101-801 01-101-802 01-101-803 01-101-990 01-102-100 01-115-100 01 -115-110 01 -115-120 01-115-130 01-115-200 01-117-100 01-117-200 01-133-100 01-133-101 01-153-302 01-153-303 01-160-902 01-160 -903 
	01-202-100 01-202-200 01-202-900 01 -208-200 01 -208-300 01-208-310 01-208-320 01-208-330 01-217-200 01-218-050 01-218-1 00 01-218-200 01-218-310 01-218-320 01-21 8-327 01-218-400 01-218-410 
	01-243-100 01-245-100 
	Cash -Checking Cash -GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees Cash -GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees Cash -GF Recreation Impact Fees Cash -GF Gen Gov ' t Facil ities Impact Fees Van Fleet Cycling Challenge Cash on Hand 
	Accounts Receivable -Utilities Accounts Receivabl e -NSF Accounts Receivable -Local Bus License s Accounts Receivable -Readiness to Serve 
	Accounts Receivable -Year End Allowance for Bad Debt Allowance for Uncollectible A/R Due From Ot her Governmental Units Due from Ot hers (Franchise & Public Serv. Tax) Restricted Cash -New Local Opt Gas Tax Restricted Cash -Building and Codes 
	Reserve Account Reserve Acct -Emergencies & Contingency 
	** TOTAL ASSET** 
	Accounts Payable Accounts Payabl e -Year End Customer Deposits Due to BCAIB -Builder ' s Surcharge Due to County -Impact Fees Due to DCA -Bldg Permit Surcharge 
	Due to Dept of Business -License Fees Due to PCSO -Police Education Revenue 
	Accrued Sales Tax Payroll Liabilities Payroll Taxes Payabl e FRS Retireme nt Payable Long Term Disability Payable Supplemental Insurance Payable CHL-Child Support Dental Plan Payable Vision Plan Payable ** TOTAL LIABILITY** 
	Encumbrances Placed Reserved for Encumbrances 
	** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 
	Fund Balance Unreserved ** TOTAL EQUITY** 
	** TOTAL REVENUE** 
	** TOTAL EXPENSE** 
	TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 
	1,872, 12 8. 13 
	1,872, 12 8. 13 
	1,872, 12 8. 13 

	141,088.10 
	141,088.10 

	96,585.57 
	96,585.57 

	289,164.32 
	289,164.32 

	257,361.01 
	257,361.01 

	859.09 
	859.09 

	575.00 
	575.00 

	4,296.54 
	4,296.54 

	50 . 00
	50 . 00
	-


	7,100.00 
	7,100.00 

	2,476.98 
	2,476.98 

	93,927.42
	93,927.42
	-


	8,857.17
	8,857.17
	-


	2,476.98
	2,476.98
	-


	86,142 . 26 
	86,142 . 26 

	7,282 . 75 
	7,282 . 75 

	107,204.34 
	107,204.34 

	160,917.77 
	160,917.77 

	177,764.59 
	177,764.59 

	62,924.00 
	62,924.00 

	TR
	3, 1 68,558.88 

	37,762.73 
	37,762.73 

	24,155.56 
	24,155.56 

	3,685.00 
	3,685.00 

	6.00 
	6.00 

	1,955.92
	1,955.92
	-


	269.12 
	269.12 

	149.13 
	149.13 

	331.91 
	331.91 

	234.84 
	234.84 

	87.80 
	87.80 

	7,429.95 
	7,429.95 

	193.97
	193.97
	-


	964.00 
	964.00 

	1,137.54 
	1,137.54 

	242.78
	242.78
	-


	99.05
	99.05
	-


	425.96 
	425.96 

	TR
	74,147.82 

	1,244.97 
	1,244.97 

	1,244.97
	1,244.97
	-


	TR
	0.00 

	2,673,170.62 
	2,673,170.62 

	TR
	2,673,170.62 

	TR
	2 ,486,935.02 

	TR
	2,065,694.58 

	TR
	3,168,558.88 


	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 1 of11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	201 8 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PERCBNTAGB ACCOOlff DBSCRJ:PTJ:0111 PRIOR YR RBVBNllB ANTICIPATBD RIIVBNOB AlllTICIPATBD CORRBHT RBVBNUB YTD RKVElll'DB (EXCESS)/DBPICIT RBALIHD 
	01-311-100 
	01-311-100 
	01-311-100 
	Ad Valorem Taxes 
	617,443.06 
	735,076.00 
	735,076.00 
	1,907.53 
	781,024.71 
	(45,948.71) 
	106.25 % 

	01-312-300 
	01-312-300 
	9th Cent Gas Tax 
	14,594.37 
	14,500.00 
	14,500.00 
	1,270.28 
	12,665.43 
	1,834.57 
	87.35 % 

	01-312-400 
	01-312-400 
	Local Option Gas Tax 
	81,004.82 
	82,534.00 
	82,534.00 
	7,075.14 
	77,400.61 
	5,133.39 
	93.78 % 

	01-312-410 
	01-312-410 
	New 
	Local 
	Option Gas Tax 
	50,528 . 73 
	50,775.00 
	50,775.00 
	4,281.79 
	48,978.34 
	1,796.66 
	96. 46 
	% 

	01-314-100 
	01-314-100 
	Electric 
	-Utility Tax 
	102,386.61 
	86,200.00 
	86,200.00 
	11,409.23 
	106,894.82 
	(20,694.82) 
	124.01 % 

	01-314-300 
	01-314-300 
	Water 
	-Utility Tax 
	57,257.65 
	54,630.00 
	54,630.00 
	5,257.48 
	60,840.89 
	(6,210.89) 
	111. 37 
	% 

	01-314-301 
	01-314-301 
	Water 
	-Utility Tax 
	-Readiness 
	to 
	Se 
	0.00 
	200.00 
	20·0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	200.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-314-400 
	01-314-400 
	Gas 
	-Utility Tax 
	5,226.08 
	4,100.00 
	4,100.00 
	532.68 
	7,298.99 
	(3,198.99) 
	178.02 % 

	01-315-100 
	01-315-100 
	Communications 
	Services Tax 
	208,573.77 
	206,035.00 
	206,035.00 
	16,715.25 
	197,818.33 
	8,216.67 
	96.01 % 

	01-316-100 
	01-316-100 
	Local 
	Business Licenses 
	4,935.10 
	7,800.00 
	7,800.00 
	4,510.00 
	7,424.00 
	376.00 
	95.18 % 

	01-316-102 
	01-316-102 
	County Business Tax 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	o.oo 
	23 7. 94 
	879.38 
	(879.38) 
	0.00 % 

	01-322-100 
	01-322-100 
	Building Permits 
	175,413.07 
	100,000.00 
	100,000.00 
	1,025.85 
	39,808.62 
	60,191.38 
	39.81 % 

	01-322-101 
	01-322-101 
	Bldg Permit 
	-Plan Checking 
	102,905.22 
	47,747.00 
	47,747.00 
	314.00 
	19,077.94 
	28,669.06 
	39.96 % 

	01-322-102 
	01-322-102 
	Bldg Permit 
	-Admin Fee 
	5,078.00 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	280.00 
	5,120.00 
	(3,120.00) 
	256.00 % 

	01-322-103 
	01-322-103 
	Bldg 
	Permit 
	-Electrical 
	16,770.00 
	12,000.00 
	12,000.00 
	125.00 
	8,895.00 
	3,105.00 
	74 .13 
	% 

	01-322-104 
	01-322-104 
	Bldg 
	Permit 
	-Plumbing 
	14,7&8.00 
	12,000.00 
	12,000.00 
	0.00 
	7,900.00 
	4,100.00 
	65.83 % 

	01-322-105 
	01-322-105 
	Bldg Permit 
	-Mechanical 
	14,900.00 
	12,000.00 
	12,000.00 
	125.00 
	8,725.00 
	3,275.00 
	72.71 % 

	01-322-107 
	01-322-107 
	Bldg Permit 
	-Cert of Occ:ipancy 
	3,185.00 
	390.00 
	390.00 
	450.00 
	3,450.00 
	(3,060.00) 
	884.52 % 

	01-322-108 
	01-322-108 
	Bldg Permit 
	-Inspections 
	139,603.65 
	150,000.00 
	150,000.00 
	14,266.00 
	137,495.65 
	12,504.35 
	91. 66 
	% 

	01-322-109 
	01-322-109 
	Bldg 
	Permit 
	-Demolition 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	57.50 
	(57.50) 
	0.00 % 

	01-323-100 
	01-323-100 
	Electric 
	68,314.25 
	58,, 732. 00 
	58,732.00 
	0.00 
	57,293.26 
	1,438.74 
	97.55 % 

	01-323-300 
	01-323-300 
	Solid Waste 
	30,157.38 
	31,050.00 
	31,050.00 
	2,250.00 
	31,377.76 
	(327.76) 
	101. 06 
	% 

	01-324-100 
	01-324-100 
	Police 
	-Public Safety Impact 
	Fee 
	62,564.03 
	66,434.00 
	66,434 . 00 
	0.00 
	27,089.58 
	39,344.42 
	40.78 % 

	01-324-110 
	01-324-110 
	Fire/Rescue 
	-Public Safety Impact 
	Fe 
	33,475.67 
	35,546.00 
	35,546 . 00 
	0.00 
	14,494.62 
	21,051.38 
	40.78 % 

	01-324-310 
	01-324-310 
	Transportation Impact 
	Fee 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	(995 . 10) 
	995.10 
	0.00 % 

	01-324-610 
	01-324-610 
	Parks 
	& Recreation 
	Impact 
	Fee 
	100,895.52 
	107,136.00 
	107,136.00 
	0.00 
	42,646 . 56 
	64,489.44 
	39.81 % 

	01-324-710 
	01-324-710 
	Public 
	Facilities 
	Impact 
	Fee 
	169,556.97 
	180,045.00 
	180,045.00 
	0.00 
	73,416.42 
	106,628.58 
	40.78 % 

	01-329-220 
	01-329-220 
	Site Plan Reviews 
	1,600.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,550.00 
	10,835.00 
	(10,835.00) 
	0.00 % 

	Ol-331-400 
	Ol-331-400 
	FEMA Federal Reimb. 
	-Irma 2017 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	60,999.44 
	(60,999.44) 
	0.00 % 

	Ol-331-510 
	Ol-331-510 
	CDBG 
	15,860 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	Ol-334-201 
	Ol-334-201 
	Justice Assistance Grant 
	(JAG) 
	0.00 
	5,113.00 
	5,113 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	5,113.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-334-400 
	01-334-400 
	FEMA 
	State Reimb. 
	-Irma 
	2017 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,250.00 
	(1,250.00) 
	0.00 % 

	01-334-910 
	01-334-910 
	DEO 
	GRANT 
	61,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	0.00 
	30,000.00 
	(5,000.00) 
	120 .00 
	% 

	01-335-120 
	01-335-120 
	MRS 
	-State Sales Tax 
	57,403.00 
	57,580.00 
	57,580.00 
	4,893.36 
	58,081.06 
	(501.06) 
	100.87 % 

	01-335-122 
	01-335-122 
	SRS 
	-8th Cent. 
	Motor 
	Fuel Tax 
	17,888.27 
	17,260.00 
	17,260.00 
	1,432.27 
	17,725.70 
	(465.70) 
	102.70 % 

	01-335-123 
	01-335-123 
	MRS 
	-Municipal 
	Fuel Tax 
	16.21 
	8.00 
	8 . 00 
	0.62 
	51. 70 
	(43. 70) 
	646.25 % 

	01-335-140 
	01-335-140 
	Mobile Home 
	License 
	5,485.35 
	4,800.00 
	4,800.00 
	119. 25 
	5,455.30 
	(655.30) 
	113. 65 
	% 

	01-335-150 
	01-335-150 
	Alcoholic Beverage License 
	1,125.71 
	1,125.00 
	1,125.00 
	0.00 
	1,125.71 
	(0. 71) 
	100.06 % 

	01-335-180 
	01-335-180 
	Half-Cent Sales Tax 
	107,782.73 
	114,645.00 
	114,645.00 
	9,575.78 
	110,993.08 
	3,651.92 
	96 . 81 % 


	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POL.KCITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 2 of11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	GENERAL. FUND REVENUES 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 
	G/L 
	G/L 
	2018 
	2019 
	ADJ 
	2019 
	2019 
	2019 
	PBRCBNTAGB 

	ACCO'CHT 
	ACCO'CHT 
	DBSCRIPTIOll 
	PRIOR YR RBVBHtJ'B 
	AlilTICIPATBD RBVBNlJB 
	AH'l'l:CIPATBD 
	CURRBIIT RKVERUB 
	YTD 1lBVBNtJB 
	(BXCBSS)/DBPICIT 
	RBALIZBD 

	01-337-100 
	01-337-100 
	Library Coop Funding 
	31,990.11 
	31,990.00 
	31,990.00 
	0.00 
	33,876.08 
	(1,886.08) 
	105.90 % 

	01-340-400 
	01-340-400 
	solid waste 
	280,018.50 
	281,000.00 
	281,000.00 
	25,937.83 
	277,919.64 
	3,080.36 
	98.90 % 

	01-340-700 
	01-340-700 
	Stormwater Utility Fees 
	23,879.67 
	24,922.00 
	24,922.00 
	2 ,757 .41 
	28 ,822.26 
	(3,900.26) 
	115.65 % 

	01-340-900 
	01-340-900 
	Notary Fees 
	25.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	25.00 
	175.00 
	(175.00) 
	0.00 % 

	01-344-900 
	01-344-900 
	FOOT Maintenance Agreement 
	16,303.82 
	16,303.00 
	16,303.00 
	4,075.96 
	16,303 .82 
	(0.82) 
	100.01 % 

	01-347-100 
	01-347-100 
	Library Income 
	8,394.78 
	6,000.00 
	6,000.00 
	444.80 
	7, 209 .99 
	(1,209.99) 
	120.17 % 

	01-351-200 
	01-351-200 
	Fines, 
	Penalties, 
	and Forfeitures 
	7,305.73 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	871.16 
	10,109.86 
	(8,109.86) 
	505.49 % 

	01-359-100 
	01-359-100 
	Other Fines and/or Forfeitures 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	902.50 
	(902.50) 
	0.00 % 

	01-359-300 
	01-359-300 
	Late Fees 
	466.75 
	200.00 
	200.00 
	21.00 
	266.50 
	(66.50) 
	133 .25 % 

	01-361-100 
	01-361-100 
	Interest 
	Income 
	390.85 
	200.00 
	200.00 
	0.24 
	983.45 
	(783 .45) 
	491. 73 
	% 

	01-362 -100 Activity Center Rentals 
	01-362 -100 Activity Center Rentals 
	2,300.00 
	1,500.00 
	1,500 .00 
	100.00 
	3,150 . 00 
	(1,650.00) 
	210.00 % 

	01-362-200 
	01-362-200 
	Donald Bronson Community Center Renta 
	4,000.00 
	2,500.00 
	2 ,500.00 
	600.00 
	8,450.00 
	(5,950.00) 
	338.00 % 

	01-365-100 
	01-365-100 
	Sales of Surplus Property 
	3,586.39 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0 . 00 
	1.36.10 
	363.90 
	27.22 % 

	01-366-100 
	01-366-100 
	Private Donations 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	740.00 
	(740.00) 
	0.00 % 

	01-366 -101 Private 
	01-366 -101 Private 
	Donations 
	-Christmas 
	1,800.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000 .00 
	0.00 
	2,000.00 
	(1,000.00) 
	200.00 % 

	01-366-102 
	01-366-102 
	Private 
	Donations 
	-Halloween 
	1,450.00 
	200.00 
	200.00 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	(800. 00) 
	500.00 
	'< 

	01-366-104 
	01-366-104 
	Private Donations 
	-Music 
	Festival 
	0.00 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	500 .00 
	0.00 
	%
	-


	Ol-3E5-110 
	Ol-3E5-110 
	Private Donations 
	-Library 
	8~6.00 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0. 00 
	7,H.5.00 
	(6 ,645 .00} 
	1429.00 % 

	01-369-100 
	01-369-100 
	Misc. 
	Income 
	5,549.12 
	300.00 
	300.00 
	0.00 
	116. 20 
	183 .80 
	38.73 % 

	01-369-101 
	01-369-101 
	Misc 
	Income 
	-Copies and Faxes 
	53.50 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1. 00 
	105 .00 
	(lOS.00) 
	0.00 % 

	01-369-102 
	01-369-102 
	Misc 
	Income 
	-Collection Allowance 
	17,854.83 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	38.83 
	8, 0·78 . 94 
	(3,078.94) 
	161. 58 
	% 

	01-369-120 
	01-369-120 
	Misc 
	Income 
	-Christmas 
	160.00 
	100.00 
	100.00 
	0.00 
	180.00 
	(80. 00) 
	180 .00 
	'< 

	01-369-130 
	01-369-130 
	Misc 
	Income 
	-Halloween 
	140.00 
	100.00 
	100.00 
	60.00 
	320 .00 
	(220.00) 
	320.00 % 

	01-369-400 
	01-369-400 
	Insurance 
	Proceeds 
	4,451.63 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2,214.91 
	(2,214.91} 
	0.00 % 

	01-369-401 
	01-369-401 
	Insurance 
	-Claims 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2,265.16 
	(2 ,265.16} 
	0.00 % 

	01-369-500 
	01-369-500 
	Refund of State Gas Tax 
	489.56 
	200.00 
	200 .00 
	110 .28 
	869.31 
	(669 .31) 
	434.66 % 

	01-381-400 
	01-381-400 
	Transfer From Enterprise Fund 
	183 ,591.50 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	25 ,000 . 00 
	0.00 % 

	01-381-900 
	01-381-900 
	Cash Carry Forward 
	0.00 
	100,000.00 
	100,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	100,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-387 -100 Loan 
	01-387 -100 Loan 
	Proceeds 
	1,400,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-


	DEPARTMENT TOTALS 
	DEPARTMENT TOTALS 
	4,342,755.96 
	2,782,476.00 
	2,782,476 . 00 
	124,647 .96 
	2,486,935.02 
	295,540.98 
	89.38 % 


	POLK CITY
	POLK CITY
	10/16/2019 15:05 Page 3 of 11 


	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 USER: JOANNAK Gen!lral Fund Expenditures 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 201.9 2019 PBRCBNTAGE ACCO'IJllT DBSCRJ:P'l'IOH ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGET ADJ BUDGBT 1ITD BXPIDISBS YTD BXPEIISBS AVAJ:L BIJDGBT RBALIZBD 
	LEGISLATIVE 
	01-511-120 Regular Salary -Wages -Legislative 900.00 () 145.22 % 01-511-160 Bonuses and Gift Certificates -Legis 0.00 334.35 86. 63 % 01-511-210 Fica Taxes -Legislative 579.92 68.87 767.21 252.79 75.22 t 01-511-240 Worker's Compensation -Legislative 15.20 16.00 16.00 0.00 11. 00 5.00 68.75 % 01-511-400 Travel and Training -Legislative 0.00 465.70 91. 53 % 01-511-470 Printing and Reproduction -Legislati 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 54.69 445.31 10.94 % 01-511-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Legisl 0.00 0.00 0.0
	5,415.00 
	5,415.00 
	5,415.00 
	7,863.60 
	2,448.60
	2,165.66 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,165.65 
	1,020.00 
	1,020.00 
	2,305.49 
	5,500.00 
	5,500.00 
	5,034.30 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,350.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	2,041.00 
	6,000.00 
	6,000.00 
	3,670.00 
	2,330.00 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 77.15 % 
	12,693.55 
	26,851.00 
	26,851.00 
	1,491.99 
	20,716.07 
	6,134.93 

	EXECUTIVE 
	01-512-120 Regular Salary -Wages -Executive 128,486 . 14 98 . 25 % 01-512-130 Other Salaries an~ Wages -Executive 369.24 (0.121 100.00 % 01-512-140 overtime -Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 71.80 71.80 (71. 80) 0 . 00 % 01-512-160 Bonuses and Gift Certificates -Execu 0.00 92.56 % 01-512-210 Fica Taxes -Executive 864.02 83.90 % 01-512-220 Retirement Contribution -Executive (292.26) 101.16 % 01-512-230 Life & Health Insurance -Executive 598.06 96. 77 % 01-512-240 Worker's Compensation -Executive 233.41 315.00 315.00
	136,760.00 
	136,760.00 
	11,022.14 
	134,370.03 
	2,389.97 
	4,707.81 
	4,800.00 
	4,800.00 
	4,800.12 
	15,538.72 
	22,750.00 
	22,750.00 
	21,056.34 
	1,693.66 
	11,092.93 
	14,600.00 
	14,600.00 
	12,249.92 
	2,350.08 
	22,476.63 
	25,100.00 
	25,100.00 
	2,129.71 
	25,392.26 
	16,930.03 
	18,489.00 
	18,483.00 
	1,588.42 
	17,890.94 
	1,983.13 
	3,500.00 
	3,500.00 
	4,132.50 
	1,278.40 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,780.48 
	1,534.19 
	1,034.19
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	1,110.67 
	2,719.97 

	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page4of 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 2018 201.9 201.9 201.9 201.9 201.9 I PERCENTAGE ACCOtJNT DBSCRIPTIOR' ACTUALS ADOPTED BtlI>GBT ADJ BUDGBT MTD BXPBMSBS YTD BXPBlllSBS AVAIL BtlDGBT RBALIZBD 
	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 96.71 % 
	208,801.96 
	234,194.00 
	234,194.00 
	16,369.93 
	226,495.53 
	7,698.47 

	CITY CLERK 
	01-513-310 Professional Services -City Clerk 373.00 1 ,000.00 0.00 120.00 880.00 12.00 % 01-513 -400 Travel and Training -City Clerk 0.00 532.90 82.24 %01 -513-460 Repairs and Maintenance -City Cl erk 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 (160.00) 0.00 % 01-513-470 Printing and Reproduction -City Cler 1 ,021.69 414.25 89.64 % 01-513-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -City C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %01-513-490 Other current Charges -City Clerk 0.00 () 505.33 % 01-513-492 Recording & Other Fees -City Clerk 0.00 0.0
	1,000.00 
	1,333.50 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	2,467.10 
	-
	1,583.90 
	4,000.00 
	4,000.00 
	3,585.75 
	1,210.16 
	-
	1,880.80 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	7,580.01 
	6,080.01
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL (121. 72 %
	6,863.36 
	13,000.00 
	13,000.00 
	1,85~.23 
	15,823.85 
	2,823.85 ) 
	-

	LEGAL COUNSEL 
	01-514-310 Professional Services -Legal Counsel 4 , 512.59 42,992 . 10 17,007 . 90 71. 65 % 01-514 -480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Legal 573.37 () 179.83 % 
	42,952.86 
	60,000.00 
	60,000.00 
	8,588.77 
	7,500.00 
	7,500.00 
	13,487.56 
	5,987.56

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 51 ,541.63 5 , 085.96 11 , 020.34 83.67 % 
	67,500.00 
	67,500.00 
	56,479.66 

	COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING 
	01-515-310 Professional Services -Comp Planning 0.00 () 139.20 % 01-515-312 Professional Services-Other-Comp Pla 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 % 01-515-320 DEO -Grants 0.00 0.00 () 120.00 % 
	80,500.00 
	22,000.00 
	22,000.00 
	30,625.00 
	8,625.00
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	30,000.00 
	5,000.00

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 0.00 () 127.25 % 
	80,500.00 
	50,000.00 
	50,000.00 
	63,625.00 
	13,625.00

	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 5of 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 2018 20!1.9 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PERCBHTAGB ACCOOlllT DBSCRIP1'IOR ACTUALS MX>PTBD BODGBT ADJ BUDGBT lf'l'D BXPEJIISBS Y'I'D BXPBHSBS AVAIL B'DDGBT RBALIZBD 
	FINANCE AND 
	FINANCE AND 
	FINANCE AND 
	ACCOUNTING 

	01-516-120 
	01-516-120 
	Regular Salary 
	-Wages 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	66,123.78 
	78,915.00 
	78,915.00 
	5,823.40 
	73,151.16 
	5,763.84 
	92. 70 
	% 

	01-516-140 
	01-516-140 
	Overtime 
	-Fin & Acctng 
	0.00 
	495.00 
	495.00 
	246.23 
	246.23 
	248.77 
	49.74 % 

	01-516-210 
	01-516-210 
	Fica Taxes 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	4,642.87 
	6,075.00 
	6,075.00 
	434.42 
	5,329.03 
	745.97 
	87. 72 
	% 

	01 -516-220 
	01 -516-220 
	Retirement 
	Contribution 
	-Fin 
	& 
	Acctn 
	5,173.42 
	6,559.00 
	6,559.00 
	514.10 
	6,216.66 
	342.34 
	94.78 % 

	01-516-230 
	01-516-230 
	Life & Health Insurance 
	-Fin & Acctn 
	8,615.29 
	18,201.00 
	18,201.00 
	1,564.44 
	18,332.84 
	(131. 84) 
	100.72 % 

	01-516-240 
	01-516-240 
	Worker's Compensation 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	122.40 
	183.00 
	183 . 00 
	0.00 
	124.00 
	59.00 
	67.76 
	\
	-


	01-516-310 
	01-516-310 
	Professional Services 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 
	1 ,500.00 
	(1,500.00) 
	0.00 
	\
	-


	01-516-400 
	01-516-400 
	Travel and Training 
	-Fin & Acctng 
	44.19 
	3,000.00 
	3,000 . 00 
	0.00 
	2,003 . 39 
	996 . 61 
	66.78 % 

	01-516-410 
	01-516-410 
	Communication Services 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	66.14 
	586. 72 
	(586. 72) 
	0.00 % 

	01-516-420 
	01-516-420 
	Education Reimbursement 
	-Fin 
	& Acctn 
	3,500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-516-470 
	01-516-470 
	Printing and Reproduction 
	-Fin & Ace 
	237.46 
	700.00 
	700.00 
	0.00 
	320.61 
	379.39 
	45.80 % 

	01-516-510 
	01-516-510 
	Office Supplies 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	742. 71 
	1,400.00 
	1,400.00 
	16.48 
	731. 34 
	668.66 
	52. 24 
	% 

	01-516-520 
	01-516-520 
	Operating Supplies 
	-Fin 
	& Acctng 
	180. 92 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	0.00 
	2,947.21 
	(447.21) 
	117.89 % 

	01-516-540 
	01-516-540 
	Books, 
	Pub., 
	Sub., 
	& Memberships 
	-Fi 
	35.00 
	250.00 
	250.00 
	0.00 
	463.74 
	(213.74) 
	185.50 % 

	01-516-640 
	01-516-640 
	Machinery & Equipment 
	-Fin 
	& A==tng 
	1,099.99 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-


	DEPARTMENT 
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	90,518.03 
	118,278.00 
	118,278.00 
	8,665.21 
	111,952.93 
	6,325.07 
	94.65 % 

	DEBT 
	DEBT 
	SERVICE 

	01-517-710 
	01-517-710 
	Principal 
	-CB&T 
	Debt Service Pmts 
	46,613.43 
	74,088.00 
	74,088.00 
	6,221 . 18 
	74 , 323.84 
	(235.84) 
	100.32 
	\
	-


	01-517-711 Principal 
	01-517-711 Principal 
	-USDA 
	Pay Off 
	1,371,789.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	O.OG 
	% 

	01-517-720 
	01-517-720 
	Interest 
	-CB&T 
	Debt 
	Service Pmts 
	33,260.25 
	45,722.00 
	45,722.00 
	3,763.03 
	45,486.61 
	235.39 
	99.49 % 

	01-517-721 
	01-517-721 
	Interest 
	-USDA 
	Pay Off 
	17,231.56 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-517-730 
	01-517-730 
	Other Debt 
	Service Costs 
	10,979.44 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0. 00 
	%
	-


	DEPARTMENT 
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	1,479,873.68 
	119,810.00 
	119,810.00 
	9,984.21 
	119,810.45 
	(0.45) 
	100.00 % 

	LAW 
	LAW 
	ENFORCEMENT 

	01-521-305 
	01-521-305 
	Contract Labor 
	-Law 
	Enf 
	97,363.00 
	99,310.00 
	99,310.00 
	0.00 
	99,374.00 
	(64.00) 
	100.06 
	\ 

	01-521-310 
	01-521-310 
	Professional Services 
	-Law Enf 
	0.00 
	28,288.00 
	28,288.00 
	2,840.00 
	27,920.00 
	368.00 
	98.70 
	%
	-



	POLK CITY 
	10/16/2019 15:05 Page &of 11 

	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 USER: JOANNAK General Fund Expenditures 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 
	G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 
	2019 1 2019 1PBRCBNTAGB ACCOUNT DBSCRI PTIO!I ACTUALS AllOPTBI) BllDGBT ADJ BUOOBT KTD BXPBNSBS Y'1'I) BXPBNSBS _ A'YllIL BUDGET . REALJ:ZBD 
	01-521-460 Repairs and Maintenance 
	01-521-460 Repairs and Maintenance 
	01-521-460 Repairs and Maintenance 
	-Law Enf 
	598.95 
	300.00 
	300.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	300.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-521-510 
	01-521-510 
	Office Supplies 
	-Law 
	Enf 
	168.00 
	100.00 
	100.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	100.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-521-520 
	01-521-520 
	Operating Supplies 
	-Law 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	100.00 
	100.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	100.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-521-649 
	01-521-649 
	Machinery 
	& Equip 
	-JAG Grant 
	-Law 
	E 
	0.00 
	5,113.00 
	5,113.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	5,113.00 
	0.00 % 

	DEPARTMENT 
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	98,129.95 
	133,211.00 
	133,211.00 
	2,840.00 
	127,294.00 
	5,917.00 
	95.56 
	\ 

	BUILDING AND 
	BUILDING AND 
	ZONING 

	01 -524-120 
	01 -524-120 
	Regular Salary 
	-Wages 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zonin 
	46,975 . 41 
	82,243.00 
	82,243.00 
	6,548.62 
	80,223.95 
	2,019.05 
	97.55 
	\
	-


	01-524-140 
	01-524-140 
	Overtime 
	-Bldg 
	& Zoning 
	0.00 
	433.00 
	433.00 
	16.57 
	384.86 
	48.14 
	88.88 
	\ 

	01-524-210 
	01-524-210 
	Fica Taxes 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	3,419.14 
	6,325.00 
	6,325.00 
	488.64 
	6,060.85 
	264.15 
	95.82 
	\ 

	01-524-220 
	01-524-220 
	Retirement 
	Contribution 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoni 
	3,679.53 
	4,312.00 
	4,312.00 
	556.08 
	6,780.09 
	(2,468.09) 
	157.24 % 

	01-524-230 
	01-524-230 
	Life & Health Insurance 
	-Bldg & Zoni 
	8,415.06 
	18, ,: 44.00 
	18,244.00 
	1,568.05 
	17,615.24 
	628.76 
	96. S5 
	% 

	01-524-240 
	01-524-240 
	Worker's 
	Compensation 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	1,121.16 
	1,266.00 
	1,266.00 
	0.00 
	912. 00 
	354.00 
	72. 04 
	\
	-


	01-524-31~ 
	01-524-31~ 
	Professional Services 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	171,387.15 
	150,000.00 
	150,0~0.00 
	15,694.02 
	154,070.83 
	(4,070.83) 
	102. 71 
	\ 

	01-524-311 
	01-524-311 
	Engineering Services 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	440.15 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	\ 

	01-524-400 
	01-524-400 
	Travel and Training 
	-Bldg 
	& Zoning 
	0.00 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	500.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-524-410 
	01-524-410 
	Communication Services 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zanin 
	46.45 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-524 -510 
	01-524 -510 
	Office Supplies 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	229. 29 
	400.00 
	400.00 
	10.01 
	299.84 
	100.16 
	74 . 96 % 

	01-524-520 
	01-524-520 
	Operating Supplies 
	-Bldg 
	& 
	Zoning 
	417.04 
	350.00 
	350.00 
	0.00 
	1,888.16 
	(1,538.16) 
	539.47 % 

	01-524-540 
	01-524-540 
	Books, 
	Pub., 
	Sub., 
	& 
	Memberships 
	-Bl 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	29.98 
	226.68 
	(226.68) 
	0.00 % 

	01-524-640 
	01-524-640 
	Machinery & Equipment 
	-Bldg & Zoning 
	2,499.99 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-


	DEPARTMENT 
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	238,630.37 
	265,073.00 
	265,073.00 
	24,911.97 
	268,462.50 
	(3,389.50) 
	101. 28 
	% 

	TR
	=---============== ==--============== ================== ====;:============ =====--======-====~= ====--.---------. --------= 
	-
	-
	-


	CODE 
	CODE 
	ENFORCEMENT 

	01-529-120 
	01-529-120 
	Regular Salary 
	-Wages 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	22,824.00 
	22,824.00 
	1,881.00 
	20,938.50 
	1,885.50 
	91. 74 
	% 

	01-529-210 
	01-529-210 
	Fica Taxes 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	1,746.00 
	1,746.00 
	140.03 
	1,563.19 
	182.81 
	89.53 % 

	01-529-220 
	01-529-220 
	Retirement Contribution 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	1,885.00 
	1,885.00 
	159.32 
	1,742.87 
	142.13 
	92. 46 
	%
	-


	01-529-230 
	01-529-230 
	Life 
	& Health Insurance 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	243.00 
	243.00 
	.7 58. 02 
	6,695.86 
	(6,452.86) 
	2755.50 
	\ 

	01-529-240 
	01-529-240 
	Worker's 
	Compensation 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	523.00 
	523.00 
	0.00 
	372. 00 
	151. 00 
	71.13 % 

	01-529-310 
	01-529-310 
	Professional Services 
	-Code Enf 
	0.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	500.00 
	4,000.00 
	(1,500 . 00) 
	160.00 % 

	01-529-400 
	01-529-400 
	Travel and Training 
	-Code 
	Enf 
	0.00 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0.00 
	1,030.86 
	(530.86) 
	206.17 
	%
	-



	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 7 of 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBNTAGB ACCOmlT I>BSCRIP'l'IOII ACTUALS ADOPTBD BllI>GBT ADJ BUOOBT MTD BXPBlfSBS YTI> DPBNSBS AVAIL BUI>QBT RBALIZBI> 
	01-529-410 Communication Services -Code Enf 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.14 558. 72 (558.72) 0.00 % 01-529-464 Vehicle Fuel -Code Enf 0.00 400.00 400. 00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 % 01-529-470 Printing and Reproduction -Code Enf 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 330.69 169.31 66 .14 % 01-529-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Code E 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 % 01-529-492 Recording & other Fees 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 % 01-529-510 Office Supplies -Code Enf 0.00 600.00 600.00 1.49 167.44 432.56 27.91 \ 
	1,611.39 
	1,211.39

	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------·-------------------
	-

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 0.00 () 119.96 % 
	32,521.00 
	32,521.00 
	3,496.00 
	39,011.52 
	6,490.52

	REFUSE/SANITATION 
	01-534 -341 Refuse Disposal -Residential -Refus 147,475 .32 93. 38 \ 01-534 -342 Refuse Disposal -Commercial -Refuse 0.00 (5 ,224.63) 106.50 % 
	148,777.00 
	157,930.00 
	157,930.00 
	13,961.58 
	10,454.68 
	72,039.20 
	80,440.00 
	80,440.00 
	85,604.63 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 5, 2~0. 05 97.81 % 
	220,816.2C 
	238,370.00 
	238,370.00 
	13,961.58 
	233,139.95 

	STORMWATER 
	01-538-310 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -STORMWATER 0.00 3 , 000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 01-538-315 Inmate Labor -Stormwater 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 01-538-400 Travel and Training -Storrnwater 0.00 812.28 40 .61 % 01-538 -460 Rep~irs and Maintenance -Stormwater 0.00 0.00 14 , 000.00 0.00 % 01-538-492 Recording & Other Fees -Stormwater 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 400.00 20.00 \ 01-538-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships -St 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 (500.00) 200.00 % 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	5,749.68 
	1,377.41 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	1,187.72 
	16,627.51 
	14,000.00 
	14,000.00 
	1,000.00 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 0.00 9.56 \ 
	24,254.60 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	1,912.28 
	18,087.72 

	GENERAL GOV'T BUILDINGS 
	01-539-310 Professional Services -Gen Gov't Bld 706.00 81. 97 \ 
	23,669.74 
	22,000.00 
	22,000.00 
	18,033.01 
	3,966.99 

	01-539-312 Professional Services -Other -Gen G 330 . 00 308.34 36 .14 \ 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	1,807.00 
	3,193.00 

	01-539-315 Inmate Labor -Gen Gov't Bldgs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 \ 
	5,749.68 

	10/16/201915:05 gb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 201,9 MONtHL Y FINANCIALS 
	Page Bof 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 %Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBNTAGB ACCOtJNT DBSCRJ:PTJ:OR ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGET ADJ BUDGET KTD BXPBHSBB YTl> BXPDSBS AVAJ:L BODGBT RBALJ:ZBD 
	01-539-411 
	01-539-411 
	01-539-411 
	City Hall 
	-Communication 
	-Gen Gov't 
	12,085.93 
	15,500.00 
	15,500.00 
	1,121.21 
	13,566.49 
	1,933.51 
	87.53 % 

	01-539-413 
	01-539-413 
	Public Works 
	-Communication 
	-Gen Go 
	1,400 . 11 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	170.35 
	1,866.91 
	(1,068.39) 
	93.35 % 

	01-539-414 
	01-539-414 
	Community Center-Communication-Gen Go 
	1,519.15 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	143. 29 
	1,686.78 
	313. 22 
	84.34 % 

	01-539-431 
	01-539-431 
	City Hall 
	-Ut i lities 
	-Gen 
	Gov't Bl d 
	17,869.70 
	25,000 . 00 
	25,000.00 
	590.20 
	15 , 832.67 
	9 , 167 . 33 
	63.33 % 

	01-539 -432 
	01-539 -432 
	Activity Center 
	-Utilities 
	-Gen Gov 
	2,307.70 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	258.89 
	4,658.25 
	(1,658 . 25) 
	155.28 % 

	01 -539-433 
	01 -539-433 
	Public Works 
	-Utilities 
	-Gen Gov't 
	2,306 . 72 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	270.74 
	2,466.57 
	533.43 
	82.22 
	\
	-


	01-539-434 
	01-539-434 
	Community Center-Utili ties-Gen Gov't 
	4,272.30 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	670.33 
	5,235.40 
	(235. 40) 
	104. 71 
	% 

	Ol-539-440 
	Ol-539-440 
	Rentals and Leases 
	-Gen Gov't Bldgs 
	5,044.15 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	1,118.72 
	8,632 . 30 
	(3,632.30) 
	172.65 % 

	01 -539-461 
	01 -539-461 
	City Hall 
	-Repairs 
	& Maint 
	-Gen Gov 
	11,553.50 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	12,019.15 
	18,396.95 
	6,603.05 
	73.59 % 

	01-539-462 
	01-539-462 
	Activity Center 
	-Repairs 
	& Maint 
	-G 
	17,203.32 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	638.82 
	1,113 . 40 
	386.60 
	74. 23 
	% 

	01-539-463 
	01-539-463 
	Public Works 
	I 
	-Repairs 
	& Maint 
	-Ge 
	1,373 .71 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	638.82 
	707.53 
	(207.53) 
	141.51 % 

	01-539-464 
	01-539-464 
	Community Cente r-Repairs 
	& 
	Maint-Gen 
	826.90 
	3,500.00 
	3,500 . 00 
	1,655 . 36 
	5,051.25 
	(1,551.25) 
	144.32 % 

	01-539-466 
	01-539-466 
	Public Works/ UtilitiP.s Oper 
	-Repairs 
	1.422.45 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	404.90 
	12,110 .51 
	(9,110.51) 
	403.68 
	t 

	01-539-490 
	01-539-490 
	Other current 
	Charges 
	-Gen Gov't Bld 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	65.00 
	(65. 00) 
	0.00 % 

	01-539-510 
	01-539-510 
	Office Supplies 
	-Gen Gov•t 
	Bldgs 
	495.20 
	600 . 00 
	600.00 
	0.00 
	107.37 
	492. 63 
	17 . 90 % 

	01-539-521 
	01-539-521 
	Cicy Hall 
	-Operating Supplies 
	-Gen 
	11,602.98 
	6,000.00 
	6,000.0U 
	388.11 
	3,849.92 
	2,150.08 
	64.17 % 

	01-539-522 
	01-539-522 
	Activity Cent er 
	-Operati ng 
	Supplies 
	515.77 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	198.47 
	891.61 
	108.39 
	89.16 % 

	01 -539-523 
	01 -539-523 
	Public Works 
	-Operat~ng 
	Supplies 
	-G 
	67.98 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	o.oc 
	62.92 
	(62.92) 
	C. 00 % 

	01-539-524 
	01-539-524 
	C~mmunity Center-Operating Suppli es-G 
	463.38 
	1,400.00 
	1,400.00 
	282.36 
	1,706.77 
	(306.77) 
	121. 91 
	% 

	01-539 -526 
	01-539 -526 
	Public Works / Uti lities Oper 
	-Operati 
	1,051.12 
	1,400 . 00 
	1,400.00 
	0.00 
	953 .11 
	446.89 
	68 . 08 % 

	01-539-631 
	01-539-631 
	City Hall 
	-Improv. 
	0/T Bldgs 
	-Gen 
	G 
	9,986.26 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	01 -539-640 
	01 -539-640 
	Public Works 
	-Bldgs/Property 
	-Gen G 
	326, 092.84 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	\
	-


	01 -539-642 
	01 -539-642 
	Activity Center 
	-Mach. 
	& Equipment 
	-
	6,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	---------------
	-
	-
	-

	------------------------------------------------
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	-----------------
	-
	-

	---------------------------
	-
	-


	TR
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	465,210 . 59 
	131,400.00 
	131 ,400.00 
	21 , 584.06 
	118,801. 72 
	11,396.80 
	90.41 % 

	TR
	ROADS 
	AND 
	STREETS 

	01-541-120 
	01-541-120 
	Regul ar 
	Salary 
	-Wage s 
	-Roads 
	& 
	Stre 
	156,300.67 
	181,296.00 
	181,296.00 
	13,215.68 
	167,247.16 
	14,048.84 
	92 
	25 % 

	01-541-140 
	01-541-140 
	ove rtime 
	-Roads 
	& Streets 
	487.00 
	2,824.00 
	2,824.00 
	241. 31 
	1,445.27 
	1,378.73 
	51.18 % 

	01-541-210 
	01-541-210 
	Fica Taxes 
	-Roads 
	& Streets 
	11,685.48 
	14,085.00 
	14,085.00 
	1,014 . 20 
	12,963.41 
	1,121.59 
	92. 04 
	\
	-


	01-541 -220 
	01-541 -220 
	Retirement 
	Contribution 
	-Roads 
	& 
	Str 
	12,071.97 
	15,208.00 
	15,208.00 
	1, 139.80 
	14,263.02 
	944.98 
	93. 79 
	% 

	01-541-230 
	01-541-230 
	Life 
	& Health Insurance 
	-Roads 
	& Str 
	27,717.55 
	26,037.00 
	26,037.00 
	3,524.22 
	39,244.19 
	(13,207.19) 
	150.72 % 

	01-541 -240 
	01-541 -240 
	Worker's 
	Compensation 
	-Roads 
	& Stree 
	10,695.95 
	17,073.00 
	17,073.00 
	0.00 
	14,034.00 
	3,039.00 
	82.20 % 

	01-541 -310 
	01-541 -310 
	Professional Services 
	-Roads 
	& 
	Stree 
	1,371.02 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	3,205.21 
	(3,205.21) 
	0.00 
	t 

	01-541-311 
	01-541-311 
	Engineering Services 
	-Roads 
	& Str eet 
	0 .00 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	5,000.00 
	0 . 00 % 

	01-541-315 
	01-541-315 
	Inmate Labor 
	-Roads 
	& Streets 
	17,249.12 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 


	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/201915:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 IIIIONTHL Y FINANCIALS 
	Page 9of 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 

	G/L 2-018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PBRCER'l'AGB ACCOUNT DBSCRIP'tIO!f ACTUALS ADOPTED Bm>GBT ADJ BUDOBT XTD BXPBNBBS YTD BltPl!llllBBS AVAIL BIIDOBT RBALIZED 
	G/L 2-018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PBRCER'l'AGB ACCOUNT DBSCRIP'tIO!f ACTUALS ADOPTED Bm>GBT ADJ BUDOBT XTD BXPBNBBS YTD BltPl!llllBBS AVAIL BIIDOBT RBALIZED 


	01-541-400 
	01-541-400 
	01-541-400 
	Travel and Training -Roads & streets 
	15.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	0.00 
	284.44 
	2,215.56 
	11. 38 
	% 

	01-541-410 
	01-541-410 
	Communication Services -Roads & Stre 
	2,616.35 
	3,500.00 
	3,500.00 
	113. 36 
	2,331.32 
	1,168.68 
	66.61 
	% 

	01-541-430 
	01-541-430 
	Utilities -Roads & Streets 
	25,220.78 
	30,000.00 
	30,000.00 
	2,007.48 
	22 ,941.24 
	7,058.76 
	76.47 
	% 

	01-541-460 
	01-541-460 
	Repairs and Maintenance -Roads & Str 
	9,723.48 
	10,000.00 
	10,000.00 
	1,162.96 
	4,253.89 
	6,029. 11 
	42. 54 
	% 

	01-541-461 
	01-541-461 
	Repairs & Maintenance-Equipment -Roa 
	5,656.79 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	1,144.48 
	19,785.76 
	(11,785.76) 
	247. 32 
	% 

	01-541-464 
	01-541-464 
	Vehicle Fuel -Roads & Streets 
	8,260.41 
	7,000.00 
	7,000.00 
	1,416.19 
	8,118.35 
	(1,118.35) 
	115.98 
	% 

	01-541-465 
	01-541-465 
	Vehicle Maintenance -Roads & Streets 
	5,163.24 
	7,000.00 
	7,000.00 
	600. 72 
	4,092.20 
	2,907.80 
	58.46 
	% 

	01-541-466 
	01-541-466 
	Public Works/Utilities Facility -Rep 
	1,058.32 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-480 
	01-541-480 
	Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Roads 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	34.99 
	(3 4 . 99) 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-490 
	01-541-490 
	Other Current Charges -Roads & Stree 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	6.60 
	(6. 60) 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-493 
	01-541-493 
	Equipment Rental -Roads & Streets 
	0.00 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2 , 000.00 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-510 
	01-541-510 
	Office Supplies -Roads & Streets 
	846.77 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	9.59 
	695.03 
	156.10 
	69.50 
	% 

	01-541-520 
	01-541-520 
	Operating Supplies -Roads & Streets 
	7,232.03 
	10,000.00 
	10,000.00 
	5,320.56 
	12,810.30 
	(2,810.30) 
	128.10 
	% 

	01-541-524 
	01-541-524 
	Chemicals -Roads & Streets 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	141. 98 
	858. 02 
	14.20 
	% 

	01-541 -525 
	01-541 -525 
	Uniforms -Roads & Streets 
	358.65 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-530 
	01-541-530 
	Road Materials & Supplies -Roads & S 
	1,034.90 
	15,000 .00 
	15,000.00 
	0.00 
	3,376.09 
	11,623.91 
	22.51 
	% 

	01-541-540 
	01-541-540 
	Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships -Ro 
	420.44 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	29.98 
	208.20 
	291. 80 
	41. 64 
	% 

	Cl-541-620 
	Cl-541-620 
	Buildings -Roads & Streets 
	500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	% 

	01-541-630 
	01-541-630 
	Improvements Or.her than Building -Ro 
	9,600.01 
	150,000.00 
	150,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	150 ,000.00 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-541-640 
	01-541-640 
	Machinery & Equipment -Roads & Stree 
	20,697.08 
	30,000 . 00 
	30,000.00 
	0.00 
	9,061.76 
	20,938.24 
	30 . 21 
	% 

	TR
	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	335,983.01 
	539,023.00 
	539,023.00 
	30,940.53 
	340,544.41 
	198,612 .72 
	63 .18 
	% 

	TR
	LIBRARY 

	01-571-120 
	01-571-120 
	Regular Salary -Wages -Library 
	53,011.22 
	76,245.00 
	76 , 245.00 
	5,077.20 
	73,445.20 
	2,799.80 
	96.33 
	% 

	01-571-140 
	01-571-140 
	overtime -Library 
	240.29 
	917.00 
	917.00 
	129.75 
	451. 71 
	465.29 
	49.26 
	% 

	01-571-210 
	01-571-210 
	Fica Taxes -Library 
	3,880.55 
	5,903.00 
	5,903.00 
	383.88 
	5,542.34 
	360.66 
	93.89 
	% 

	01-571-220 
	01-571-220 
	Retirement Contribution -Library 
	4,173.77 
	6,374.00 
	6,374.00 
	441.02 
	6,229.31 
	144.69 
	97.73 
	% 

	01-571-230 
	01-571-230 
	Life & Health Insurance -Library 
	16,581.91 
	18,377.00 
	18,377.00 
	1,568.66 
	17,626.07 
	750.93 
	95. 91 
	% 

	01-571-240 
	01-571-240 
	Worker 1 s Compensation -Library 
	79.65 
	177.00 
	177.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	177. 00 
	0.00 
	%
	-


	01-571-310 
	01-571-310 
	Professional Services -Library 
	1,559. 50 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	310.50 
	4,938.44 
	(2,938.44) 
	24 6. 92 
	.% 

	01-571-312 
	01-571-312 
	Professional Services -Other -Libra 
	1,700.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	0.00 
	1,752.50 
	747.50 
	70.10 
	% 

	01-571-400 
	01-571-400 
	Travel and Training -Library 
	175.00 
	700.00 
	700.00 
	0.00 
	194.75 
	505.25 
	27.82 
	% 

	01-571-410 
	01-571-410 
	Communication Services -Library 
	2,075.91 
	6,100.00 
	6,100.00 
	470.18 
	3,741.50 
	2,358.50 
	61.34 
	% 

	01-571-420 
	01-571-420 
	Education Reimbursement -Library 
	0.00 
	2,040.00 
	2 ,040.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2,040.00 
	0.00 
	% 

	01-571-430 
	01-571-430 
	Utilities -Library 
	6,339 .15 
	7, 500 .00 
	7,500.00 
	164.75 
	3,015.20 
	4,484.80 
	40.20 
	t 


	10/16/20191,5:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/20191,5:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/20191,5:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 10 of11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 PBRCBIITAGB ACCOUNT DBSCRIPTIOllr ACTUALS ADOPTED BlJJ>GBT ADJ BllDGBT KTD EXPBNSBS YTD EXPBNSBS AVJI.IL BUDGBT RllLIZBD 
	01-571-460 Repairs and Maintenance -Library 319.41 () 144.68 % 01-571-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Librar 529.04 583.48 23.34 \01-571-510 Office Supplies -Library 11. 77 332. 94 789.44 25.61 \ 01-571-520 Operating Supplies -Library 793.32 48.06 % 01-571-540 Books, Pub., Sub., & Memberships -Li 808.94 600.00 600.00 136. 80 706.07 (106.07) 117.68 % 01-571-630 Improvements Other than Building -Li 0.00 0.00 0.00 a. oo 0.00 0.00 % 01-571-660 Books, Pub.& Library Materials -Libr 16,000 . 00 (33. 54) 100.21 %
	5,201.54 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	3,617.00 
	1,117.00
	1,268.82 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	1,916.52 
	-
	1,142.42 
	1,300.00 
	1,300.00 
	7,873.96 
	7,500.00 
	7,500.00 
	3,604.76 
	3,895.24 
	2,775.00 
	12,423.07 
	16,000.00 
	1,644.90 
	16,033.54 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 89.06 % 
	121,310.70 
	159,233.00 
	159,233.00 
	11,981.18 
	141,814.81 
	17,240.57 

	PARKS 
	01-572-310 Professional Services -Parks 806.00 0.00 0.00 186.50 () 0.00 % 01-572-315 Inmate Labor -Parks 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 . 00 % 01-572-400 Travel and Training -Parks 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 01-572-430 Utilities -Parks 636. 72 30.55 % 01-572-460 Repairs and Maintenance -P~rks 81. 55 % 01-572-520 Operating Supplies -Parks 780.50 (629.33) 152.44 % 01-572-630 Improvements Other than Building -Pa 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 % 
	1,056.50 
	1,056.50
	5,749.72 
	17,676.88 
	23,000.00 
	23,000.0C 
	7,026.15 
	15,973.85 
	26,486.80 
	15,000.00 
	15.000.00 
	5,337.96 
	12,232.19 
	2,767.81 
	1,020.72 
	1,200.00 
	1,200.00 
	1,829.33 
	6,570.00 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 56 .49 %
	58,325.12 
	39,200.00 
	39,200.00 
	6,941.68 
	22,144.17 
	17,055.83 
	-

	SPECIAL EVENTS 
	01-574-310 Professional Services -Spec Events 888.00 0.00 680.00 34.00 'Ir 01-574-440 Rentals and Leases -Spec Events 125.00 0.00 125.00 875.00 12.50 % 01-574-470 Printing and Reproduction -Spec Even 0.00 0.00 0.00 1, 500.00 0.00 % 01-574-480 Promo Activities & Legal Ads -Spec E 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 ,000.00 0.00 % 01-574-520 Operating Supplies -Spec Events 0.00 () 115.37 % 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	1,320.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	5,066.80 
	7,500.00 
	7,500.00 
	8,652.46 
	1,152.46

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 0.00 72 . 75 % 
	6,079.80 
	13,000.00 
	13,000.00 
	9,457.46 
	3,542.54 

	NON-DEPARTMENTAL 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	10/16/2019 15:05 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37525 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 11 of 11 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	General Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 1PERCBRTAGB ACCO'IJNT J)BSCRIPTJ:Olr ACTUALS AJ)OP'l'BI> BUDGET ADJ BUDGET XTD BXPDSBS YTD BXPBBSBS AVAIL BtJDGBT RBALIZBD 
	01-590-310 
	01-590-310 
	01-590-310 
	Professional Services 
	-Non-Dept 
	3,495.61 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	1,595.62 
	9,785.28 
	15,214.72 
	39.14 % 

	01-590-311 
	01-590-311 
	Engineering Services 
	-Non-Dept 
	0.00 
	10,000.00 
	10,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	10,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-312 
	01-590-312 
	Professional Services 
	-Other -Non-D 
	2,310.00 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	0.00 
	2,310.00 
	5,690.00 
	28.88 % 

	01-590-315 
	01-590-315 
	Inmate Labor -GF Non 
	-Dept 
	0.00 
	28,749.00 
	28,749.00 
	0.00 
	28,748.50 
	0.50 
	100.00 % 

	01-590-32D 
	01-590-32D 
	Accounting and Auditing 
	-Non-Dept 
	18,790.41 
	15,000.00 
	15,000.00 
	3,131.70 
	19,271.44 
	(4,271.44) 
	128.48 % 

	01-590-450 
	01-590-450 
	Liability Insurance 
	-Non-Dept 
	37,729.00 
	39,900.00 
	39,900.00 
	0.00 
	65,121.50 
	(25,221.50) 
	163.21 % 

	01-590-464 
	01-590-464 
	Vehicle Fuel 
	-Non-Departmental 
	436.25 
	400.00 
	400.00 
	72 .28 
	443.55 
	(43 .55) 
	110.89 % 

	01-590-465 
	01-590-465 
	Vehicle Maintenance 
	-Non-Departmenta 
	21.24 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	0.00 
	823. 41 
	(323.41) 
	164.68 % 

	01-590-510 
	01-590-510 
	Office Supplies 
	-Non-Departmental 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	177.49 
	937.63 
	(937.63) 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-520 
	01-590-520 
	Operating Supplies 
	-Non-Dept 
	248.65 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	3.33 
	2,625.27 
	(1,625.27) 
	262.53 % 

	01-590-521 
	01-590-521 
	Emergencies 
	& 
	Contingencies 
	-Operati 
	0.00 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	2,676.27 
	3,676.27 
	16,323.73 
	18.38 % 

	01-590 -525 Uniforms 
	01-590 -525 Uniforms 
	-Non Dept 
	0.00 
	4,000.00 
	4.000.00 
	0.00 
	2,899.14 
	1,10D.~6 
	72.48 % 

	01-590-528 
	01-590-528 
	Postage 
	-Non-Dept 
	3,277.15 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	126.90 
	766.10 
	2,233.90 
	25. 54 
	% 

	01-590-930 
	01-590-930 
	Transfer 
	-Police Public Safety Impac 
	0.00 
	66,434.00 
	66,434.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	66,434.00 
	0.00 % 

	01 -590-931 
	01 -590-931 
	Transfer 
	to Fire Public safety Impact 
	0.00 
	35,546.00 
	35,546.00 
	0.00 
	o.ou 
	35,546.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-932 
	01-590-932 
	Transfer 
	-Parks 
	& Rec 
	Impact Reserve 
	0.00 
	107,136.00 
	107,136.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	107,136.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-933 
	01-590-933 
	Transfer 
	-Public Facility Impact Rese 
	0.00 
	180,045.00 
	180,045.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	180,045.0C 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-940 
	01-590-940 
	Reserves 
	-Unrestricted Reserves 
	-No 
	0.00 
	24,101.00 
	?4,101.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	24,101. DO 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-941 
	01-590-941 
	Reserves 
	-Emergencies 
	& Contingencie 
	363.92 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	5,219.26 
	5,191.76 
	(5,191.76) 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-991 
	01-590-991 
	Aids 
	to Private Organizations 
	-Non-D 
	742.00 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	0.00 
	2,340.00 
	(340.00) 
	117.00 % 

	01-590-992 
	01-590-992 
	Unemployment 
	Claims 
	-Non-Dept 
	0.00 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2,500.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-994 
	01-590-994 
	Bank Fees 
	-Non-Dept 
	7.50 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-996 
	01-590-996 
	Bad Debt 
	-Non-Dept 
	(3,210.22) 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	3,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	01-590-999 
	01-590-999 
	Other 
	-Non-Operating Charges 
	-Non-D 
	12,880.23 
	5,500.00 
	5,500.00 
	(383 .17) 
	3,268.42 
	2,231.58 
	59.43 % 

	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	77, 091. 74 
	581,811.00 
	581,811.00 
	12,619.68 
	148,208.27 
	433,602.73 
	25 .47 
	% 

	General Fund Revenues Total 
	General Fund Revenues Total 
	4,331,776.52 
	2,782,476.IlO 
	2,782,476.GO 
	124,647.96 
	2,486,935.02 
	295,540.98 
	10.62% 

	General Fund Expenditures Total 
	General Fund Expenditures Total 
	-3,531,047.45 
	-2,782,476.00 
	-2,782,476.GO 
	-172,729.21 
	-2,065,694.58 
	-715,535.45 
	25.72% 


	Total Rewenue ff, Expenditures 0.00 O.CO --
	BG0,729.07 
	48,081.25 
	421,240.44 
	419,994.47 



	POLK CITY
	POLK CITY
	10/16/201'915:03 Page 1 of2


	Simple Balc1nce Sheet
	Simple Balc1nce Sheet
	gb614_pg.php/Job No: 37524 USER: JOANNAK For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 05 
	Account Account Bnding Net Number Title Bal AllloUllt 
	05-101-100 
	05-101-710 
	05-101-800 
	05-101-900 
	05-101-915 
	05-101-916 
	05-101-917 
	05-101-920 
	05-101-930 
	05-101-934 
	05-101-935 
	05-101-999 
	05-115-100 
	05-115-130 
	05-117-100 
	05-117-200 
	05-155-300 
	05-1 59-100 
	05-159-200 
	05-160-902 
	05-160-903 
	05-160-90<1 
	05-160-906 
	05-161 900 
	05-164-1 00 
	05-164 -900 
	05-164 -9t0 
	05-165-900 
	05·lq6·900 
	05-167-900 
	05-169-900 
	05-202-100 05-202 -900 05-203-100 05-203-600 05-203-61 0 05-203 -710 05-203-750 05-203-910 05-208-3 05 05-225-100 05-234-100 05-234-901 05-235-900 
	05-243-100 05-245-100 
	05 -250-100 05-255-100 05-271-100 05-2 71 -200 
	Cash -Checking Cash -Enterprise Fund Capital Imprvmnts Cash -Sewer Impact Fee AccounL Cash -Water Impact Fee Account Tax Exempt Leasing -Sinking Fund US Bank -Sink Fund US Bank -Renewal & Repl acement Series 
	Cash -Customer Deposits 
	Restricted Cash -Reclass Fifth Third Bank -Reserves Fifth Third Bank -Renewal & Replacement Restricted Class -Reclass 
	Accounts Receivable -Utilities 
	Accounts Receivable -Readiness to Serve 
	Allowance for Bad Debt Allowance for Uncoll ectible A/R Prepaid Insurance -Deferred Bond Series 2017 Deferred Outflows -Related to Pension Deferred Outflows -Loss on R~funding 
	Reserve Account Reserve Acct -Emergencies & Contingency Reserve Acct -CIP Purchases 
	Reserve Acct -Cardinal Hill Fixed Assets -Land Utility Plant in Service Improvements Other than Buildings Improvements Other than Buildings -MOSN Acc . Dep. -Improvements Other than Build Equipment & Furn iture Accumulated Depreciation -Egui rment CIP -Construction Costs ..,,. TOTAL ASSET** 
	Accounts Payable Customer Deposits Accumulated Interest Payable SRF Loan WW51201P SRF Loan WW53140/SG531401 Effluent Disposal US Bank 2017 Bond Note Tax Exempt Leasing Loan Unamoritized Bond Premiums -US Bank Taxes Payable Deferred Inflows -Related to Pension L-T-D Current Portion Less: current Portion of LTD Net Pension Liability ** TOTAL LIABILITY** 
	Encumbrances Placed 
	Reserved for Encumbrances 
	** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 
	Contributed Capital 
	Change in Fund Balance 
	Fund Balance Unreserved 
	Net Asset Adjustment Account 
	959,614.92 
	959,614.92 
	959,614.92 

	52,898.45 
	52,898.45 

	1,069,802.59 
	1,069,802.59 

	348,155.55 
	348,155.55 

	46,969.53 
	46,969.53 

	47,435 . 38 
	47,435 . 38 

	9,375.23 
	9,375.23 

	349,710.31 
	349,710.31 

	737,400.48
	737,400.48
	-


	610,967.73 
	610,967.73 

	150,000.00 
	150,000.00 

	737,400.48 
	737,400.48 

	49,386.81 
	49,386.81 

	64,026.69 
	64,026.69 

	42,672.50
	42,672.50
	-


	57,398.98
	57,398.98
	-


	37 , 363.62 
	37 , 363.62 

	82,455.25 
	82,455.25 

	810,157.03 
	810,157.03 

	225,392.00 
	225,392.00 

	48,044.00 
	48,044.00 

	25,778.78 
	25,778.78 

	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 

	2,730,735.50 
	2,730,735.50 

	12,268,964.59 
	12,268,964.59 

	33,331.74
	33,331.74
	-


	33,331.74 
	33,331.74 

	316,892.74
	316,892.74
	-


	400 , 049.61 
	400 , 049.61 

	3,519,580 . 52
	3,519,580 . 52
	-


	161,736.60 
	161,736.60 

	TR
	16,637,475.43 

	207,763.83 
	207,763.83 

	308,373.76 
	308,373.76 

	56,733.60 
	56,733.60 

	2,059,675.11 
	2,059,675.11 

	35,641.30 
	35,641.30 

	8,185,000.00 
	8,185,000.00 

	45,074 . 78 
	45,074 . 78 

	602,902.93 
	602,902.93 

	2,557.95
	2,557.95
	-


	15,306.77 
	15,306.77 

	509,139.61 
	509,139.61 

	509,139. 61
	509,139. 61
	-


	151,555.85 
	151,555.85 

	TR
	11,665,469.98 

	2,145.50 
	2,145.50 

	2,145.50
	2,145.50
	-


	TR
	0 . 00 

	598,715 . 40 
	598,715 . 40 

	36,514.20 
	36,514.20 

	3,076,536.11 
	3,076,536.11 

	10,071.23
	10,071.23
	-



	POLK CITY 
	10/16/201915:03 Page2of2

	Simple Balance Sheet 
	Simple Balance Sheet 
	gb614_pg.php/Job No: 37524 USER: JOANNAK For Fiscal Year: 2019 thru Fiscal Month: Sep, for Fund: 05 
	Account Account Ending Net Number Ti tle Bal Amount 
	05-272-100 
	05-272-100 
	05-272-100 
	Retained Earnings 
	734 , 552.82 

	TR
	TOTAL 
	EQUITY** 
	4,436,247.30 

	TR
	TOTAL REVENUE** 
	3,950,641.17 

	TR
	•• TOTAL 
	EXPENSE** 
	3,414,883 .02 


	TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 16,637,475 .43 
	10/161201,915:06 gb8501_pg.phpfJob No: 37526 
	10/161201,915:06 gb8501_pg.phpfJob No: 37526 
	10/161201,915:06 gb8501_pg.phpfJob No: 37526 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 201,9 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page1 of5 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 I 9 


	G/L 2018 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PERCENTAGE ACCOlllff IDBSCR:tl'Tl:0111 PR'IOR YR RBVBHtJB I AJIITICIPATBI> RBVBHUB AJIITIC:IPATBD CURRBllT RBVBJll'O'B YTD RBVBHUB (DCBSS)/DBPIC:IT RUL:IZBD 
	G/L 2018 2019 ADJ 2019 2019 2019 PERCENTAGE ACCOlllff IDBSCR:tl'Tl:0111 PR'IOR YR RBVBHtJB I AJIITICIPATBI> RBVBHUB AJIITIC:IPATBD CURRBllT RBVBJll'O'B YTD RBVBHUB (DCBSS)/DBPIC:IT RUL:IZBD 
	2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 I PBRCBNTAGB ACCOUNT DBSCRIPTION ACTUALS ADOPTBI> BODGBT ADJ BODraBT MTD BXPBNSBS rrD IXPBNSBS AVAIL BUDGBT RBALIZBD 

	05-314-301 
	05-314-301 
	05-314-301 
	RTS 
	-City 10% 
	UTY 
	T 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	2,112.49 
	(2,112.49) 
	0.00 % 

	05-324-210 
	05-324-210 
	Water 
	Impact 
	Fees 
	222,302.01 
	139,760.00 
	139,760 . 00 
	0.00 
	85,603.00 
	54,157.00 
	61.25 % 

	05-324-220 
	05-324-220 
	Sewer 
	Impact 
	Fees 
	616,545.00 
	353,200.00 
	353,200.00 
	0.00 
	211,920 . 00 
	141,280 . 00 
	60.00 % 

	05-325-111 
	05-325-111 
	Connection Fees 
	-Water 
	-Cash Basis 
	94,787.56 
	69,600.00 
	69,600.00 
	0.00 
	42,430 . 16 
	27,169.84 
	60.96 % 

	05 -325-112 
	05 -325-112 
	Connection Fees 
	-Water 
	-Accrual Bas 
	435.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	3,045.00 
	(3,045.00) 
	0.00 % 

	05-325-210 
	05-325-210 
	Readiness 
	to Serve Charge 
	-Sewer 
	29,599.10 
	28,696.00 
	28,696.00 
	0.00 
	30,892.30 
	(2,196.30) 
	107.65 % 

	05-325-211 
	05-325-211 
	Readiness 
	to Serve Charge 
	-Water 
	21,687.31 
	26,000.00 
	26,000.00 
	0.00 
	21,260.00 
	4,740.00 
	81. 77 
	% 

	05 -329-200 
	05 -329-200 
	Other Lic./Fees/Permits 
	1,839.80 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	100.00 
	2,661.00 
	(661.00) 
	133.05 % 

	05-331-350 
	05-331-350 
	Sewer/Wastewater Grants 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	781,345.00 
	1,269,453.00 
	(1,269,453.00) 
	0.00 % 

	05-331-370 
	05-331-370 
	Small Community Wastewater Grant 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	128,000.00 
	128,000.00 
	(128,000.00) 
	0.00 % 

	05-340-300 
	05-340-300 
	Water Utility Revenue 
	1,096,000 . 10 
	1,135,299.00 
	1,135,299.00 
	82,089.67 
	1,065,393.08 
	69,905 . 92 
	93 . 84 % 

	05-340-500 
	05-340-500 
	Sewer Utility Revenue 
	982,047.76 
	1,032,993.00 
	1,032,993.00 
	86,026.54 
	1,003,045.37 
	29,947.63 
	97.10 % 

	05-359-100 
	05-359-100 
	Other Fines and/or Forfeitures 
	20,095.50 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	2,915.00 
	30,795.00 
	(10,795 . 00) 
	153 . 98 % 

	05-359-200 
	05-359-200 
	Non Sufficient Funds 
	1,285.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	185.00 
	1,560 . 00 
	(560.00) 
	156.00 % 

	05-359-300 
	05-359-300 
	Late Fees 
	26,460.00 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	3,517.50 
	30,996.00 
	(10,996.00) 
	154 . 98 % 

	05-369-100 
	05-369-100 
	Misc. 
	Income 
	9.67 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	(505.68) 
	14,451.32 
	(14,451.32) 
	0.00 % 

	05-369-401 
	05-369-401 
	Insurance 
	-Claims 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 
	7,023.45 
	(7,023.45) 
	0.00 % 

	05-369 -700 
	05-369 -700 
	Misc 
	Income 
	-Reimbursement 
	-Invoice 
	781. 42 
	0.00 
	o.oo 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 % 

	05-381-900 
	05-381-900 
	Cash Carry Forward 
	0.00 
	205,677.00 
	205,677 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	205,677.00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	DEPARTMENT TOTALS 
	3,113,875.23 
	3,034,225.00 
	3,034,225.00 
	1,083,673.03 
	3,950,641.17 
	(916,416.17) 
	130.20 % 

	TR
	-======-·=;:;;;;==::::===== ==::::;::::::::::::=:;;::::::::::====="--===== ================== ======;::=========== ::::::::--==:::--===--===-----------------
	-
	-

	----------
	-



	10/16/2019 15:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	10/16/2019 15:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	10/16/2019 15:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 201:9 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page2of 5 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	Enterprise Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	Water 
	Water 
	Water 

	05-533-120 
	05-533-120 
	Regular Salary -Wages -Water Oper 
	99,153.31 
	187,341.00 
	187,341.00 
	12,737 . 73 
	167,944 . 79 
	19,396.21 
	89. 65 % 

	05-533-140 
	05-533-140 
	Overtime -Water Oper 
	837 . 90 
	4,529.00 
	4,529.00 
	340.03 
	2,916.21 
	1,612 . 79 
	64. 39 % 

	05-533-210 
	05-533-210 
	Fica Truces -Water Oper 
	7,379.29 
	14,678.00 
	14,678.00 
	976.05 
	12,909.90 
	1,768.10 
	87. 95 % 

	05-533-220 
	05-533-220 
	Retirement Contribution -Water Oper 
	37,216 . 19 
	15,848.00 
	15,848.00 
	1, 1 07.69 
	14,565.97 
	1,282.03 
	91. 91 % 

	05-533-230 
	05-533-230 
	Life & Health Insurance -Water Oper 
	25,356.43 
	49,859.00 
	49,859.00 
	3,904.71 
	44,296.51 
	5, 562.49 
	88. 84 % 

	05-533-240 
	05-533-240 
	Worker's Compensation -Water Oper 
	124.26 
	9,199.00 
	9,199.00 
	0.00 
	7,570.00 
	1,629.00 
	82.29 % 

	05-533-305 
	05-533-305 
	Contract Labor -Water Oper 
	59,148 . 75 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 % 

	05-533 -310 
	05-533 -310 
	Professional Services -Water Oper 
	61,472.16 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	1,139.90 
	28,291.81 
	(8,291.81) 
	141.46 % 

	05-533 -311 
	05-533 -311 
	Engineering Services -Water Oper 
	14,870 . 00 
	30,000.00 
	30,000. 00 
	0.00 
	(1,558.00) 
	31,558.00 
	(5.19)% 

	05-533-312 
	05-533-312 
	Professional Services -Other -Water 
	3,441.17 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	460.43 
	3,952.02 
	16,047.98 
	19.76 % 

	05-533-313 
	05-533-313 
	Professi onal Services -Polk Regional 
	233.21 
	5,000.00 
	5,000.00 
	0.00 
	2,871.00 
	2,129.00 
	57 . 42 % 

	05-533-315 
	05-533-315 
	Inmate Labor -Water Oper 
	11,499.40 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	D. DO % 

	05-533-400 
	05-533-400 
	Travel and Training -Water Oper 
	280.00 
	500.00 
	500.00 
	75.38 
	872.95 
	(372.95) 
	174 . 59 % 

	05-533-410 
	05-533-410 
	Communication Services -Water Oper 
	2,826.49 
	3,500.00 
	3,so~.oo 
	318.34 
	4,160.22 
	(1,861.70) 
	118.86 % 

	05-533 -430 
	05-533 -430 
	Utilities -Water Oper 
	146.76 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	155 . 20 
	1,266.22 
	233.78 
	84. 41 % 

	05-533-431 
	05-533-431 
	Mt . Olive WTP -Ut~lities -Water Ope 
	3,820.97 
	6,900.00 
	6,900.00 
	3U.80 
	3,191.68 
	3,708.32 
	46.26 % 

	05-533-432 
	05-533-432 
	Commonwealth WTP -Utilities -Water 
	1,409.27 
	4,620.00 
	4,62.0.00 
	99.58 
	1,501.25 
	3,118.75 
	32.49 % 

	05-533-433 
	05-533-433 
	V.Mat t Williams WTP -Utili ties -Wat 
	10,271.92 
	12,000.00 
	12,000.00 
	962.67 
	12,853.99 
	(853.99) 
	107.12 % 

	05-533-4 60 
	05-533-4 60 
	Repairs and Maintenance -Water Oper 
	21,916.83 
	40,000.00 
	40,000.00 
	3,583.82 
	36,760.53 
	3,522.47 
	91. 90 % 

	05-533 -461 
	05-533 -461 
	Mt . Olive WTP -Repairs and Maint -W 
	6,320.07 
	15,000 . 00 
	15,000.00 
	0.00 
	34,080.99 
	(19,080.99) 
	227 . 21 % 

	05-533-462 
	05-533-462 
	Commonwealth WTP -Repairs and Mai nt 
	6,560.56 
	10,000.00 
	10,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	10,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-463 
	05-533-463 
	V.Matt Williams WTP -Repairs and Mai 
	3,983 . 04 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	8,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-464 
	05-533-464 
	Vehicle Fuel -Water Oper 
	4,414.28 
	7,000.00 
	7,000.00 
	1, 615.01 
	10,665.49 
	(3,665.49) 
	152.36 % 

	05-533-465 
	05-533-465 
	Vehicle Maintenance -Water Oper 
	12,559.15 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	1,968.08 
	13 , 133.97 
	(5,133.97) 
	164.17 % 

	05-533-466 
	05-533-466 
	Public Work& / Uti lities Facility -Rep 
	2,586.07 
	0 .00 
	0.00 
	159.70 
	4 , 265.01 
	(4,265.01) 
	0. 00 % 

	05-533 -490 
	05-533 -490 
	Other Current Charges -Water Oper 
	100.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-492 
	05-533-492 
	Recording & Other Fees -Water ope r 
	5,490 . 00 
	4,300.00 
	4,300.00 
	100.00 
	5,300 . 00 
	(1,000.00) 
	123 . 26 % 

	05-533-493 
	05-533-493 
	Equipment Rental -Water Oper 
	0.00 
	4,000.00 
	4,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	4,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-510 
	05-533-510 
	Office Supplies -Water Oper 
	567.87 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	15.67 
	252 . 66 
	593.07 
	25.27 % 

	05-533-520 
	05-533-520 
	Operati ng Supplies -Water Oper 
	14,215.85 
	30,000.00 
	30,000 . 00 
	2, 478.52 
	24,075.89 
	5,924.11 
	80.25 % 

	05-533-521 
	05-533-521 
	Mt . Olive WTP -Operating Supplies -W 
	155.56 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 %" 

	05-533-522 
	05-533-522 
	Commonwealth WTP -Operating Supplies 
	155.55 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-523 
	05-533-523 
	V. Matt Williams WTP -Operating Suppl 
	155.55 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-524 
	05-533-524 
	Chemicals -water Oper 
	3,275.91 
	9,000.00 
	9,000.00 
	295 . 00 
	3,233.99 
	5,766.01 
	35 . 93 % 

	05-533-525 
	05-533-525 
	Uniforms -Water Oper 
	910.44 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 'Ir 

	05-533-526 
	05-533-526 
	Meter supplies -New Installs -Water 
	113,898.27 
	69,600 . 00 
	69,600.00 
	0 .00 
	56,117.68 
	13,482.32 
	80 .63 % 

	05-533-527 
	05-533-527 
	Meter Supplies -Repairs & Maintenanc 
	0.00 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	0.00 
	11,814.64 
	8,185.36 
	59.07 % 


	10/16/201915:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	10/16/201915:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	10/16/201915:06 gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 
	POLK CITY SEPTEMBER 2819 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	Page 3of5 USER: JOANNAK 

	TR
	Enterprise Fund Expenditures 

	TR
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 


	G/L 2018 2019 2019 201-9 2019 2019 PlllROBNTACilB ACCOUNT DBSCR:tl'T:EO!f ACTUALS ADOPTED BlJDGBT ADJ BUDGET X'1'D BXPENSBS YTD BXPB!ISl!:S AVAIL BUDGET RBALIZBD 
	05-533 -540 Books, 
	05-533 -540 Books, 
	05-533 -540 Books, 
	Pub., 
	Sub. , 
	& Memberships 
	-Wa 
	1,098.92 
	2,000.00 
	2,000.00 
	150.51 
	1,403.78 
	596.22 
	70.19 % 

	05-533-605 
	05-533-605 
	Depreciation Expense 
	-Water 
	Oper 
	115,680 .80 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-630 
	05-533-630 
	Improvements Other than Buil ding 
	-Wa 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	22, 275.35 
	(22,275.35) 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-640 
	05-533-640 
	Machinery & Equipment 
	-Water Oper 
	0.00 
	30,000 . 00 
	30,000.00 
	1,675.12 
	34,242.72 
	(4,242.72) 
	114.14 % 

	05-533-641 
	05-533-641 
	Mt . 
	Olive WTP 
	-Machinery & Equipment 
	0.00 
	130,000.00 
	130,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	130,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-650 
	05-533-650 
	Construction In Progress 
	-Water 
	Oper 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	23,505.00 
	(23, sos. 00) 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-660 
	05-533-660 
	Other capital Assets 
	-Water Operatio 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	3,906.25 
	(3,906.25) 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-710 
	05-533-710 
	Principal 
	-Water Oper 
	0.00 
	76,392.00 
	76,392.00 
	(76,391.99) 
	0.00 
	76,392.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-720 
	05-533-720 
	Interest 
	-Water Oper 
	46,872.24 
	74,490.00 
	74, 490.00 
	0.00 
	76,351.08 
	(1,861.08) 
	102.50 % 

	05-533-920 
	05-533-920 
	Transfer 
	to General 
	Fund 
	-Water Oper 
	79,295.75 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-533-999 
	05-533-999 
	Other Non-Operating Charges 
	-Water 0 
	5,000 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-


	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	784,700.19 
	924,256.00 
	924,256.00 
	(41,753.05) 
	668,991.55 
	254,191.70 
	72. 38 
	% 

	Sewer 
	Sewer 

	05-535-120 
	05-535-120 
	Regular Salary 
	-Wages 
	-Sewer Oper 
	84,565.66 
	115,606.00 
	115,606.00 
	7,402 . 04 
	102,906.89 
	12,69q . 11 
	89.02 % 

	05-535-130 
	05-535-130 
	Other Salaries and Wages 
	-Sewer Oper 
	4.37 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-140 
	05-535-140 
	Overtime -Sewer Oper 
	923.00 
	3,109.00 
	3,109.00 
	276 . 08 
	3,492.28 
	1383. 28) 
	112.33 % 

	05-535-210 
	05-535-210 
	Fica Taxes -Sewer Oper 
	6,009.12 
	9,082.00 
	9,082.00 
	577.97 
	8,156.51 
	925.49 
	89.81 % 

	05-535-220 
	05-535-220 
	Retirement 
	Contribution 
	-Sewer Oper 
	29,885.33 
	9,806.00 
	9,806.00 
	650.33 
	9,269.89 
	536 .11 
	94. 53 
	% 

	05-535-230 
	05-535-230 
	Life 
	& Health Insurance 
	-Sewer Oper 
	15,126.98 
	27,149.00 
	27,149.00 
	1,959.65 
	23,930.52 
	3,218.48 
	88.15 % 

	05 -535-240 
	05 -535-240 
	Worker's 
	Compensation 
	-Sewer Oper 
	0.00 
	9,794.00 
	9,794.00 
	0.00 
	3,694.00 
	6,100.00 
	37. 72 
	% 

	05-535-305 
	05-535-305 
	Contract Labor 
	-Sewer Oper 
	59,148.75 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-310 
	05-535-310 
	Professional Services 
	-Sewer Oper 
	31,422.19 
	25,GOO.OO 
	25,000.00 
	5,458.00 
	36,643.80 
	(11,643.80) 
	146.58 % 

	05-535-311 
	05-535-311 
	Engineering Services 
	-Sewer Oper 
	18,070.00 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	0.00 
	(1,558.00) 
	21,558.00 
	(7. 79) % 

	05-535-312 Professional Services 
	05-535-312 Professional Services 
	-Other 
	-Sewer 
	2,190.00 
	14,000 . 00 
	14,000.00 
	238. 71 
	4,566.06 
	9,433.94 
	32.61 % 

	05-535-315 
	05-535-315 
	Inmate Labor 
	-Sewer Oper 
	11,499.40 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0 . 00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-400 
	05-535-400 
	Travel 
	and Training 
	-Sewer Oper 
	1,686.96 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	88.87 
	1,941.52 
	558.48 
	77. 66 
	% 

	05-535-410 
	05-535-410 
	Communication Services 
	-sewer 
	Oper 
	2,659.79 
	3,500.00 
	3,500.00 
	214.34 
	3,299.99 
	(1,001.47) 
	94.29 % 

	05-535-411 
	05-535-411 
	Cardinal Hill WWTP 
	-Comm Srvcs 
	-Sew 
	1,396.78 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	0.00 
	975.47 
	524.53 
	65.03 % 

	05-535-412 
	05-535-412 
	Mt. 
	Olive WWTP 
	-Comm Srvcs 
	-Sewer 0 
	2,180.40 
	2,500.00 
	2,500.00 
	198.00 
	2,376.00 
	124.00 
	95.04 % 

	05-535-430 
	05-535-430 
	Utilities 
	-Sewer Oper 
	15,610.94 
	7,000.00 
	7,000.00 
	598.84 
	6,216.09 
	783.91 
	88.80 % 

	05-535-431 
	05-535-431 
	Cardinal 
	Hill WWTP 
	-Utilities 
	-Sewe 
	17,756.34 
	21,000.00 
	21,000.00 
	1,568.60 
	18,679 .65 
	2,320.35 
	88.95 % 

	05-535-432 
	05-535-432 
	Mt. 
	Olive WWTP 
	-Utilities 
	-Sewer Op 
	7,849.08 
	11,000.00 
	11,000.00 
	742.23 
	7,476.06 
	3,523.94 
	67. 96 
	% 

	05-535-460 
	05-535-460 
	Repairs and Maintenance 
	-Sewer Oper 
	96,540.19 
	90,000.00 
	90,000.00 
	3,607.68 
	53 ,550.80 
	36,732 . 20 
	59 . 50 % 

	05-535-461 
	05-535-461 
	Cardinal Hill 
	-Repairs and Maint 
	-S 
	52,129.78 
	90,000.00 
	90,000.00 
	0.00 
	4,887.70 
	85,112.30 
	5.43 % 


	10/16/201915:06 Page4of5

	SEPTEMBER 2019p:b~'i-~Y FINANCIALS
	SEPTEMBER 2019p:b~'i-~Y FINANCIALS
	gb8501__pg.php/Job No: 37526 USER: JOANNAK Enterprise Fund Expenditures 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	100.00 % Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	2018 2019 2019 201 9 2019 2019 I PBRCBNTAGB ACCOUNT DBSCR:tPTIOB' ACTUALS ADOPTED BUDGBT ADJ BtmGBT JlTD BXPENSBS YTD DPBNSBS AVAl:L B'DDGBT RBAL:tZBD 
	05-535-464 
	05-535-464 
	05-535-464 
	Vehicle Fuel -Sewer Oper 
	3,200.22 
	4,000.00 
	4,000.00 
	1,599.66 
	12,007.80 
	(8,007.80) 
	300.20 % 

	05-535-465 
	05-535-465 
	Vehicle Maintenance -Sewer Oper 
	12,490 . 89 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	374.55 
	13,287.66 
	(5,287 . 66) 
	166.10 % 

	05-535-466 
	05-535-466 
	Public Works/Utilitie's Facility -Rep 
	2,275.16 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	159.74 
	4,420.68 
	(4,420.68) 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-470 
	05-535-470 
	Printing and Reproduction -Sewer Ope 
	54.69 
	60. 00 
	60.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	60.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-490 
	05-535-490 
	Other Current Charges -Sewer Oper 
	113. 09 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	168.22 
	(168.22) 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-492 
	05-535-492 
	Recording & Other Fees -Sewer Oper 
	100.00 
	350.00 
	350.00 
	0.00 
	125.00 
	225.00 
	35. 71 % 

	05-535-493 
	05-535-493 
	Equipment Rental -Sewer Oper 
	337.00 
	4,000.00 
	4 , 000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	4,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-510 
	05-535-510 
	Office Supplies -Sewer Oper 
	412 .13 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	15.63 
	262.98 
	582.75 
	26.30 % 

	05-535-520 
	05-535-520 
	Operating Supplies -Sewer Oper 
	12,246.40 
	8,000.00 
	8,000.00 
	2,873.45 
	11,207.82 
	(3,207.82) 
	140.10 % 

	05-535 -521 
	05-535 -521 
	Cardinal Hill WWTP -Operating Suppli 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	27 .34 
	(27 .34) 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-522 
	05-535-522 
	Cardinal Hill WWTP -Sludge Hauling 
	0.00 
	16,000.00 
	16,000.00 
	0.00 
	15,360.00 
	640.00 
	96 . 00 % 

	05 -535-524 
	05 -535-524 
	Chemicals -Sewer Oper 
	23,374.71 
	17,000.00 
	17,000 . 00 
	577.00 
	30,602.99 
	(13,602.99) 
	180.02 % 

	05-535-525 
	05-535-525 
	Uniforms -Sewer Oper 
	70 9.04 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-530 
	05-535-530 
	Road Materials & Supplies -Sewer Ope 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	27. 74 
	972.26 
	2.77 % 

	05-535 -540 
	05-535 -540 
	Books, Pub., Suh., &Memberships -Se 
	469.57 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	418.27 
	581. 73 
	41. 83 % 

	05-535-605 
	05-535-605 
	D~preciation Expense -Sewer Oper 
	207,310.77 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-640 
	05-535-640 
	Machinery & Equipment -Sewer Oper 
	898.99 
	50,000.00 
	50,000.00 
	0.00 
	37,497.61 
	12,502.39 
	75.00 % 

	05-535 -611 
	05-535 -611 
	Cardinal Hill -Mach & Equip -Sewer 
	0.00 
	104,000.00 
	104,000.00 
	0.00 
	34,355.00 
	69,615 . 00 
	33.03 % 

	05-535-650 
	05-535-650 
	Construction In ProgrRss -Sewer Oper 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	541,099.30 
	1,825,510.54 
	(1,825,510.54) 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-710 
	05-535-710 
	Principal -Sewer Oper 
	0 . 00 
	307,586.00 
	307,586.00 
	(246,042.58) 
	0.00 
	307,586.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-720 
	05-535-720 
	Interest -Sewer Oper 
	313,451.20 
	303,789.00 
	303,789.00 
	27,037.20 
	305,265.48 
	(1,476.48) 
	100.49 % 

	05-535-722 
	05-535-722 
	Interest -DEP Effluent Disposal Loan 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	4,626.30 
	4,626.30 
	(4,626.30) 
	0.00 % 

	05-535-920 
	05-535-920 
	Transfer to General Fund -Sewer Oper 
	79,295.75 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	DEPARTMENT TOTAL 
	1,113,394.67 
	1,288,331.00 
	1,288,331.00 
	355,901.59 
	2,585,676.66 
	(1,298,418.41) 
	200.70 % 

	TR
	EF Non-Departmental 

	05-590-310 
	05-590-310 
	Professional Services -Non-Dept 
	19,391.06 
	24,300.00 
	24,300.00 
	2,378.95 
	27,327.92 
	(3,027.92) 
	112 . 46 % 

	05-590-312 
	05-590-312 
	Professional Services -Other -Non-D 
	8,240.00 
	18,500.00 
	18,500.00 
	0.00 
	8,240.00 
	10 ,260.00 
	44.54 % 

	05-590-315 
	05-590-315 
	Inmate Labor -EF Non -Dept 
	0.00 
	28,749.00 
	28,749.00 
	0.00 
	28,748.50 
	0.50 
	100.00 % 

	05-590-320 
	05-590-320 
	Accounti ng and Auditing -Non-Dept 
	33,055.84 
	27,306.00 
	27,306.00 
	6,358.30 
	30,497.31 
	(3,191.31) 
	111.69 % 

	05-590-440 
	05-590-440 
	Rentals and Leases -Non-Dept 
	4,118.91 
	4,074.00 
	4,074.00 
	737.84 
	4,609.06 
	(535.06) 
	113.13 % 

	05-590-450 
	05-590-450 
	Liability Insurance -Non-Dept 
	36,702.00 
	50,000.00 
	50,000.00 
	0 .00 
	26,351. so 
	23,648.50 
	52.70 % 

	05-590-492 
	05-590-492 
	Recording & Other Fees -Non-Dept 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-510 
	05-590-510 
	Office Supplies -Non-Departmental 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	177.49 
	840.65 
	(840.65) 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-520 
	05-590-520 
	Operating Supplies -Non-Dept 
	179.88 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	843.76 
	(843.76) 
	0.00 % 


	POLK CITY
	10/161201915:06 Page 5of5



	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIALS 
	gb8501_pg.php/Job No: 37526 USERt JOANNAK Enterprise Fund Expenditures 
	100.00 %Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	100.00 %Yr Complete For Fiscal Year: 2019 / 9 
	2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 
	2 019 1 PBRCBNTASB ACCOUNT IIlBSCRIP'l'IOIII' ACTUALS AIX>PTBil BtJDGET ADJ BtJDGBT 1ITD BXPDISBS YTD BXPBNSBS AVAIL B1JDGBT ltBALIZ:BD 
	2 019 1 PBRCBNTASB ACCOUNT IIlBSCRIP'l'IOIII' ACTUALS AIX>PTBil BtJDGET ADJ BtJDGBT 1ITD BXPDISBS YTD BXPBNSBS AVAIL B1JDGBT ltBALIZ:BD 
	05-590-521 
	05-590-521 
	05-590-521 
	Emergencies 
	& Contingencies 
	-Operati 
	0.00 
	20,000.00 
	20,000.00 
	8,197.82 
	9,197.82 
	10,802.18 
	45.99 % 

	05-590-525 
	05-590-525 
	uniforms 
	-Non Dept 
	0.00 
	4,000.00 
	4,000.00 
	0.00 
	1,493.52 
	2,506.48 
	37.34 % 

	05-590-528 
	05-590-528 
	Postage 
	-Non-Dept 
	1,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	3,000.00 
	64.32 
	64.32 
	2,935.68 
	2.14 % 

	05-590-720 
	05-590-720 
	Interest 
	-Bond 2017 Issue 
	197,995.94 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	(44,749.17) 
	(44,749.17) 
	44,749.17 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-730 
	05-590-730 
	Other Debt 
	Service Costs 
	66,573.69 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	64,104.94 
	64,104.94 
	(64,104.94) 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-920 
	05-590-920 
	Transfer 
	to General 
	Fund 
	-Non-Dept 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	25,000.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	25,000.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-930 
	05-590-930 
	Transfer to Water 
	Impact 
	Fee Reserves 
	0.00 
	139,760.00 
	139,760.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	139,760.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-931 
	05-590-931 
	Transfer 
	to Sewer 
	Impact 
	Fee Reserves 
	0.00 
	353,200.00 
	353,200.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	353 ,200.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-940 
	05-590-940 
	Reserves 
	-Unrestricted Reserves 
	NON
	-

	0.00 
	72,686.00 
	72,686.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	72,686.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-941 
	05-590-941 
	Reserves 
	-Emergencies 
	& Contingencie 
	255.70 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-992 Unemployment 
	05-590-992 Unemployment 
	Claims 
	-Non-Dept 
	0 .00 
	1,500.00 
	1,500.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,500.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-993 
	05-590-993 
	Transfer 
	to Reserve 
	-Non-Dept 
	0.00 
	7,013.00 
	7,013.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	7,013.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-994 
	05-590-994 
	Bank Fees 
	-Non-Dept 
	0.00 
	1,550.00 
	1,550.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	1,550.00 
	0.00 % 

	05-590-996 
	05-590-996 
	Bad Debt 
	-Non-Dept 
	2,170.57 
	40,000.00 
	40,000.00 
	0.00 
	(187.62) 
	40,187.62 
	(0.47)% 

	05-590-999 
	05-590-999 
	Other 
	-Non-Operating Charges 
	-Non-D 
	608.78 
	0.00 
	0.00 
	53.08 
	401. 92 
	(401.92) 
	0.00 % 

	TR
	--·------
	-


	DEPARTMENT 
	DEPARTMENT 
	TOTAL 
	395,292.37 
	821,638.00 
	821,638.00 
	37,323 
	57 
	l57,784.43 
	663,853,57 
	19. 2.0 
	'k 

	Enterprke i:u.n,f Revenue,. Total 
	Enterprke i:u.n,f Revenue,. Total 
	9,224,341.74 
	3,0!!Q,225Jl0 
	3,034,225.00 
	1,083,673.03 
	9,9'S0,6a1.:11 
	-916,416_17 
	130.:r09' 

	fnler·prhr Fund:E,opendiluresToled 
	fnler·prhr Fund:E,opendiluresToled 
	-3,348,699,42 
	-5,054,225.00 
	-5,034,225.0,0 
	-351,47 2.1.1 
	-3,4-12,452.64 
	380,575_141 
	112.47% 

	Total Revenue "VS. Expenditures 
	Total Revenue "VS. Expenditures 
	-1241,357.68 
	o_oo 
	0.00 
	732,200.92 
	538.,188.53 
	-5.36,043.03 


	Library Reports 10/2018 -09/2019 
	Oct-18 
	Oct-18 
	Oct-18 
	Nov-18 
	Dec-18 
	Jan-19 
	* Feb-19 
	Mar-19 
	Apr-19 
	May-19 
	Jun-19 
	Jul-19 
	Aug-19 
	Sep-19 
	Totals 

	TR
	Circulation 

	Adult Books 
	Adult Books 
	982 
	869 
	788 
	1004 
	897 
	813 
	919 
	934 
	863 
	1076 
	1122 
	915 
	11182 

	Juvenile Books 
	Juvenile Books 
	995 
	832 
	660 
	680 
	668 
	621 
	826 
	935 
	1261 
	1361 
	935 
	877 
	10651 

	DVD'S 
	DVD'S 
	946 
	726 
	766 
	1010 
	612 
	800 
	786 
	976 
	790 
	960 
	954 
	831 
	10157 

	Hot-Spots 
	Hot-Spots 
	20 
	16 
	25 
	20 
	20 
	20 
	25 
	20 
	20 
	25 
	20 
	25 
	256 

	Digital 
	Digital 
	0 
	58 
	23 
	44 
	37 
	49 
	41 
	62 
	63 
	73 
	84 
	70 
	604 

	Total Circulation 
	Total Circulation 
	2943 
	2501 
	2262 
	2758 
	2234 
	2303 
	2597 
	2927 
	2997 
	3495 
	3115 
	2718 
	32,850 

	TR
	New Borrowers 

	In City 
	In City 
	13 
	12 
	6 
	18 
	16 
	10 
	11 
	11 
	28 
	8 
	22 
	11 
	166 

	In County 
	In County 
	2 
	7 
	3 
	5 
	3 
	2 
	3 
	5 
	2 
	3 
	4 
	5 
	44 

	Digital 
	Digital 
	0 
	27 
	4 
	8 
	6 
	5 
	8 
	5 
	12 
	7 
	6 
	11 
	99 

	Tota! New Borrowers 
	Tota! New Borrowers 
	15 
	46 
	13 
	31 
	25 
	17 
	22 
	21 
	42 
	18 
	32 
	27 
	309 

	TR
	Number of Programs 

	Adult 
	Adult 
	1 
	3 
	2 
	1 
	1 
	2 
	2 
	2 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	16 

	Juvenile 
	Juvenile 
	2 
	2 
	4 
	4 
	2 
	3 
	3 
	7 
	7 
	6 
	1 
	2 
	43 

	Young Adult 
	Young Adult 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	0 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	2 
	2 
	0 
	0 
	11 

	Total Programs 
	Total Programs 
	4 
	6 
	7 
	6 
	3 
	6 
	5 
	10 
	10 
	8 
	1 
	3 
	70 

	TR
	Program Attendance 

	Adult 
	Adult 
	30 
	44 
	114 
	36 
	9 
	16 
	48 
	41 
	4 
	185 
	6 
	15 
	548 

	Juvenile 
	Juvenile 
	47 
	32 
	139 
	42 
	10 
	38 
	73 
	164 
	445 
	360 
	9 
	13 
	1372 

	Young Adult 
	Young Adult 
	5 
	36 
	34 
	5 
	0 
	3 
	5 
	6 
	90 
	48 
	0 
	0 
	232 

	Total Attendance 
	Total Attendance 
	82 
	112 
	287 
	83 
	19 
	57 
	126 
	211 
	539 
	593 
	15 
	28 
	2152 

	TR
	Reference Questions 

	Phone Calls 
	Phone Calls 
	232 
	207 
	197 
	208 
	163 
	194 
	197 
	194 
	198 
	228 
	233 
	172 
	2423 

	TR
	Number of Computer Users 

	288 
	288 
	225 
	205 
	292 
	210 
	303 
	244 
	248 
	231 
	205 
	236 
	190 
	2877 

	TR
	Total Patrons 

	1505 
	1505 
	1273 
	1207 
	1580 
	1012 
	1350 
	1277 
	1553 
	2134 
	1928 
	1093 
	1052 
	16964 

	*Library Closed 1 week due to sewer issue. 
	*Library Closed 1 week due to sewer issue. 


	Polk County Fire Rescue 2019 Report Through Sep 30th
	City of Polk City Summary Report 
	Report Date: 2019-10-01 
	Previous Month Incidents by Call Category [ ..~~tal Incidents: 34 Year to Date Incidents by Call Category Ii Total Incidents: 293 
	Hazardous Condition 
	J 
	~ 
	FireCall _J5.._J 2 Citizen Assist/Service Ca: ! J 
	Fire Alarm 
	11 
	':J 

	Traffic/Transportation Incidents 
	FireCall 17
	:=:J 
	Traffic/Transportation Incidents 41 
	Medical Call 27 Medical Cal! 218 
	50 100 150 200 250
	10 15 20 25 30 
	Traffir/Transportatio(I 
	·Medical Call .!raff\c/fransportation__ Incidents Fire Call Medical Ca ll Firl!Call fire Alarm Citiz~ Assist/Service Call Hazardous Condition
	1nddi!nts Ill Total 27 BTotal 218 41 17 11 
	Previous Month Medical Calls by Category Total Incidents: 27 Year to Date Medical Cai:s by Category 
	fotal Incidents: 218 
	Sick Person ~-:.. 1d: I li;i;&:.·:liio!--aij:il~"t' . · · · · · 41
	Breathing Problems ~ ... ~·;:.;;;;;;• AA J 4 
	➔ s-
	Breathing Problems :rn::::r:::-·i ...=.:atL'.--· 33 
	Fa:ls -.-.:-~ e-,--;...,-.-.•j ..~;;,-,.., n ~ 5n .5 23
	, -.-►-.~,-,--Falls 1.i;··1 • · :::;;:;a~,-~
	4
	C-1est Pain :r::;;m::· t4 t--A -:::w:z:r-::;;;:msan 21 Sick Person .. Tifut ; J;j s:s •"" ·' :nr" .ll: :;;::::;::;;:i 3 Unconscious/Fainting Psychiatric/Abnormal Behavior/Suicide Attempt
	"' 

	Chest Pain ,7N --~-::y ,1;-ftzlt ·C ~,;; -~ 
	Unknown Problem Hemorrhage/Lacerations
	Unknown Problem Hemorrhage/Lacerations
	Hemorrhage/Lacerations ,4 M 4:fu•#' w1r tt ,4:k ::J 

	Diabetic hoblems Abdominal Pain/Problem 'mffl,4 ~:;:;::::::i 2 Convulsion/Seizures Overdose/Poisoning Psychiatric/Abnormal Behavior/Suicide Attempt ~ :•., 1 .,JI' ,-.i::'....,;;.i,llifj Abdominal Pain/Problem -....::tllt£1i 5 Heart Problems/A.I.C.D. =4Allerg:es/Envenomation 1 
	Figure
	,.:,. k · 
	4
	j 

	Allergies/Envenomation ~ 4 Carc!:ac/Respiratory Arrest/Deat~ ~ 3
	Allergies/Envenomation ~ 4 Carc!:ac/Respiratory Arrest/Deat~ ~ 3
	Convulsion/Seizures ~ 1:f•Q* .J

	1 Traumatic Injuries 3 Assault/Sexual Assault > :¥r, " " I 
	= 

	Back Pa:n 3 Stroke/Transient lschemic Attack =,3 Diabetic Problems i3t ;ji·· ,J An:mal Bites/Attacks ~ 2 Burns/Explosion 1 Overdose/Poisoning A:flt... , ,Pffl¼, J Eye Problems/Injuries "" ;:J 1 Stab/Gunshot/Penetrating Trauma :n 
	= 
	5

	Heat/Cold Exposure h, :W "'°L:t ,j 1 
	Assault/Sexual Assault 
	"" 

	Unconscious/Fainting 8; .1 ;)t$':'' 
	Heat/Cold Exposure ZJ 

	Choking :::, 
	1 

	0 0.5 1.5 2.5 3.5 4.5 
	0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 
	Previous Month Fire Calls by Category Year to Date fire Calls by Category 
	Total Incidents: 2 
	Outside Fire 
	Vehicle Fire 
	._r.,: :i:.J~._,_______________.J 

	Vehicle Fire 4 
	Outside Fire Structure Fire 
	10 11 
	Figure
	Dispatch to Arrival: Average:5:27, 90th Percentile: 11:19 Total Calls: YTD -293 Last Mo. -34 Total Response Time: Average: 6:46, 90th Percentile: 12:21 



	POLK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 
	POLK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 
	STATISTICAL DATA West Division 
	October 17, 2019 Northwest District 
	To: Patricia Jackson , City Manager From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376 Subject: Statistical report for September, 2019. 
	,r '"l~ 1fc✓ li,;, ~. ~ ~--·~· ' ,;, 1t 
	,r '"l~ 1fc✓ li,;, ~. ~ ~--·~· ' ,;, 1t 
	,r '"l~ 1fc✓ li,;, ~. ~ ~--·~· ' ,;, 1t 

	FELONY ARREST 
	FELONY ARREST 
	3 

	AFFIDAVITS FELONY 
	AFFIDAVITS FELONY 
	0 

	MISDEMEANOR ARREST 
	MISDEMEANOR ARREST 
	7 

	AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR 
	AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR 

	OUT OF COUNTY/STATE WARRANT ARRESTS 
	OUT OF COUNTY/STATE WARRANT ARRESTS 
	0 

	PROCAP WARRANT ARREST 
	PROCAP WARRANT ARREST 
	0 

	TOTAL ARRESTS 
	TOTAL ARRESTS 
	10 

	SEARCH WARRANTS 
	SEARCH WARRANTS 
	0 

	FIELD INTERROGATION REPORTS 
	FIELD INTERROGATION REPORTS 
	8 

	TRAFFIC CITATIONS 
	TRAFFIC CITATIONS 
	4 

	INTELLIGENCE REPORTS 
	INTELLIGENCE REPORTS 
	0 

	STOLEN PROPERTY RECOVERED 
	STOLEN PROPERTY RECOVERED 
	0 

	HRS. TRANSPORTING/ AGENCIES/DIVISIONS 
	HRS. TRANSPORTING/ AGENCIES/DIVISIONS 
	0 

	OFFENSE REPORTS 
	OFFENSE REPORTS 
	50 

	NARCOTICS SEIZED 
	NARCOTICS SEIZED 
	meth 
	7 grams of 

	ASSETS SEIZED 
	ASSETS SEIZED 
	0 

	PATROL NOTICES 
	PATROL NOTICES 
	0 

	FOXTROT REPORTS 
	FOXTROT REPORTS 
	7 

	TOW-AWAY NOTICES 
	TOW-AWAY NOTICES 
	0 

	COMMUNITY CONTACTS 
	COMMUNITY CONTACTS 
	1725 

	TRAFFIC STOPS 
	TRAFFIC STOPS 
	15 


	PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 
	116
	TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS 
	FOR SERVICE 
	In September 2019, there were five (5) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to six (6) in 
	September 2018. In September 2019 there were two residential burglaries reported however the 
	incidents were known suspects who used to reside at the residences. There was three reported robberies however one ofthem was a known suspect and could pose as civil issues over shared property. One was between a 16 year old and an adult who took the phone from her for not doing as she was told, they were roommates at the time ofthe incident. The third robbery was legit and the suspects were located in Lake County a few minutes later, the suspects are from Groveland and had been on a crime spree, they utili
	BURGLARY RESIDENCE PCSO-2019-08-31 / 2019-09-01 / Sun 212 SUNSHINEBLVD un ksusp entered the vie's res id by kicking door and 190040939 2100hrs 0330hrs ransackingthe house/ several items were intentionally damaged /only item missing was a black and green hunting knife /vie thinks ex~boyfrlend Austin Hitchcock WM 09/23/1993 might be susp. Beer bottle found at crime scene. LPWO and Lab Letter completed for bottle to be processed. Potential suspect'swhereabout's are unknown, Victim is attempting to find out whe
	PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 
	PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 
	PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2 

	Table
	TR
	DapartmantiiH.aw Eill'orcement Polk City -2018 . 2019 --C>,lob.t 
	-·
	-


	TR
	2018 
	2ll 19 
	2011 
	:l019 
	Mlroh 2011 201 9 
	··-101e. 201g 
	M28 16 
	w 201 9 
	""1• 20 1& 2019 
	JI, 2018 20 19 
	.. 2018 
	• Mt 201Q 
	2018 2019 
	2.01~ 2019 
	20 15 201 9 
	Dice... 20 18 2019 
	YlDTatm 2018 1011 
	~ 
	_pt>

	·-
	·-
	2018 
	2019 

	RbbbmV 
	RbbbmV 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	• 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	l 
	:lOO¾ 
	00 
	0 .3 

	Bllra Bulll'\55. 
	Bllra Bulll'\55. 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	l 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	1 
	D 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	1 
	2 
	0% 
	0 I 
	02 

	Burg Retld!!rKlll 
	Burg Retld!!rKlll 
	2 
	2 
	1 
	2 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	• 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	6 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	2 
	0 
	9 
	7 
	200¾ 
	1.0 
	08 

	Bu,g_S\14.J ~IWo 
	Bu,g_S\14.J ~IWo 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	0 
	• 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	1 
	0% 
	02 
	0 1 

	Buro Colllo' t:YMCl!c 
	Buro Colllo' t:YMCl!c 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	l 
	0 
	0 
	" 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	s 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	' 
	16 
	O¾ 
	06 
	1 8 

	Vfflo!Cilelhefr 
	Vfflo!Cilelhefr 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	2 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	\ 
	0 
	Q 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	J 
	0% 
	02 
	0 ,1 

	GnndTh•fl 
	GnndTh•fl 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	' 
	0 
	' 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	1 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	I 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	l 
	5 
	· 100¼ 
	03 
	0.6 

	Felll Tllen 
	Felll Tllen 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	2 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	, 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	l 
	1 
	0~ 
	0.3 
	01 

	Ma<'l'hot1 
	Ma<'l'hot1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	G 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	a 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	D 
	0 
	1 
	-100% 
	00 
	0 I 

	Rl:taYl'Mff 
	Rl:taYl'Mff 
	0 
	D 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0% 
	01 
	00 

	0'ln1flal Mllchle-1 
	0'ln1flal Mllchle-1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	I 
	0 
	1 
	2 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	1 
	0 
	3 
	2 
	200.., 
	03 
	0 2 

	Totals 
	Totals 
	3 
	4 
	1 
	4 
	2 
	3 
	1 
	0 
	8 
	3 
	6 
	2 
	1 
	16 
	1 
	4 
	6 
	5 
	15 
	0 
	3 
	0 
	4 
	0 
	29 
	41 
	25% 
	3.2 
	4.6 

	% Chang e 
	% Chang e 
	33% 
	.... ,-,. 
	50% 
	l'IA 
	-63% 
	-67% 
	1500% 
	300•~ 
	-17% 
	N'A 
	NA 
	l'IA 
	4 ... 
	.,. 

	,nn• 
	,nn• 
	Q I o 
	Q I a 
	a I J 
	> I U 
	u l 4 
	, I • 
	u I o 
	u I ~ 
	u• 
	I u 
	u 
	u I u 
	!z 


	Public Works Report 
	September 2019 
	September 2019 
	Public Works 
	Public Works 
	Summary: Public Works maintained all Pubiic facilities to include Library, City Hall, Freedom Park, Bronson Center, Old Public Works Facility, Courts, McManigle Park, Fishing Pier, New Public Work/Utility facilities, and Activity Center. 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Mowed and trimmed all City facilities 

	• 
	• 
	Inspected Freedom Park, Recreation Courts, Fishing Pier, and McManigle Park, 

	• 
	• 
	Activity Center -Set up and tear down of facility for Rental of Building, installed gutter. 

	• 
	• 
	Bronson Center-Set up and tear down of facility for Rental of Building 

	• 
	• 
	Monitored and serviced all storm drains throughout Polk City. 

	• 
	• 
	Completed Work Orders-11 (Repairs and Maintenance of Equipment, Electrical, plumbing, Building Maintenance, Vehicle Maintenance, etc.) 

	• 
	• 
	Installed new WIFI thermostats in City Buildings. 

	• 
	• 
	Installed new door locking system in City Government Center. 

	• 
	• 
	Installed new automatic locking system at Freedom Park. 

	• 
	• 
	Completed new fence at City Pier. 


	October Objectives: 
	October Objectives: 
	Continue maintaining the mowing and preventive maintenance of all City facilities, service equipment. Also install new shelves at Library. Work on Safe-Haven event. 
	UTILITY DEPARTM ENT 
	July 2.019 MONTHLY REPORT 
	Summary: Water/Wastewater continued to maintain sampling of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Continued to pull all samples for the Water Plants. All samples were in-compliance. Completed monthly MORs/DMR reports for DEP.. Met all of DEP requirements to keep Polk City in compliance. 
	• All lift stations continue to have preventive maintenance. We are continuing to get all Verbatims/Auto dialers running properly. Generators are being maintained. 

	Service Completed 
	Service Completed 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Monthly meter reading 

	• 
	• 
	No reads for the Utility Billing 

	• 
	• 
	Work Orders 304 

	• 
	• 
	22 
	Turn On 


	• 
	• 
	24 
	Turn off 


	• 
	• 
	Misc -(rereads, laptops, vacation turn on, TBO from shut off) -282 

	• 
	• 
	Fire Hydrant flushing and maintenance is being done weekly. 

	• 
	• 
	Valve exercising is being done weekly. 

	• 
	• 
	Continue preventative maintenance/housekeeping is being done. 

	• 
	• 
	WWTF is maintained by wasting, decanting, housekeeping. 


	August OBJECTIVES: Meet all DEP requirements to stay in compliance, continuing to maintain work orders and locates. 
	UTILITY DEPARTMENT 


	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 
	SEPTEMBER 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 
	SUMMARY: Water/Wastewater continued to maintain sampling of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Continued to pull all samples for the Water Plants. All samples were incompliance. Completed MORs/DMRs. Reports for DEP... Met all of DEP requirements to keep Polk City in compliance. Pulled all monitor well samples. Continue to do daily inspections on the New Reclaim Pond Relocation. Turn in monthly reports on the New Reclaim Ponds. Met with contractors on upgrading the water plant facilities. 
	SERVICE COMPLETED 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Monthly meter reading 

	• 
	• 
	No reads for the Utility Billing 

	• 
	• 
	Work orders 

	• 
	• 
	Turn Ons 

	• 
	• 
	Turn Offs 

	• 
	• 
	Misc -{rereads,laptops,vacation turnon, TBO from shut off)
	-


	• 
	• 
	Fire Hydrant flushing and maintenance is being done weekly. 

	• 
	• 
	Valve exercising is being done weekly 

	• 
	• 
	Continue preventative maintenance/housekeeping is being done 

	• 
	• 
	WWTF is maintained by wasting,decanting,housekeeping 


	OCTOBER OBJECTIVES: Meet all DEP requirements to stay in compliance, continuing to maintain work orders and locates. Property was cleared on back side of Ruth Rd. Preparing to Aquatic Spray the property per Lori Pearson's Aquatic Spraying Contractor License. Continue to work on replacing the doors at the water plants. 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	AGENDA ITEM #1: 
	AGENDA ITEM #1: 
	PUBLIC HEARING-Ordinance 2019-06 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; REVISING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT TO ADD THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE; TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR A FINDING OF COMPLIANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading 
	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 

	ISSUE: 
	ISSUE: 
	Ordinance 2019-06 is a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Comprehensive Plan to add the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use designation to the Future Land Use Element. 

	ATTACHMENTS: 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	-Ordinance 2019-06 
	-Staff Overview Report 

	ANALYSIS: 
	ANALYSIS: 
	The Commission passed Ordinance 2019-06 on First Reading August 19, 2019; and transmitted to DEO for review. 
	Upon review the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density (dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed-Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 2019-06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. 

	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	Adopt Ordinance 2019-06, with changes, on Second and Final Reading. 
	ORDINANCE 2019-06 
	AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; REVISING THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT TO ADD THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE; TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR A FINDING OF COMPLIANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA: 
	SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance and amending the City's Future Land Use Element, the City Commission of Polk City, Florida hereby makes the following findings: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, establishes the Community Planning Act ("Act"), which empowers and mandates Polk City, Florida (the "City") to plan for future development and growth and to adopt and amend comprehensive plans, or elements or portions thereof, to guide the future growth and development of the City. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Pursuant to the Act, the City has adopted a comprehensive plan ("Comprehensive Plan"). 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The Act authorizes a local government desiring to revise its comprehensive plan to prepare and adopt comprehensive plan amendments. 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The City has prepared a text amendment to the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan to amend Policies 4.2 and 4.3, which would create the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use designatior.. 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	In exercise of its authority the Commission has determined it necessary to adopt this amendment to the Plan, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and by this reference made a part hereof, to insure that the Plan is in full compliance with the laws of the State of Florida. 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, the City Commission held a meeting and hearing on Ordinance 2019-06, with due public notice having been provided, to ·obtain public comment, and considered all written and oral comments received during public hearings, including support documents. 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	In the exercise of its authority, the City Commission has determined that it is necessary to adopt the proposed text amendment to the Future Land Use Element contained herein to encourage the most appropriate use of land, water, and resources 


	1 
	consistent with the public interest; to deal effectively with future problems that may result from the use and development of land within the City; and to ensure that the Comprehensive Plan is in full compliance with State law. 
	(8) The City Commission finds that the proposed text amendment to the Future Land Use Element contained herein is in the best interests of the health, safety, and welfare of the general public and the City's residents, furthers the purposes of, and is consistent with, the City's Comprehensive Plan, and is consistent with and compliant with State law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes. 
	SECTION 2. FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT. The Future Land Use Element of the City's Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended to include the text amendment set forth in Exhibit "A," which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and which amends Policies 4.2 and 4.3 to create the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use designation. 
	SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any c:ourt of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
	SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All existing ordinances or parts of existing ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
	SECTION 5. CODIFICATION. An official, true and correct copy of this Ordinance and the City's Comprehensive Plan, as adopted and amended from time to time, shall be maintained by the City Clerk. The City Clerk will make copies available to the public for a reasonable publication charge. 
	SECTION 6. TRANSMITTAL. Within ten (10) days of final passage and adoption of this Ordinance, the City shall forward a copy hereof, and all supporting data and analysis, to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity and any other agency or local govemment that provided timely comments to the City, as required by Section 163.3184)(3)(c)2, Florida Statutes. 
	SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Plan amendment, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 45 days after the State Land Planning Agency notifies the local government that the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this amendment shall become effective on the date the State Land Planning Agency or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining this adopted amendment to be in compliance. No development orders, development permits, or land uses 
	2 
	INTRODUCED AND PASSED on First Reading this 19day of August, 2019. 
	th 

	POLK CITY, FLORIDA 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CORRECTNESS: 
	Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this ___day of October, 2019. 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	ATTEST: 
	Patr
	icia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	3 
	EXHIBIT "A" POLK CITY ORDINANCE 2019-06 AMENDED FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT Proposed Text Amendments to the Future Land Use. Element 
	The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
	Policy 4.2: The following land use categories are hereby established for the purpose of managing future development and redevelopment activities. The Future Land use categories are identified by location in the Polk City Exemption Area, Polk City Special Protection Area and Polk County Rural Special Protection Area: 
	a. Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories 
	Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element provides density and intensity standards for the following Future Land Use categories. 
	i. Residential Very Low Density 
	ii. Residential Low Density 
	iii. Residential Medium Density 
	iv. 
	iv. 
	iv. 
	Mixed Use 

	V. 
	V. 
	Commercial 


	vi. Industrial 
	vii. Public Use 
	viii. Recreation 
	ix. 
	ix. 
	ix. 
	Conservation 

	X. 
	X. 
	Conservation/ Passive Recreation 


	4 
	Policy 4.3: Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories and Description. The following Future Land Use Categories are located within the Polk City Exemption Area. Policy 4.1.a. provides a description of the Polk City Exemption Area. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	The primary function of the Residential Very Low Density classification is to accommodate very low density residential development consisting of single family dwellings. This category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, along with structures accessory to residential use. Maximum density is 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres for single family uses; agricultural uses are permissible in this category, with or without a dwelling unit included; single family homes with horses are allowed, one home per 

	b. 
	b. 
	The primary function of the Residential Low Density classification is to accommodate low density residential development consisting of single family dwellings. This category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, along with structures accessory to residential use. Maximum density is four dwelling units per acre. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to residential neighborhoods. 

	c. 
	c. 
	The primary function of the Residential Medium Density classification is to accommodate multi-family residential development. Permitted uses include duplexes, apartments, condominiums, manufactured (mobile) home parks or subdivisions, RV parks, and single family homes. Intensity is one single family home per lot; or one duplex per lot; or two buildings of five units each per lot. Maximum density is 10.0 residential dwe!ling units per acre. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to r


	Ordinance 1239-A: The 63.29 +/-acres located in Sections 28 and 33, Township 26 South, Range 25 East; generally located on Smith Road in the eastern quadrant of the City, shall be 
	5 
	designated "Residential Medium" on the Future Land Use Map; shall be developed with central potable water and sewer and shall be limited to a residential density not to exceed 861 dwelling units (achieved by a density of 6.68 dwelling units per acre on the 63.29 acres, and a density transfer of 6.68 dwelling units per acre from the 65.58 acres of Conservation directly adjacent to the RM); and shall be subject to other applicable land development regulations within the City. (Ordinance 1239-A, December 9, 20
	g. Mixed Use: The primary function of the Mixed Use classification is to apply to developments in which a mix of residential and non-residential uses (commercial. office, light industrial. institutional, and civic uses) are planned. ''fbe maximum density aflowed . is 1O dwelling units per acre. The maximum floor area ratio allowed is 1.Q. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences, shops. work places.
	a~. The primary function of the Commercial classification is to accommodate the shopping needs of residents living in and near Polk City. The Commercial classification permits neighborhood service commercial uses; and accommodates traditional retail commercial needs of the market area both along the highway and in the downtown core of the market area. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to commercial areas. Floor area ratio for commercial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 
	ef. The primary function of the Industrial classification is to accommodate the industrial needs of the market area, both light industry and heavy industry. This category permits vocational and technical schools and other public uses appropriate to industrial areas. Floor area ratio for industrial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 
	fg. The primary function of the Public Uses classification is to provide for areas for existing or future government-owned or leased buildings or grounds including schools, libraries, medical facilities, parks and open space areas; and private buildings or grounds such as hospitals, camps, clubs, private schools, museums and similar land uses. Floor area ratio for 
	6 
	public and private use structures under this classification shall not exceed 0.35. For schools, one residential unit per school is permitted to accommodate an on-site security guard/ caretaker. For parks, one residential unit per 40 acres is permitted to accommodate an on-site security guard/ park ranger. 
	9b_. The primary function of the Recreation classification is to provide for areas for existing or future public parks, recreation uses and open space areas. Permitted uses include public open space, recreation areas and parks; and private parks and recreation uses, such as golf courses. All recreation uses within Polk City shall be included in this category. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot cove
	hi. The primary function of the Conservation classification is to protect natural resources, improve lake, r1ver and groundwater quality. The Conservation designation includes land within the 100-year floodplain of any lake or river; wetlands; soils-limited areas; wellhead protection areas; and ancient scrub lands. No development is allowed in conservation areas. One dwelling unit per park is allowed_ for caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot
	ii, The primary function of the Conservation/Passive Recreation classification is to protect natural resources while allowing passive recreation. Commercial uses such as equipment rental shops and snack huts are permissible to serve the users of the recreation area. Passive recreation land uses, such as boat docks, beaches and hiking trails are permissible. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot covera
	t.!s-Public schools are allowed in all land use classifications except Polk City's Future Land Use classifications of Conservation and Conservation/ Passive Recreation. This 
	7 
	provision applies to lands contiguous to existing schools, as well as development of vacant land for new schools. Further, Polk City hereby encourages the co-location of public facilities such as parks, libraries, and community centers, with schools, when planning and reviewing a proposed site for new or expanded facilities, and shall adopt criteria for collocation in the Unified Land Development Code. 
	8 
	Figure
	TEXT AMENDMENT FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE POLK CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
	OCTOBER 21, 2019 
	TO: POLK CITY COMMISSION 
	FROM: CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
	SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2019-06: City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Comprehensive Plan to add the "Mixed Use" Future Land Use designation to the Future Land Use Element. 
	AGENDA & HEARING DATES: May 30, 2019 at 6:00 PM: Planning Commission Hearing August 19, 2019, 7:00 PM: City Commission (First Reading, Public Transmittal Hearing) 
	October 21, 2019, 7:00 PM: City Commission Meeting (Second Reading, Public Adoption Hearing) 
	POLK CITY PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
	POLK CITY PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
	On Thursday, May 30, 2019, the Polk City Planning Commission held a public Hearing to amend the Polk City Comprehensive Plan to create a new Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the City Commission with a recommendation of approval. 

	POLK CITY COMMISSION ACTION: 
	POLK CITY COMMISSION ACTION: 
	On Monday, August 19, 2019, the Polk City Commission held a public hearing on Ordinance 2019-06 and voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for review. 

	FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY REVIEW: 
	FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY REVIEW: 
	The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density ( dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 201906 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. 
	-


	CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS: 
	CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	I move the City Commission adopt with changes Ordinance 2019-06 on second reading. 

	2. 
	2. 
	I move the City Commission not adopt Ordinance 2019-06 on second reading. 




	OVERVIEW REPORT: 
	OVERVIEW REPORT: 
	The Future Land Use Element of the Polk City Comprehensive Plan currently provides for the 
	following Future land Use designations within the Green Swamp Exemption Area ofthe City. 
	Residential Very Low Density 
	Residential Low Density 
	Residential Medium Density 
	Commercial 
	Industrial 
	Public Use 
	Recreation 
	Conservation 
	Conservation/ Passive Recreation Staff has determined that a new Future Land Use designation of "Mixed Use" should be added to the Comprehensive Plan. Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple or mixed uses which require specific or selected land use districts. This type of flexible land use category is not set forth by the City's existing Future Land Use designations. 
	The proposed text to be added to Policy 4.2 and as Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element is provided below. All subsequent policies will be renumbered. 
	Page 2 
	PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
	PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
	The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
	Policy 4.2: The following land use categories are hereby established for the purpose of managing future development and redevelopment activities. The Future Land use categories are identified by location in the Polk City Exemption Area, Polk City Special Protection Area and Polk County Rural Special Protection Area: 
	a. Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories 
	Policy 4.3 of the Future Land Use Element provides density and intensity standards for the following Future Land Use categories. 
	1. Residential Very Low Density 
	11. Residential Low Density 
	m. 
	m. 
	m. 
	Residential Medium Density Iv. Mixed Use 

	v. 
	v. 
	Commercial v1. Industrial 


	VIL Public Use v111. Recreation 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	Conservation 

	x. 
	x. 
	Conservation/ Passive Recreation 


	Policy 4.3: Polk City Exemption Area Future Land Use Categories and Description. The following Future Land Use Categories are located within the Polk City Exemption Area. Policy 4.1.a. provides a description of the Polk City Exemption Area. 
	a. The primary function of the Residential Very Low Density classification is to accommodate very low density residential development consisting of single family dwellings. This category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, along with 
	Page 3 
	structures accessory to residential use. Maximum density is 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres for single family uses; agricultural uses are permissible in this category, with or without a dwelling unit included; single family homes whh horses are allowed, one home per lot and a minimum density of 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres. This category allows for the establishment of 1 manufactured (mobile) home per 5 acres for undeveloped and previously unplatted areas having severe soil suitability for septic tanks and build
	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	The primary function of the Residential Low Density classification is to accommodate low density residential development consisting of single family dwellings. This category permits one single family dwelling unit on each lot, along with structures accessory to residential use. Maximum density is four dwelling units per acre. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to residential neighborhoods. 

	c. 
	c. 
	The primary function ofthe Residential Medium Density classification is to accommodate multi-family residential development. Permitted uses include duplexes, apartments, condominiums, manufactured (mobile) home park£ or subdivisions, RV parks, and single family homes. Intensity is one single family home per lot; or one duplex per lot; or two buildings of five units each per lot. Maximum density is 


	10.0 residential dwelling units per acre. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to residential neighborhoods. 
	Ordinance 1239-A: The 63.29 +/-acres located in Sections 28 and 33, Township 26 South, Range 25 East; generally located on Smith Road in the eastern quadrant of the City, shall be designated "Residential Medium" on the Future Land Use Map; shall be developed with central potable water and sewer and shall be limited to a residential density not to exceed 861 dwelling units ( achieved by a density of 6.68 dwelling units per acre on the 63.29 acres, and a density transfer of 
	6.68 dwelling units per acre from the 65.58 acres of Conservation directly adjacent to the RM); and shall be subject to other applicable land development regulations within the City. (Ordinance 1239-A, December 9, 2008, adoption) 
	g. Mixed Use: The primary function of the Mixed Use classification is to aµply to developments in which a mix of residential and non-residential uses (commercial, office, light industrial, institutional, and civic uses) are planned.. The maximum density allowed is 1 O dwelling units per acre. the maximum floor area ratio allowed is 1..0. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences, shops, work places, 
	Page4 
	shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian access. 
	a~. The primary function of the Commercial classification is to accommodate the shopping needs of residents living in and near Polk City. The Commercial classification permits neighborhood service commercial uses; and accommodates traditional retail commercial needs of the market area both along the highway and in the downtown core of the market area. This category permits schools and other public uses appropriate to commercial areas. Floor area ratio for commercial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 
	ef. The primary function ofthe Industrial classification is to accommodate the industrial needs of the market area, both light industry and heavy industry. This category permits vocational and technical schools and other public uses appropriate to industrial areas. Floor area ratio for industrial structures shall not exceed 0.35. 
	ig. The primary function of the Public Uses classification is to provide for areas for existing or future government-owned or leased buildings or grounds including schools, libraries, medical facilities, parks and open space areas; and private buildings or grounds such as hospitals, camps, clubs, private schools, museums and similar land uses. Floor area ratio for public and private use structures under this classification shall not exceed 0.35. For schools, one residential unit per school is permitted to a
	gl!. The primary function of the Recreation classification is to provide for areas for existing or future public parks, recreation uses and open space areas. Permitted uses include public open space, recreation areas and parks; and private parks and recreation uses, such as golf courses. All recreation uses within Polk City shall be included in this category. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot cove
	fli. The primary function of the Conservation classification is to protect natural resources, improve lake, river and groundwater quality. The Conservation designation includes land within the 100-year floodplain of any lake or river; wetlands; soils-limited areas; wellhead protection areas; and ancient scrub lands. No development is allowed in conservation areas. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park rangers, with the density not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot
	Page 5 
	ij. The primary function of the Conservation/Passive Recreation classification is to protect natural resources while allowing passive recreation. Commercial uses such as equipment rental shops and snack huts are permissible to serve the users of the recreation area. Passive recreation land uses, such as boat docks, beaches and hiking trails are permissible. One dwelling unit per park is allowed for caretakers and park rangers, with the derisity not to exceed one dwelling unit per 20 acres. Maximum lot cover
	ik-Public schools are allowed in all land use classifications except Polk City's Future Land Use classifications of Conservation and Conservation/ Passive Recreation. This provision applies to lands contiguous to existing schools, as well as development of vacant land for new schools. Further, Polk City hereby encourages the co-location of public facilities such as parks, libraries, and community centers, with schools, when planning and reviewing a proposed site for new or expanded facilities, anrl shall ad
	Page 6 

	Ron DeSantis Ken Lawson 
	Ron DeSantis Ken Lawson 
	Figure

	GOVERNOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FLORIDA DEPARTMENT ,f ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 
	October 10, 2019 
	The Honorable Joe LaCascia Mayor, City of Polk City 123 Broadway Boulevard Southeast Polk City, Florida 33868 
	Dear Mayor LaCascia: 
	The Department of Economic Opportunity ("Department'') has reviewed the City of Polk City proposed comprehensive plan amendment (Amendment No. 19-02ESR), received on September 12, 2019, pursuant to the expedited state review process in Section 163.3184(2)(3}, Florida Statutes (F.S.). We have identified no comment related to adverse impacts to important state resources and facilities within the Department's authorized scope of review. 
	We are, however, providing a technical assistance comment consistent with Sectiqn 163.3168(3), F.S. The technical assistance comment will not form the basis of a challenge. It is offered either as a suggestion which can strengthen the City's comprehensive plan in order to foster a vibrant, healthy community or is technical in nature and designed to ensure consistency with the Community Planning Act in Chapter 163, Part 11, F.S. The technicc1I assistance comment is: 
	The proposed amendment to Future Land Use Element Policies 4.2 and 4.3.d establishes the uMixed Use" future land use category for the Polk City Exemption Area. The proposed Mixed Use category allows residential and various non-residential (commercial, office, light industrial, institutional, and civic uses) land uses. The proposed amendment does not establish a density standard for the residential use and an intensity standard for the non-residential uses allowed within the Mixed Use category. Section 163.3
	The City should act by choosing to adopt, adopt with changes, or not adopt the proposed amendment. For your assistance, we have enclosed the procedures for adoption and transmittal of the comprehensive plan amendment. In addition, the City is reminded that: 
	• Section 163.3184{3){b), F.S., authorizes other reviewing agencies to provide comments directly to the City. If the City receives reviewing agency comments and they are not resolved, these comments could form the basis for a challenge to the amendment after adoption. 
	Florida Department of Economic Opportunity I Caldwell Building 1107 E. Madison Street ITallahassee, FL 32399 850.245.7105 I
	www.FloridaJobs.org 
	www.twitter.com/FLDEO 1www.facebook.com/FLDEO 

	An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and service are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers on this document may be reached by persons using TTYITTD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 
	The Honorable Joe LaCascia, Mayor October 10, 2019 Page 2 of2 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The second public hearing, which shall be a hearing on whether to adopt.one or more comprehensive plan amendments, must be held within 180 days of your receipt of agency comments or the amendment shall be deemed withdrawn unless extended by agreement with notice to the Department and any affected party that provided comment on the amendment pursuant to Section 163.3184{3)(c)l., F.$. 

	• 
	• 
	The adopted amendment must be rendered to the Department. Under Section 163.3184(3)(c)2. and 4., F.S., the amendment effective date is 31 days after the Department notifies the City that the amendment package is complete or, if challenged, until it is found to be in compliance by the Department or the Administration Commission. 


	If you have any questions concerning this review, please contact Scott Rogers, Planning Analyst, by telephone at (850) 717-8510 or by email at . 
	scott.rogers@deo.myflorida.com

	IJffJ!MP"" ;J. 
	J es D. Stansbury, Chief ureau of Community Planning and Growth 
	JDS/ sr 
	Enclosure(s}: Procedures for Adoption 
	cc: Kathy Delp, Development Services Director, Polk City Patricia Steed, Executive Director, Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
	SUBMITTAL OF ADOPTED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR EXPEDITED STATE REVIEW 
	Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes 
	NUMBER OF COPIES TO BE SUBMlmD: Please submit three complete copies of all comprehensive plan materials, of which one complete paper copy and two complete electronic copies on CD ROM in Portable Document Format (PDF) to the State Land Planning Agency and one copy to each entity below that provided timely comments to the local government: the appropriate Regional Planning Council; Water Management District; Department of Transportation; Department of Environmental Protection; Department of State; the appropr
	governmental agency that has filed a written request. 
	SUBMITTAL LETTER: Please include the following information in the cover letter transmitting the adopted amendment: 
	__State Land Planning Agency identification number for adopted amendment package; __Summary description of the adoption package, including any amendments proposed but not adopted; 
	__Identify if concurrency has been rescinded and indicate for which public facilities. (Transportation, schools, recreation and open space). 
	__Ordinance number and adoption date; __Certification that the adopted amendment(s) has been submitted to all parties that provided timely comments to the local government; 
	__Name, title, address, telephone, FAX number and e-mail address of local government contact; __Letter signed by the chief elected officia I or the person designated by the local government. 
	Revised: June 2018 Page 1 
	ADOPTION AMENDMENT PACKAGE: Please include the following information in the amendment package: 
	__In the case of text amendments, changes shoulc:4 be shown in strike-through/underline format. 
	___ In the case of future land use map amendments, an adopted future land use map, in color format, clearly depicting the parcel, its future land use designation, and its adopted designation. 
	__A copy of any data and analyses the local government deems appropriate. · 
	Note: If the.local government is relying on previously submitted data and analysis, no additional data and analysis is required; 
	__Copy of the executed ordinance adopting the comprehensive plan amendment(s); 
	Suggested effective date language for the adoption ordinance for expedited review: 
	"The effective date of this plan amendment, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that the plan amendment package is complete. If the amendment is timely challenged, this amendment shall become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining this adopted amendment to be in compliance." 
	__List of additional changes made in the adopted amendment that the State Land Planning Agency did not previously review; 
	__List of findings of the local governing body, if any, that were not included in the ordinance and which provided the basis of the adoption or determination not to adopt the proposed amendment; 
	__Statement indicating the relationship of the additional changes not previously reviewed by the State Land Planning Agency in response to the comment letter from the State Land Planning Agency. 
	Revised: June 2018 Page2 
	AGENDA ITEM #2: 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	PUBLIC HEARING -ORDINANCE 2019-07-AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING ARTICLE 2, REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, INCLUDING ADDING A NEW ZONING DISTRICT AS SECTION MU MIXED USE DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading 
	2.04.02.17 

	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: 
	Ordinance 2019-07 is a City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development Code to add the "Mixed Use" Zoning District to Article 2 -Regulations for Specific Districts. 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	-Ordinance 2019-07 
	-Staff Overview Report 
	ANALYSIS: 
	The Commission passed Ordinance 2019-07 on first reading August 19, 2019 and submitted to DEO for review. 
	Upon review the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density (dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed-Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 2019-06 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. The text for the zoning has also been modified to address density and intensity as well -respecting the existing City zoning districts. 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	Adopt Ordinance 2019-07, with changes, on Second and Final Reading 
	ORDINANCE 2019-07 
	AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING ARTICLE 2, REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, INCLUDING ADDING A NEW ZONING DISTRICT AS SECTION MU ~IXED USE DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES; PROVIDJNG FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
	2.04.02.17 

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA: 
	SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance and amending the City's Unified Land Development Code, the City Commission of Polk City, Florida hereby makes the following findings: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Section 163.3167(c), Florida Statutes, empowers the City to adopt land development regulations to guide the growth and development of the City. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Pursuant to state law, the City adopted a unified land development code ("Land Development Code"). 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The City has prepared a text amendment to Article 2 -Regulations for Specific Districts to Table 3 -Zoning Districts Name and new Mixed Use Zoning District. 
	Section 2.04.02.17 adding the 


	(4) 
	(4) 
	The City Commission of Polk City has determined it necessary and desirable to amend the regulations to allow for the new Mixed Use Zoning District. 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Pursuant to Section 166.041 (c)2, Florida Statutes, the Planning Commission and the City Commission have held duly advertised and noticed public meetings and hearings to obtain public comment for the purpose of amending the Unified Land Development Code as presented in the exhibit attached to and incorporated in this Ordinance as Exhibit "A". 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Having considered written and oral comments received during public hearings, the City Commission find the changes necessary and appropriate to the needs of the City. 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	The City Commission finds that the proposed text amendment to the Land Development Code is in the best interests of tha health,· safety, and welfare of the general public and the City's residents, further the purposes of, and is consistent with the City's Land Development Code, and is consistent with and compliant with State law, including, but not limited to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes. 


	SECTION 2. LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT. Article 2 -Regulations for Specific Districts is hereby amended to include the text set forth in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and included herein by reference, which amends Table 3 and creates a new MU Mixed Use Zoning District. 
	Section 2.04.02.17 

	SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
	SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All existing ordinances or parts of existing ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
	SECTION 5. CODIFICATION. An official, true and correct copy of this Ordinance and the City's Comprehensive Plan, as adopted and amended from time to time, shall be maintained by the City Clerk. The City Clerk will make copies available to the public for a reasonable publication charge. 
	SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be effective 10 days after passage upon Second Reading. 
	INTRODUCED, PASSED on FIRST READING, this 19day of August, 2019. 
	th 

	POLK CITY, FLORIDA 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CORRECTNESS 
	Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this _ day of October, 2019. 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	ATTEST: 
	POLK CITY ORDINANCE 2019-07 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	Page 2 
	EXHIBIT "A" 
	AMENDMENTS TO 
	ARTICLE 2 -REGULATIONS FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICTS 
	The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
	Table 3
	Table 3
	Table 3
	-

	Zoning District Name 

	Zoning Districts Map 
	Zoning Districts Map 

	Designation 
	Designation 

	AG1 
	AG1 
	Agriculture 

	AG2 
	AG2 
	Single Family Residential Plus Horses 

	R1 
	R1 
	Single Family Residential 

	R2 
	R2 
	Single Family Residential 

	R3 
	R3 
	Single Family and Duplex Residential 

	R4 
	R4 
	Mixed Residential Use 

	RS 
	RS 
	Multi Family Residential 

	MH 
	MH 
	Mobile Home Park 

	C1 
	C1 
	Residential, Business and Professional District 

	C2 
	C2 
	General Commercial 

	M1 
	M1 
	Light Industrial 

	M2 
	M2 
	Heavy Industrial 

	PB 
	PB 
	Public Buildings and Grounds 

	PR 
	PR 
	Public Recreation 

	CON 
	CON 
	Conservation 

	PD 
	PD 
	Planned Unit Development 

	MU 
	MU 
	Mixed Use 


	Page 3 
	2.04.02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 
	The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 
	2. 04.02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 
	The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 
	MU Mixed Use District 
	2.04.02.17 

	(A) FLUM Designation: 
	Mixed Use 
	ill)_ Purpose: 
	To designate areas within Polk City in which proposed development encompasses a mix of residential and non-residential uses (commercial. office. lieht industrial. institutional. and civic uses) are planned. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences. shops, work places, parks. and other urban uses shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian a
	_(Q Permitted Principal Uses & Structures: l"h.e City'.s residential and non--residential zomng districts provide the .. list of permitted uses in ~~. d.i~tfi~t. Uses permitted in this district are detailed in the Table of Land Uses in Section 
	2.04.0 1, Table 4 in the residential and commercial zoning districts. Permitted uses are desitmated by the letter "P". Uses designated by the letter "D" are also permitted. but require the submission and approval of a Site Development Plan prior to application for a Development Permit. Review of an application for approval of a Site Development Plan is governed by Article 7. 
	@Accessory Uses: 
	Accessory uses and structures customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted principal uses and structures: provided. however. that no accessory structures shall be located on property other than that on which the principal structure i~ located. Section 2.05 contains detailed guidance and regulations for permitted accessory uses. 
	.(fil Development Standards: Development standards for uses in this district are detailed in the Table of Development Standards in Section 2.04.01. Table 5. Specifically. standards are established for Maximum Density: Minimum Lot Size: Minimum Lot Width: Minimum Lot Depth; Mimmum Floor Area; Floor Area Ratio (as applicable): Setbacks: Maximum Lot Coverage: and Maximum Building Heit!ht. The City's residential and non-residential zomng districts provide the. alfowa:I,le 
	-~-· .------.. ..... .. -··--·-.. ·-·-----------··-" 
	&ses.and. d:ensim, ~ cl1Ill~t1siori~l standards. 
	!El Other Requirements: none. 
	Page 4 
	Figure
	TEXT AMENDMENT 
	TEXT AMENDMENT OF THE POLK CITY LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 
	OCTOBER 21, 2019 
	TO: POLK CITY COMMISSION 
	FROM: CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
	SUBJECT: Ordinance 2019-07: City-initiated text amendment to the Polk City Land Development Code to add the "Mixed Use" Zoning District to Article 2 -Regulations for Specific Districts. 
	AGENDA & HEARING DATES: May 30, 2019 at 6:00 PM: Planning Commission Hearing August 19, 2019 at 7:00 PM: City Commission (First Reading, Public Transmittal Hearing) 
	October 21, 2019 at 7:00 PM: City Commission Meeting (Second Reading, Public Adoption Hearing) 
	PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
	On Thursday, May 30, 2019, the Polk City Planning Commission held a public Hearing to amend the Polk City Comprehensive Plan to create a new Zoning District titled of Mixed Use. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to forward the proposed amendment to the City Commission with a recommendation of approval. 
	POLK CITY COMMISSION ACTION: 
	On Monday, August 19, 2019, the Polk City Commission held first reading on Ordinance 2019-07 and voted unanimously to approve the ordinance on first reading. 
	AMENDMENT CHANGES SINCE FIRST READING: 
	The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity has requested a maximum density ( dwelling units per acre) and intensity (floor area ratio) be provided for the new Mixed Use Future Land Use. Ordinance 201906 has been revised to reflect the maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre and a maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 for non-residential uses. The text for the zoning has also been modified to address density and intensity as well -respecting the existing City zoning districts. 
	-

	CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	I move the City Commission approve with changes Ordinance 2019-07 on Second Reading. 

	2. 
	2. 
	I move the City Commission deny Ordinance 2019-07 on Second Reading. 


	OVERVIEW REPORT: 
	Article 2 of the Polk City Land Development Code currently provides for the following Zoning Districts within the Green Swamp Exemption Area ofthe City. The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highfighteid has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
	Table 3-Zoning District Name Zoning Districts Map Designation 
	AG1 Agriculture 
	AG2 Single Family Residential Plus Horses 
	R1 Single Family Residential 
	R2 Single Family Residential 
	R3 Single Family and Duplex Residential 
	R4 Mixed Residential Use 
	RS Multi Family Residential 
	MH Mobile Home Park 
	C1 Residential, Business and Professional District 
	C2 General Commercial 
	M1 Light Industrial 
	M2 Heavy Industrial 
	PB Public Buildings and Grounds 
	PR Public Recreation 
	CON Conservation 
	PD Planned Unit Development 
	MU Mixed Use 
	Staff has determined that a new Zoning District of "Mixed Use" should be added to the Land Development Code. Mixed Use will allow for developments that are comprised of multiple or mixed uses which require specific or selected land use districts. This type of flexible land use category is not set forth by the City's existing Zoning Districts. 
	The proposed text to be added to Section 2.04.02 of Article 2 ofthe Land Development Code. All subsequent regulations will be renumbered. 
	Page 2 
	PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
	The proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are provided below. Text that is underlined is text to be added and text that is shown as strikeout is to be removed. Text that is highlighted has been added to address comments from the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
	2.04.02 Establishment ofZoning Districts 
	The following zoning designations are hereby established within the City of Polk City: 
	MU Mixed Use District 
	2.04.02.17 

	@FLUMDesiznation: 
	Mixed Use 
	@Purpose: 
	To designate areas within Polk City in which proposed development encompasses a mix of residential and non-residential uses (commercial, office. light industrial. institutional, and civic uses) are planned. Such development shall be served by central water and wastewater services. A balanced mix of residential and non-residential uses including residences. shops. work places. parks, and other urban uses shall allow for internal capture of daily trips as well as interconnectivity for vehicle and pedestrian a
	.(Q Permitted Principal Uses & Structures: 
	The City's residential and non--residential zoning districts provide the list of permittec.i 11st:is in this district. Uses permitted in this district are detailed in the Table of Land Uses in Section 2.04.01. Table 4 in the residential and commercial zoning districts. Permitted uses are designated by the letter "P". Uses designated by the letter "D" are also permitted. but require the submission and approval of a Site Development Plan prior to application for a Development Permit. Review of an application 
	.{Q)_Accesson Uses: Accessory uses and structures customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted principal uses and structures: provided. however. that no accessory structures shall be located on propertv other than that on which the principal structure is located. Section 2.05 contains detailed guidance and regulations for permitted accessory uses. 
	® Development Standards: Development standards for uses in this district are detailed in the Table of Development Standards in Section 2.04.01. Table 5. Specifically, standards are established for Maximum Density: Minimum Lot Size: Minimum Lot Width: Minimum Lot Depth: Minimum Floor Area: Floor Area Ratio {as applicable): Setbacks: Maximum Lot 
	Page 3 
	Coverage; and Maximum Building Height. The City's residential and non-residentiaj _~C)Bm:g districts provide the allowable uses and density and standards. 
	dimension.al 

	ill Other Requirements: none. 
	Page 4 
	AGENDA ITEM #3: 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	PUBLIC HEARING -ORDINANCE 2018-13 -AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE FINAL BUDGET; REALLOCATING AND REAPPROPRIATING MONIES WITHIN THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019; PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER ITEMS IN THE BUDGET OF EXPENSES TO REMAIN UNCHANGED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
	First Reading 
	__INFORMATION ONLY _x_ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: 
	Ordinance 2019-13, Providing for the Amendment of the Final Budget for FY 2018-2019 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	Ordinance 2019-13, with exhibits 
	ANALYSIS: 
	The City is required to amend a budget if the expenditures exceed the amount that was budgeted in a fiscal year. During the fiscal year of 2018-2019, the Commission approved the S.R. 33 Sprayfield Relocation Project, which was not a budgeted item. 
	The total FY 2018-2019 budget will go from $5,816,701 to $7,652,288 (an increase of $1,835,587) 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	Approve Ordinance 2019-13 on First Reading. 
	ORDINANCE 2019-13 
	ORDINANCE 2019-13 
	AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE FINAL BUDGET; REALLOCATING AND REAPPROPRIATING MONIES WITHIN THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019; PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER ITEMS IN THE BUDGET OF EXPENSES TO REMAIN UNCHANGED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
	WHEREAS, the City Commission of Polk City did on September 24, 2019 adopt a final budget for Polk City through and by Ordinance 2019-11; and, 
	WHEREAS, Polk City Code of Ordinances (the "Code") sets the level of budgetary control at the fund level; and, 
	WHEREAS, in order to comply with the Code, it is necessary to amend the final budget for fiscal year 2018-2019; 
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA: 

	SECTION 1. REAPPROPRIATED REVENUE: MODIFIED BUDGET. 
	SECTION 1. REAPPROPRIATED REVENUE: MODIFIED BUDGET. 
	The final budget for Polk City for the fiscal year 2018-2019 shall be set forth in the Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as "Exhibit A-1 and A-2", with any modifications adopted at 
	th
	th
	18

	the public hearing held on the day of November, 2019 as shown by the changed figures for any such items changed. If there are no changes to the figures in the proposed columns, then the figures and the budget adopted for fiscal year 2018-2019 shall stand as the final budget for that fiscal year. The revenue received by the Polk City, Florida, from the sources of revenue identified in Exhibit A-1 and A-2 are not otherwise allocated or pledged are hereby reappropriated and re-designated for the payment of ge
	SECTION 2. CONFLICTS. All other provisions of Ordinance No. 2019-11 and the 2018-2019 budget of expenses which are not in conflict with this or any part of the Ordinance shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
	SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the 
	I 
	invalid provIsIons or applications, and to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable. 
	SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption as a non-emergency ordinance in accordance with chapter 166, Florida Statutes. 
	INTRODUCED AND PASSED on first reading in regular session of the City Commission of Polk City this the __ day of ______ , 2019. 
	ATTEST: APPROVED: 
	ATTEST: APPROVED: 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	PASSED AND CERTIFIED AS TO PASSAGE on the second reading by the City Commission of the City of Polk City, Florida, at regular session this __· day of 
	_____,2019 
	ATTEST: APPROVED: 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 

	APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY 
	Thomas A Cloud, City Attorney 
	2 
	EXHIBIT "A-1" FY 2019 Budget Summary 
	Original Total 
	Original Total 
	Original Total 
	Amended Budget 

	Funds 
	Funds 
	Budget 
	Chance In Amount to Budget 
	Amount 

	General Fund 
	General Fund 
	$2,782,476.00 
	$0.00 
	$2,782,476.00 

	Enterprise Fund 
	Enterprise Fund 
	$3,034,225.00 
	$1,835,587.00 
	$4,869,812.00 


	Total $$$
	Total $$$
	5,816,701.00 
	1,835,587.00 
	7,652,288.00 

	EXHIBIT "A-2" 
	EXHIBIT "A-2" 
	EXHIBIT "A-2" 

	Polk City Budget Amendment FY 2018 
	Polk City Budget Amendment FY 2018 

	Enterprise Fund 
	Enterprise Fund 

	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	Amended 
	Amended 

	_G.L. Account 
	_G.L. Account 
	Original 
	Chance In 
	Budget 

	Number 
	Number 
	Account Description 
	Budget 
	Amount 
	Amount 

	05-331-350 
	05-331-350 
	Sewer /Wastewater Grants 
	$0.00 
	$1,707,587.00 
	$1,707,587.00 

	05-331-370 
	05-331-370 
	Small Community Wastewater Grant 
	$0.00 
	$128,000.00 
	$128,000.00 


	Total $0.00 $$
	1,835,587.00 
	1,835,587.00 

	Expenditures 
	Amended 
	G.L. Account Original Chance In Budget
	-
	Number Account Description Budget Amount Amount 
	Number Account Description Budget Amount Amount 
	05-535-650 Construction in Progress $0.00 $$
	1,835,587.00 
	1,835,587.00 

	Total $0.00 $$
	1,835,587.00 
	1,835,587.00 

	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	AGENDA ITEM #4: Resolution 2019-05 -Approving execution of an Intergovernmental Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation 
	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: 
	Resolution 2019-05 -approving execution of an Intergovernmental Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation. 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	Resolution 2019-05 
	Maintenance Agreement 
	ANALYSIS: 
	Polk City currently as a three-year maintenance agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation for the maintenance of the State Rights of Way in Polk City. That agreement expires November 2, 2019. 
	Attached for your review is the new three-year Maintenance Agreement, which will be increased from $per year (quarterly payments) to $per year (quarterly payments); this is an 
	16,303.83 
	17,872.64 
	increase of $1,568.81. 

	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	Approve Resolution 2019-05 -the execution of the three-year lnterlocal Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation. 
	RESOLUTION 2019-05 
	A RESOLUTION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REGARDING THE MAINTENANCE OF THE STATE ROAD RIGHTS OF WAY IN POLK CITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
	WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation desires to enter an agreement entitled STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT and classified as Contract No.BE877; FM NO: 432727-1-78-33, for the maintenance of the state road rights of way, and 
	WHEREAS, the Commission of Polk City, Florida determines it is beneficial to the City to enter into such agreement. 
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF POLK CITY THAT: 
	SECTION 1 -RECITALS INCORPORATED. 
	The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein. 
	SECTION 2 -AUTHORIZATION. 
	The Mayor of Polk City is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of Polk City, the State of Florida Department of Transportation Maintenance Agreement, which is attached hereto for the maintenance of state road rights of way as outlined in the Agreement. 
	SECTION 3 -EFFECTIVE DATE 
	This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 
	PASSED AND CERTIFIED AS TO PASSAGE this the 21 day of October, 
	st 

	2019. 
	Polk City 
	Joe LaCascia, Mayor 
	ATTEST 
	Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk 
	APPROVED AS TO CONTENT AND FORM 
	Thomas Cloud, Esquire 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	FM NO.: FM #432727-1-78-33 Page I of7 
	STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
	This is an Agreement by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, an Agency ofthe State ofFlorida, (hereinafter, "DEPARTMENT") and CITY OF POLK CITY (hereinafter, "AGENCY") for the AGENCY to provide maintenance services. 
	WITNESSETH 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	WHEREAS, the AGENCY has the authority to enter into said Agreement and to undertake the project hereinafter described, and the DEPARTMENT has been granted the authority to function adequately in all areas of appropriate jurisdiction and is authorized under Fla. Stat. §334.044 to enter into this Agreement; and 

	2. 
	2. 
	WHEREAS, the AGENCY by Resolution No. ____ dated the __ day of ______, ___, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, has authorized its officers to enter into this Agreement. 


	NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and representations contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
	1.-SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	The AGENCY shall furnish certain services as described in ATTACHMENTS A and B, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Locations, activities, quantities, cycles, and unit costs to be performed are listed in ATTACHMENT A. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Descriptions ofhow the activities are to perfonned are included in ATTACHMENT B. 

	4. 
	4. 
	A Supplemental Agreement shall be executed by both panies for any additions or deletions to the work described in ATTACHMENTS A and/or ATTACHMENT B. No work may commence without an executed Supplemental Agreement involving any such changes or revisions required to be covered in a Supplemental Agreement. Perfonnance of any such services prior to the execution of a Supplemental Agreement will result in nonpayment ofthose services. 


	S. The DEPARTMENT will be entitled at all times to be advised, at its request, as to the status of work being done by the AGENCY and of the details thereof. Coordination shall be maintained by the AGENCY with representatives ofthe DEPARTMENT. 
	6. All services shall be performed by the AGENCY to the satisfaction of the Director who shall decide all questions, difficulties and disputes ofany nature whatsoever that may arise under or by reason of this Agreement. The Director's decision upon all claims, questions and disputes shall be final and binding upon all parties. Adjustments ofcompensation and contract time because of any major changes in the work that may become necessary or desirable shall be left to the absolute discretion ofthe Director. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 
	Page 2 of7 
	7. 
	7. 
	7. 
	The work specified in this Agreement is governed by ATTACHMENT A and ATTACHMENT B. 

	8. 
	8. 
	Reference herein to Director shall mean the DEPARTMENT'S District Secretary for District One. or authorized designee. 

	9. 
	9. 
	Upon execution of the Agreement, the NOTICE TO PROCEED signed by the District Secretary, or designee, will be sent to the AGENCY. The NOTICE TO PROCEED must be issued to the AGENCY within sixty (60) days after Agreement execution. 


	II. TERM 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	This Agreement shall take effect on the execution date listed on page 7. The term for providing service under this Agreement shall be a period of three (3) years ("INITIAL SERVICE TERM"). Calculation for the INITIAL SERVICE TERM shall begin on the fourteenth (14) calendar day after issuance of the NOTICE TO PROCEED, or on the day the AGENCY begins work after receipt of the NOTICE TO PROCEED. whichever date is earlier. 
	th


	2. 
	2. 
	Prior to expiration of the INITIAL SERVICE TERM, and subject to mutual agreement of the parties, this Agreement may be renewed ("RENEW AL TERM") for an additional three (3) years. Renewals shall be contingent upon satisfactory performance evaluations by the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT'S performance and obligation to pay under any such renewal is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. Any renewal or extension shall be in writing and executed by both parties, and shall be subject to the sa

	3. 
	3. 
	The AGENCY shall provide services unless terminated in accordance with Section VI below of this Agreement. 


	III. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 
	I. The DEPARTMENT shall pay the AGENCY for services rendered in accordance with this Agreement annually, as follows: 
	Four (4) quarterly lump sum payments will be made in the amount of Four Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars and Sixteen Cents ($). The total annual contract/expenditure amount is Seventeen Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-Two Dollars and Sixty-Four Cents ($). unless the contract is amended. 
	4,468.16
	17,872.64

	The total contract amount, unless amended, for all three (3) years is Fifty-Three 
	Thousand Six Hundred Seventeen Dollars and Ninetv-Two Cents 
	($). 
	53,617.92

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 Page 3 of7 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	The lump sum payment above is based on the unit price for services that are listed in ATIACHMENT A. 

	3. 
	3. 
	The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to retain out ofany payment due the AGENCY under this Agreement an amount sufficient to satisfy any amount due and owing to the DEPARTMENT by the AGENCY on any other Agreement between the AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT. 

	4. 
	4. 
	Payment shall be made only after receipt and approval of goods and services unless advance payments are authorized by the State Comptroller under Fla. Stat. §2 l 5.422( 14). 

	5. 
	5. 
	If this Agreement involves units of deliverables, then such units must be received and accepted in writing by the DEPARTMENT'S Project Manager prior to payments. 

	6. 
	6. 
	Bills for fees or other compensation for services or expenses shall be submitted in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof. 

	7. 
	7. 
	AGENCY providing goods and services to the DEPARTMENT should be aware of the following time frames. Upon receipt, the DEPARTMENT has five (5) working days to inspect and approve the goods and services, unless the Agreement specifies otherwise. The DEPARTMENT has twenty (20) days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the DEPARTMENT of Banking and Finance. The twenty (20) days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the goods or services are received, inspected and approved

	8. 
	8. 
	If a payment is not available within forty (40) days, a separate interest penalty in accordance with Fla. Stat. §215.422(3)(b), will be due and payable, in addition to the invoice amount, to the AGENCY. Interest penalties of less than one (I) dollar will not be enforced unless the AGENCY requests payment. Invoices which have to be returned to an AGENCY because of AGENCY preparation errors will result in a delay in the payment. The invoice payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice 

	9. 
	9. 
	A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the DEPARTMENT of Banking and Finance. The duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for contractors/vendors who may be experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state AGENCY. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516. 

	10. 
	10. 
	Records of costs incurred under tenns of this Agreement shall be maintained and made available upon request to the DEPARTMENT at all times during the period of this Agreement and for three (3) years after final payment is made. Copies of these documents and records shall be furnished to the DEPARTMENT upon request. Records of costs incurred include the AGENCY'S general accounting records and the project records, together with supporting documents and records of the AGENCY and all subcontractors performing w


	l 1. The DEPARTMENT, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this subsection is null and void, and no 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 Page 4 of7 
	money may be paid on such contract. The DEPARTMENT shall require a statement from the Comptroller of the DEPARTMENT that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract or other binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the making of contracts for periods exceeding one year, but any contract so made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years. Accordingly, the State of Florida's performance an
	12. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract w
	IV. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	LIABILITY INSURANCE. The AGENCY shall carry and keep in force during the period ofthis Agreement a general liability insurance policy or policies with a company or companies authorized to do business in Florida, affording public liability insurance with combined bodily injury limits of at least $250,000 per person and $500,000 each occurrence, and property damage insurance of at least $50,000 each occurrence, for the services to be rendered in accordance with this Agreement. In the alternative, the AGENCY m

	2. 
	2. 
	WORKER'S COMPENSATION. The AGENCY shall also carry and keep in force Worker's Compensation insurance as required for the State of Florida under the Worker's Compensation Law. In the alternative, the AGENCY may satisfy the requirements of this paragraph by providing to the DEPARTMENT written evidence ofbeing self-insured. 

	3. 
	3. 
	To the extent pennitted by law, AGENCY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless DEPARTMENT against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, or resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of AGENCY, or any of its officers, agents or employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment, in connection with the obligations and rights granted to or exercised by AGENCY hereunder, to the extent and within the limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The foregoing indemnific


	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-78-33 Pages or7 
	DEPARTMENT harmless against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, or resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of said Contractor or Subcontractor or any of their officers, agents or employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment. The indemnities assumed by the AGENCY shall survive termination of this agreement. 
	V. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
	t. The AGENCY shall allow public access to an documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Fla. Stat. §119, and made or received by the AGENCY in conjunction with this Agreement. Failure by the AGENCY to grant such public access shall be grounds for immediate unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by the DEPARTMENT. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	The AGENCY shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work or payment for work thereof, and shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex or national origin in the performance of work under this Agreement. 

	3. 
	3. 
	E-Verify. The Agency shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the Agreement and shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the Agreement to likewise utilize the 


	U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the Agreement term. 
	VI. 
	VI. 
	VI. 
	TERMINATION AND DEFAULT 

	I. 
	I. 
	This Agreement may be canceled by the DEPARTMENT in whole or in part at any time the interest of the DEPARTMENT requires such tennination. The DEPARTMENT also reserves the right to seek termination or cancellation of this Agreement in the event the AGENCY shall be placed in either voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy. The DEPARTMENT further reserves the right to tenninate or cancel this Agreement in the event an assignment is made for the benefit of creditors. This Agreement may be canceled by the AGENCY upo


	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	If the DEPARTMENT determines that the performance of the AGENCY is not satisfactory, the DEPARTMENT shall have the option of(a) immediately terminating the Agreement, or (b) notifying the AGENCY of the deficiency with a requirement that the deficiency be corrected within a specified time, otherwise the Agreement will be terminated at the end of such time, or (c) take whatever action is deemed appropriate by the DEPARTMENT. 

	3. 
	3. 
	If the DEPARTMENT requires termination of the Agreement for reasons other than unsatisfactory performance of the AGENCY, the DEPARTMENT shall notify the AGENCY of such termination, with instructions to the effective date of termination or specify the stage of work at which the Agreement is to be terminated. 


	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 Page 6of7 
	If the Agreement is terminated before performance is completed, the AGENCY shall be paid only for that work satisfactorily performed for which costs can be substantiated. Such payment, however, may not exceed an amount which is the same percentage of the contract price as the amount of work satisfactorily completed is a percentage of the total work called for by this Agreement. All work in progress will become the property of the DEPARTMENT and will be turned over promptly by the AGENCY. 
	VII. MISCELLANEOUS 
	I. The AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT agree that the AGENCY, its employees, and subcontractors are not agents of the DEPARTMENT as a result of this Agreement for purposes other than those set out in Fla. Stat. §337.274. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	All words used herein in the singular form shall extend to and include the plural. All words used in the plural form shall extend to and include the singular. All words used in any gender shall extend to and include all genders. 

	3. 
	3. 
	This Agreement embodies the whole agreement of the parties. There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto. 

	4. 
	4. 
	It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of this Agreement is by the courts held to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of Florida, the validity of the remaining portiong or provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular part, tenn or provision held to be invalid. 

	5. 
	5. 
	This Agreement shalJ be governed by and construed in accordance with the Jaws of the State ofFlorida. 


	VIII. ATTACHMENTS 
	I. AU AITACHMENTS referenced in this Agreement are incorporated and made a part of this Agreement. 
	ATTACHMENT A -Location and Cost Breakdown ATTACHMENT B-Description of Maintenance Activities 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# RE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 Page 7 of7 
	IX. EXECUTION 
	In witness whereof, CITY OF POLK CITY has caused this Agreement to be executed in its behalf, by the ______ or its designee, as authorized by its Resolution. and the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this agreement to be executed in its behalf through its District Secretary or authorized designee. The execution date of this Agreement shall be this ___day of ______ _ _ _ ___ 
	FOOT to enter effective date. 
	POLK CITY, FLORIDA 
	ATTEST: 
	BY: i3Y: 
	CLERK 
	(SEAL) TITLE 
	DATE PRINT NAME DATE 
	______.LEGAL REVIEW: 
	BY: 
	DATE 
	STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
	ArrEST: 
	BY: BY: 
	EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (SEAL) DISTRICT ONE SECRETARY OR DESIGNEe 
	PRINT NAME DATE PR1NTNAME DATE 
	AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS APPROVAL: 10/3/2019 
	Figure
	DATE DATE 
	~.1 DISTRICT MAINTENANCE ADMINISTRATOR .,)iijt"t\PPROVAL: 
	1 
	DATE 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-78-33 
	Page I of I 
	ATTACHMENT "A" LOCATIONS AND PRICES FOR THE CITY OF POLK CITY 
	Location: 1 Section: 160700000 Mlle Post: 11.391 -15.620 State Road: SR 33., Beg Inat Mt 011ve Road t0 639' N orth of Yamaha Lane 
	I

	Activity 
	Activity 
	Activity 
	Quantitv 
	Units 
	Cvcles 
	Unit Cost 
	Location Cost 

	Large Machine Mowing 
	Large Machine Mowing 
	39.78 
	Acres 
	11 
	$16.70 
	$7,307.59 

	Slope Mowini::a 
	Slope Mowini::a 
	2.4 
	Acres 
	6 
	$83.20 
	$1,198.08 

	Intermediate Machine Mowing 
	Intermediate Machine Mowing 
	0.4 
	Acres 
	11 
	$49.50 
	$217.80 

	Litter Removal 
	Litter Removal 
	42.58 
	Acres 
	14 
	$9.40 
	$5,603.53 

	Edoina and Sweeoina 
	Edoina and Sweeoina 
	1.845 
	Miles 
	6 
	$85.00 
	$940.95 


	Location: 2 Section: 161600000 Mlle Post: 8.279 -10.068 
	I

	State Road· . 
	SR 559 Beg Inat CR 557/C amp Gilead R oad to SR33
	'1 
	Activity 
	Quantity 
	Units 
	Unit Cost
	Cvcles 
	Location Cost 
	larQe Machine MowinQ 
	8.261 
	11 
	$16.70
	AcrF.IS 
	$
	1,517.55 

	8.261 
	$9.40
	Litter Removal 
	Acres 
	14 
	$
	1,087.15 

	SUMMARY 
	SUMMARY 
	SUMMARY 
	Quantity 
	Units Cost 
	Cycles 

	Activity 
	Activity 

	Laree Machine Mowing 
	Laree Machine Mowing 
	48.041 
	$16.70 
	11 

	Slope Mowim:i 
	Slope Mowim:i 
	2.4 
	$83.20 
	6 

	Intermediate Machine Mowina 
	Intermediate Machine Mowina 
	0.4 
	$49.50 
	11 

	Litter Removal 
	Litter Removal 
	50.841 
	$9.40 
	14 

	Edaina and Sweepino 
	Edaina and Sweepino 
	1.845 
	$85.00 
	6 


	Total Annual Cost $Four Quarterly Payments $
	17,872.64 
	4,468.16 

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 1of32 
	ATTACHMENT "8" SPECIFICATIONS 
	AW ARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT-PUBLIC RECORDS. (REV 10-17-16) (FA 10-24-16) (7-19) ARTICLE 3-9 is expanded by the following: 
	IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: 
	District 1 863-519-2623 Florida Department of Transportation District 1 -Office of General Counsel 801 N. Broadway Bartow, FL 33830 
	D 1 prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us 

	SECTION 102 
	MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 





	102-1 Description. 
	102-1 Description. 
	Maintain traffic within the limits ofthe project for the duration ofthe construction period, including any temporary suspensions ofthe work. Construct and maintain detours. Provide facilities for access to residences, businesses, etc., along the project. Furnish, install and maintain traffic control and safety devices during construction. Furnish and install work zone pavement markings for maintenance oftraffic (MOT) in construction areas. Provide any other special requirements for safe and expeditious move
	the work zone. 
	Do not maintain traffic over those portions ofthe project where no work is to be accomplished or where construction operations will not affect existing roads. Do not obstruct or create a hazard to any traffic during the performance ofthe work, and repair any damage to existing pavement open to traffic. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 2 of32 
	102-2 Materials. 
	Meet the following requirements: 
	Bituminous Adhesive ......................................... Section 970 
	Temporary Raised Pavement Markers ............... Section 990 
	Paint ............................. .... ......................................... Section 971 
	Removable Tape ................................................ Section 990 
	Glass Spheres ........................ , ..,.. ,............................... Section 971 
	Temporary Traffic Control Device Materials .... Section 990 Retroreflective and Nonreflective Sheeting for Temporary Traffic Control Devices ............. Section 994 
	102-2.1 Temporary Traffic Control Devices: Use on]y the materials meeting the requirements ofSection 990, Section 994, Standard Plans and the Manual on Unifonn Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). 
	102-2.2 Detour: Provide all materials for the construction and maintenance ofan 
	detours. 
	102-2.3 Commercial Materials for Driveway Maintenance: Provide materials ofthe type typica1ly used for base, including reclaimed asphalt pavement (RAP) material, and having stability and drainage properties that wil1 provide a finn surface under wet conditions. 
	102-3 Specific Requirements. 102-3.1 Beginning Date of Contractor's Responsibility: Maintain traffic starting the day work begins on the project or on the first day Contract Time is charged, whichever is earlier. 
	102-3.2 Worksite Traffic Supervisor: Provide a Worksite Traffic Supervisor who is responsible for initiating, installing, and maintaining al1 temporary traffic control devices as described in this Section and the Contract Documents. Provide all equipment and materials needed to set up, take down, maintain traffic control, and handle traffic-related situations. Use approved alternate Worksite Traffic Supervisors when necessary. 
	The Worksite Traffic Supervisor must meet the personnel qualifications specified in Section 105. 
	The Worksite Traffic Supervisor is to perfonn the following duties: 
	1. On site direction of all temporary traffic control on the project. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	Is on site during all set up and take down and perfonns a drive through inspection immediately after set up. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Is on site during all nighttime operations ensuring proper temporary traffic control. 

	4. 
	4. 
	Immediately corrects all safety deficiencies and corrects minor deficiencies that are not immediate safety hazards within 24 hours. 

	5. 
	5. 
	Is available on a 24 hour per day basis and present at the site within 45 minutes after notification ofan emergency situation and is prepared to respond to maintain temporary traffic control or to provide alternate traffic arrangements. 


	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page3of32 
	6. Conducts daily daytime and weekly nighttime inspections ofprojects with predominately daytime work activities, and daily nighttime and weekly daytime inspections ofprojects with predominantly nighttime work activities ofall traffic control devices, traffic flow. pedestrian, bicyclist, and business accommodations. 
	Advise the project personnel ofthe schedule ofthese inspections and give them the opportunity to join in the inspection as deemed necessary. Pedestrians are to be accommodated with a safe, accessible travel path around work sites separated from mainline traffic in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for Transportation Facilities. Maintain existing or detour bicyc)e facilities satisfactorily throughout the project limits. Existing businesses in work areas are to be provided wi
	The Department may disqualify and remove from the project a Worksite Traffic Supervisor who fails to comply with the provisions ofthis Section. The Department may temporarily suspend all activities, except traffic, erosion control and such other activities that are necessary for project maintenance and safety, for failure to comply with these provisions. 
	102-3.3 Lane Closures: Approval for all lane closures, mobile operations, and traffic pacing operations is required. Submit routine requests to the Engineer fourteen calendar days in advance ofplanned lane closures, mobile operations, and traffic pacing operations. For , unforeseen events that require cancelling or rescheduling lane closures, mobile operations, and traffic pacing operations, revise the lane closure request as soon as possible. 
	102-4 Alternative Traffic Control Plan. 
	The Contractor may propose an alternative traffic control plan (TCP) to the plan presented in the Contract Documents. The Contractor's Engineer of Record must sign and seal the alternative plan and submit to the Engineer. Prepare the TCP in conformance with and in the fonn outlined in the current version ofthe FOOT Design Manual. Indicate in the plan a TCP foreach phase ofactivities. Take responsibility for identifying and assessing any potential impacts to a utility that may be caused by the alternate TCP 
	For projects with nighttime lane closure restrictions where paving is expected to extend into the winter months, the Contractor may propose an alternative TCP allowing for daytime lane closures for friction course paving. The alternative TCP must be a Jane closure analysis based;on actual traffic counts and prepared in accordance with the FOOT Design Manua1. 
	Engineer's approval ofthe alternate TCP does not relieve the Contractor ofsole responsibility for all utility impacts, costs, delays or damages, whether direct or indirect, resulting from Contractor initiated changes in the design or construction activities from those in the original Contract Specifications, Design Plans (including TCPs) or other Contract Documents and which effect a change in utility work different from that shown in the Utility Plans, joint project agreements or utility relocation schedul
	The Department reserves the right to reject any alternative TCP. Obtain the Engineer's written approval before beginning work using an alternate TCP. The Engineer's written approval is required for all modifications to the TCP. The Engineer will only allow changes to the TCP in an emergency without the proper documentation. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 4 of32 
	102-5 Traffic Control. 
	102-5 Traffic Control. 
	102-5.1 Standards: FOOT Standard Plans are the minimwn standards for the use in the 
	development of all TCPs. The MUTCD, Part VI is the minimum national standard for traffic 
	control for highway construction, maintenance, and utility operations. Follow the basic principles 
	and minimum standards contained in these docwnents for the design, application, installation, 
	maintenance, and removal ofall traffic control devices, warning devices and barriers which are 
	necessary to protect the public and workers from hazards within the project limits. 
	102-5.2 Maintenance of Roadway Surfaces: Maintain an lanes that are being used for the MOT, including those on detours and temporary facilities, under all weather conditions. Keep the Janes reasonably free ofdust, potholes and rutting. Provide the lanes with the drainage facilities necessary to maintain a smooth riding surface under all weather conditions. 
	102-5.3 Number of Traffic Lanes: Maintain one lane oftraffic in each direction. 
	Maintain two lanes oftraffic in each direction at existing four (or more) lane cross roads, where 
	necessary to avoid undue traffic congestion. Construct each lane used for MOT at least as wide 
	as the traffic lanes existing in the area before commencement of construction. Do not allow 
	traffic control and warning devices to encroach on lanes used for MOT. 
	The Engineer may allow the Contractor to restrict traffic to one-way operation for short periods oftime provided that the Contractor employs adequate means oftraffic control and does not unreasonably delay traffic. When a construction activity requires restricting traffic to one-way operations, locate the flaggers within view ofeach other when possible. When visual contact between flaggers is not possible, equip them with 2-way radios, official, or pilot vehicles, or use traffic signals. 
	102-5.4 Crossings and lntenections: Provide and maintain adequate accommodations for intersecting and crossing traffic. Do not block or unduly restrict any median opening, road or street crossing the project unless approved by the Engineer. Before beginning any construction, submit to the Engineer the names and phone numbers ofpersons that can be contacted when signal operation malfunctions. 
	102-5.5 Access for Residences and Businesses: Provide continuous access to all residences and all places ofbusiness. 
	102-5.6 Protection of the Work from Injury by Traffic: Where traffic would be injurious to a base, surface course, or structure constructed as a part ofthe work, maintain all traffic outside the limits ofsuch areas until the potential for injury no longer exists. 
	102-5.7 Flagger: Provide flaggers to control traffic when traffic in both directions must use a single lane and in other situations as required. All flaggers must meet the personnel qualifications specified in Section 105. 
	102-S.8 Conflicting Pavement Marktngs: Where the lane use or where normal vehicle or pedestrian paths are altered during construction, remove all pavement markings (paint, tape, thermoplastic, raised pavement markers, etc.) that will conflict with the adjusted vehicle or pedestrian paths. Use ofpaint to cover conflicting pavement markings is prohibited. Remove conflicting pavement markings using a method that will not damage the surface texture ofthe pavement and which will eliminate the previous marking pa
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432717-1-72-33 Page5of31 
	Remove an pavement markings that will be in conflict with "next phase of 
	operation.. vehicle pedestrian paths as described above, before opening to vehicle traffic or use 
	by pedestrians. 
	Cost for removing conflicting pavement markings (paint, tape, thennoplastic, 
	raised pavement markers, etc.) to be included in Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 
	102-S.9 Vehicle and Equipment Visibility: Equip all pickups and automobiles used on the project with a minimum ofone Class 2 warning light that meets the Society ofAutomotive Engineers Recommended Practice SAE 1595, dated November 1, 2008, or SAE 1845, dated December 1, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference. Existing lights that meet SAE 1845, dated March, 1992, or SAE 11318, dated April, 1986, may be used to their end ofservice Iife. The warning lights must be a high intensity amber or white rotating,
	Equip all other vehicles and equipment with a minimum of4 square feet of retroreflective sheeting or warning lights. 
	No Waiver of Liability: Conduct operations in such a manner that no undue hazard results due to the requirements ofthis Article. The procedures and policies described herein in no way acts as a waiver of any terms ofthe liability ofthe Contractor or his surety. 
	102-5.10 

	102-6 Detours. 
	102-6.1 General: Construct and maintain detour facilities wherever it becomes necessary to divert traffic, including pedestrians and bicyclists, from any existing facility, or wherever construction operations block the flow oftraffic. 
	102-6.2 Construction: Plan, construct, and maintain detours for the safe passage of traffic in all conditions ofweather. Provide the detour with all facilities necessary to meet this requirement. 
	Where pedestrian facilities are detoured, blocked or closed during the work, provide safe alternate accessible routes through or around the work zone meeting the requirements ofthe ADA Standards for Transportation Facilities. When temporary walkway surfaces and ramps are required to be constructed, ensure surfaces are stable, firm, slip resistant, and kept free ofany obstructions and hazards such as holes, debris, mud, construction equipment and stored materials. 
	When the Plans call for the Department to furnish detour bridge components, construct the pile bents in accordance with the Plans, unless otherwise authorized by the Engineer. 
	Provide two Contractor representatives, who will be directly involved in the erection ofDeparbnent-owned temporary bridging, to attend a mandatory one-day training session to be conducted at the Department's storage facility. No bridging will be released to the Contractor prior to the completion ofthis training. 
	Submit the following: company name, phone number, office address, project contact person, names ofthe representatives who will attend the training described above, project 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 6of32 
	number, detour bridge type, bridge length, span length, location and usage time frames, to the 
	Engineer at least 30 calendar days before the intended pick-up date, to obtain the storage facility 
	location and list of components for the project. Upon receipt, the Engineer will, within 
	IO calendar days submit an approved material list to the Contractor and the appropriate 
	Department storage yard. 
	Submit the name ofthe representative with authority to pick up components, to 
	the Engineer at least IO calendar days before the proposed pick-up date. The Department is net 
	obligated to load the bridge components without this notice. Take responsibility and sign for 
	each item loaded at the time ofissuance. 
	Provide timber dunnage and transport the bridge components from the designated storage facility to the job site. Unload, erect, and maintain the bridge, then dismantle the bridge and load and return the components to the designated storage facility. 
	Notify the Engineer in writing at least 10 calendar days before returning the components. Include in this notice the name ofthe Contractor's representative authorized to sign for return ofthe bridge components. The yard supervisor is not obligated to unload the bridge components without this notice. 
	The Department will provide equipment and an operator at the Department's storage facility to assist in loading and unloading the bridge components. Furnish all other labor and equipment required for loading and unloading the components. 
	The Department's representative will record all bridge components issued or returned on the Detour Bridge Issue and Credit Ticket. The tickets must be signed by a Department and a Contractor representative, after loading or unloading each truck to document the quantity and type ofbridging issued or returned. 
	Bind together all bridge components to be returned in accordance with the instructions given by the storage facility. The yard supervisor will repack components that are not packed in compliance with these instructions. Upon request, written packing instructions will be made available to the Contractor, before dismantling ofthe bridge for return to the Department's storage facility. 
	Assume responsibility for any shortage or damage to the bridge components. Monies due the Contractor will be reduced at the rate of$35.00 per hour plus materials for repacking, repairs or replacement ofbridge components. 
	The skid resistance ofopen steel grid decking on the detour bridge may decrease gradually after opening the bridge to traffic. The Department will furnish a pneumatic floor scabbier machine for roughening the roadway surface ofthe detour bridge decking. Provide an air compressor at the job site with 200 cubic feet per minute capacity, 90 psi air pressure for the power supply ofthe machine, and an operator. Transport the scabb)er machine to and from the Department's structures shop. Repair any damage to the 
	Return the bridge components to the designated storage facility beginning no later than 10 calendar days after the date the detour bridge is no longer needed, the date the new bridge is placed in service, or the date Contract Time expires, whichever is earliest. Return the detour bridging at an average ofnot less than 200 feet per week. Upon failure to return the bridge 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 7of32 
	components to the Department within the time specified, compensate the Department for the 
	bridge components not returned at the rate of$5.00 per JO feet, per day, per bridge, for single 
	lane; and $10.00 per 10 feet, per day, per bridge, for dual lane until the bridge components are 
	returned. to the Department. 
	102-6.3 Construction Methods: Select and use construction methods and materials that 
	provide a stable and safe detour facility. Construct the detour facility to have sufficient durability 
	to remain in good condition, supplemented by maintenance, for the entire period that the detour 
	is required. 
	102-6.4 Removal of Detours: Remove detours when they are no longer needed and before the Contract is completed. Take ownership of all materials from the detour and dispose of them, except for the materials on loan from the Department with the stipulation that they are returned. 
	102-6.S Detours Over Existing Roads and Streets: When the Department specifies that traffic be detoured over roads or streets outside the project area, do not maintain such roads or streets. However, maintain all signs and other devices placed for the purpose ofthe detour. 
	102-6.6 Operation of Existing Movable Bridges: The Department will maintain and operate existing moveable bridges that are to be removed by the Contractor until such time as they are closed to traffic. During this period, make immediate repairs ofany damage to such structures caused by use or operations related to the work at no expense to the Department, but do not provide routine repairs or maintenance. In the event that use or operations result in damage to a bridge requiring repairs, give such repairs t
	102-6.7 Special Detour: A special detour is defined as a diversion or lane shift for vehicular traffic that requires temporary pavement. 
	102-6.8 Pedestrian Special Detour: A pedestrian special detour is defined as a temporary pedestrian way that requires temporary pavement or other $table, firm, slip-resistant surface. 
	102-7 Traffic Control Officer. 
	Provide uniformed law enforcement officers, including marked law enforcement vehicles, to assist in controlling and directing traffic in the work zone when the following types ofwork is necessary on projects: 
	I. When directing traffic/overriding the signal in a signalized intersection. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	When Standard Plans, Index 102-619 is used on freeway facilities (interstates, toll roads, and expressways) at nighttime for work within the travel lane. 

	3. 
	3. 
	When Standard Plans, Index 102-655 Traffic Pacing is called for in the Plans or approved by the Engineer. 

	4. 
	4. 
	When pulling conductor/cable above an open traffic lane on limited access facilities, when called for in the Plans or approved by the Engineer. 

	5. 
	5. 
	When Standard Plans, Index 102-625 Temporary Road Closure 5 Minutes or Less is used. 

	6. 
	6. 
	When perfonning lane closures during nighttime operations on roadways with posted speed limits 55 mph or greater. 


	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 8of32 
	At the Contractor's option, traffic control officers may be used for operations other than 
	those listed above. 
	Cost for traffic control officers will be paid for as described in 102-11.2. 
	The Department will not consider any claim arising from the failure of a traffic control officer to be present or available on the project. A noncompensable time extension may be granted when a state or local emergency requires an area law enforcement officers to be on-duty and not available for hire. 
	102-8 Driveway Maintenance. 102-8.1 General: Ensure that each residence and business has safe, stable, and reasonable access. 102-8.2 Construction Methods: Place, level, manipulate, compact, and maintain the material, to the extent appropriate for the intended use. 
	As pennanent driveway construction is accomplished at a particular location, the Contractor may salvage and reuse previously placed materials that are suitable for reuse on other driveways. 
	102-9 Temporary Traffic Control Devices. 
	102-9.1 Installation and Maintenance: Install and maintain temporary traffic control devices as detailed in the Plans, Index I02-600 ofthe Standard Plans and when applicable, in accordance with the approved vendor drawings, as provided on the Department's Approved Product List (APL). Erect the required temporary traffic control devices to prevent any hazardous conditions and in conjunction with any necessary traffic re~routing to protect the traveling public, workers, and to safeguard the work area. Use onl
	The APL number is to be pennanently marked on the device at a readily visible location. Sheeting used on devices is exempt from this marking requirement. 
	Notify the Engineer in writing ofany scheduled operation that wiU affect traffic patterns or safety sufficiently in advance ofcommencing such operation to permit review ofthe plan for the proposed installation oftemporary traffic control devices. 
	Assign an employee the responsibility ofmaintaining the position and condition ofall temporary traffic control devices throughout the duration ofthe Contract. Keep the Engineer advised at all times ofthe identification and means of contacting this employee on a 24 hour basis. 
	Maintain temporary traffic control devices in the correct position, properly oriented, clearly visible and clean, at all times. All applicable temporary traffic control devices must meet the classification category ofAcceptable as defined in the American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA) Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and Features. Temporary concrete barriers must meet the classification category ofAcceptable defined in the Department's Temporary Concrete Barrier Evaluati
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-71-33 Page 9of32 
	https:/ /tootwww. blob.core. wi ndows.nct/si tefinit y/ docs/dcfaultsourcc/programmanagcment/implementcd/urlinspecs/filcs/docs/dcfaul t-source/contentdocs/programmanagemcnt/implcmented/urlinspccs/files/tcmporaryconcrctebarricrguide. pd[pdf? sfvrsn=343b4c97 10. Pedestrian longitudinal channelizing devices (LCDs) must meet the classification category ofAcceptable as defined in the Pedestrian LCD Evaluation Guide, which may be viewed at the following URL: .blob.core.wi ndows.nct/sitefini ty/docs/dcfaultsour
	https://fdotwww 

	16 2. Immediately repair, replace or clean damaged, defaced or dirty devices. Traffic control devices must not be cleaned while installed/used. Use ofwarning lights on any temporary traffic control device is prohibited, with the exception ofthe trailer mounted portable regulatory signs. 
	Employ an approved independent Channelizing Device Supplier (CDS) to provide and maintain the condition of the following non-fixed channelizing devices: drums, cones, vertical panels, barricades, tubular markers, and longitudinal channelizing devices. Cones may be provided and maintained by the Contractor. 
	The CDS shall not be affiliated with the Contractor and shall be approved by the Engineer in accordance with I 02-9.1.1. The CDS shall submit a monthly certification on letterhead that the channelizing devices mentioned above instaUed/used within the work zone meet classification category of Acceptable as defined in the Pedestrian LCD Evaluation Guide and the ATSSA Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control Devices and Features. The CDS shall submit the monthly certification on letterhead for channeli
	102-9.1.1 Approved Independent Channelizing Device Supplier (CDS) Requirements: Submit the foUowing documents to the Engineer for independent CDS approval at the preconstruction conference. A CDS may elect to provide a one-time submittal ofthis infonnation to the State Construction Office for review and pre-approval. Department approv_ed CDSs are listed on the State Construction Office website. Infonn the Engineer at the preconstruction conference ofthis approval. 
	1. A letter on company letterhead signed and dated by the owner ofthe company or company officer with the following infonnation and statements: 
	a. The company's owners, stockholders, and officers. 
	b. A statement declaring that the company will not perfonn as a CDS on any project where there is common ownership, directly or indirectly, between the company and the Contractor. 
	MAINTENAN~E AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727•1•72-33 Page 10 of32 
	c. A statement declaring that the company will furnish and maintain the condition ofall channelizing devices with the exception ofcones as required in I 02
	-

	9.1 with its own forces. 
	d. 
	d. 
	d. 
	A statement declaring at least five years ofexperience in providing channelizing device supplier services, with its own inventory ofchannelizing devices. 

	e. 
	e. 
	On a separate sheet, list a slllTlple project history ofthe company's experience as a channelizing device supplier for the five years declared in item l(d) above including the following information: 

	I
	I
	I
	. Project name and number and a brief description ofCDS work perfonned, 

	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	Beginning and ending date ofCDS project activities, 

	3. 
	3. 
	Location ofproject (city, state), 

	4. 
	4. 
	Monetary lllTlount ofCDS work on project, 




	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	Owner ofproject, contact person and phone number with area code, 

	6. 
	6. 
	Name ofContractor (client) that the work was performed for and phone number with area code. 


	2. A maintenance plan for approval by the Department that outlines the frequency and methods for maintaining the condition ofall channelizing devices, except cones owned and maintained by the Contractor, installed/used in the work zone. 
	102-9.2 Work Zone Signs: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate signs in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102-600. Use signs that meet the material and process requirements ofSection 994. Use Type IV sheeting for fluorescent orange work zone signs. Roll-up signs must meet the requirements ofType VI sheeting. Use Type IV or Type XI sheeting for alJ other work zone signs. Attach the sign to the sign support using hardware meeting the manufacturer's recommendations on the APL vendor
	102-9.2.1 Post Mounted Sign,i: Meet the requirements of990-8. 
	102-9.2.2 Portable Signs: Use only approved systems, which includes sign stands and attachment hardware (nuts, bolts, clamps, brackets, braces, etc.), meeting the vendor requirements specified on the APL drawings. Provide Federal Highway Administration's (FHWA) accepted sign substrate for use with accepted sign stands on the National Highway System (NHS) under the provisions ofthe NCHRP Report 350 "Recommended Procedures for the Safety Perfonnance Evaluation ofHighway Features." 
	102-9.2.3 Barrier Mounted Signs: If post mounting criteria cannot be achieved in accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-600 and a barrier or traffic railing exists, use temporary sign criteria provided in Standard Plans, Index 700-013. 
	102-9.3 Business Signs: Provide and place signs in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102 series. Furnish signs having retroreflective sheeting meeting the requirements ofSection 990. 
	102-9.4 Project Information Signs: Provide and place signs in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102 series. Furnish signs having retroreflective sheeting meeting the requirements ofSection 990. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 11 of32 
	102-9.S Channelizing Devices: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate 
	channelizing devices in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans. 
	l02-9.5.1 Retroreftective Collars for Traffic Cones: Use collars for traffic 
	l02-9.5.1 Retroreftective Collars for Traffic Cones: Use collars for traffic 
	cones listed on the APL that meet the requirements ofSection 990. Use cone collars at night 
	designed to properly fit the taper ofthe cone when installed. Place the upper 6 inch collar a 
	unifonn 3-1/2 inches distance from the top ofthe cone and the lower 4 inch collar a unifonn 2 
	inches distance below the bottom ofthe upper 6 inch collar. 
	Col1ars must be capable ofbeing removed for temporary use or attached pennanently to the cone 
	in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Provide a white sheeting having a 
	smooth outer surface and that has the property ofa retroreflector over its entire surface. 
	102-9.5.2 Longitudinal Channelizing Devices (LCDs): Use LCDs listed on the 
	APL and meeting the requirements ofSection 990 and the Standard Plans. LCDs must be 
	interlocked except for the stand-alone unit placed perpendicular to a sidewalk. For LCDs 
	requiring internal ballasting, an indicator that clearly identifies the proper bal1ast level will b~ 
	required. For LCDs requiring external ballasting, the ballasting methods must be detailed in the 
	APL drawings including ballasting type and minimum weight. 
	Ensure that joints on the pedestrian LCDs are free ofsharp edges and have 
	a maximum offset of 1/2 inch in any plane. 
	Use alternating orange and white solid color vehicular LCDs. Vehicular 
	LCDs may be substituted for drums, vertical panels, or barricades. 
	102-9.6 Temporary Barrier: Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate temporary barrier in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans. Obtain and use precast temporary concrete barrier from a manufacturing plant that is on the Department's Production Facility Listing. Temporary concrete barrier must meet the material and construction requirements of Section 521 unless noted otherwise in the Standard Plans. Proprietary temporary concrete, steel, or water filled barrier used must be listed on the APL. 
	The maximum allowable height increase between consecutive temporary barrier 
	units in the direction oftraffic is 1 inch. 
	Temporary barrier must comply with Standard Plans, Index 102-100 or 102-120. Install temporary barriers as either anchored or freestanding as shown in the Plans or the Standard Plans. An anchored unit is defined as having at least one stake or bolt into the underlying pavement or bridge deck. All other units, including those with keeper pins, are considered freestanding. 
	Remove temporary asphalt pads and repair all attachment scars to permanent structures and pavements after barrier removal. Make necessary repairs due to defective material, work, or Contractor operations at no cost to the Department. Restore barrier damaged by the traveling public within 24 hours after notification as authorized by the Engineer. 
	Trailer mounted barriers listed on the APL may be used at the option ofthe Contractor. Trailer mounted barriers listed on the APL must have an FHWA eligibility letter and be successfully crash tested in accordance with MASH TL-3 criteria. All trailer mounted baniers must be equipped with an APL listed truck mounted attenuator, an APL listed vehicle mounted ,arrow board and vehicle warning lights in accordance with this Section. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 12 of32 
	102-9.6.l.1 Temporary Barrier Meeting the Requirements of Standard Plans, Index 102-120 and 102-110: Ensure the marking requirements ofthe respective Index are met. 
	102-9.6.2.2: Proprietary Precast Temporary Concrete Barrier Fabricated prior to 200S: Submit a certification stating that all unmarked barrier units meet the requirements ofthe Specifications and the Standard Plans. Certifications will be project specific and non-transferable. 


	102-9.6.2.3 Proprietary Precast Temporary Concrete Barrier 
	102-9.6.2.3 Proprietary Precast Temporary Concrete Barrier 
	Fabricated in 2005 or later: Ensure each barrier unit has pennanent clear markings, showing the 
	manufacture date, serial number, manufacturer's name or symbol, and the APL number. Label the 
	markings on a plate, plaque, or cast in the unit. Proprietary harrier fabricated prior to 2016 and 
	marked with the "INDX 521" in lieu ofthe APL number will be pennitted. 
	102-9.6.2.4 Temporary Concrete Barrier Repair: Before beginning the repair, remove all laitance, loose material, and any other deleterious matter to sound concrete or a minimum depth ofone inch. Additionally, when reinforcing bars, inserts or weldments are exposed, remove the concrete to provide a minimum one inch clearance all around. Fill the repair area with an approved high performance concrete repair material in accordance with 930-5 and the manufacturer's recommendations. Restore surfaces and edges to
	Repairs are not allowed on barrier units that have one or more of the following deficiencies: structural cracking or cracks that exist through the entire cross-section; unit-to-unit connection assemblies or anchor slots are broken or no longer in a fixed position. 
	Do not paint repaired barriers. 102-9.7 Barrier Dellneators: Install barrier delineators on top oftemporary barrier and vehicular LCDs meeting the requirements ofSection 705. 
	102-9.8 Temporary Glare Screen: Use temporary glare screens listed on the APL that meet the requirements ofSection 990. Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate glare screen systems in conjunction with temporary barrier at locations identified in the Plans. 
	The anchorage ofthe glare screen to the barrier must be capable ofsafely resisting an equivalent tensile load of600 pounds per foot ofglare screen, with a requirement to use a minimum of three fasteners per barrier section. 
	When glare screen is utilized on temporary barrier, barrier delineators will not be required. 
	102-9.9 Temporary Crash Cushion (Redirective or Gating): Furnish, install, maintain and subsequently remove temporary crash cushions in accordance with the details and notes shown in the Plans, Standard Plans, and requirements ofthe pre-approved alternatives listed on the APL. 
	-

	Temporary crash cushions can be either new or used functionally sound refurbished devices. Perfonnance ofintended function is the only condition for acceptance. All metallic components must be galvanized in accordance with Section 967. 
	Anchor abutting temporary barrier in accordance the Standard Plans or APL drawings, as required. Bidirectional installations must have a transition panel installed between the crash cushion and the abutting barrier. DeUneate the crash cushion in accordance with 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM # 432727-1-72-33 Page 13of32 
	Section 544. Maintain the crash cushions until their authorized removal. Do not place any 
	materials or equipment within the length ofthe crash cushion. 
	Remove temporary asphalt or concrete pads and repair all attachment scars to 
	permanent structures and pavements after crash cushion removal. Make necessary repairs due to 
	defective material, work, or Contractor operations at no cost to the Department. Restore crash 
	cushions damaged by the traveling public within 24 hours after notification as authorized by the 
	Engineer. 
	Furnish temporary guardrail in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans. Meet the requirements ofSection 536. 
	102-9.10 Temporary Guardrail: 

	Arrow Board: Furnish arrow boards that meet the requirements ofSection 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans to advise approaching traffic oflane closures or shoulder work. Ensure that the arrow board display panel is raised to a fully upright position and is fully visible to motorists. Type B arrow boards may be used on low to intermediate speed (0 mph to 50 mph) facilities or for maintenance or moving operations on any speed facility. Type C arrow boards must be used for all other operations on 
	102-9.11 

	Furnish PCMSs or truck mounted changeable message signs that meet the requirements ofSection 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans to supplement other temporary traffic control devices used in work zones. Ensure that the PCMS display panel is raised to a fully upright position and is ful)y visible to motorists. 
	102-9.12 Portable Changeable Message Sign (PCMS): 

	Messages must have no more than two phases. The display time for each phase must be at least two seconds but no more than three seconds. The sum ofthe display time must be a maximum of six seconds. 
	Portable Regulatory Signs (PRS): Furnish PRSs that meet the requirements of Section 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans. Ensure that the PRS sign panel is raised to a fully upright position and is fully visible to motorists. 
	102-9.13 

	Activate portable regulatory signs only during active work activities and deactivate when no work is being performed. 
	(RSDU): Furnish RSDUs that meet the requirements ofSection 990 as required by the Plans and Standard Plans to inform motorists of the posted speed and their actual speed. Ensure that the RSDU display panel is mounted in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. 
	102-9.14 Radar Speed Display Unit 

	Activate the radar speed display unit only during active work activities and deactivate when no work is being performed. 
	and Maintenance: Provide temporary signalization and maintenance at existing, temporary, and new intersections including but not limited to the following: 
	102-9.15 Temporary Signalization 

	1. Installation oftemporary poles and span wire assemblies as shown in the Plans, 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	Temporary portable traffic signals as shown in the Plans, 

	3. 
	3. 
	Adding or shifting signal heads, 

	4. 
	4. 
	Trouble calls, 

	5. 
	5. 
	Maintaining intersection and coordination timing and preemption 


	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# B£877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 14 of32 
	devices. Coordination timing will require maintaining functionality ofsystem communications. 
	Restore any loss ofoperation within 12 hours after notification. Provide alternate 
	temporary traffic control until the signalization is restored. 
	Provide traffic signal equipment that meets the requirements of the Standard Plans 
	and 603-2. The Engineer may approve used signal equipment ifit is in acceptable condition. 
	Replacement components for traffic signal cabinet assemblies will be provided by the 
	maintaining agency. For temporary signals used for lane closure operations on two-lane, two
	way roadways meet the requirements in I 02-9.21. 
	and Maintenance: Provide temporary traffic detection and maintenance at existing, temporary, and new signalized intersections. Provide temporary traffic detection equipment listed on the APL. Restore any loss ofdetection within 12 hours. Ensure 90% accuracy per signal phase, measured at the initial installation and after any lane shifts, by comparing sample data collected from the detection system with ground truth data collected by human observation. Collect the sample and ground truth data for a minimum o
	102-9.16 Temporary Traffic Detection 

	and Trailer Mounted Attenuators: Furnish, operate and maintain APL listed truck mounted and trailer mounted attenuators in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. 
	102-9.17 Truck Mounted Attenuators 

	For posted speeds of 50 mph or greater, use either truck mounted attenuators or trailer mounted attenuators that meet TL-3 criteria {NCHRP Report 350 or MASH). For posted speeds of45 mph or less, use either truck mounted attenuators or trailer mounted attenuators that meet TL-2 or TL-3 criteria (NCHRP Report 350 or MASH). 
	Attenuators will not be paid for separately. Include the cost ofthe truck with either a truck mounted attenuator or a trailer mounted attenuator in Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. Payment includes all costs, including furnishing, operating maintaining and removal when no longer required, and all materials, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals required for attenuator maintenance. 
	Rumble Strip Set: Furnish, install, maintain, remove, and reinstall temporary raised rumble strips per the manufacturer's recommendations and in accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-603. 
	102-9.18 Temporary Raised 

	The temporary raised rumble strip may be either a removable polymer striping tape or a molded engineered polymer material. 
	Devices (AFAD): Furnish, install, maintain, remove, and relocate AF ADs in accordance with the Plans, Standard Plans, Index I 02-603, and APL vendor drawings. 
	102-9.19 Automated Flagger Assistance 

	Position AFADs where they are clearly visible to oncoming traffic. AFADs may be placed on the centerline ifthey have been successfully crash tested in accordance with MASH TL-3 criteria. A gate ann is required in accordance with Section 990 if a single AFAD is used on the shoulder to control one direction oftraffic. 
	The devices may be operated either by a single flagger at one end ofthe traffic control zone, from a central location, or by a separate flagger near each device location. Use only flaggers trained in accordance with Section I 05 and in the operation ofthe AFAD. When in use, each AFAD must be in view of, and attended at all times by, the flagger operating the device. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page 1Sof32 
	Provide two flaggers on-site and use one ofthe following methods in the deployment ofAFADs: 
	1. Place an AFAD at each end ofthe temporary traffic control zone, or 
	2. Place an AFAD at one end ofthe temporary traffic control zone and a flagger at the opposite end. 
	A single flagger may simultaneously operate two AF ADs as described in (1) or a single AFAD as described in (2) ifall ofthe following conditions are met: 
	1. The flagger has an unobstructed view ofthe AFAD(s), 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	The flagger has an unobstructed view of approaching traffic in both directions, 

	3. 
	3. 
	For two AF ADs, the AFADs are less than 800 feet apart. For one AFAD, the AFAD and the flagger are less than 800 feet apart. 

	4. 
	4. 
	Two flaggers are available on-site to provide normal flagging operations should an AFAD malfunction. AFADs may be either a remotely controlled Stop/Slow AF AD mounted on either a trailer or a movable cart system, or a remotely controlled RedNellow Lens AFAD. 


	Illuminate the flagging station when the AF AD is used at night. When the AFAD is not in use, remove or cover signs and move the AFAD device outside the clear zone or shield it with a barrier. 
	AFADs will not be paid for separately. AF ADs may be used as a supplement or an alternate to flaggers in accordance with the Plans, Standard Plans, Index I 02-603, and the APL vendor drawings. Include the cost for AFADs in Maintenance ofTraffic, Lump Sum. 
	Furnish, install, maintain, remove and relocate temporary lane separator in accordance with the Plans and Standard Plans, Index 102-600. Anchor the portable temporary lane separator with a removable anchor bolt. Use epoxy on bridge decks where anchoring is not allowed. Remove the epoxy from the bridge deck by hydroblasting or other method approved by the Engineer. 
	102-9.20 Temporary Lane Separator: 

	Temporary Signals for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way Roadways: 
	102-9.21 

	Furnish, install, maintain, remove, and relocate temporary signals for lane closure operations on two-lane, two-way roadways at the locations shown in the Plans. Temporary signals may be used, at the Contractor's option, as an alternate to flaggers for lane closure operations on two-lane, twoway roadways in accordance with Standard Plans, Index 102-606. Temporary signals can either be portable signals or span wire signals and must be listed on the APL. 

	102-10 Work Zone Pavement Marking. 
	102-10 Work Zone Pavement Marking. 
	102-10.1 Description: Furnish and install work zone pavement markings for MOT in construction areas and in close conformity with the lines and details shown in the Plans and Standard Plans. 
	Centerlines, lane lines, edge lines, stop bars, standard crosswalks, and tum arrows will be required in work zones prior to opening the road to traffic. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727•1•72-33 Page 16of31 

	102.10.2 Painted Pavement Markings: 
	102.10.2 Painted Pavement Markings: 
	102-10.2.1 General: Use painted pavement markings meeting the requirements of Section 710. Use standard paint unless otheiwise identified in the Plans or approved by the Engineer. 
	102-10.3 Removable Tape: 102-10.3.1 General: Use removable tape listed on the APL as shown in the Plans and meeting the requirements of990-4. 
	102-10.3.2 Application: Apply removable tape with a mechanical applicator to provide pavement lines that are neat, accurate and uniform. Equip the mechanical applicator with a film cut-off device and with measuring devices that automatically and accumulatively measure the length of each line placed within an accuracy tolerance ofplus or minus 2%. Ensure removable tape adheres to the road surface. Removable tape may be placed by hand on short sections, 500 feet or less, ifit is done in a neat accurate manner
	102-10.3.3 Retroreflectivity: Apply white and yellow pavement markings that will attain an initial retroreflectivity ofnot less than 300 mcd/lx·mfor white and contrast markings and not less than 250 mcd/lx·mfor yellow markings. Black portions ofcontrast tapes and black masking tapes must be non-reflective and have a reflectance ofless than 5 med/Ix m• At the end ofthe six month service life, the retroreflectance ofwhite and yellow removable tape shall not be less than 150 mcd/lx·m• 
	2 
	2 
	2
	2

	102-10.3.4 Removability: Provide removable tape capable ofbeing removed from bituminous concrete and portland cement concrete pavement intact or in substantially large strips, either manually or by a mechanical roll-up device, at temperatures above 400F, without the use of heat, solvents, grinding or blasting. 
	102-10.4 Temporary Raised Pavement Markers (RPMs): Use Class B RPMs except for work that consists ofground-in mmble strips at centerline locations. For ground-in rumble strips at centerline locations, use temporary RPMs in accordance with Section 710. Provide only temporary RPMs listed on the APL. Install all markers in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, the Standard Plans, and Section 706. After initial installation, replace broken or missing temporary RPMs in locations where more than thr

	102-11 Method of Measurement. 
	102-11 Method of Measurement. 
	102-11.1 General: Devices installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof, within the Contract Time, including time extensions which may be granted, will be paid for at the Contract unit price for the applicable pay item. Include the cost ofany work that is necessary to meet the requirements ofthe Contract Documents for MOT under Maintenance of Traffic, lump sum when separate payment is not provided. 
	102-11.2 Traffic Control Officers: The quantity to be paid for traffic control officers as specified in 102-7(1) through (5) will be at the Contract unit price per hour (4 hour minimum) for the actual number ofofficers certified to be on the project site, including any law enforcement vehicles and all other direct and indirect costs. Payment will be made only for those traffic control officers specified in the Plans and authorized by the Engineer. 
	Cost for traffic control officers as specified in I 02-7(6) or used at the Contractor's option will be paid for under Maintenance of Traffic, lump sum. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page 17of32 
	102-11.3 Special Detours: When a special detour is shown in the Plans, the work of constructing, maintaining, and subsequently removing such detour facilities will be paid for under Special Detour, lump sum. However, traffic control devices, warning devices, barriers, signing, pavement markings, and restoration to final configuration will be paid for under their respective pay items. 
	When the Plans show more than one special detour, each special detour will be paid for separately, at the Contract lump sum price for each. 
	102-11.4 Commercial Material for Driveway Maintenance: The quantity to be paid for will be the certified volume, in cubic yards, of all materials authorized by the Engineer, acceptably placed and maintained for driveway maintenance. The volume, which is authorized to be reused, and which is acceptably salvaged, placed, and maintained in other designated driveways will be included again for payment. 
	102-11.S Work Zone Signs: The number oftemporary post-mounted signs (temporary regulatory, warning and guide) certified as installed/used on the project will be paid for at the Contract unit price for work zone signs. When multiple signs are located on single or multiple posts, each sign panel will be paid individually. Signs greater than 20 square feet and detailed in the Plans will be paid for under Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 
	Temporary portable signs (excluding mesh signs) and vehicular mounted sign~ will be included for payment under work zone signs, only if used in accordance with the Standard Plans. 
	The number oftemporary barrier mounted signs (temporary regulatory, warning and guide) certified as installed/used on the project will be paid for at the Contract unit price for barrier mounted work zone signs. 
	Work zone signs may be installed fourteen days prior to the start ofContract Time with the approval ofthe Engineer and at no additional cost to the Department. 102-11.6. Business Signs; The number ofbusiness signs certified as installed/used on the project will be paid for at the Contract unit price for business signs. 102-11.7 Project Information Signs: No separate payment will be made for project information signs. Payment will be included under Maintenance ofTraffic, lump sum. 
	102-11.8 Channelizing Devices: The number ofdrums, vertical panels, and Type I, Type II, Type III, or direction indicator barricades, certified as installed/used on the project meeting the requirements ofStandard Plans, Index l02-600 and have been properly maintained will b"e paid for at the Contract unit prices for channelizing device. 
	Payment for drums, vertical panels, and Type I, Type II, Type Ill, and direction indicator barricades wi11 be paid per each per day. 
	Payment for vehicular LCDs will be paid as the length in feet installed divided by the device spacing for barricades, vertical panels, and drums and certified as installed/used on the project meeting the requirements of Standard Plans, Index 102-600 and have been properly maintained will be paid for at the Contract unit price for channelizing device. 
	Payment for pedestrian LCDs will be paid as the plan quantity length in feet, in place and accepted. For sidewalk closures, the plan quantity length will be based on the width of the sidewalk. The quantity ofpedestrian LCDs will be paid for regardless ofwhether materials are new, used, or relocated from a previous installation on the project. Placement ofpedestrian LCDs at locations not shown in the Plans, or not authorized by the Engineer, will be at the 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page 18of32 
	Contractor's expense. Payment for pedestrian LCD mounted signs will be made under Work 
	Zone Signs, per each per day. 
	Payment will not be made for channelizing devices unsatisfactorily maintained, as determined by the Engineer. Payment will be made for each channelizing device that is used to delineate trailer mounted devices. Payment will be made for channelizing devices delineating portable changeable message signs during the period beginning 14 working days before Contract Time begins as authorized by the Engineer. 
	102-11.9 Temporary Barrier: The quantity to be paid for will be the length, in feet, of freestanding units or anchored units certified as installed/used on the project. The quantity to be paid for relocating barrier will be based on the relocated installation type. No separate payment will be made for the asphalt pad. 
	Barrier Delineators: No separate payment will be made for barrier delineators installed on top of temporary barrier and vehicular LCDs. Include the cost for barrier delineators in the cost of the barrier or vehicular LCD. 
	102-11.10 

	Temporary Glare Screen: The certified quantity to be paid for will be determined by the number ofsections times the nominal length ofeach section. Temporary Crash Cushions: No separate payment will be made for the concrete or asphalt pad. 
	102-11.11 
	102-11.12 

	102-11.12.1 Redlrective: The quantity to be paid for will be the nuinber oftemporary crash cushions (redirective) certified as installed/used and maintained on the project, including anchoring oftemporary barrier necessary for transition to the crash cushion and delineation. 
	102-11.12.2 Gating: The quantity to be paid for will be the number oftemporary crash cushions (gating) certified as installed/used and maintained on the project, including anchoring of temporary barrier necessary for transition to the crash cushion and delineation. 
	Temporary Guardrail: The quantity to be paid for will be the length, in feet, oftemporary guardrail constructed and certified as installed/used on the project. The length of a run ofguardrail will be determined as a multiple ofthe nominal panel lengths. 
	102-11.13 

	Arrow Board: The quantity to be paid at the contract unit price will be for the number ofarrow boards certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof within the Contract Time. 
	102-11.14 

	Portable Changeable Message Sign: The quantity to be paid at the Contract unit price will be for the number ofPCMSs or truck mounted changeable message signs certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof within the Contract Time. Payment will be made for each portable changeable message sign that is used during the period beginning fourteen working days before Contract Time begins as authorized by the Engineer. 
	102-11.1S 

	Portable Regulatory Signs: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of portable regulatory signs certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof within the Contract Time, will be paid for the Contract unit price for portable regulatory sign. 
	102-11.16 

	Radar Speed Display Unit: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of radar speed display units certified as installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof within the Contract Time, will be paid for the Contract unit price for radar speed display unit. 
	102-11.17 

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page 19 .of 32 
	Temporary Signalization and Maintenance: For existing intersections, the 
	102-11.18 

	certified quantity to be paid for will be the number ofsignalized intersections per day for the full 
	duration ofthe Contract. For temporary intersections, the certified quantity to be paid for will be 
	the number ofsignalized intersections per day for the duration ofthe temporary intersection. No 
	separate payment will be made for temporary signalization and maintenance at new intersections. 
	and Maintenance: For existing intersections, 
	102-11.19 Temporary Traffic Detection 

	the certified quantity to be paid for will be the number of signalized intersections per day 
	beginning the day Contract Time begins and ending the day the permanent detection is 
	operational and the final lane configuration is in place. For temporary and new intersections, the 
	certified quantity to be paid for will be the number of signalized intersections per day ~eginning 
	the day the temporary detection is functional and ending the day: the permanent detection is 
	operational and the final lane configuration is in place for a new intersection; or, when the 
	detection is removed for a temporary intersection. 
	Work Zone Pavement Markings: The quantities ofwork zone pavement 
	102-11.20 

	markings authorized and acceptably applied under this Section and certified as installed/used on 
	the project, will be paid for as follows: 
	1. The length in gross miles, of solid, 10' -30' skip, 3'-9' dotted, 6 • -10' dotted, and 2 '-4' dotted lines. 
	The gross mile measurement will be taken as the distance from the beginning ofthe painted line to the end of the painted line and will include the unmarked gaps for skip and dotted lines. The gross mile measurement will not include designated unmarked lengths at intersections, tum lanes, etc. Final measurement will be determined by plan dimensions or stations, subject to 9-1.3 .1. 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	The length, in linear feet, oftransverse lines, diagonal lines, chevrons, and parking spaces. 

	3. 
	3. 
	The number ofpavement messages, symbols, and arrows. Each arrow is paid as a complete marking, regardless ofthe number of"points" or directions. 


	4. The number oftemporary RPM's authorized and acceptably applied. 
	Temporary Raised Rumble Strips: The quantity to be paid for will be the number ofcalendar days, or portions thereof, that temporary raised rumble strips are certified as installed/used on the project within the Contract Time. The number ofstrips used must meet the requirements ofStandard Plans, Index 102-603. No adjustment will be made to the per day measurement for the number ofstrips or sets used, or for the number of times the sets are relocated. 
	102-11.21 

	Temporary Lane Separator: The quantity to be paid for will be the field measure, in feet, oftemporary lane separator certified as installed/used on the project, including drainage gaps, completed and accepted. 
	102-11.22 

	Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way Roadways: The quantity to be paid for will be the number of temporary signals per day installed/used at the locations shown in the Plans. Temporary signals installed/used at the Contractor's option as an alternative to flaggers will be included in Maintenance ofTraffic, Jump sum. 
	102-11.23 Temporary Signals for 

	Temporary Highway Lighting: When temporary highway lighting is required by the Plans, the work ofconstructing, maintaining, and removing the temporary 
	102-11.24 

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432717-1-72-33 PagelO of32 
	highway lighting, including all materials and any necessary design work, will be paid for under 
	temporary highway lighting, lump sum. 
	Pedestrian Special Detours: When a pedestrian special detour is shown in the 
	102-11.25 

	Plans, the work ofconstructing, maintaining, and subsequently removing such detour facilities 
	will be paid for under pedestrian special detour, lump sum. However, traffic control devices, 
	warning devices, barriers, signing, pavement markings, and restoration to final configuration will 
	be paid for under their respective pay items. 

	102-12 Submittals. 
	102-12 Submittals. 
	102-12.1 Submittal Instructions: Prepare a certification ofquantities, using the Department's current approved form, for certified MOT payment items for each project in the Contract. Submit the certification ofquantities to the Engineer. The Department will not pay for any disputed items until the Engineer approves the certification ofquantities. 
	102-12.2 Contractor's Certification of Quantities: Request payment by submitting a certification ofquantities no later than Twelve O'clock noon Monday after the estimate cut-off date or as directed by the Engineer, based on the amount ofwork done or completed. Ensure the certification consists ofthe following: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Contract Number, FPID Number, Certification Number, Certification Date and the period that the certification represents. 

	2. 
	2. 
	The basis for arriving at the amount ofthe progress certification, less payments previously made and less an amount previously retained or withheld. The basis wilJ include a detail breakdown provided on the certification ofitems ofpayment in accordance with 102-13. After the initial setup ofthe MOT items and counts, the interval for recording the counts will be made weekly on the certification sheet unless there is a change. This change will he documented on the day ofoccurrence. Some items may necessitate 


	102-13 Basis of Payment. 
	102-13.1 Maintenance of Traffic (General Work): When an item ofwork is included in the proposal, price and payment will be full compensation for all work and costs specified under this Section except as may be specifically covered for payment under other items. 
	102-13.2 Traffic Control Officen: Price and payment will be full compensation for the services ofthe traffic control officers. 
	102-13.3 Special Detours: Price and payment will be full compensation for providing all detour facilities shown in the Plans and all CO:.its incurred in carrying out all requirements ofthis Section for general MOT within the limits ofthe detour, as shown in the Plans. 
	102-13.4 Commercial Materials for Driveway Maintenance: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work and materials specified for this item, including specifically all required shaping and maintaining ofdriveways. 
	102-13.S Work Zone Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work and materials for furnishing signs, supports and necessary hardware, installation, relocating, maintaining and removing signs. 
	102-13.6. Business Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all materials and labor required for furnishing, installing, relocating, maintaining, and removing the signs as we]) as the cost of installing any logos provided by business owners. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page 21 of31 
	102-13.7 Project Information Signs: Price and payment will be full compensation for all 
	materials and labor for furnishing, installing, relocating, maintaining and removing signs. 
	102-13.8 Channelizing Devices: Prict:S and payment will be full compensation for 
	fumishing, installing. relocating, maintaining and removing the channelizing devices. 
	102-13.9 Temporary Barrier: Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing. maintaining, and removing the barrier and asphalt pad. When called for, temporary barrier (relocate) will be full compensation for relocating the barrier. 
	102-13,10 Temporary Glare Screen: Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing. installing. maintaining, and removing the glare screen certified as installed/used on the project. When called for, glare screen (relocate) will be full compensation for relocating the glare screen. 
	or Gating): Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, maintaining, and removing crash cushions and concrete or asphalt pads. 
	102-13.11 Temporary Crash Cushion (Redirective 

	Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing all materials required for a complete installation, including end anchorage assemblies and any end connections to other structures and for installing, maintaining and removing guardrail. 
	102-13.12 Temporary Guardrail: 

	Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing arrow boards. 
	102-13.13 Arrow Board: 

	Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing portable changeable message signs. 
	102-13.14 Portable Changeable Message Sign: 

	Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, relocating. operating, maintaining and removing a completely functioning system as described in these Specifications. 
	102-13.15 Portable Regulatory Signs: 

	Payment will include all labor, materials, incidentals, repairs and any actions necessary to operate and maintain the unit at all times that work is being performed or traffic is being affected by construction and/or MOT operations. 
	Unit: Price and payment will be made only for a completely functioning system as described in these Specifications. Payment will include all labor, hardware, accessories, signs, and incidental items necessary for a complete system.Payment will include any measurements needed to ensure that the unit conforms to all Specification requirements. 
	102-13.16 Radar Speed Display 

	Payment will include all labor, materials, incidentals, repairs and any actions necessary to operate and maintain the unit at all times that work is being performed or traffic is being affected by construction and MOT operations. Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, relocating, maintaining and removing radar speed display unit. 
	and Maintenance: Price and payment will constitute full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining and removing temporary traffic control signals including all equipment and components necessary to provide an operable traffic signal. Payment will be withheld for each day at each intersection where the temporary signalization is not operational within 12 hours after notification. 
	102-13.17 Temporary Signalization 

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Pagell of32 
	Temporary Traffic Detection and Maintenance: Price and payment will constitute full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining and removing temporary traffic detection including all equipment and components necessary to provide an acceptable signalized intersection. Take ownership ofall equipment and components. Payment will be withheld for each day at each intersection where the temporary detection is not operational within 12 hours after notification. 
	102-13.18 

	Work Zone Pavement Markings: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work specified including, all cleaning and preparing ofsurfaces, furnishing ofall materials, application, curing and protection ofall items, protection oftraffic, furnishing of all tools, machines and equipment, and all incidentals necessary to complete the work. Final payment will be withheld until all deficiencies are corrected. 
	102-13.19 

	Removable tape may be substituted for standard paint at no additional cost to the Department. Payment for temporary RPMs used to supplement line markings will be paid for under temporary raised pavement markers. Install these RPMs as detailed in the Standard Plans. 
	Temporary Raised Rumble Strips: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work and materials described in this Section, including all cleaning and preparing ofsurfaces, disposal of all debris, furnishing of all materials, application, curing, removal, reinstalling and protection of all items, protection oftraffic, furnishing ofall tools, machines and equipment, and al1 incidentals necessary to complete the work. 
	102-13.20 

	Temporary Lane Separator: Price and payment will be full compensation for all work specified in this Section. 
	102-13.21 

	Temporary Signals for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two-Way Roadways: Price and payment will be full compensation for furnishing, installing, operating, maintaining and removing temporary traffic signal including all equipment and components necessary to provide an operable portable traffic signal. 
	102-13.22 

	Price and payment will be full compensation for providing all temporary highway lighting shown in the Plans. Price and payment will be full compensation for providing all pedestrian special detours shown in the Plans. 
	102-13.23 Temporary Highway Lighting: 
	102-13.24 Pedestrian Special Detours: 

	Payment Items: Payment will be made under: 
	102-13.2S 

	Item No. I 02-I-Maintenance ofTraffic -lump sum. 
	Item No. I 02-2-Special Detour -lump sum. 
	Item No. I02-3-Commercial Material for Driveway Maintenance -per 
	cubic yard. 
	Item No. 102-4-Pedestrian Special Detour -Jump sum. 
	Item No. 102-14-Traffic Control Officer -per hour. 
	ltem No. 102-30-Temporary Highway Lighting -lump sum. 
	Item No. 102-60-Work Zone Sign -per each per day. 
	ltem No. 102-61-Business Sign -each. 
	Item No. 102-62-Barrier Mounted Work Zone Sign -per each per day 
	ltem No. 102-71-Temporary Barrier-per foot. 
	Item No. 102-75-Temporary Lane Separator -per foot 
	ltem No. 102-73-Temporary Guardrail -per foot. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-'11-33 Page23of31 
	Item No. 102-74
	Item No. 102-74
	Item No. 102-74
	-

	Channelizing Devices 

	ltem No. 102-76
	ltem No. 102-76
	-

	Arrow Board -per each per day. 

	ltem No. I 02-78
	ltem No. I 02-78
	-

	Temporary Raised Pavement Markers -each. 

	Item No. 102-81· 
	Item No. 102-81· 
	Temporary Crash Cushion, Gating -per location. 

	Item No. 102-89
	Item No. 102-89
	-

	Temporary Crash Cushion, Redirective-per location. 

	Item No. 102-94
	Item No. 102-94
	-

	Glare Screen -per foot. 

	Item No. 102-99
	Item No. 102-99
	-

	Portable Changeable Message Sign -per each per day. 

	Item No. 102-104
	Item No. 102-104
	-

	Temporary Signalization and Maintenance -per 

	TR
	intersection per day. 

	ltem No. 102-107
	ltem No. 102-107
	-

	Temporery Traffic Detection and Maintenance -per 

	TR
	intersection per day. 

	ltem No. 102-120
	ltem No. 102-120
	-

	Temporary Signal for Lane Closures on Two-Lane, Two

	TR
	Way Roadways per each per day. 
	-


	Item No. 102-150
	Item No. 102-150
	-

	Portable Regulatory Sign -per each per day. 

	Item No. I02-150
	Item No. I02-150
	-

	Radar Speed Display Unit -per each per day. 

	Item No. 102-909
	Item No. 102-909
	-

	Temporary Raised Rumble Strips -per day. 

	Item No. I02-91 I
	Item No. I02-91 I
	Removable Tape (White/Black) -per gross mile. 

	Item No. 102-912
	Item No. 102-912
	-

	Removable Tape (Yellow) -per gross mile. 

	Item No. 710
	Item No. 710
	-

	Painted Pavement Markings. 

	(REV 9-7-18) (7-19) 
	(REV 9-7-18) (7-19) 


	MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC. 
	ARTICLE I 02-3 is expanded by the following new Subarticle: 
	SUBARTICLE 102-3.3 is deleted. 
	102-3.4 MOT Maintenance Services: Provide personnel to perfonn MOT setup, maintenance and take-down duties when a Work Document is issued. 
	Time begins when the Engineer is notified that setup is complete and flagging operations and maintenance ofdevices are ready to begin. Travel time to and from the work site is not included. Provide only one person for the maintenance ofdevices unless otherwise directed by the Engineer. Notify the Engineer when time ends and setup or take-down begins. 
	Mobilization and all costs incurred will be considered incidental to the work. Emergency mobilization will be paid when a Work Document is issued with a start date ofless than 72 hours. 
	SUBARTICLE 102-5.4 is deleted and the following substituted: 
	102-5.4 Crossings and Intersections: Provide and maintain adequate accommodations for intersecting and crossing traffic. Do not block O!' unduly restrict any median opening, road or street crossing the project unless approved by the Engineer. Maintain all existing actuated or traffic responsive mode signal operations for main and side street movements for the duration of 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-71-33 Page 24 of31 
	the work. Restore any loss ofdetection within 12 hours. Use only detection technology listed on the Department's Approved Products List (APL) and approved by the Engineer to restore detection capabilities. Before beginning any construction, submit to the Engineer the names and phone numbers ofpersons that can be contacted when signal operation malfunctions. 
	ARTICLE 102-7 is expanded by the following: 
	Provide off-duty law enforcement officer when required by the Work Document or as directed by the Engineer. 
	SUBARTICLE I 02-9.17 is deleted and the following substituted: 
	Truck Mounted Attenuators and Trailer Mounted Attenuators: Furnish, install and maintain only those attenuators that meet the requirements ofNCHRP 350 or the 
	102-9.17 

	MASH. 
	Use truck mounted attenuators or trailer mounted attenuators, when called for in the Design Standards. Use attenuators listed on the APL. 
	When attenuators are called for, use either a truck mounted attenuator or a trailer mounted attenuator system designed and installed in accordance with the manufacturers recommendations. 
	Equip the attenuator cartridge with lights and reflectors in compliance with applicable Florida motor vehicle laws, including turn signals, dual tail lights, and brake lights. Ensure that lights are visible in both the raised and lowered positions ifthe unit is capable of being raised. 
	Install either alternating black with yellow or white with orange sheeting on the rear oftrailer mounted attenuators and on truck mounted attenuators, in both the operating and raised position. Use Type Ill (work zone) or Type IV sheeting consisting of4 or 6 inch wide stripes installed to form chevrons that point upward. All sheeting except black shall be retroreflective. · 
	Payment wm be made per day when included in the Work Document or as directed by the Engineer. Payment includes all costs for materials, labor, tools, equipment and incidentals required for performing the work clescribed in this Section. 
	SUBARTICLE I 02-11. l is deleted and the following substituted: 
	102-11.1 General: Devices installed/used on the project on any calendar day or portion thereof, within the Contract Time, including time extensions which may be granted, will be paid for at the Contract unit price for the applicable pay item. 
	For this Contract, all pay items with unit "Each Day (ED)" and "Hour (HR)" will be defined as follows: 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page25 of32 
	I. Time for "Each Day" will be calculated in 24 hour increments starting at the time specified in the Work Document. 
	2. "Hour" rates will be paid in increments of 1 hour, rounded up to the hour. 
	ARTICLE I02-11 is expanded by the following new Subarticles: 
	MOT Maintenance Services: The quantity to be paid wilJ be the number of hours that MOT duties are performed, beginning when setup is complete to the initiation of takedown. 
	102-11.23 

	The quantity to be paid will be the number of days, per day, regardless ofthe number oflocations work is perfonned at each site. 
	102-11.25 Truck Mounted Attenuator: 

	ARTICLE 102-12 is deleted. 
	ARTICLE l 02-13.1 is deleted and the following substituted: 

	102-13 Basis of Payment. 
	102-13 Basis of Payment. 
	102-13.1 Maintenance of Traffic (General Work): When an item of work is included in the proposal, price and payment will be full compensation for all work and costs specified under this Section except as may be specifically covered for payment under other items. 
	When the proposal does not include a separate item for Maintenance ofTraffic, all work and incidental costs specified as being covered under this Section will be included for payment under the several scheduled items ofthe overall Contract and no separate payment will be made therefore. 
	SUBARTICLE 13.23 is deleted and the following substituted: 
	Price and payment will be full compensation for work performed. 
	102-13.23 MOT Maintenance Services: 

	Price and payment wil1 be full compensation for proviaing truck mounted attenuators each day regardless ofthe number oflocations work is performed at each site. 
	102-13.24 Truck Mounted Attenuator: 

	Payment will be made under the items shown in the Bid Price Proposal. 
	102-13.25 Payment Items: 

	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM#432727-1-72-33 Page26 of32 


	104-40 ROADSIDE MOWING. (REV 9-24-14) (7-19) 
	104-40 ROADSIDE MOWING. (REV 9-24-14) (7-19) 
	The following new Section is added after Section 104: 
	SECTION 104-40 ROADSIDE MOWING 104-40.1 Description. 
	Mow grass or vegetation in roadside areas with conventional mowing equipment. Use specialized equipment or hand labor when required to perfonn specified work in certain areas or during certain times. Vegetation consists ofplanted and/or natural grasses, weeds, and other vegetation within the area to be mowed. Comply with the current edition ofthe Department•~ "A Guide to Roadside Vegetation Management". 
	104-40.2 Types of Mowing Areas. 104-40.2.1 General: The Engineer will determine the areas to be cut and type ofmowing to be accomplished in each. 
	All hand labor required to perfonn the specified work around appurtenances will be incidental to the type ofmowing being perfonned. Appurtenances include, but are not limited to, sign post and bases, delineator post, fences, guardrail, barrier walls, end walJs, pipes, drainage structures, poles, guys, mail boxes, landscaped areas, and trees. 
	104-40.2.2 Large Machine Mowing: Large machine mowing encompasses the routinely mowed areas ofshoulders, front and back slopes that are 3 horizontal to 1 vertical or less, roadside ditch bottoms, large median islands and similar areas conducive to the use oflarge machine mowing equipment. 
	104-40.2.3 Slope Mowing: Slope mowing is generally limited to slopes greater or steeper than 3 horizontal to I vertical and are relatively inaccessible to the use ofconventional style · equipment, e.g., steep slopes, wet roadside ditch bottoms, canal banks, intersections, overpasses, etc. These type areas will require the use of specialized equipment designed for slope mowing. 
	104-40.2.4 Intermediate Machine Mowing: Intermediate machine mowing consists of mowing areas not accessible by large machine mowing equipment but not conducive to the use ofsmall machine mowing equipment. These areas consist ofshoulders, roadside ditch bottoms, raised median islands, various width utility strips, and similar areas. 
	104-40.2.S Small Machine Mowing: Small machine mowing consists ofmowing areas not accessible by large and intermediate machine mowing equipment. These areas consist of narrow shoulders, landscaped shoulders, narrow roadside ditch bottoms, raised landscaped median islands, narrow width utility strips, and similar areas. 
	104-40.3 Frequency of Mowing. 
	The area and limits ofmowing have been previously established and are distinguishable in the field. Where landscaping has been established or natural landscaping has been preserved. mow confonning to the established mowing contours. Mow up to the limits maintained by the Department and around existing appurtenances located within the roadway right-of-way as directed by the Engineer. 
	The Engineer wm determine the type ofmowing, the estimated number ofacres to be accomplished within a specified number ofcalendar days (cycle), when to begin each mowing 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 
	FM NO.: FM # 432727-1-72-33 Page 27of32 
	cycle, and the total number ofcycles. Complete eacb mowing cycle within (to be determined by the engineer) calendar days ofbeginning the cycle, weather pennitting. The approximate number ofcycles for each type ofmowing will be as follows: 
	Large Machine Mowing ...!L cycles (N/A minimum cycles) Slope Mowing __!_cycles~ minimum cycles) Intennediate Machine Mowing ...!L cycles (NIA minimum cycles) Small Machine Mowing N/A cycles (N/A minimum cycles) Mow Wildflower plots approximately NIA times per year. 
	Wildflower plots or naturally occurring wildflowers are to be avoided when in bloom and when re-seeding. A deduction will not be made from the pay quantities for any wildflower area not mowed, unless it exceeds one acre. 
	Quantities wm be agreed upon prior to beginning work in any area in question. 104-40.4 Equipment. 
	Equip all mowing equipment with a slow-moving vehicle sign located on the rear of the tractor, amber flashing light or white strobe light mounted on the tractor, 18 inch X 18 inch fluorescent orange warning flags mounted on each side of the rear ofthe mower, protective devices on the mower to prevent objects from being thrown into traffic, and safety devices installed by the manufacturer. Properly install and maintain safety devices at all times when the equipment is in use. 
	Ifthe Engineer detennines that any equipment is deficient in safety devices, remove the equipment from service immediately. Keep the equipment out ofservice until the deficiency is corrected to the satisfaction ofthe Engineer. Inspection ofthe equipment by the Engineer will not relieve the Contractor ofresponsibility or liability for injury to persons or damage to property caused by the operation ofthe equipment, nor will it relieve the Contractor ofthe responsibility to meet the established time for the co
	Maintain the mowing equipment so as to produce a clean, sharp cut and uniform distribution of the cuttings at all times. The mowing equipment used will have the capability of cutting a height from 4 inches to 12 inches. 
	Furnish equipment of a type and quantity to perfonn the work satisfactorily within the time specified herein. 
	104-40.S Method of Operation. 
	Begin any mowing cycle when authorized by the Engineer in writing. 
	Notify the Engineer when a cycle is started and when work is interrupted for any reason. 
	Prior to beginning work on the first cycle, provide a pattern or plan for mowing to the Engineer for approval. Subsequent cycles will follow the pattern adopted for the first cycle. 
	Mow shoulders and medians concurrently within the limits ofthe area mowed so that not more than one mile wm be ]eft partiaUy mowed at the conclusion ofthe working day. Mow grass and vegetation on s]opes or around appurtenances concurrent with the mowing operation. 
	Complete each mowing cycle in its entirety prior to beginning another cyc]e. 
	When work by other's, or weather conditions ofa temporary nature, prevent the mowing of any areas, and such conditions are eliminated during the period designated for that mowing 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# B£877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page 28 of32 
	cycle, the Engineer may require mowing of these areas as part ofthe cycle without penalty for 
	exceeding the time allowed or additional compensation. 
	Do not mow-grassed areas saturated with standing water to the point standard mowing 
	equipment may not be used without excessive damage to the turf. At the Engineer's discretion, 
	mow the areas during a subsequent cycle, or cut ~o the surface ofthe water using hand labor or 
	other specialized equipment. Additional compensation may be requested for alternate methods 
	used to mow wet areas (as specified in I 04-40-9). Quantities will be agreed upon prior to 
	beginning work in any area in question. No deduction will be made from the pay quantities for 
	any one area authorized by the Engineer to remain un-mowed during a cycle unless it exceeds 
	one acre in extent. 
	Prior to mowing, pickup, remove and dispo~e from the right-of-way, any large items such as wood, tires, cans, bags of trash, newspapers, magazines, large boxes, etc., that would be tom, ripped, or scattered by the mower and result in an objectionable appearance. 
	Exercise the necessary care to preclude any source oflitter. · 
	104-40.6 Limitation of Operation. 
	Maintenance oftraffic will be in accordance with Section I02. When mowing within four feet ofthe travel-way (travel lane), operate the equipment in the same direction ofthe traffic, unless the adjacent lane is closed to traffic. All lane closures will have the prior approval of the Engineer. Mowers may operate in either direction when mowing four feet or more from the travel-way. 
	Perfonn all work during daylight hours. 
	The foregoing requirements are to be considered as minimum and compliance will in no way relieve the Contractor of final responsibility for providing adequate traffic control devices for the protection ofthe public and employees throughout the work areas. 104-40.7 Quality. 
	Completed areas will be reviewed for quality and acceptance by the Engineer. Re-mow areas determined to be unsatisfactory, by the Engineer, at no additional cost to the Department. Complete areas requiring re-mowing within the mowing cycle time specified in Subarticle 10440-3. 
	-

	Mow all grass and vegetation to a height of6 inches plus or minus J/2 inch. When determined by the Engineer, certain areas, due to location, may be cut to a height of4 inches plus or minus I/2 inch. 
	No streaking or scalping will be allowed in the areas mowed. Mowing areas ofdifferent widths will be connected with smooth flowing transitions. No accumulation or piling ofcuttings will be allowed as a result ofcleaning ofthe equipment. 
	Mow all grass and vegetation on slopes or around appurtenances to the same height and quality as the surrounding mowed area when using hand tools. 
	Negligence that results in damage to turf, curbs, sidewalks, pavement, signs or structures, mail boxes, appurtenances, etc. wil1 be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction ofthe Engineer at no additional cost to the Department. Complete repairs prior to submission ofthe invoice for work accomplished during the cyc)e. 
	It is not required to remove grass or other vegetation cuttings from the right-of-way, or required to rake or pick up the cuttings in rural areas. In Urban Areas, with Small, Intermediate, or Large Machine Mowing the cuttings (to be determined by the engineer} need to be removed 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page29of32 
	from sidewalks, curb & gutter, gutter, and inlets by the Contractor. The use ofblowers (away 
	from traffic) (to be determined by the engineer) be allowed to remove the cuttings. 
	104-40.8 Method of Measurement. 
	The quantities to be paid for will be the area, in acres, ofmowing completed and accepted. 
	104-40.9 Basis of Payment. 
	Additional compensation for hand labor or the use ofspecialized equipment in cutting 
	wet areas will be included under Item No. E104-4-2 Slope Mowing. 
	Prices and payment will be full compensation for furnishing all equipment, materials, labor, and incidentals necessary to complete all mowing operations specified. Compensation will be the unit price per acre for mowing times the actual acres completed and accepted. 
	Payment will be made under the items specified in the Bid Price Proposal. 
	110-30 ROADSIDE LITTER REMOVAL. (REV 8-1-13) (7-19) 
	The following new Section is added at the end ofSection 110: 
	SECTION 110-30 ROADSIDE LITTER REMOVAL 110-30.1 Description. 
	Provide pickup, removal, disposal oflitter, and otherwise undesirable or objectionable appearing debris within the maintained limits ofthe highway right-of-way. Litter or debris may consist ofvaried sizes ofbottles, cans, paper, tires, tire pieces, lumber, vehicle parts, metal junk, brush, and other items to be removed under this work. 
	110-30.2 Frequency ofRemoval. 
	The Engineer will determine when to begin each pickup. Areas or portions ofareas may be increased or decreased, as determined by the Engineer. The total number and the timing of pickup will depend upon the litter conditions that exist. Areas specified as litter removal areas will be picked up approximately 14 times. The actual number oflitter pickups maybe increased or decreased, as determined by the Engineer, due to the intensity oflitter or special events. 
	Complete each litter removal cycle within (to be determined by the engineer) calendar days ofbeginning the cycle, weather permitting, as determined by the Engineer. 
	110-30.3 Equipment. 
	Equipment that is utilized to transport litter will be constructed in a manner to preclude further distribution or loss oflitter along the roadway. Cover and secure all open top carriers with tarpaulins. 
	Submit a written request for approval, to the Engineer, for the use ofspecialized equipment designed for mechanized removal of litter and debris. Demonstrate satisfactory results at no cost to the Department that the specialized equipment will produce quality litter removal, if deemed necessary by the Engineer. The Engineer may require additional safety devices or precautions unique to the equipment. 
	Equipment that damages curbs, pavement, or turf will not be allowed. 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page30of32 

	110-30.4 LJmltation of Operation. 
	110-30.4 LJmltation of Operation. 
	Any equipment left on the right-of-way overnight will be parked outside the clear zone, except in median areas where no equipment will be permitted to be parked overnight. All service and supply operations will be conducted between the travel-way and the right-of-way line and be outside the clear zone. No supply vehicles wm enter the median for any purpose. No service vehicle will enter the median except when necessary to repair or remove inoperable equipment. 
	No work wiJI be pennitted during non-daylight hours. 
	Workmen will wear orange clothing ofhigh visibility such as a vest, shirt, or jacket, when performing litter pickup operations. 110-30.S Disposal of Litter and Debris. 
	Provide locations for disposal and remove all litter that has been placed in trash bags for pick up from the right-of-way at the end ofeach working day. Be responsible for disposal of litter and debris and any cost that may incur in accordance with applicable Federal, State and Local Rules and Regulations. Storage or stockpiling of litter or debris on the right-of-way wil1 not be permitted. 
	Provide the landfill receipts with each invoice submittal. 
	110-30.6 Quality. 
	Completed areas will be reviewed for quality and acceptance by the Engineer. Areas determined to be unsatisfactory, by the Engineer, wil1 be re-cleaned at no additional cost. Areas will be cleaned in a manner that they are left reasonably free ofall litter and debris. The Engineer will not penalize for litter and debris that may have been deposited between the time the work was completed and the time when the Engineer approves the work. However, the Engineer's judgment when evaluating completed work will be
	The quantities to be paid for under this Section will be the number ofacres ofroadside cleaned and accepted. 
	110-30.8 Basis of Payment. 
	Payment will be full compensation for furnishing all equipment, materials, labor, disposal, and incidentals necessary to complete designated areas oflitter and debris removal, less any areas omitted. 
	Payment will be made under the items specified in the Bid Price Proposal. 


	110-32 EDGING (REV 7-12-19) (7-19) 
	110-32 EDGING (REV 7-12-19) (7-19) 
	The following new Section is added at the end ofSection 110: 
	SECTION l l0-32 EDGING 110-32.1 Description. 
	Edge, sweep, remove and dispose of vegetation and debris from curb and gutter and sidewalk areas including, but not limited to, median island curbs, roadside curbs, gutters, the 
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM #432727-1-72-33 Page3t of32 
	front and backside and joint areas ofsidewalks, bike paths, curb in1ets throats and other areas as 
	designated by the Engineer. 
	110-32.2 Frequency 
	The Engineer will determine the tota1 number ofedging cycles and when to begin each cycle. All areas designated are to be edged approximately j times per year. Complete each cycle within (to be determined by the engineer) ca1endar days from the beginning ofthe cyc1e, weather pennitting, as determined by the Engineer. 
	Quantities will be agreed upon prior to beginning work in any area in question. 110-32.3 Equipment. Provide effective means to control dust from all edging operations, including remova1 and disposal ofdebris. Use equipment for removal or transportation ofdebris or litter that prevents distribution or loss ofdebris or litter along the roadway. Operate moving equipment in the same direction as the flow oftraffic. 
	110-32.4 Method of Operation. 
	Do not begin work until authorized, in writing, by the Engineer. Develop a work pattern from the locations listed in the work document, unless the Engineer designates the priority of the work. 
	The blade ofthe edger must produce a clear sharp cut. The trench resulting from the actions ofthe cutting blade must not exceed one inch in width from the edge ofthe surface being edged. Do not allow grass or weeds into the trench. 
	Sweep all debris (grass, weeds, soil, litter, etc.) from the curb and gutters, inlet throats and grates, sidewalk and sidewalk joints, and bike paths to produce a clean appearance. The use ofblowers (away from traffic) (to be determined by the engineer) be allowed to remove the cuttings. 
	Unifonnly cut and remove all vegetation extending over the curb, sidewalk, bike paths, or other designated area to the back edge ofthe curb, sidewalk, bike path, or other designated area, inc)uding sidewalk joints. Removal ofvegetation indudes grass, weeds, or bushes up to one inch in diameter that extend beyond the normal grassed areas onto the curb, sidewalk, bike paths, or other designated areas. 
	Remove and properly dispose of all debris produced by the edging, vegetation removal and sweeping operations from the job site daily. Do not stockpile or store debris on the right-ofway overnight. Dispose of all debris in accordance with Federal, State, and Local Rules and Regulations. Include the cost ofvegetation removal, sweeping, and disposal ofthe debris, litter, soil and vegetation trimmings in the contract unit price for edging. Remove any debris that falls into any part ofthe storm water system at 
	Conduct all edging activities during daylight hours only, unless otherwise specified in the contract documents or approved by the Engineer. The Engineer may approve nighttime operations upon request, at no additional compensation for nighttime traffic control. The Engineer may restrict the hours ofoperations based on peak traffic hours, local conditions, or special events. Complete all required edging operations within the limits worked by the conclusion ofeach workday. In areas where access is blocked by p
	MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NO.: CONTRACT# BE877 FM NO.: FM# 432727-1-72-33 Page32of32 
	The quality and acceptance ofwork will be detennined by the Engineer. Re-edge, including vegetation removal and sweeping, areas that are detennined to be unacceptable at no additional cost to the Department. 
	Repair or replace damage to curbs, sidewalks, pavement, or turf due to negligence to the satisfaction ofthe Engineer at no additional compensation. 
	110-32.S Method of Measurement. 
	Quantities to be paid will be the total number ofmiles ofedging operations completed and accepted, including each pass for roadside, median island, inlet throats, curbs and gutters, bike paths and sidewalks. Areas that are maintained by others, or areas where the grass and/or weeds fail to grow sufficiently to justify perfonning this work may be omitted as determined by the Engineer. 110-32.6 Basis of Payment. 
	Price and payment will be full compensation for all the work specified in this Section and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment will be made under: Ell0-32-1-Edging -mile. 
	City Commission Meeting October 21, 2019 
	AGENDA ITEM #5: Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for CDBG Program 
	__INFORMATION ONLY X ACTION REQUESTED 
	ISSUE: 
	Appointment of Citizen Advisory Task Force for CDBG Program 
	ATTACHMENTS: 
	Applications for Task Force 
	ANALYSIS: 
	Polk City will be applying for CDBG Funds through the State of Florida once the next application period opens, which should be early 2020. One of the requirements is to appoint a Citizen Advisory Task Force, to include at least three members that reside in the area that is qualified to receive funding. We will be looking at the area of Citrus Grove Blvd. (the entire area adjoining). 
	We have five applications to submit, and all qualify for the Task Force. 
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
	Approve the Citizen Advisory Task Force Members as recommended. 
	POLK CITY CITIZEN ADVISORY TASK FORCE (CATF) MEMBER 
	Please circle your Household Size and then circle the Annual Household Income amount that is just above your actual Annual Household Income.* 
	fIHousehokl 1 person 2 person 4person 5 person 6 person 7 person ·~1Site i Annual lessthari less than· Iless tha~l less than I less than less than .Household $571750$41,900 $46,550 I $61,450
	I
	$32,600 $37,250 i 
	Income 
	i 

	Certification: I, the undersigned, certify that the information $tated above Is true and accurately reflects my household composition and•income data. 
	CATF Member: ---+"'~-=-L..:.::::-~ ---=-~-=---=-------0,--' 5-IO,
	~;;....=....-=--_____,;.~ " Date: __·,.... l'--________ 
	Signature 
	Figure
	Typed or Printed Name 
	*As required by the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), the CATF shall have at least five members and must be comprised of residents of the County and at least 51% of the members must be from LMI households. None of the members can be an elected official and only one member can be an employee of the County. jncome data available from the following HUD website: htt : /purta l/datasets1il.html 
	www.huduser.or 

	POLK CITY CITIZEN ADVISORY TASK FORCE (CATF) MEMBER 
	Please circle your Household Size and then circle the Annual Household Income amount that is just above your actual Annual Household Income.• 
	IHousehold 1 person person I4 person 5 petson 6 person 7 person Size Annual less than less than less than less than less than Household $32,600Income $50,300 $54,000 $57,750 ---8 person less than $61,450 
	Certification: I, the undersigned, certify that the information stated above is true and accurately reflects my household composition and income data. 
	Figure
	•As required by the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), the CATF shall have at least five members and must be comprised ofresidents of ttie County and at least 51% of the members must be from LMI households. None of the members can be an elected official arid only one member can be an employee of the County. lncome data available from the following HUD website: 
	http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/:l.html 

	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure












